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and innovation. Our industry-leading flac check packaging
solution is an excellent example of Lean innovation.

Deluxe was the first — and to date is the only — check
manufacturer o introduce a check packaging solution and
fulfillment process designed to address the United States
Postal Service’s (USPS) changing requirements and significant
increase in parcel delivery costs, Spurred by a potential 46%
cost increase, we wotked closely with the USPS, our financial
insticucion and direct check customers and our suppliers ta
find an innovative solution.

Deluxe deployed new equipment and workflow processes
in six locations and began shipping its parent-pending
flat package solution May 14 — the same day the USPS
rate increase took effece. The package is weather-resistant,
tamper-evident, sized for processing through USPS
automated equipment and flexible enough o ficin a

store checks.

The long-term bencfits of this solution will continue to
unfold in 2008 and 2009 as the project teant contnues w
make the process lean through automation and additional
productivity gains. Qur ream is also exploring extended
and new uses for the technology, process

and package.

“Thiz project is a great example of
the one Deluxe enterprise svategy
at work. Our cross-functional
team rose¢ to leadership' speed-to-
marker challenge with an innova-
tve solution. This year well ship
millions of check orders using the
most secure and cost-effeciive method in
the marketplace. And that’ just the beginning.”

Brian Boo
Engineering Manager

Gary Meelhause
Principal Project Manager

IT Cost REDUCTIONS

Deluxe’s Infermation Technology (IT} group in 2007
delivered significant cost savings compared to 2006 spending
levels. We aggressively rencgotiated principal partner contracts
in the areas of data center management, telecommunications,
and hardware and sofrware procurement. These critical
relationships are more flexible and transparent than ever before,
which allows us to work more productively with these partners
to make long-term strategjc decisions,

Qut right-sourcing strategy also is yielding results.

We successfully transitioned more than 80% of our IT
maintenance and support needs to our new outsourcing
partner. We made the strategic decision to in-source

our PC support services, which has allowed us to be faster
and more responsive to the needs of our internal users ar a
per-unic cost saving,

The I'T group is focused in 2008 and beyond on a highest-
value/lowest-cost operating model, We will leverage forward
our enhanced vendor partnership strategy. And we are aggres-
sively pursuing further consolidation and virtualization

of our enierpaise IT infrastracture,
including application streamlin-
ing and data integration.

“My team needed 1o
rencgotiaze a contract —
mid-term — and business
relationship with a key
partner. Our enterprise
serategy calls for changes in
service and cost structure,
as well as greater transparency
Today we are providing
betser services at a lower cost in

Greg Schwab,
Director,

Nerwork Services

and Call Technologies

an enpivonment that enables us
to work with our partner to make
cost-value dectsions in real time.”

KnowLepGE Propucts Drive Resucrs

Deluxe introduced several new knowledge-based solutions
to our FI customers in 2007, Born out of our successful
Deluke Knowledge Exchange™ Collaboratives, these solutions
are driving loyalty, retention and growth for our FI customers.
And strong results are helping Deluxe be viewed by Fls

as the country’s best check provider — and as a trusted
business partner.

DeluxeCalling™ is one example of how Deluxe is creating
value for our bank and credic union customers. Piloted in
2006 and introduced in 2007, DeluxeCalling leverages our
warld-class call centers to help Fls increase account depth
ameng new, third-party borrowers. Highly trained Deluxe
call center associates place outbound calls on behalf of FI
customers with a goal of building relationships — and
accounts — with indirect borrowers,

To date, DeluxeCalling program results are ourperforming
direct mail campaigns 10 to 1. The results of one twe-month
pilot with a 500,000-plus member credit union were staggering,
More than 20% of customers rargeted via DetuxeCalling
visited a branch, and 40% of those visiting a branch opened

at least one additional account. This was up from a 1%
branch-visit rate following the FI's own direct mail campaign.

We will expand the power of DeluxeCalling in 2008

by adding “conversion” cutbound calling services targeting
an Fl's small business or recail customers impacted

by a merger or acquisition. We are also expanding

our pilot oppormnities to test
and measure highly
customized campaigns,

“Our customner care centers
are rated world-class —
among the best of all call
centers in the ULS. Its really

the opportunity to parmer 5o

deeply with our FI customers
on programs that are changing the
relasionships they have with their customers.”

Bev Contreras Ronalda Smith
Qurbound Call Associate, Team Leader,

Phocnix Customer Call Phoenix Customer Call
Care Center Care Center

ReINVENTING OuR E-cOMMERCE PLATFORM

Deluxe was visionary when it entered the ¢-commerce
marketplace in the 1990s. Today, we generate over

$400 million in revenue annually across our e-commerce
Web sites and electronic ordering platforms. mostly coming
from the personal check businesses.

Deluxe'’s future Web strategy is focused on delivering
high-value, personalized customer experiences. In 2007,
Deluxe wpgraded and relaunched Deluxe.com. Our
E-commerce group championed the selection and
implementarion of a best-in-class e-tailing and visualization
platform. We created and implemented a fully functioning
e-1ail Web site to test a high-intimacy, go-10-marker model
for small businesses. And we introduced a new electronic
ordering platform to provide unique ordering experiences
for our financial instirution customers,

Deluxe is focused on and positioned to aggressively acquire
and grow profitable customer relationships through its
e-commerce channels. Legacy brand Web sites will, over

the next 12 ro 24 months, be streamlined under the Deluxe
master brand. This strategy will create a powerful customer
offering by bringing together an expanded, more complete
product and service pordalio. Qur primary customer sales
channels — Web, dircct mail and eall centers — will be
more closely integrated than ever. This will ensure

every customer can interact with

Deluxe via his or her preferred
channels and receive a
high-value experience.

“Deluxes next-generation
e-contmerce and internet
strategy will again make us

a leadrr in creating online
experiences designed to delight
our customers. These experiences
will generate zealous loyalty as we
partner with our customers 1o
grow their businesses, and

in turn, create loyal

customers for them.”

Dan Food
E-marketing Manager

Kelly larson

Executive Director, E-commerc:
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advertising impressions, and our focus on selling additional producrs such as
holiday greeting cards, stored-value gift cards, and premium-priced features
and accessories.

Our focus for 2008 is to continue recapturing share through increased free-scanding
insert adverdsing and enhanced internet search engine spend, acquiring and
retaining customers, and maximizing the lifesime value of our cuscomers by selling
new features and accessories. We are also starting to focus on other products and
services, in addition to checks and relaced accessories, that we can sell directly to
consumers, All these efforts should allow our profitability profile to remain within
one to two points of our operating margin profile from the last several years.

UnrLockiNG Our POTENTIAL

With such exciting opportunities in each of our business segments, we are forging

ahead with the next steps in our transformation. We know we must continue

to improve near-term results, while at the same time continuing to position the
company for long-term success. As we continue our rransformation, we need to
intensify out innovation, product development, and producr launch capabilities.
As we reduce our infrastrucrure costs, we are reinvesting some of these savings

models. All of these then align to create product and service portfolio expansien
opportunities focused on helping our customers grow their businessey. Positioning,
products, services, and content will increasingly be ailored ro specific vertical
market segments. Services will be expanded and aggressively rolledjour and
functionality enhanced to improve the customer buying experience. We will siill
be focused on a lean, simplified, stable core business, and this greac fqundacion

will allow us to more fully realize the porential of our growth initiati

In closing, my sincere thanks to all the people of Deluxe for your anwavering
enthusiasm and dedication, to our customers for your loyalty and frust, w our
partners for your engagement and commitment, and to our sharcholders for
your support and confidence on our exciting transformational joutney.

We believe our future is bright and that we collectively own our sthry. 2008

is 2 pivotal year for Deluxe as we take another positive step in becaming a greac
company again. We are focusing on our customers, waking steps 1ol prove we can
grow revenue while not taking our eyes off of costs, and continuing to improve
profitability and operating cash flow. We have the products, peoplp, and a new
contemporized brand required 1o win. We have built a stronger care foundation

in new products, platforms, enablers, and tools.

Our continued reinvention focuses nat only on how we can help our customers

and now will expand on it in the next steps of our transformation{ We know
that if we execute these focus areas well on our continued journeyd we will

run and protect their businesses, but also grow their businesses. This focus starts

with repositioning Deluxe’s brand framework 1o drive emotional attachment,
distincrive customer experiences, and solid proof of our ability to grow loyal
customers and strengrhen their business performance, We then target customer
experience requirements to leverage Deluxe’s unique position ac the intersection
between Fls and the small business customer, reaching more deeply into vertical
marker segments and expanding relationships based upon growth needs.

These verticals include retailers, contractors, professional services providers,

banks and credir unions.

Lee Schram
Chief Executive Officer

Based upon this, in the future, we see more of a transition to two core

operating models. .. a democratization-of-services model and a premier

model. Democratization of services involves tking existing higher-cost services

and turning them into lower-cost solutions by productizing them for affordability
and scale. The premier model provides customized support, expertise, products, and

services to a well-defined, small group of customers because the economic rerurn
warrants specialized relations and treatment. We are working to define the core

2007 Milestones Bul

UrpaTeDp BranDp Mark, NEW SoLuTIONS

The groundwork was laid in 2007 for the February 2008
introduction of Deluxe’s updated enterprise brand mark.
The contemporary, streamlined design refleets our focus en
the furure, while honoring our heritage and leveraging the
equity of our signature red “I.” The addition of “Corp”
refleces the broadening of our scope beyond checks and
our commicment to being the model solutions parener

for our G-million-plus small business and financial
institution customers.

The updated brand mark is the first step in Debuxe’s migration
to a master brand architecture. Extensive research has pointed
the organization to 2 brand framework rooted in the
strengths of the Deluxe name. During 2008 and 2009 we
will be migrating more than 20 acquired sub-brands to the
Deluxe master brand. This move will create long-term brand
value, while contriburing to enterprise-wide Lean initiatives
and cost reductions.

On a parallel path, our Experience and New Solutions
Groups are working closer together than ever. Our
Experience team works with chousands of financial institution
customers to solve industry challenges and share ideas
through our Collaboratives and Knowledge Exchange

Expos. New solutions, like DetuxeCalling® and che
Welcome Home® Tool Kit, are a direct resule of our
industry-leading experience work.

“In 2008, there will

be even greater focus

on developing solutions
that leverage the

learnings from Deluxes
Collaboratives and
Knowledge Exchange

Fxpos. We understand
customer experience and the
needs of ihe small business and
financial institution customers.
Leveraging this understanding
to develop new customer solusions will be the

driving force behind the repositioning of the Deliexe brand.”

Martic Woods
Chief Experience Officer

Laura Radewald
Viee President,
Enterprise Brand

unlock more of Deluxe’s full potential and create value for our shareholders.
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SuccessruL SENIoR NoTES OFFERING

Anticipating the October 1, 2007 maturing of $325 million.
3.25% senior, unsecured notes, Deluxe in May 2007 readied plans
10 offer $200 million of 7.375% senior, ufsecured notes. This was
the first time in its 93-year history Deluxesought to obtain
funding as a high-yield issuer of debr.

Dreluxe went into the offeting with a strong story 1o sell:

three successive quarters of meeting or excedding our financial
commitmnents and solid evidence that our upnsformation was gaining
traction. Key members of Defuxe’s financigl leadership team told
the company’s story to hundreds of instirutibnal bond investors.

This class of investors was both enthusiastfc and curious abour

the company's progress on its journey from wortld-class check
printer to model business partner targeting financial insticutions,
srnall businesses and consumets.

The bond offering yielded strong
response with overwhelming
demand from investors. The
proceeds provided Deluxe with
the financial flexibilicy to
comfortably meet its October
repayment obligation while
maintaining focus on our
business cransformation.

“The successful bond offering combined 1with
the companys strong financial performance
— including excellent cash flow and credit
natios — put us in 4 great position to stay
focused on our long-term visian for growrh.”

Jeff Johnson.

Assistant Treasurer
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sofid operationat and financial performance in 2007.”

FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS,

20077 was a positive, momentum-building
year for Deluxe on our continued transforma-
tional journey. We are encering the middle
stages of executing our multi-year plan o
deliver greater value to our customers and
investors. We are focused on our journey and
FOUF SUCCESS — OLLE BVESTOTS, CUstpmers,
employees and business partners. The company
is fundamentally changing its operating model,
aggtessively reducing costs and, imporcantly,
starting to invest more heavily in new revenue-
expansion activitdes. We are making strong
progress in our transformation from check
printer to modef business partner for financial
institutions, small businesses, and consumers.
We are focused on innovation in check printing
and cost containment, while driving more of
out focus to new revenlie sources. We now
have in place the core product pertfolio,
organizational structute, and leadership team
that will take us through the next phases

of our transformation.

Lee Schram
Chief Executive Officer

KEey 2007 ACCOMPLISHMENTS

In 2007, we delivered significant improvement in our operating performance,
stabilizing our check revenue base, progressing on new revenue expansion initia-
tives, achieving significant process improvements and resultant cost reductions,
and solidifying our infrastructure for beteer efficiency. We accomplished all this,
while remaining focused on our strong heritage relative to customers, brands
and values. We were successful in achieving $90 million in cost and expense
reductions in 2007, ahead of our original target of $75 to $82 million, and

we expect an addirional $70 million of reductions in 2008.

We realigned our sales and marketing operations and refined our channel
management structure through process centralization, simplification, and platform
and tool consolidation. We made meaningful progress with Lean productivity
improvements in manufacturing and indirect spend reductions, completed
implementation of an innovative new flac check delivery package, and advanced
work on realigning to a common manufacturing platform.

In shared services infrastructure, we significantly reduced the cost of information
technology through system urilization, networking, and veice communication
efficiencies. We completed the cutsourcing of our finance transaction processes,
reduced our real estate square footage 12% and streamlined our human resources
funcrion. We completed a $200 million debr offering to provide us with additional
financial flexibilicy. We also began to position the company for future revenue
growth by laying the initial groundwork for a new e-commerce platform, releasing
the new Deluxe.com, expanding full-color and Web-to-print capabilities and piloe
ing many new loyalty, retention, monitoring, and protection solutions.

This focus and execution allowed us to report solid operational and financial
performance in 2007, increasing operating income 33% and earnings per share
419% from 2006 levels. The company continued to strengthen its balance sheet,
reducing debt mote than $171 million and generating $245 million in operating
cash flow. We recognize there is still a great deal of work to do, but we made
significant progress in 2007, and we are excited about our momentum heading
into 2008. Simply stated, our strategy is on tack,

Next StErs ON OQUR JoUrNEY

Our encerprise focus and strategy is paying off. Leadership is moving the company
in the right direction. We are all rallying around “One Deluxe” and this focus has
allowed us to improve our performance. We are gaining momentum in achieving
process improvemnents and cost reductions. While our work here continues, we
have an improved, more robust infrastructure in place and mare stable core

check businesses.

These are great foundational pillars to build upon. We will not take our eyes
off of costs, but our transformation efforts are now shifting from playing more

defense to playing more offense through our heightened focus on revenue
expansion initiatives. As part of this shift, the time is now in our transformation to
unveil our new corpotate brand identity. Our new design maintains the highly
recognized and powerful red “D” for Deluxe, while creatively showing a clearer and
mote open path to Deluxe — one thar implies we are easier to do business with
and more open to our furure,

Four key strategies will guide us furcher on our journey in 2008, These strategies
will advance us from simply leadership in check printing to more customer-facing
solutions: focusing on customers, growing revenue, improving business processes,
and improving learning and our culture.

We are focusing on our customers with passion and precision, expanding and
optimizing product and service offerings. We are shifting our emphasis from

more on ¢ost containment to tevenue growth by acceleraring and building our
better value propositions for our customers. Business process improvement remains
tantamount (o our straregy. We are streamlining, standardizing, and improving
innovation and efficiencies in everything we do. Finally, we are commirted to
building a highly engaged, winning team in a growth culture of continuous
improvement with faster speed to market and a stronger sense of urgency and
adaprability to change. All these strategies leverage the power of One Deluxe and,
at the same time, allow us t improve the performance in each of our segments.

Small Business Services (SBS)

SBS revenue grew in the low single digits, excluding the sale of the industrial
packaging product line. Operating income consistently improved throughout
2007 with four solid quarters of double-digit performance as a percent of revenue.
We had a strong year of acquiring new customers driven by our Deluxe Business
Advantage® Program, continued expansion of custom color products through

the Johnson Group acquisition, and announced an exciting partnership
with WebsitePros®.

Our focus in 2008 is again on profitable growth. We remain focused on acquiring
new customers and increasing our share of wallet, where we believe we can sell
more personalized forms and related products, as well as higher-growth solutions,
including custom, full-color, digital, Web-to-print, and promotional produces.

In addition, we see more opportunities to help small businesses grow by expanding
our portfolio into marketing services such as logo design, Web site creation,
campaign management, mailing and other related services. We are investing
heavily the first half of the year to build out stronger e-commerce and vertical
segmentation capabilities that we belteve will help us drive higher revenue
growth in the second half of the year and beyond.

Financial Services (FS)

FS revenues stabilized in 2007 and, despite declining check markets, declined
less than 1%. This significant improvement over double-digit declines

the last few years was achieved through continued record rerention rates

and strong new acquisition rates. We continued to simplify our processes

and take complexity out of the business while reducing our cost and expense
structure, which led 1o an improvement in operating income. In addition o
our strong core check revenue, we made progress in advancing new non-check
reventie expansion opportunities in the loyalty, retention, monitoring, and
protection spaces. These new initiatives are helping financial institutions (Fls)
view Deluxe as much more than just a check provider, bue also as a trusted
business partner.

Our focus in 2008 is on retaining core check revenue, acquiring new customers.
and simplifying our business model, as well as providing loyalry, retention,
stored-value gift cards, and monitering and protection products and services
thar differentiate us from competitors and make us a more relevant business

parcner to our FI clients. Some examples include our Deluxe Impressions™

suite, Welcome Home® Tool Kit, DeluxeCalling™ and Deluxe 1D TheftBlock®
— all new loyaley, retention, and menitoring, and protection service offerings.

Direct Checks

Direct Checks revenue also stabilized and declined less than 1%

in 2007, a significant improvement over the double-digit

declines of the last few years. We fortified our

market position by continuing to be )
the nation’s leading -
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PARTI
Item 1. Business.

Deluxe Corporation was incorporated under the laws of the State of Minnesota in 1920. From 1920 until 1988
our company was named Deluxe Check Printers, Incorporated. Our principal corporate offices are located at 3680
Victoria Street North, Shoreview, Minnesota 55126-2966. Qur main telephone number is (651) 483-7111.

COMPANY OVERVIEW

Through our industry-leading businesses and brands, we help small businesses and financial institutions better
manage, promote, and grow their businesses. We use direct marketing, a North American sales force, financial
institution referrals, independent distributors and the internet to provide our customers a wide range of customized
products and services: personalized printed items (checks, forms, business cards, stationery, greeting cards, labels,
and retail packaging supplies), promotional products and merchandising materials, fraud prevention and marketing
services and financial institution customer loyalty and retention programs. We also seli personalized checks,
accessories, stored value gift cards and other services directly to consumers.

BUSINESS SEGMENTS

Our business segments include Small Business Services (SBS), Financial Services and Direct Checks. These
businesses are generally organized by type of customer and reflect the way we manage the company. Additional
information concerning our segments appears under the caption “Note 17: Business segment information” of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements appearing in Item § of this report.

Small Business Services

SBS operates under various brands including Deluxe, New England Business Service, Inc. (NEBS®),
Safeguard®, McBee®, and RapidForms®. This is our largest segment in terms of revenue and operating income, and
we are concentrating on profitably growing this segment. SBS strives to be a leading resource to small businesses by
providing personalized products and services that help them manage, promote and grow their businesses. SBS sells
business checks, printed forms, promotional products, marketing materials and related services and products to more
than six million small business customers in the United States and Canada. Of these customers, four million have
ordered our products or services in the last 24 months. Printed forms include billing forms, work orders, job
proposals, purchase orders, invoices and personnel forms. We also produce computer forms compatible with
accounting software packages commonly used by small businesses. Our stationery, letterhead, envelopes and
business cards are produced in a variety of formats and ink colors. Acquisitions in recent years have added
capabilities in the custom, full-color digital and web-to-print spaces.

The majority of SBS products are distributed through more than one channel. Our primary channels are direct
mail, in which promotional advertising is delivered by mail to small businesses, and financial institution referrals.
These efforts are supplemented by the account development efforts of an outbound telemarketing group. We also sell
through internet websites, a network of independent local dealers and Safeguard® distributors, as well as our field
sales organization that calls directly on smail businesses. Customer service for initial order support, product recrders
and routine service is provided by a network of call center representatives located throughout the United States and
Canada.




Our focus within SBS is to grow revenue and increase operaling margin by continuing to implement the
following strategies:

* Acquire new customers by leveraging customer referrals that we receive from our financial institution clients
and from other marketing initiatives such as direct mail and e-commerce;
Increase our share of the amount small businesses spend on the products and services in our portfolio;
Consolidate brands and leverage cross-selling opportunities; and
Continue to optimize our cost and expense structure.

We are investing in several key enablers to achieve our strategies. These key enablers include improving our
e-commerce capabilities, implementing an integrated platform for our various brands, improving our customer
analytics and focusing on key vertical segments and improved merchandising. As we focus on these key enablers, we
plan to streamline and update our brand structure, as well as transition our sales model to integrate field sales,
marketing and customer call centers across the company. We believe this creates more focus on customers, positions
us for growth and ensures we are leveraging processes, facilities and resources to our best advantage. We have also
introduced a new www.Deluxe.com website which will serve as a platform for improved e-commerce capability, and
we have identified significant opportunities to expand sales to our existing customers,

Additionally, the small business customer referrals we receive from our Deluxe Business Advamagf:“I
program, which provides a fast and simple way for financial institutions to offer expanded personalized service to
small businesses, will continue to be an important part of our growth strategy. We have acquired companies which
allow us to expand our business in the custom, full color, digital and web-to-print space with our small business
customers and we divested a non-strategic product line. Recently, we introduced the Deluxe Marketing Store to offer
fast, hassle-free solutions for small businesses. The Deluxe Marketing Store is a website that offers products and
services to help small businesses reach their customers, build customer loyalty and promote their business. Small
businesses can design and create logos, websites, mailings and other promotional items. The Deluxe Marketing Store
is also a resource for small businesses as it contains useful information for growing and managing a small business.

Financial Services

Financial Services sells personal and business checks, check-related products and services, stored value gift
cards and customer loyalty, retention and fraud monitoring/protection services to financial institutions. We also offer
enhanced services such as customized reporting, file management and expedited account conversion support. Our
relationships with specific financial institutions are generally formalized through supply contracts which usually
range in duration from three to five years. We serve approximately 7,000 financial institutions in the United States.
Consumers and small businesses typically submit their check order to their financial institution, which then forwards
the order to us. We process the order and ship it directly to the consumer or small business. Financial Services
produces a wide range of check designs, with many consumers preferring one of the dozens of licensed or cause-
related designs we offer, including Disney®, Warner Brothers®, Garfield®, Harley-Davidson®, NASCAR®, PGA
TOUR, Thomas Kinkade®, Susan G. Kemen Breast Cancer Foundation and National Arbor Day Foundation®. Our
strategies within Financial Services are as follows:

s Continue to retain core check revenue streams and acquire new customers;

* Provide services and products that differentiate us from the competition and make us a more relevant business
partner to our financial institution clients; and

» Continue to simplify our business model and optimize our cost and expense structure.

To achieve our strategies we are leveraging our customer acquisition and loyalty programs, our Deluxe
Business Advantage program and enhanced small business customer service. The Deluxe Business Advantage
program is designed to maximize financial institution business check programs by offering expanded personalized
service to small businesses with a number of service level options.

In our efforts to expand beyond check-related products, we have introduced and continue to pilot several new
services that focus on customer loyalty and retention. Two examples are the Welcome Home™ Tool Kit and the




Deluxe lmpressionsSM products which enable financial institutions to forge strong bonds with new customers, thereby
increasing customer loyalty and retention. We also offer Deluxe ID TheftBlock®, a set of fraud monitoring and
recovery services that provides assistance to consumers in detecting and recovering from identity theft. We also
enhanced our stored valtue gift card program and launched DeluxeCalling M a service providing a first point of
contact with new indirect loan consumers on behalf of our financial institution clients. This service leverages our
core competency of call center expertise and provides incremental revenue and increased customer retention for our
financial institution clients. Providing products and services that differentiate us from the competition is expected.to
help offset the decline in check usage and the pricing pressures we are experiencing in our check programs. As such,
we are also focused on accelerating the pace at which we introduce new products and services.

In addition to these value-added services, we continue to offer our Knowledge Exchange™ Series for
financial institution clients through which we host knowledge exchange expos, conduct web seminars and host
special industry conference calls, as well as offer specialized publications. Through this program, financial
institutions gain knowledge and exposure to thought leaders in areas that most impact their core strategies: client
loyalty, small business and retail client strategy, cost management, customer experience and brand enhancement. Qur
Collaborative initiative, a key component of the Knowledge Exchange Series, enlists a team of leading financial
institution executives who meet with us over a one year timeframe to develop and test specific and focused solutions
on behalf of the financial services industry. These findings and new strategies or services are then disseminated for
the benefit of alt our clients. Our Small Business Collaborative initiative grew out of our Knowledge Exchange
Series and explored and identified innovative ways for financial institution clients to improve relationships with
small businesses. Our current Collaborative is exploring new ways in which financial institutions can improve the
customer dispute resolution process in such a way that customer loyalty is enhanced. The findings from our current
Collaborative will be disclosed at a conference in May 2008.

In addition to cur initiatives to retain customers and introduce new products and services, we continue our
efforts to simplify processes, eliminate complexity in this business and lower our cost structure. Qur efforts are
focused on using lean principles to streamline call center and check fulfillment activities, redesign services into
standardized flexible models, eliminate multiple systems and work streams and strengthen our ability to quickly
develop and bring new products and services to market.

Direct Checks

Direct Checks is the nation’s leading direct-to-consumer check supplier, selling under the Checks
Unlimited®, Designer® Checks and Checks.com brand names. Through these brands, we sell personal and business
checks and related products and services directly 1o consumers using direct response marketing and the internet. We
estimate the direct-to-consumer personal check printing portion of the payments industry accounts for approximately
15% of all personal checks sold.

We use a variety of direct marketing techniques to acquire new customers, including newspaper inserts, in-
package advertising, statement stuffers and co-op advertising. We also use e-commerce strategies to direct traffic to
our websites, which include: www.checksunlimited.com, www.designerchecks.com and www.checks.com. Our
direct-to-consumer focus has resulted in a total customer base of over 43 million customers, the most in the direct-to-
consumer checks marketplace.

Direct Checks competes primarily on price and design. Pricing in the direct-to-consumer channel is generally
lower than prices charged to consumers in the financial institution channel. We also compete on design by seeking to
offer the most attractive selection of images with high consumer appeal, many of which are acquired or licensed from
well-known artists and organizations such as Disney®, Warner Brothers®, Harley Davidson® and Thomas
Kinkade®.




Our focus within Direct Checks is to enhance our share of the direct-to-consumer channel by continuing to
implement the following strategies: ’

¢ Maintain our 2007 level of marketing spend, which was increased from previous years;
*  Maximize the lifetime value of customers by selling new features and accessories; and
* (Continue to optimize our cost and expense structure.

Beginning in 2007, we increased our advertising circulation of free-standing inserts under a new direct mail
advertising contract which will remain in effect for the next several years. This has been an effective form of new
customer acquisition in this channel. We also intend to increase the portion of cur advertising expense designated for
customer retention by utilizing reactivation and e-mail campaigns, We continue to develop improved call center
processes, provide additional products to Direct Checks’ small business customers and explore other avenues to
increase sales to existing customers. In late 2006, we introduced the EZShield™ product, a fraud protection service
that provides reimbursement to consumers for forged signatures or endorsements and altered checks. We have also
introduced holiday greeting cards and stored value gift cards on our websites.

PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Revenue, by product, as a percentage of consolidated revenue for the last three years was as follows:

2007 2006 2005
Checks and related Services ..........ccovvvvvvnnnn, 65.1% 63.5% 64.7%
Other printed products, including forms......- 23.7% 22.9% 22.0%
Accessories and promotional products ......., 8.0% 8.2% 8.4%
Packaging supplies and other..............c.c...... 3.2% ' 5.4% 4.9%

TOtAl TEVEIUE e e ccrerereessseraneeeeeeesan 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

We remain one of the largest providers of checks in the United States, both in terms of revenue and the
number of checks produced. We provide check printing and related services for approximately 7,000 financial
institution clients, as well as personalized checks, related accessories and fraud prevention services directly to
millions of small businesses and consumers. Checks and related services account for the majority of the revenue in
our Financial Services and Direct Checks segments and represent 48.9%, 46.1% and 44.8% of SBS total revenue in
2007, 2006 and 20035, respectively.

We are a leading provider of printed forms to small businesses, having provided products to more than six
million customers over the past five years. Printed forms include billing forms, work orders, job proposals, purchase
orders, invoices and personnel forms. We produce computer forms compatible with accounting software packages
commonly used by small businesses. Our stationery, letterhead, envelopes and business cards are produced in a
variety of formats and ink colors. These items are designed to provide small business owners with the customized
documents necessary to efficiently manage their business. We also provide promotional printed items and digital
printing services designed to fulfill selling and marketing needs of the small businesses we serve.

MANUFACTURING

We continue to focus on improving the customer experience by providing excellent service and quality,
reducing costs and increasing productivity. We accomplish this by embedding lean operating principles in all
processes, emphasizing a culture of continuous improvement. Under this approach, employees work together to
produce products, rather than working on individual tasks in a linear fashion. Because employees assume more
ownership of the end product, the results are improved productivity and lower costs. We continue to see the benefil
of these operational efficiencies in our resuits. The expertise we have developed in logistics, productivity and
inventory management has allowed us to reduce our number of production facilities while still meeting client




requirements. We closed six check printing facilities in 2004, and in 2006, we closed our Los Angeles, California
and Athens, Ohio printing facilities. Aside from our plant consolidations, we continue to seek other innovations to
further increase efficiencies and reduce costs, During 2007, we implemented a new flat check package to mitigate the
effects on our customers of a posial rate increase, which demonstrates our commitment (o innovative solutions.

We have a shared services approach to manufacturing through which our three business segments share
manufacturing operations in order to optimize capacity utilization. This allows us to create centers of operational
excellence that have a culture of continuous improvement. We have created blended sites to serve a variety of
segments, brands and channels. As a result, we continue to reduce costs by utilizing our assets and printing
technologies more efficiently and by enabling employees to better leverage their capabilities and talents.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW
Checks

According to a Federal Reserve study released in December 2007, approximately 33 billion checks are written
annually. This includes checks which are converted to automated clearing house (ACH) payments. Checks remain
the largest single non-cash payment method in the United States, accounting for approximately 35% of ali non-cash
payment transactions. This is a reduction from the Federal Reserve Study released in December 2004 when checks
accounted for approximately 45% of all non-cash payment transactions. The Federal Reserve estimates that checks
written declined approximately four percent per year between 2003 and 2006. According to our estimates, the use of
small business checks is declining at a rate of two to four percent per year. The total transaction volume of all
electronic payment methods exceeds check payments, and we expect this trend to continue. We believe check usage
tends to be fairly resilient to downturns in the economy, so we expect recent economic conditions to have only a
minor impact on our personal check businesses in the coming year.

Small Business Customers

The Small Business Administration’s Office of Advocacy defines a small business as an independent business
having fewer than 500 employees. In 2006, the most recent date for which information is available, it was estimated
that there were approximately 27 million small businesses in the United States. This represented approximately
99.7% of all employers. According to the same survey, small businesses employ half of all private sector employees
and generated over 60% of net new jobs created each year over the last decade.

The small business market is impacted by general economic conditions and the rate of small business
formations. Small business growth continues to parallel the overall economy. The index of small business optimism
published by the National Federation of Independent Business (NFIB) in December 2007 continued to be below
average. We expect continued economic softness to have some negative impact on our 2008 results, primarily in the
first half of the year.

We seek to serve the needs of the small business customer. We design, produce and distribute business
checks, forms, envelopes, retail packaging and related products to help them grow and promote their business. The
rate checks are used by small businesses has thus far not been impacted as significantly by the use of alternative
payment methods. The Formtrac 2006 report from the Document Management Industries Association {DMIA}, the
most recent data available, indicates that the business check portion of the markets serviced by SBS declined at a rate
of two to four percent in 2006. Business forms products are also under pressure. Continual technological
improvements have provided small business customers with alternative means to enact and record business
transactions. For example, off-the-shelf business software applications and electronic transaction systems have been
designed to automate many of the functions performed by business forms products.




Financial Institution Clients

Checks are most commonly ordered through financial institutions. We estimate approximately 85% of all
consumer checks are ordered in this manner. Financial institutions include banks, credit unions and other financial
services companies. Several developments related to financial institutions have affected the check printing portion of
the payments industry:

* Financial institutions seek to maintain the profits they have historically generated from their check programs,
despite the decline in check usage. This has put significant pricing pressure on check printers in the past
several years.

+ Financial institutions continue to consolidate through mergers and acquisitions. Often, the newly-combined
entity seeks to reduce costs by leveraging economies of scale in purchasing, including its check supply
contracts. This results in check providers competing intensely on price in order to retain not only their
previous business with one of the financial institutions, but also to gain the business of the other party in the
merger/acquisition.

* Financial institution mergers and acquisitions can also impact the duration of our contracts. Normally, the
length of our contracts with financial institutions range from three to five years. However, contracts are
sometimes renegotiated or bought out mid-term due 10 a consolidation of financial institutions.

* Banks, especially larger ones, may request pre-paid product discounts, made in the form of cash incentives,
payable at the beginning of a contract. These contract acquisition payments negatively impact check
producers’ cash flows in the short-term.

The recent turmeil in the financial services industry related to subprime lending activities has not had a
significant impact on financial institution check programs,

Consumer Direct Mail Response Rates

Direct Checks and portions of SBS have been impacted by reduced consumer response rates to direct mail
advertisements, Our own experience indicates that the decline in our customer response rates is attributable to the
decline in check usage and a general decline in direct marketing response rates. We continuously evaluate our
marketing techniques to ensure we utilize the most effective and affordable advertising media.

Competition

The small business forms and supplies industry is highly fragmented with many smalt local sappliers and large
national retailers. We believe we are well-positioned in this competitive landscape through our broad customer base,
the breadth of our small business product and service offerings, multiple distribution channels, established
relationships with our financial institution clients, reasonable prices, high quality and dependable service.

In the small business forms and supplies industry, the competitive factors influencing a customer’s purchase
decision are breadth of product line, speed of delivery, preduct quality, price, convenience and customer service. Qur
primary competitors are office product superstores, local printers, business form dealers, contract stationers and
internet-based suppliers. Local printers provide personalization and customization, but typically have a limited
variety of products and services, as well as limited printing sophistication. Office superstores offer a variety of
products at competitive prices, but provide limited personalization and customization. We are aware of numerous
independent companies or divisions of companies offering printed products and business supplies to small businesses
through the internet, direct mail, distributors or a direct sales force.

In the check printing portion of the payments industry, we face considerable competition from several other
check printers, and we expect competition to remain intense as check usage continues to decline and financial
institutions continue to consolidate, We also face competition from check printing software vendors and from
intemet-based sellers of checks and retated products. Moreover, the check product must compete with aliernative
payment methods, including credit cards, debit cards, automated teller machines and electronic payment systems.




In the financial institution check printing business, the principal factors on which we compete are product and
service breadth, price, quality and check merchandising program management. From time to time, some of our check
printing competitors have reduced the prices of their products during the selection process in an attempt to gain
greater volume. The corresponding pricing pressure placed on us has resulted in reduced profit margins and some
shifts of business. Continuing pricing pressure will likely result in additional margin compression. Additionally,
product discounts in the form of cash incentives payable to financial institutions upon contract execution have been a
practice within the industry since the late 1990’s. Both the number of financial institution clients requesting these
payments and the size of the payments has fluctuated significantly in recent years. These up-front payments
negatively impact check printers’ cash flows in the short-term and may result in additional pricing pressure when the
financial institution also negotiates greater product discount levels throughout the term of the contract. Beginning in
2006, we sought to reduce the use of up-front product discounts by structuring new contracts with incentives
throughout the duration of the contract.

In May 2007, our two primary competitors in the check printing portion of the payments industry merged and are
now doing business as Harland Clarke™. As this is a recent merger, the impact, if any, it may have on competition
remains uncertain.

Seasonality

General economic conditions have an impact on our business and financial results. From time to time, the
markets in which we selt our products and services experience weak economic conditions that may negatively impact
revenue. We experience some seasonal trends in the sale of our products. For example, holiday card sales and stored
value gift cards typically are stronger in the fourth quarter of the year, and sales of tax forms are stronger in the first
quarter of the year.

Raw Materials and Supplies

The principal raw materials used in producing our main products are paper, plastics, ink, cartons and printing
plate material, which we purchase from various sources. We also purchase some stock business forms produced by
third parties. We believe that we will be able to obtain an adequate supply of materials from current or alternative
suppliers.

Governmental Regulation

We are subject to regulations implementing the privacy and information security requirements of the federal
financial modemization law known as the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act (the Act) and other federal regulation and state
law on the same subject. These laws and regulations require us to develop and implement policies to protect the
security and confidentiality of consumers’ nonpublic personal information and to disclose these policies to
consumers before a customer relationship is established and annually thereafter. Our financial institution clients
request various contractual provisions in our supply contracts that are intended to comply with their obligations
under the Act and with other privacy and security oriented laws. The regulations require some of our businesses to
provide a notice to consumers to allow them the opportunity to have their nonpublic personal information removed
from our files before we share their information with certain third parties. The regulations, including the above
provision, may limit our ability to use consumer data to pursue certain business opportunities.

Congress and many states have passed and are considering additional laws or regulations that, among other
things, restrict the use, purchase, sale or sharing of nonpublic personal information about consumers and business
customers, Laws and regulations may be adopted in the future with respect to the internet, e-commerce or marketing
practices generally relating to consumer privacy. Such laws or regulations may impede the growth of the internet
and/or use of other sales or marketing vehictes. For example, new privacy laws could decrease traffic 10 our
websites, decrease telemarketing opportunities and increase the cost of obtaining new customers. We do not expect
that changes to these laws and regulations will have a significant impact on our business in 2008.
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Intellectual Property

We rely on a combination of trademark and copyright laws, trade secret and patent protection and
confidentiality and license agreements to protect our trademarks, software and other intellectual property. However,
intellectual property laws afford limited protection. Third parties may infringe or misappropriate our intellectual
property or otherwise independently develop substantially equivalent products or services which do not infringe on
our intellectual property rights. In addition, check designs exclusively licensed from third parties account for a
portion of our revenue. These license agreements generally average three years in duration. There can be no
guarantee that such licenses will be avaitable to us indefinitely or at terms under which we can continue to generate a
profit from the sale of licensed products.

EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2007, we employed 7,600 employees in the United States and 391 employees in Canada.
None of our employees are represented by labor unions, and we consider our employee relations to be good.

AVAILABILITY OF COMMISSION FILINGS

We make available through the Investor Relations section of our website, www.deluxe.com, our annual
reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and amendmenis to these
reports filed or furnished pursuant to section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act as soon as reasonably practicable
after these items are electronically filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). These
reports can also be accessed via the SEC website, www.sec.gov, or via the SEC’s Public Reference Room located at
100 F Street N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Information concerning the operation of the SEC’s Public Reference
Room can be obtained by calling 1-800-SEC-0330,

A copy of this report may be obtained without charge by calling 651-787-1068 or by sending a written request
to the attention of Investor Relations, Deluxe Corporation, P.O. Box 64235, St. Paul, Minnesota 55164-02335,

CODE OF ETHICS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE GUIDELINES

We have adopted a Code of Ethics and Business Conduct which applies to all of our employees and our board
of directors. The Code of Ethics and Business Conduct is available in the Investor Relations section of our website,
www.deluxe.com, and also can be obtained free of charge upon written request to the attention of Investor Relations,
Deluxe Corporation, P.O. Box 64235, St. Paul, Minnesota 55164-0235. Any changes or waivers of the Code of
Ethics and Business Conduct will be disclosed on our website. In addition, our Corporate Governance Guidelines
and the charters of the Audit, Compensation, Corporate Governance and Finance Committees of our board of
directors are available on our website or upon written request.

11




EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Our executive officers are elected by the board of directors each year. The following summarizes our
executive officers and their positions.

Executive
Name Age Present Position Officer Since
Anthony Scarfone 46 Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary 2000
Luann Widener 50  Senior Vice President, Chief Sales and Marketing Officer for 2003
Financial Institutions and Small Businesses
Terry Peterson 43 Vice President, Investor Relations and Chief Accounting Officer 2005
Leanne Branham 44 Vice President, Fulfillment 2006
Mike Degeneffe 43 Chief Information Officer 2006
Richard Greene 43 Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer 2006
Lynn Koldenhoven 41 Vice President, Sales and Marketing Direct-to-Consumer 2006
Lee Schram 46  Chief Executive Officer 2006
Jeff Stoner 44 Senior Vice President, Human Resources 2006

Anthony Scarfone joined us in September 2000 as senior vice president, general counsel and secretary.

Luann Widener was named chief sales and marketing officer for financial institutions and small businesses in
October 2006. From March 2006 until October 2006, Ms, Widener was senior vice president, president of
manufacturing shared services, supply chain and Financial Services. From June 2003 to March 2006, Ms. Widener
served as senior vice president, human resources and in December 2005, she assumed responsibility for our
manufacturing and supply chain operations. From July 2000 to June 2003, Ms. Widener served as vice president of
manufacturing operations for our Financial Services segiment.

Terry Peterson was named vice president of investor relations in October 2006. From May 2006 to
September 2006, Mr. Peterson served as interim Chief Financial Officer and was named chief accounting officer in
March 2005. Mr. Peterson joined us in September 2004 and served as director of internal audit until March 2005.
From August 2002 until August 2004, Mr. Peterson was vice president and controller of the GCS Services Division
of Ecolab, Inc., a worldwide developer and marketer of premium cleaning and sanitation products.

Leanne Branham was named vice president, fulfillment in October 2006. From July 2004 to October 2006,
Ms. Branham served as vice president of manufacturing shared services and from July 2003 to June 2004, Ms.
Branham was vice president of manufacturing for Financial Services. From May 2001 to July 2003, Ms. Branham
served as director of marketing for Direct Checks.

Mike Degeneffe joined us as chief information officer in October 2006. From September 2000 to October
2006, Mr. Degeneffe was employed by Residential Funding Corporation, a business unit of General Motors
Acceptance Corporation (GMAC), where he served as chief information officer and enterprise chief technology
officer from September 2004 to October 2006 and as managing director and enterprise chief information officer from
April 2001 to September 2004,

Richard Greene joined us as senior vice president, chief financial officer in October 2006. From April 2005
to April 2006, Mr. Greene served as chief financial officer of the plastics and adhesives segment of Tyco
International Ltd., which was renamed Covalence Specialty Materials Corp. upen divestiture. From October 2003 to
April 2005, Mr. Greene was vice president and chief financial officer of the Tyco Plastics unit of Tyco International
Ltd. From July 1999 to October 2003, Mr. Greene held various finance leadership positions at wholly-owned
subsidiaries of Honeywell International Inc., a diversified technology and manufacturing company.

Lyan Koldenhoven was named vice president, sales and marketing direct-to-consumer in October 2006.
Prior to this, Ms. Koldenhoven held a variety of positions within Direct Checks, including: interim vice president
from February 2006 to October 2006, executive director of marketing from March 2004 to January 2006, director of
core marketing from July 2003 to March 2004 and manager of checks manufacturing from May 2001 1o July 2003.




Lee Schram joined us as chief executive officer in May 2006. From March 2003 to April 2006, Mr. Schram
served as senior vice president of the Retail Solutions Division of NCR Corporation (NCR), a leading global
technology company, From January 2002 to March 2003, Mr. Schram was vice president and general manager,
payment sclutions of the Financial Services Division of NCR. From September 2000 to January 2002, Mr, Schram
served as chief financial officer of the Retail and Financial Group of NCR.

Jeff Stoner was named senior vice president, human resources in March 2006. Mr. Stoner joined us in
November 2003 and served as vice president of organizational effectiveness until March 2006. From June 2001 until
November 2003, Mr. Stoner was a vice president for the global product business unit of Personnel Decisions
International, Inc., a human resources consulting firm.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

Our business, consolidated results of operations, financial condition and cash flows could be adversely
affected by various risks and uncenainties. These risks include, but are not limited to, the principal factors listed
below and the other matters set forth in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Additional risks not presently known to
us, or that we currently deem immaterial, may also impair our business, results of operations and financial condition.
You should carefully consider all of these risks. ,

The check printing portion of the payments industry is mature and, if check usage declines fuster than expected,
it could have a materially adverse impact on our operating results.

Check printing is, and is expected to continue 10 be, an essential part of our business, representing 65.1% of our
consolidated revenue in 2007. We primarily sell checks for personal and small business use and believe that there will
continue to be a substantial demand for these checks for the foreseeable future. However, the total number of checks
written in the United States has been in decline since the mid-1990s. According to our estimates, the total number of
checks written by individuals has continued to decline approximately four to five percent each year and checks written
by small businesses have declined two to four percent each year over the past three years. We believe that the number of
checks written will continue to decline due to the increasing use of alternative payment methods, including credit cards,
debit cards, automated teller machines, direct deposit and electronic and other bill paying services. However, the rate
and the extent to which alternative payment methods will achieve acceptance and replace checks, whether as a result of
legislative developments, personal preference or otherwise, cannot be predicted with certainty. A surge in the popularity
of any of these alternative payment methods, or our inability to successfully offset the decline in check usage with other
sources of revenue, could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and prospects.

We face intense competition in all areas of our business.

Although we are one of the leading check printers in the United States, we face considerable competition. In
addition to competition from alternative payment systems, we also face intense competition from another check printer
in our traditional financial institution sales channel, from direct mail sellers of personal checks, from sellers of business
checks and forms, from check printing software vendors and from internet-based sellers of checks to individuals and
small businesses. Additionally, low price, high volume office supply chain stores offer standardized business forms,
checks and related products to small businesses. We can provide no assurance that we will be able to compete
effectively against current and future competitors. Continued competition could result in additional price reductions,
reduced profit margins, loss of customers and an increase in up-front cash payments to financial institutions upon
contract execution or renewal,

In May 2007, our two primary competitors in the check printing portion of the payments industry merged and are
now doing business as Harland Clarke™. As this is a recent merger, the impact, if any, it may have on competition
remains uncertain.




We may not be successful at implementing our growth strategies within Small Business Services.

We continue to execute strategies intended to drive sustained growth within Small Business Services, We
continue to promote our Deluxe Business AdvanlageSM program and intend to expand sales to new and existing
customers, develop models to tailor our marketing approach to each customer and further integrate our field sales,
marketing and call center functions across the company. We continue to assess our branding strategy and improve our
ecommerce and merchandising strategies. All of these initiatives have required and will continue to require investment.
Small Business Services revenue increased in 2007, as compared to 2006, excluding the impact of the sale of our
industrial packaging product line in January 2007. We can provide no assurance that our growth strategies will continue
to be successful in the long-term and result in a positive return on our investment,

Qur ability to reduce costs is critical to our success.

We intend to continue to reduce expenses, primarily within our shared services functions. We also expect to
continue 1o simplify our business processes and reduce our cost and expense structure. These initiatives have
required and will continue to require up-front expenditures related to items such as redesigning and streamlining
processes, consolidating information technology platforms, standardizing technology applications and improving real
estate utilization. We can provide no assurance that we will achieve our anticipated cost reductions or that we will do
50 without incurring unexpected or greater than anticipated expenditures, Moreover, we may find that we are unable
to achieve our business simplification and cost reduction goals without disruption to our business and as a result, we
may choose to delay or forego certain cost reductions as business conditions require.

Consolidation among financial institutions has, and may continue to, adversely affect the pricing of our products
and may result in the loss of clients.

The number of financial institutions has declined due to consolidation in the financial services industry, Margin
pressures arise from such consolidation as merged entities seek to reduce costs by leveraging economies of scale,
including their check supply contracts. The increase in general negotiating leverage possessed by such consolidated
entities has resulted in contracis which are not as favorable to us as those historically negotiated with these clients, and in
some cases, has resulted in the loss of clients to competitors. Although we devole considerable effort toward the
development of a competitively-priced, high-quality suite of products and services for the financial services industry,
there can be no assurance that significant financial institution clients will be retained or that the loss of a significant
client can be offset through the addition of new clients or by expanded sales to our remaining clients.

Continuing softness in direct mail response rates could have a further adverse impact on our operating results.

Our Direct Checks segment and portions of our Small Business Services segment have experienced declines in
respense and retention rates related to direct mail promotional materials. We believe that media response rates are
declining across a wide variety of products and services. Additionally, we believe that our declines are atiributable to the
general decline in check usage and the gradual obsolescence of standardized forms products. To offset these impacts, we
continue to modify our marketing and sales efforts. We may not succeed in offsetting the decline in response rates, even
with additional marketing and sales efforts. '

The profitability of our Direct Checks segment depends in large part on our ability to secure adequate advertising
media placements at acceptable rates, as well as the consumer response rates generated by such advertising. We can
provide no assurance regarding the future cost, effectiveness and/or availability of suitable advertising media.
Consumers may not continue to respond to such advertising at the same rates, and competitive pressure may inhibit our
ability to reflect increased costs in the prices of our products. We may not be able to sustain our current levels of
profitability in this situation.

Small Business Services’ standardized business forms and related products face technological obsolescence and
changing customer preferences. :

Continual technological improvements have provided smali business customers with alternative means 10 enact
and record business transactions. For example, because of the lower price and higher performance capabilities of
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personal computers and related printers, small businesses now have an alternate means to print many business forms.
Additionally, electronic transaction systems and off-the-shelf business software applications have been designed to
automate many of the functions performed by business forms products. If small business preferences change rapidly and
we are unable to develop new products and services with comparable profit margins, our results of operations could be
adversely affected.

We face uncertainty with respect 10 recent and future acquisitions.

We acquired the Johnson Group in October 2006 and All Trade Computer Forms, Inc. in February 2007 with the
intent to expand our business with custom, full-color, digital and web-to-print capabilities. The integration of any
acquisition involves numerous risks, including: difficulties in assimilating operations and products; diversion of
management’s attention from other business concerns; potential loss of key employees; potential exposure to unknown
liabilities; and possible loss of our cliems and customers or the clients and cusiomers of the acquired businesses. One or
more of these factors could impact our ability to successfully integrate an acquisition and could negatively affect our
results of operations.

With regards to future acquisitions, we cannot predict whether suitable acquisition candidates can be acquired on
acceptable terms or whether any acquired products, technologies or businesses will contribute to our revenue or earnings
to any material extent. Significant acquisitions typically result in additional contingent liabilitics or debt and/or
additional amortization expense related 10 acquired intangible assets, and thus, could adversely affect our business,
results of operations and financial condition.

The cost and availability of materials, delivery services and energy could adversely affect our operating results.

We are subject to risks associated with the cost and availability of paper, plastics, ink, other raw materials,
delivery services and energy. Postal rates increased in 2007 and fuel costs have continued to increase over the past
several years. Competitive pressures and/or contractual arrangements inhibit our ability to reflect increased costs in the
prices of our products.

Paper costs tepresent a significant portion of our materials cost. Histarically, we have not been negatively
impacted by paper shortages because of our relationships with various paper supplicrs, However, we can provide no
assurance that we will be able to purchase sufficient quantities of paper if such a shortage were to occur. Additionally,
we depend upon third party providers for delivery services. Events resulting in the inability of these service providers 1o
perform their obligations, such as extended labor strikes, could adversely impact our results of operations by requiring
us to secure alternate providers at higher costs.

Farecasts involving future results reflect various assumptions that may prove to be incorrect.

From time to time, we make predictions or forecasts regarding our future results, including, but not limited to,
forecasts regarding estimated revenue, earnings, earnings per share or operating cash flow. Any forecast regarding our
future performance reflects various assumptions which are subject to significant uncertainties, and, as a matter of course,
may prove to be incorrect. Further, the achievement of any forecast depends on numerous factors which are beyond our
control. As a result, we cannot assure you that our performance will be consistent with any management forecasts or that
the variation from such forecasts will not be material and adverse. You are cautioned not to base your entire analysis of
our business and prospects upon isolated predictions, and are encouraged 1o use the entire mix of historical and forward-
locking information made available by us, and other information affecting us and our products and services, including
the factors discussed here.

In addition, independent analysts periodically publish reports regarding our projected future performance. The
methodologies we employ in arriving at our own internal projections and the approaches taken by independent analysts
in making their estimates are likely different in many significant respects. We expressly disclaim any responsibility to
advise analysts or the public markets of our views regarding the accuracy of the published estimates of independent
analysts. If you are relying on these estimates, you should pursue your own investigation and analysis of their accuracy
and the reasonableness of the assumptions on which they are based.
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General economic conditions within the United States could have an adverse effect on our operating results.

The rate of small business formations, small business confidence, consumer spending and employment levels, as
well as higher fuel costs, all have an impact on our businesses. We estimate that lower than average small business
optimism and a decline in small business formations negatively impacted our resuits of operations in Small Business
Services in the latter half of 2007, and we expect this trend to continue into the first haif of 2008. Although consumer
spending and employment levels both trended negatively during the last half of 2007, we did not experience a significant
negative impact in our persenal check businesses. A prolonged downturn in general economic conditions could result in
additional declines in our revenue and profitability. In addition, the recent turmoil in the financial services industry
related to subprime lending activitics may cause financial institutions to seek additional concessions from their vendors.

‘Security breaches involving customer data, or the perception that e-commerce is not secure, could adversely
affect our reputation and business.

We rely on various security procedures and systems to ensure the secure storage and transmission of data,
Computer networks and the internet are, by nature, vulnerable to unauthorized access. We cannot provide assurance that
misuse of new technologies or advances in criminal capabilities will not compromise or breach our security procedures
and systems resulting in unauthorized access and/or use of customer data, including consumers’ nonpublic personal
information. A security breach could damage our reputation, deter clients and consumers from ordering our products and
result in claims against us, If we are unsuccessful in defending a lawsuit regarding security breaches, we may be forced
to pay damages which could have an adverse effect on our operating results. Additionally, general publicity regarding
security breaches at other companies could tead to the perception among the general public that e-commerce is not
secure. This could decrease traffic to our websites and foreclose future business opportunities.

We may be unable to protect our rights in intellectual property.

We rely on a combination of trademark and copyright laws, trade secret and patent protection, and confidentiality
and license agreements to protect our trademarks, software and other intellectual property. Despite our efforts to protect
our intellectual property, third parties may infringe or misappropriate our intellectual property or otherwise
independently develop substantially equivalent products and services which do not infringe on our intellectual property
rights. We may be required to spend significant resources to protect our trade secrets and monitor and police our
intellectual property rights. The loss of inteilectual property protection or the inability to secure or enforce intellectual
property protection could harm our business and ability to compete. In addition, check designs exclusively licensed from
third parties account for a portion of our revenue. These license agreements generally average three years in duration.
There can be no guarantee that such licenses will be available to us indefinitely or at terms under which we can continue
to generate a profit from the sale of licensed products,

We are dependent upon third party providers for certain significant information technology needs.

We have entered into agreements with third party providers for information technology services, including
telecommunications and network server services. In the event that one or more of these providers is not able to provide
adequate or timely information technology services, we could be adversely affected. Although we believe that
information technology services are available from numerous sources, a failure to perform by one or more of our service
providers could cause a disruption in our business while we obtain an alternative source of supply. In addition, the use of
substitute third party providers could result in increased expense.

Legislation relating to consumer privacy protection could limit or harm our business.

We are subject to regulations implementing the privacy and information security requirements of the federal
financial modernization law known as the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act and other federal regulation and state law on the
same subject. These laws and regulations require us to develop, implement and maintain policies and procedures to
protect the security and confidentiality of consumers™ nonpublic personal information and to disclose these policies to
consumers before a customer relationship is established and annually thereafter. These regulations could have the effect
of limiting business initiatives. -
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We are unable to predict whether more restrictive legislation or regulation will be adopted in the future. Any
future legislation or regulation, or the interpretation of existing legislation or regulation, could have a negative impact on
our business, results of operations or prospects. Laws and regulations may be adopted in the future with respect to the
iniernet, e-commerce or marketing practices generally relating to consumer privacy. Such laws or regulations may
impede the growth of the internet and/or use of other sales or marketing vehicles. For example, new privacy laws could
decrease traffic to our websites, decrease telemarketing opportunities and increase the cost of obtaining new customers.

If we are unable to attract and retain key personnel and other qualified employees, our business could suffer.

Our success at efforts to grow our business and reduce costs depends on the contributions and abilities of key
executives, operating officers and other personnel. If we are unable to retain our existing employees and attract qualified
personnel, we may not be able to manage our business effectively. Competition for employees in fields such as
information technology, finance, sales, product management and customer service is intense, and we can provide no
assurance that we will be successful in attracting and retaining such personnel.

We may be subject 1o sales and other taxes which could have an adverse effect on our business.

In accordance with current federal, state and local tax laws, we currently collect saies, use or other similar taxes
in state and local jurisdictions where our businesses have a physical presence. One or more state or local jurisdiction
may seek to impose sales tax collection obligations on out-of-state companies which engage in remote or online
commerce. Further, tax law and the interpretation of constitutional limitations thereon are subject to change. In addition,
any new operations in states where we do not currently have a physical presence could subject shipments of goods by
our direct-to-consumer businesses into such states to sales tax under current or future laws. If one or more state or local
Jjurisdiction successfully asserts that we must collect sales or other taxes beyond our current practices, it could have a
material, adverse affect on our business.

We may be subject 10 environmental risks.

Our printing facilities are subject to many federal and state regulations designed to protect the environment. We
have sold former printing facilities to third parties and in some instances, have agreed 10 indemnify the buyver of the
facility for centain environmental liabilities. We believe that, based on current information, we will not be required to
incur additional material, uninsured expense with respect to our sites, but unforeseen conditions could result in
additional liability and expense.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

None.

Iem 2. Properties.

Our principal executive office is an owned property located in Shoreview, Minnesota. Aside from small sales
offices, we occupy 33 facilities throughout the United States and three facilities in Canada where we conduict printing
and fulfillment, call center and administrative functions. These facilities are either owned or icased and have a

combined floor space of approximately 2.9 million square feet. We believe that our properties are sufficiently
maintained and are adequate and suitable for our business needs as presently conducted.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

We are involved in routine litigation incidental to our business, but there are no material pending legal
proceedings to which we are a party or to which any of our property is subject.
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Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

None.

PARTII

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities.

Our common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol DLX. Dividends are
declared by our board of directors on a current basis and therefore, may be subject to change in the future, although
we currently have no plans to change our $0.25 per share quarterly dividend amount. As of December 31, 2007, the
number of shareholders of record was 8,020. The table below shows the per share closing price ranges of our
common stock for the past two fiscal years as quoted on the New York Stock Exchange, as well as the quarterly
dividend amount for each period.

Stock price
Dividend High Low Close
2007
QuUATLET 4...ooovrervrnenns $ 0.25 5 40.86 $ 28.93 $ 32.89
QUATTET 3uvvorereeereeenas 0.25 42.49 28.56 36.84
Quarter 2. 0.25 44.95 33.38 40.61
Quarter L. 0.25 33.95 25.13 13.53
2006
Quarter 4e....eveeernaa. $ 0.25 $ 25.77 $ 17.00 $ 25.20
QUArter 3uureverererrerees 0.25 18.15 12.98 17.10
Quarter 2. 0.40 26.65 17.48 17.48
Quarter L. 0.40 31.56 23.35 26.17

The following table shows purchases of our own equity securities, based on trade date, which we completed
during the fourth quarter of 2007,

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Maximum
number (or
Total number of approximate
shares (or units) dollar value) of
purchased as part  shares (or units)
Total number of Average price of publicly that may yet be
Period shares (or units) paid per share announced plans  purchased under
purchased (or unit) or programs the plans or
programs
October 1, 2007 -
October 31, 2007 — § — — 7,797.200
November 1, 2007 —
November 30, 2007 200,000 32.52 200,000 7,597,200
December 1, 2007 —
December 31, 2007 59,000 25,92 59,000 7,538,200
Total 259,000 $31.92 259,000 7,538,200
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In August 2003, our board of directors approved an authorization to purchase up to 10 million shares of our
common stock. This authorization has no expiration date and we may purchase additional shares under this
authorization in the future.

While not considered repurchases of shares, we do at times withhold shares that would otherwise be issued under
equity-based awards to cover the withholding taxes due as a result of the exercising or vesting of such awards. During
the fourth quarter of 2007, we withheld 2,859 shares in conjunction with the vesting and exercise of equity-based
awards.

Absent certain defined events of default under our debt instruments, and as long as our ratio of earnings
before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization to interest expense is in excess of two to one, our debl covenants
do not restrict our ability to pay cash dividends at our current rate.

The table below compares the cumulative total shareholder return on our common stock for the last five fiscal
years with the cumulative total return of the S&P 400 MidCap Index and the Dow Jones Support Services (DJUSIS)
Index (the “New Peer Group™ Index). In the previous year, we presented a peer group of companies which were
chosen due to their similar lines of business. This peer group of companies was comprised of the following: Banta
Corporation, Bowne & Company, Inc., Cenveo, Inc., John H. Harland Company, RR Donnelley & Sons Company,
Reynolds & Reynolds Company and The Standard Register Company (the “Old Peer Group™ Index). Three of the
companies included in the Old Peer Group Index were no longer publicly traded as of December 31, 2007. As such,
the Old Peer Group Index reflected in the table below includes all of the companies in the Old Peer Group Index
through December 31, 2006 and excludes Banta Corporation, John H. Harland Company and Reynolds & Reynolds
Company in 2007. We selected the New Peer Group Index for comparison as it is a broader index which reflects our
current competitive landscape as well as the potential future competitive landscape.

Comparison of 5 Year Cumulative Total Return
Assumes Initial Investment of $100*

December 2007

$240
$120
$60

$0 Il L L L I

2002 2003 2004 2005 2008 2007
—— DELUXE CORP =}-- S&P 400 MidCap Index - Total Return
—— Dow Jones US Support Services Index - New Peer Group —#— Oid Peer Group

* The graph assumes that $100 was invesied on December 31, 2002 in each of Deluxe common stock, the S&P 400
MidCap Index, the DJUSIS Index and the Old Peer Group Index, and that all dividends were reinvested. The Old
Peer Group Index is weighted by market capitalization.




Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

The following table shows certain selected financial data for the five years ended December 31, 2007. This information
should be read in conjunction with Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation
appearing in Item 7 of this report and our consolidated financial statements appearing in Item 8 of this report.

(dollars and orders in thousands, except per share and

per order amounts) 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Statement of Income Data: .
REVEMUE' ..ottt 5 1,606,367 § 1.639.654 § 1,716,294 § 1.567,015 $ 1,242,141
As a percentage of revenue:
Gross profite... . e 63.5% 62.6% 64.6% 65.8% 65.7%
Selling, general and administrative expense..... 47.1% 48.1% 46.8% 43.6% 40.0%
Operating income™ ........covrvvvemcrinrccoronncerinnen 16.7% 12.1% 17.8% 22.2% 25.7%
Operating income' ..o 267,545 $ 198.299 § 304,839 § 347912 % 318,921
Income from continuing operationsm 143,515 100,558 157,963 198.648 192,472
Per share — basiC ....ovevveireereniirncvnssannrceseneens 2.79 1.97 312 3.96 3.53
Per share - diluted 2.76 1.95 3.10 3.93 349
Cash dividends per share ... 1.00 1.30 1.60 1.48 1.48
Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and marketable secunities .........ccovirieervirnninens 21,615 11,599 6.867 15,492 2,968
Return on average assetS......ouuiimsem 11.6% 1.5% 10.8% 19.2% 31.2%
Total assets ...covecvreereererenene 1,210.755 § 1,267,132 § 1,425875 % 1,499,079 $ 562,960
Long-term obligations™ ... 776,840 903,121 954,164 980,207 381,694
TOtal debl .o 844,040 1,015,781 1,166,510 1,244,207 594,944
Statement of Cash Flows Data:
Net cash provided by operating activities of
CONtinUing OPErations ... ivereeierececesieesees 244,716 239,341 178,279 307,591 181.467
Net cash used by investing activities of
CONKUNUING OPEFALIONS woeovcvicririns s (10,971} (33.174) (55.917) (670,837 (24 883)
Net cash (used) provided by financing activities
of continuing OPerations ... vrvriveesseevesseiesneens (224,890) (204,587) (142,816) 369,963 (278.471)
Purchases of capital assets....ioveeeniineiicniniinnnn, (32,328) (41,324) (55,653) (43,817) (22,034)
Payments for acquisitions, net of cash acquired ..... {2,316) (16,521) (2.888) (624.859) —
Payments for common shares repurchased ............. (11,288) — — (26.637) (507,126)
Other Data (continuing operations):
OFAErs™ .oooree e cer s 64,856 64,783 65,189 76,276 77,347
Revenue per order......vvcvnriinenenenns -3 2477 % 2531% 2633 § 2054 § 16.06
Number of employees.....c..covine 7,991 8,813 8,720 8,957 5,805
Number of printing/fulfillment facilities 23 24 21 20 14
Number of call center facilities.........cccvinniiiinns 14 17 18 18 7

n

@

)

“)

Our results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2008, 2005 and 2004 were impacted by the acquisition of New England Business
Service. Inc. (NEBS) on June 25, 2004, NEBS contributed revenue of $671.2 million in 2005 and $363.2 million in 2004. We are not able to quantify
NEBS revenue for 2007 or 2006 or its contribution to operating income because of its integration with our other businesses.

Our results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, 2005 and 2004 were impacted by the adoption of the fair value method of
accounting for share-based compensation outlined in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment, for 2007
and 2006 and SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, for 2005 and 2004. During 2003, we recorded expense for our restricted stock
and restricted stock unit awards and our employce stock purchase plan in accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for
Stock Issued to Employees. Expense recognized for share-based compensation in each year was as follows: 2007 - $13,533; 2006 - $6,191; 2005 -

$7,003: 2004 - $12,248; 2003 - $954.

Long-term obligations include both the current and long-term portions of our long-term debt obligations, including cupital leases.

Orders is our company-wide measure of volume. When portions of a customer order are on back-order, one customer order may be fulfilled via multiple

shipments. Generally, an order is counted when the last item ordered is shipped to the customer.
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation.

EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW

Our business is organized into three segments: Small Business Services, Financial Services and Direct
Checks. Our Small Business Services segment generated 58.4% of our consolidated revenue for 2007. This segment
sells business checks, printed forms, promotional products, marketing materials and related services and products to
more than six million small businesses and home offices through financial institution referrals, direct response
marketing, sales representatives, independent distributors and the internet. Of the more than six million customers we
have served in the past five years, four million have ordered our products or services in the fast 24 months. Qur
Financial Services segment generated 28,5% of our consolidated revenue for 2007, This segment sells personal and
business checks, check-related products and services, stored value gift cards and customer loyalty, retention and
fraud monitoring/protection services to approximately 7,000 financial institution clients nationwide, including banks,
credit unions and financial services companies. Our Direct Checks segment generated 13.1% of our consolidated
revenue for 2007. This segment is the nation’s leading direct-to-consumer check supplier, selling under the Checks
Unlimited®, Designer® Checks and Checks.com brand names. Through these brands, we sell personal and business
checks and related products and services directly 1o consumers using direct response marketing and the internet. We
operate primarily in the United States. Small Business Services also has operations in Canada.

Our net income for 2007, as compared to 2006, benefited from the following:

* Various cost reductions from previously announced management initiatives to reduce our cost structure,
primarily within information technology, sales and marketing, and manufacturing;

+ Lower amortization expense and project costs related to a software project written-off in the second quarter of
2006;

¢ Additional revenue in Direct Checks from selling additional premium features and services, as well as a
weather-related backlog from the last week of December 2006;
Lower net restructuring charges in 2007, as compared to 2006;

* Lower amortization of acquisition-related intangible assets within Small Business Services, as certain of the
assets are amortized using accelerated methods; and

* An increase in order volume for Financial Services, as compared to 2006, due to net client gains and financial
institution conversion activity.

These benefits were partially offser by the following:

» Higher performance-based employee compensation;
L.ower order volume for our Direct Checks segment; and
* Lower revenue per order for our Financial Services segment.

Further, our results for 2006 included a non-cash, pre-tax asset impairment loss of $44.7 million, an $11.0
million pre-tax gain on the termination of an underperforming outsourced payroll services contract and a $4.6
million net pre-tax gain on facility sales.

In May 2007, we issued $200.0 million of 7.375% senior, unsecured notes maturing on June 1, 2015,
Proceeds from the offering, net of offering costs, were $196.3 million. These proceeds were used to repay amounts
drawn on our credit facility and to invest in marketable securities. On October 1, 2007, we used proceeds from
liquidating all of our marketable securities and certain cash equivalents, together with a $120.0 million advance on
our credit facilities, primarily to repay $325.0 million of 3.5% unsecured notes, plus accrued interest. Further
information regarding our debt can be found under the caption “Note 13: Debt” of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements appearing in ltem 8 of this report,
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Our Strategies

Small Business Services — Our focus within Smal! Business Services is to grow revenue and increase
operating margin by continuing to implement the following strategies:

® Acquire new customers by leveraging customer referrals that we receive from our financial institution clients
and from other marketing initiatives such as direct mail and e-commerce;

¢ Increase our share of the amount small businesses spend on the products and services in our portfolio;

» Consolidate brands and leverage cross-selling opportunities; and

e (Continue Lo optimize our cost and expense structure.

We are investing in several key enablers to achieve our strategies. These key enablers include improving our
e-commerce capabilities, implementing an integrated platform for our various brands, improving our customer
analytics and focusing on key vertical segments and improved merchandising. As we focus on these key enablers, we
plan to streamline and update our brand structure, as well as transition our sales model to integrate field sales,
marketing and customer call centers across the company. We believe this creates more focus on customers, positions
us for growth and ensures we are leveraging processes, facilities and resources to our best advantage. We have also
introduced a new www.Deluxe.com website which will serve as a platform for improved e-commerce capability, and
we have identified significant opportunities to expand sales to our existing customers.

Additionally, the small business customer referrals we receive from our Deluxe Business 1»5;dvz'.ntagesM
program, which provides a fast and simple way for financial institutions to offer expanded personalized service to
small businesses, will continue to be an important part of our growth strategy. With the acquisition of the Johnson
Group in October 2006 and All Trade Computer Forms, Inc. in January 2007, we have acquired companies which
allow us to expand our business in the custom, full color, digital and web-to-print space with our small business
customers. Further information regarding these acquisitions can be found under the caption “Note 4: Acquisitions
and disposition” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements appearing in Item 8 of this report. We divested a
non-strategic product line in January 2007 when we completed the sale of our industrial packaging product line for
$19.2 million, realizing a pre-tax gain of $3.8 million. This business generated revenue of approximately $51 million
in 2006. This sale did not have a significant impact on earnings or operating cash flow.

Recently, we introduced the Deluxe Marketing Store to offer fast, hassle-free solutions for small businesses.
The Deluxe Marketing Store is a website that offers products and services to help small businesses reach their
customers, build custemer loyalty and promote their business. Small businesses can design and create logos,
websites, mailings and other promotional items. The Deluxe Marketing Store is also a resource for small businesses
as it contains useful information for growing and managing a small business.

Financial Services — Our strategies within Financial Services are as follows:

Continue to retain core check revenue streams and acquire new customers;

s Provide services and products that differentiate us from the competition and make us a more relevant business
partner to our financial institution clients; and

* Continue to simplify our business model and optimize our cost and expense structure.

To achieve our strategies we are leveraging our customer acquisition and loyalty programs, our Deluxe
Business Advantage program and enhanced small business customer service. The Deluxe Business Advantage
program is designed to maximize financial institution business check programs by offering expanded personalized
service to small businesses with a number of service level options.

In our efforts to expand beyond check-related products, we have introduced and continue to pilot several new
services that focus on customer loyalty and retention. Two examples are the Welcome Home™™ Tool Kit and the
Deluxe Impressions™™ products which enable financial institutions to forge strong bonds with new customers,
thereby increasing customer loyalty and retention. We also offer Deluxe ID TheftBlock®, a set of fraud monitoring
and recovery services that provides assistance to consumers in detecting and recovering from identity theft. We also

22




enhanced our stored value gift card program and launched DeluxeCalling™, a service providing a first point of
contact with new indirect loan consumers on behalf of our financial institution clients. This service leverages our
core competency of call center expertise and provides incremental revenue and increased customer retention for our
financial institution clients. Providing products and services that differentiate us from the competition is expected to
help offset the decline in check usage and the pricing pressures we are experiencing in our check programs. As such,
we are also focused on accelerating the pace at which we introduce new products and services. In addition to these
value-added services, we continue to offer our Knowledge Exchange™ Series, a suite of resources and events for our
financial institwtion clients focused on the customer experience.

In addition to our initiatives to retain customers and introduce new products and services, we continue our
efforts to simplify processes, eliminate complexity in this business and lower our cost structure, Qur efforts are
focused on using lean principles to streamline call center and check fulfillment activities, redesign services into
standardized flexible models, eliminate multiple systems and work streams and strengthen our ability to quickly
develop and bring new products and services to market.

Direct Checks — Our focus within Direct Checks is Lo enhance our share of the direct-to-consumer channel by
continuing to implement the following strategies:

® Maintain our 2007 level of marketing spend, which was increased from previous years;
¢ Maximize the lifetime value of customers by selling new features and accessories; and
* Continue to optimize our cost and expense structure.

Beginning in 2007, we increased our advertising circulation of free-standing inserts under a new direct mail
advertising contract which will remain in effect for the next several years. This has been an effective form of new
customer acquisition in this channel. We also intend to increase the portion of our advertising expense designated for
customer retention by utilizing reactlivation and email campaigns. We continue to develop improved call center
processes, provide additional products to Direct Checks’ small business customers and explore other avenues to
increase sales to existing customers. In late 2006, we introduced the EZShield™ product, a fraud protection service
that provides reimbursement to consumers for forged signatures or endorsements and altered checks. We have also
introduced holiday greeting cards and stored value gift cards on cur websites.

Cost Reduction Initiatives

We are pursuing aggressive cost reduction and business simplification initiatives, including: reducing shared
services infrastructure costs; streamlining our call center and check fulfillment activities; eliminating system and
work stream redundancies; and strengthening our ability to quickly develop new products and services and bring
them to market. We believe significant cost reduction opportunities exist in the reduction of stock keeping units
{8KUs), the standardization of products and services and improvements in sourcing third-party goods and services.
These opportunities collectively are expected to reduce our annual cost structure by at least $225 million, net of
required investments, by the end of 2009, The baseline for these anticipated savings is the annual diluted earnings
per share guidance for 2006 of $1.41 to $1.51, which we provided in our press release on July 27, 2006 regarding
second quarter 2006 results. We expect all three of our business segments to benefit from cost reductions. We
cstimate that approximately 30-35% of the $225 miiltion target will come from our shared services infrastructure
organizations. We expect information technology will provide the greatest percentage of these savings through
lowering data center costs, improving mainframe and server utilization and reducing the cost of networking and
voice communications, We estimate that approximately 40-45% of the $225 million target will come from
fulfillment, including manufacturing and supply chain, and we estimate that approximately 20-25% of the $225
million target will come from reorganizing our sales and marketing functions. Overall, approximately one-third of
the savings are expected to affect cost of goods sold, with the remaining two-thirds impacting selling, genera!l and
administrative (SG&A} expense.

Through December 31, 2007, we estimate that we have realized approximately $105 million of our $225

million target. We anticipate that we will realize an additional $70 million of the $225 million target in 2008 and the
remaining $50 million in 2009.
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Business Challenges

The market for our two largest products, checks and business forms, is very competitive. These products are
mature and their use has been declining. According to our estimates, the total number of checks written in the United
States has been in decline as a result of alternative payment methods, including credit cards, debit cards, automated
teller machines and electronic payment systems. According to a Federal Reserve study reteased in December 2007,
approximately 33 billion checks are written annually. This includes checks which are converted to automated
clearing house (ACH) payments. The check remains the largest single non-cash payment method in the United
States, accounting for approximately 35% of all non-cash payment transactions. This is a reduction from the Federal
Reserve study released in December 2004 when checks accounted for approximately 45% of all non-cash payment
transactions. The Federal Reserve estimates that checks written declined approximately four percent per year
between 2003 and 2006. According to our estimates, the use of business checks is declining at a rate of two to four
percent per year. The total transaction volume of all electronic payment methods exceeds check payments, and we
expect this trend to continue. In addition to the decline in check usage, the use of business forms is also under
pressure. Continual technological improvements have provided small business customers with alternative means to
enact and record business transactions. For example, off-the-shelf business software applications and electronic
transaction systems have been designed to automate several of the functions performed by business forms products.

Because check usage is declining and financial institutions are consolidating, we have been encountering
significant pricing pressure when negotiating contracts with our financial institution clients. Our traditional financial
institution relationships are typically formalized through supply contracts averaging three to five years in duration.
As we compele to retain and acquire new financial institution business, the resulting pricing pressure, combined with
dectining check usage in the marketplace, has reduced our revenue and profit margins. We expect this trend to
continue.

Direct Checks and portions of Small Business Services have been impacted by reduced consumer response
rales to direct mail advertisements. Qur own experience indicates that direct-to-consumer media response rates are
declining across a wide variety of products and services. Additionally, our consumer response rates are declining
further due to the decline in check usage and the gradual obsolescence of standardized forms products.

We estimate that general economic conditions negatively impacted our 2007 results of operations in the latter half
of the year, primarily in Smatl Business Services. The rate of small business formations and small business confidence
impact Small Business Services. The index of small business optimism published by the National Federation of
Independent Business (NFIB) in December 2007 continued to be below average. According to estimates of the Small
Business Administration’s Office of Advocacy, new small business formations were down slightly in 2006 as compared
to 2005, the most recent date for which information is available. Consumer spending and employment levels may also
have some impact on our personal check businesses. Although both trended negatively during the last half of 2007, we
did not experience a significant negative impact in our personal check businesses. We expect that general economic
conditions will have some negative impact on our 2008 results of operations, primarily in Small Business Services in the
first half of the year. A prolonged downturn in general economic conditions could result in additional declines in our
revenue and profitability.

Outlook for 2008

We anticipate that consolidated revenue will be between $1.56 billion and $1.61 billion for 2008, as compared to
$1.61 billion for 2007. Despite the decline in check usage and economic uncertainty, we expect 1o deliver near flat
revenue performance in 2008 as compared to 2007, We anticipate that growth in Small Business Services will be in the
very low single digits, while declines in Financial Services will be in the low to mid single digits and declines in Direct
Checks will be in the high single digits. We expect that revenue from our expansion initiatives will grow modestly
during the latter half of the year.

We expect that 2008 diluted earnings per share will be between $3.00 and $3.20, éompared to $2.76 for 2007.

We expect that operating income will increase from 2007 due to our cost reduction initiatives, partially offset by the
impact of revenue declines in our personal check businesses, continued investments in new products and enablers, such
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as e-commerce, and other cosl increases. We estimate that our effective 1ax rate for 2008 will be approximately 35%,
compared (0 34.1% for 2007.

We anticipate that operating cash flow will be between $230 million and $250 million in 2008, compared to $245
million in 2007. We expect that increased earnings and working capital improvements throughout the year will be offset
by higher payments for employee performance-based compensation in the first quarter. We estimate that capital
spending will be approximately $30 million in 2008, with investment focused on cost reduction and key enablers such as
e-commerce. Our priorities for the use of cash include paying down our credit facility in 2008 and investing both
organically and in acquisitions to avgment growth. We will also consider other opportunities to enhance shareholder
value, including modest share repurchase opportunities and evaluating our dividend policy.

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Consolidated Revenue

Change
2007 vs. 2006 vs,
(in thousands, except per order amounts) 2007 2006 2005 2006 2003
REVENUE .ottt e e sasae s s essesanes $ 1,606,367 § 1,639,654 § 1,716,294 (2.0%) (4.5%)
L1 = S UORUPION 64,856 64,783 65,189 0.1% (0.6%)
Revenue per order. ... $ 2477 % 2531 % 26.33 (2.1%) (3.9%)

The decrease in revenue for 2007, as compared to 2006, was primarily due to a $48 million decrease resulting
from the sale of our industrial packaging product line in January 2007, as well as a decline in volume for our Direct
Checks segment and lower revenue per order due to lower pricing in our Financial Services segment. Lower volume
for Direct Checks was primarily due to the overall decline in check usage, as well as lower customer retention and
lower direct mail consumer response rates. Small Business Services also experienced a slight revenue decrease in the
last half of the year related to general economic conditions. Partially offsetting these decreases were revenues
generated by the Johnson Group, which we acquired in the fourth quarter of 2006, and higher revenue per order for
Direct Checks due to the introduction of new products and services, including the EZShield product discussed earlier
under Executive Overview. Additionally, Financial Services volume increased due to client gains and financial
institution conversion activity, and revenue in Canada increased due to a favorable exchange rate and increased
check orders triggered by a new check format mandated by the Canadian Payments Association that drove higher
volume in the first half of 2007. '

The nomber of orders increased slightly for 2007, as compared te 2006, as the Financial Services volume
increase of 1.4% exceeded the negative impacts of Direct Checks’ volume decline, the sale of Small Business
Services’ industrial packaging product line and the negative economic impact experienced by Small Business
Services in the last half of the year, Revenue per order decreased for 2007, as compared to 2006, as lower prices in
Financial Services more than offset the impact of increases in revenue per order for Direct Checks and Small
Business Services.

The decrease in revenue for 2006, as compared to 2005, was due to lower prices and a change in product mix
in our Financial Services segment resulting in significantly lower revenue per order, as well as a decline in volume
for our Direct Checks segment. Revenue for 2005 also benefited from $11.7 million of contract termination
payments in the second quarter. Lower volume for Direct Checks was due to the overall decline in check usage, as
well as lower customer retention, lower direct mail consumer response rates and lower advertising expenditures in
prior periods. Partially offsetting these decreases was increased revenue for Small Business Services due to higher
revenue per order and an increase in first-time buyers as we implemented our growth strategies. Additionally, Direct
Checks revenue per order increased, as did Financial Services order volume. Revenue per order increased for Direct
Checks due to the introduction of the EZShield product discussed earlier, as well as a decline in orders received
through our mail channel, which typically result in lower revenue per order, Financial Services volume increased as
the impact of net client gains exceeded the impact of the decline in check usage.
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The number of orders decreased for 2006, as compared to 2005, as the negative impact of the Direct Checks
volume decline exceeded the volume increases for Financial Services and Small Business Services. Revenue per
order decreased for 2006, as compared to 2005, as lower prices and a change in product mix in Financial Services
more than offset the impact of the increases in revenue per order for Small Business Services and Direct Checks.

Supplemental information regarding revenue by product is as follows:

Change
2007 vs. 2006 vs.

(in thousands) 2007 2006 2005 2006 2005
Checks and related services.......ooovvvmreeercreeennen. $ 1,045008 §$ 1,041,523 $ 1,110,695 0.3% (6.2%)
Other printed products, including forms............ 380,632 375,025 377,756 1.5% {0.7%)
Accessories and promotional products R 129,169 134,618 144,693 (4.0%) {(7.0%)
Packaging supplies and other..........ccocvcvinncnnn, 51,558 88,488 83,150 (41.7%) 6.4%

TOtAl FEVENUE ... eeeeeeeeeereeceeeerrecrreerne e $ 1,606,367 $ 1,639654 $ 1,716,294 (2.0%) {4.5%)

The percentage of total revenue derived from the sale of checks and related services was 65.1% in 2007, as
compared to 63.5% in 2006 and 64.7% in 2005. Small Business Services contributed non-check revenue of $480.0
million in 2007, $523.1 million in 2006 and $514.6 million in 2005, from the sale of forms, envelopes, holiday
cards, labels, business cards, stationery and other promeotional products. The decrease in Small Business Services
non-check revenue for 2007, as compared to 2006, was primarily due to the sale of our industrial packaging product
line in January 2007

Consolidated Gross Margin

Change
2007 vs, 2006 vs.
(in thousands) 2007 2006 2005 2006 2005
GrOSS PrOfiue. v v ececcormeereeeeeees s $ 1,019,806 $ 1,026,375 § 1,107,933 (0.6%) (7.4%)
Gross Margin .......cccevvceininniniinis 63.5% 62.6% 64.6% 09pt. (2.0)pt.

Gross margin increased for 2007, as compared 10 2006, due to manufacturing efficiencies, including the
closing of two Small Business Services manufacturing facilities in mid-2006, as well as lower material costs in 2007
related to a higher mix of check products in Small Business Services. Additionally, we benefited from increased
Financial Services order volume in 2007. Partially offsetting these gross margin increases was the lower Financial
Services revenue per order discussed earlier, a postal rate increase in 2007 and costs associated with the
implementation of new check packaging intended to mitigate the effects of the postal rate increase.

Gross margin decreased for 2006, as compared to 2005, primarily due to lower prices and an unfavorable shift
in product mix in Financial Services, contract termination payments received in 2005 and higher overall product
delivery costs in 2006 due 1o rate increases and fuel surcharges. Partially offsetting these declines was the increase in
Small Business Services revenue per order discussed earlier, as well as cost savings from closing two Small Business
Services manufacturing facilities in mid-2006.

Consolidated Selling, General & Administrative Expense

Change
2007 vs. 2006 vs.
(in thousands) 2007 2006 - 2005 2006 2005
Selling, general and administrative expense....... $ 756,034 $ 787960 $ B03,633 (4.1%) (2.0%)
SG&A as a percentage of revenue ... 47.1% 48.1% 46.8% {1.0) pt. 1.3 pt.
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The decrease in SG&A expense lor 2007, as compared to 2006, was due to various cost reduction initiatives
within our shared services organizations, lower amortization expense and project costs related to a software project
we wrote-oft in the second quarter of 2006, investments made in 2006 related to implementing our Small Business
Services growth strategies and a $5.0 million reduction in net restructuring charges in 2007. Further information
regarding our restructuring charges can be found under the Restructuring Accruals section of this discussion. We
also benefited from lower amortization of acquisition-related intangible assets within Small Business Services, as
certain of these assets are amortized using accelerated methods. Partially offsetting these SG&A decreases was
higher expense for performance-based employee compensation based on our 2007 operating performance, a gain in
2006 of $11.0 million from the termination of an underperforming outsourced payroll services contract and higher
referral commissions for Small Business Services resulting from growth in our Deluxe Business Advantage financial
institution referral program.

The decrease in SG&A expense for 2006, as compared to 2005, was due to cost synergies resulting from the
continued integration of New England Business Service, Inc. (NEBS), which was acquired in June 2004, as well as
various other cost reduction initiatives, a decrease in amortization expense resulting primarily from one of our order
capture software systems being fully amortized and a gain of $11.0 million, which decreased expense, from
terminating an underperforming outsourced payroll services contract in the fourth quarter of 2006. Also contributing
to the decrease were lower marketing costs for Small Business Services as we increased our focus on gaining new
customers through financial institution referrals. Partially offseiting these decreases were investments related to our
Small Business Services growth stralegies, primarily the hiring and training of call center and sales personnel, higher
customer care costs and commissions for Small Business Services as a result of the increased revenue and severance
charges of $9.7 million related to executing our cost savings initiatives. Further information regarding the severance
charges can be found under Restructuring Accruals.

Asset Impairment Loss

Change
2007 vs. 2006 vs.
(in thousands) 2007 2006 2005 2006 2005
Assel impairment 108S......oocevrereenines $ — % 44,698 § — $  (44,698) s 44,698

In June 2006, we determined that a software project intended to replace major portions of our existing order
capture, billing and pricing systems would not meet our future business requirements in a cost-effective manner,
Therefore, we made the decision to abandon the project. Accordingly, we wrote down the carrying value of the related
internal-use software to zero during the second quarter of 2006. This resulted in a non-cash asset impairment loss of
$44.7 million, of which $26.4 million was allocated to the Financial Services segment and $18.3 million was allocated to
the Small Business Services segment.

Net Gain on Sale of Product Line and Assets Held for Sale

Change
2007 vs. 2006 vs.
(in thousands) 2007 2006 2005 2006 2005
Net gain on sale of product line and '
assets held for sale ovvvrecnveeeen $ 3773 % 4,582 §% 539 § (809) 4,043

During 2007, we completed the sale of our Small Business Services industrial packaging product line for
$19.2 million, realizing a pre-tax gain of 33.8 million. This sale had an insignificant impact on our earnings per share
because of an offsetting income tax effect.

During 2006, we completed the sale of three Financial Services facitities which were closed in 2004, realizing
a gain totaling $5.5 million. During 2006, we aiso recorded a loss of $0.9 million when we completed the sale of a

Small Business Services facility which was closed prior to the NEBS acquisition in June 2004,

During 2003, we completed the sale of a Small Business Services facility and a Financial Services facility,
both of which were closed in 2004, realizing a total gain of $0.5 million.
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Interest Expense

Change
2007 vs. 2006 vs.
{in thousands) 2007 2006 2005 2006 2005
Interest EXPENSE ..o..evevverrieeiiereiainiens $ 55,294 § 56,661 $ 56,604 (2.4%) 0.1%
Weighted-average debt ocutstanding... 994,597 1,103,082 1,225,569 (9.8%) (10.0%)
Weighted-average interest rate .......... 5.02% 4.59% 4.18% 0.43 pt. 0.41 pt.

The decrease in interest expense for 2007, as compared to 2006, was due 1o our lower average debit level
during 2007, partially offset by a slightly higher average interest rate. Interest expense for 2006 was flat compared to
20035 as the lower average debt level was offset by higher interest rates.

Other Income

Change
2007 vs. 2006 vs.
(in thousands) ) 2007 2006 2005 2006 2005
Other INCOME ....viivveirerrrrrieeeeee e $ 5403 % 903 § 2499 § 4500 3 (1,596)

The increase in other income for 2007, as compared to 2006, was primarily due to interest earned ‘'on
investments in marketable securities which were purchased using the proceeds from the $200.0 million notes we
issued in May 2007. The decrease in other income for 2006, as compared to 2005, was due to lower earnings on life
insurance policy investments in 2006, as well as lower interest income.

Income Tax Provision

Change
2007 vs. 2006 vs.
{in thousands} 2007 2006 2005 " 2006 2005
Income tax Provision .......cvevrvvevererene 8 74,139 § 41983 § 92,771 76.6% (54.7%)
Effective tax rate.....ccocoeevevvrcveccnnen, 34.1% 29.5% 37.0% 4.6 pt. (7.5) p.

The increase in our effective tax rate for 2007, as compared to 2006, was largely due to a $3.0 million
reduction in our 2006 income tax provision for the true-up of certain deferred income tax balances. As this item was
not material 10 our current or prior periods, we recorded a one-time, discrete benefit to our provision for income
taxes for 2006. In addition, our state income tax rate was higher in 2007 and the lower pre-tax income in 2006
resulted in our permanent differences having a larger positive impact on the 2006 effective tax rate. Partially
offsetting these increases in our effective tax rate compared to 2006 was the impact of positive adjustments in 2007
related to receivables for prior year tax returns. The overall increase in our effective tax rate reduced diluted earnings
per share $0.20 for 2007, as compared to 2006. We expect that our annual effective tax rate for 2008 will be
approximately 35%.

The decrease in our effective tax rate for 2006, as compared 1o 2005, was largely due 1o the $5.0 million
reduction in our income tax provision for the true-up of certain deferred income tax balances. Additionally, our
overall state tax rate was lower in 2006, and the decrease in our pre-tax income for 2006, as compared to 2005,
resulted in our permanent differences having a larger positive impact on the effective tax rate. Partially offsetting
these reductions in our effective tax rate were accroals for contingent tax liabilities. Accruals related to unresolved
tax contingencies more than offset net accrual reversals of $1.5 million related to settled issues, primarily resulting
from the expiration of the statutes of limitations in various state income tax jurisdictions. The overall decrease in our
effective tax rate contributed $0.21 to diluted earnings per share for 2006, as compared to 2003,
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RESTRUCTURING ACCRUALS

During 2007, we recorded restructuring accruals of $7.1 million related to employee reductions within our
shared services functions of sales, marketing, customer care, fulfillment, information technology, human resources
and finance. During 2006, we recorded restructuring accruals of $11.1 million for severance related to employee
reductions in these shared services functions, as well as the closing of our Financial Services customer service call
center located in Syracuse, New York. The Syracuse facility was closed in January 2007 and the other employee
reductions are expected to be completed by the end of 2008, with severance payments to be completed in 2009.
These reductions were the result of the cost reduction initiatives discussed earlier under Executive Overview. Also
during 2007, we reversed $2.6 million of previously recorded restructuring accruals. These reversals were comprised
of $2.0 million of severance benefits due to fewer employees receiving benefits than originally estimated and $0.6
million of re-negotiated operating lease obligations. During 2006, we reversed $0.2 million of previously recorded
restructuring accruals,

The restructuring charges, net of reversals, are reflecied in our 2007 consolidated statement of income as a
$0.4 million reduction in cost of goods sold, an increase of $4.7 million in SG&A expense and a $0.2 million
reduction in the gain recognized on the sale of our industrial packaging product line. For 2006, the restructuring
charges, net of reversals, are reflected as cost of goods seld of $1.2 million and SG&A expense of $9.7 million. The
2007 and 2006 restruciuring accruals, net of reversals, included severance benefiis for a total of 718 employees. As a
result of these initiatives, we realized cost savings of approximately $2 million in cost of goods sold and $24 million
in SG&A expense in 2007, in comparison to our 2006 results of operations. We expect to realize additional cost
savings of approximately $12 mitlion in SG&A expense in 2008, in comparison to our 2007 results of operations.
Reduced costs consist primarily of labor costs.

In conjunction with our acquisition of NEBS in 2004, we recorded $30.2 million of restructuring accruals related
to NEBS activities which we decided to exit. As a result of facility closings and other employee reductions, we estimate
that we realized savings of approximately $5 million in cost of goods sold and $2 million in SG&A expense in 2006, in
comparison to our 2005 results of operations. Because two of the NEBS facilities were closed in mid-2006, we realized
additional savings in 2007 of approximately $2 million in cost of goods sold, in comparison to our 2006 results of
operations.

Further information regarding our restructuring accruals can be found under the caption “Note 6:
Restructuring accruals” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements appearing in ltem 8 of this report.

SEGMENT RESULTS

Additional financial information regarding our business segments appears under the caption “Note 17:
Business segment information” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements appearing in Item 8 of this report.
Small Business Services

This segment sells business checks, printed forms, promotional products, marketing materials and related
services and products to small businesses and home offices through direct response marketing, financial institution
referrals and via sales representatives, independent distributors and the internet.

Change
2007 vs. 2006 vs,
(in thousands}) 2007 2006 2005 2006 2005
ReVENUE ..ot $ 939,139 $ 969,809 § 932,286 (3.2%) 4.0%
Operating iNCOME .....occoinimnneisiscscinnn 130,462 86,764 105,118 50.4% (17.5%)
Do Of TEVENUE ... 13.9% 2.9% 11.3% 50pt.  (2.4)pt.

The decrease in revenue for 2007, as compared to 2006, was primarily due 10 a $48 million decrease resulting
from the sale of our industrial packaging product line in January 2007, as well as a slight decline in the last half of
the year related 1o general economic conditions. These decreases were partially offset by revenues generated by the
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Johnson Group, which we acquired in October 2006, and increased revenue in Canada due to a favorable exchange
rate and higher check sales resulting from a new check format mandated by the Canadian Payments Association.

The increase in operating income and operating margin for 2007, as compared to 2006, was due to progress
on our cost reduction initiatives, investments related to implementing our growth strategy in 2006, improved
manufacturing efficiencies in 2007, including the closing of two manufacturing facilities in mid-2006, lower
materials expense related to a higher mix of check products, lower ameortization of acquisition-related intangibles, a
$3.8 million pre-tax gain on the sale of our industrial packaging product line and a $2.6 million reduction in net
restructuring charges in 2007. In addition, 2006 results include the recognition of $18.3 million of the 2006
impairment loss discussed earlier under Consolidated Results of Operations-Asset Impairment Loss. Partially
offsetting these operating income improvements were higher expense in 2007 related to performance-based
employee compensation and higher referral commissions. In addition, during 2006 we realized a gain of $11.0
million from the termination of an underperforming outsourced payroll services contact.

The increase in revenue for 2006, as compared to 2005, was due to an increase in both revenue per order and
the number of first-time customers resulting from the implementation of our growth strategies. Additionally, we
began offering more products for our distributor channe! in 2006, and the acquisition of the Johnson Group in
October 2006 contributed $3.5 million of revenue.

The decrease in operating income and operating margin for 2006, as compared to 2005, was due to the non-
cash asset impairment loss of $18.3 million allocated to this segment, as discussed earlier under Consolidated
Results of Operations-Asset Impairment Loss, investments related to our growth strategies, primarily the hiring and
training of call center and sales personnel, as well as higher customer care costs and commissions related to the
revenue increase. Also contributing to the decline were higher product delivery costs and severance charges of $5.7
million for various employee reductions related to our cost savings initiatives. These decreases were partially offset
by the impact of the revenue increase, lower marketing expense due to reduced advertising expenditures and a gain
of $11.0 million from the termination of an underperforming outsourced payroll services contract in the fourth
quarter of 2006. Also, contributing (o operating income were cost synergies resulting from the integration of NEBS,
including two plant closings in mid-2006, other cost reduction initiatives and lower amortization of acquisition-
related intangible assets, as certain of the assets are being amortized using accelerated methods.

Changes in the allocation of corporate costs resulted in a decrease of $12.7 million in Small Business Services
operating income for 2006, as compared to 2005. As discussed under the caption “Note 17: Business segment
information” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements appearing in Item & of this report, we began
allocating corporate costs to the NEBS portion of Small Business Services on April 1, 2005 only for those corporate
services which the NEBS portion of the business was utilizing. As such, the NEBS portion of Small Business '
Services did not bear any allocation of corporate costs in the first quarter of 2005 and did not bear a full allocation of
corporate costs during the remainder of 2005. As of January 1, 2006, the NEBS portion of the business was fully
integrated into all corporate functions and thus, Small Business Services results included a full allocation of
corporate costs in 2006.

Financial Services

Financial Services sells personal and business checks, check-related products and services, stored value gift
cards and customer loyalty, retention and fraud monitoring/protection services to banks and other financial
institutions. We also offer enhanced services such as customized reporting, file management and expedited account
conversion support.

Change
2007 vs. 2006 vs.
(in thousands) 2007 2006 2005 2006 2005
Revenue ........c.cccciooinniiinnccinieeeeneens R $ 457292 $ 458,118 $ 537,525 (0.2%) (14.8%)
Operating iNCOME ........ccccovreennimnniinna e 74,305 46,613 119,677 59.4%  (61.1%)
Go Ol TEVENUE .....ccooeiiiiiir e 16.2% 10.2% 29 3, 60pt. (12.1) pi.
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The decrease in revenue for 2007, as compared to 2006, was driven by lower revenue per order due to
continued pricing pressure despite a price increase implemented in 2007. Lower pricing was partially offset by a
1.4% increase in order volume, as client acquisition gains and financial institution conversion activity exceeded the
impact of the consumer-driven decline in check usage.

Operating income increased for 2007, as compared to 2006, given 2006 results included the recognition of
$26.4 million of the 2006 asset impairment loss related to a software project we wrote-off. Further information
regarding the asset impairment loss was provided earlier under Consolidated Results of Operations-Asset
Impairment Loss. Additionally, we benefited from progress on our cost savings initiatives, manufacturing
efficiencies, lower amortization and other costs related to the software project we wrote-off in 2006, increased order
volume and a $3.3 million reduction in net restructuring charges in 2007. Partially offsetting these operating income
increases were higher delivery costs due to a postal rate increase in May 2007, lower revenue per order and higher
expense related to performance-based employee compensation, Additionally, 2006 results included gains of $5.5
million from sales of facilities.

The decrease in revenue for 2006, as compared to 2005, was due to lower revenue per order due to pricing
pressure, an unfavorable shift in product mix and contract termination payments of $11.7 million in the second
quarter of 2003. Partially offsetting these decreases was an increase in order volume. Order volume increased 1.1%
for 2006, as compared to 2005, as client acquisition gains exceeded the impact of the decline in check usage. This is
the first time order volume for this segment increased since we began tracking orders as a measure of volume in
2000.

Operating income decreased for 2006, as compared to 2005, due to the revenue decline, the non-cash asset
impairment loss of $26.4 million allocated to this segment, as discussed earlier under Consolidated Results of
Operations-Asset Impairment Loss, higher product delivery costs and severance charges of $4.4 million related 10
the January 2007 closing of our customer service call center located in Syracuse, New York and various other
employee reductions. These impacts were partially offset by lower amortization expense related to one of our order
capture software systems being fully amortized, various cost reduction initiatives, primarily within information
technology, and gains of $5.5 million from facility sales in 2006. Also, as discussed earlier, Small Business Services
began bearing a larger portion of corporate costs in 2006, This change in allocations resulted in an $8.5 million
benefit to Financial Services for 2006, as compared to 2005.

Direct Checks

!

Direct Checks sells personal and business checks and related products and services directly to consumers
through direct response marketing and the internet. We use a variety of direct marketing techniques to acquire new
customers in the direct-to-consumer channel, including newspaper inserts, in-package advertising, statement stuffers
and co-op advertising. We also use e-commerce strategies to direct traffic to our websites. Direct Checks sells under
the Checks Unlimited and Designer Checks brand names, as well as www.checks.com.

Change
2007 vs. 2006 vs.
(in thousands) 2007 2006 2005 2006 2005
REVENUE ....cvviiiir e ra s erises $ 209936 $ 211,727 $ 246483 (0.8%) (14.1%)
Operating inCOME ........coeeivvvncinnirrenenines 62,778 64,922 80,044 (33%) (189%)
To OF LEVENUL ..o 29,94, 30.7% 32.5% (0.8ypt.  (1.8)pt.

The decrease in revenue for 2007, as compared to 2006, was due to a reduction in orders stemming from the
overall decline in check usage and lower customer retention, as well as lower direct mail consumer response rates.
Partially offsetting the volume decline was higher revenue per order resulting from new accessories and services,
including the introduction in October 2006 of the EZShield product discussed earlier under Executive Overview.
Additionally, revenne was favorably impacted by approximately $3 million due to weather-related production and
shipping disruptions during the last week of December 2006, which caused revenue to be delayed into 2007.
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The decrease in operating income for 2007, as compared to 2006, was primarily due 1o the lower order
volume, higher performance-based employee compensation, increased delivery costs related to a postal rate increase
and the implementation of new check packaging intended to mitigate the effect of the postal rate increase, as well as
higher advertising expense related to increased circulation. These decreases in operating income were partially offset
by our cost reduction initiatives and higher revenue from new accessories and premium features and services.

The decrease in revenue for 2006, as compared 1o 2003, was due to lower order volume resulting from the
same factors as discussed earlier regarding 2007 revenue. Additionally, revenue was negatively impacted
approximately $3 million due to weather-related production and shipping disruptions during the last week of
December 2006, causing revenue to be delayed into 2007. The volume decline was partially offset by an increase in
revenue per order resulting from the introduction in October 2006 of the EZShield product discussed earlier under
Executive Overview, as well as a decline in orders received through our mail channel, which typically result in lower
revenue per order.

The decrease in operating income for 2006, as compared to 2005, was due to the revenue decline, partially
offset by lower customer care costs associated with the lower order volume and a decrease in advertising expense
due to reductions in advertising expenditures. Additionally, the decrease in operating income was partially offset by
a reduction in the allocation of corporate costs. As discussed earlier, Small Business Services began bearing a larger
portion of corporate costs in 2006. This change in allocations resulted in a $4.2 million benefit to Direct Checks for
2006, as compared to 2005.

CASH FLOWS

As of December 31, 2007, we held cash and cash equivalents of $21.6 million. The following table shows our
cash flow activity for the last three years and should be read in conjunction with the consolidated statements of cash
flows appearing in [tem 8 of this report.

Change
2007 vs. 2006 vs,
(in thousands) 2007 2006 2005 2006 2005

Continuing operations:
Net cash provided by operating activities...$ 244,716 $ 239,341 § 178279 § 5375 $ 61,062

Net cash used by investing activities .......... (10,971) (33,174) (55,917 22,203 22,743
Net cash used by financing activities.......... (224,890) (204,587) (142,816) (20,303) (61,771}
Effect of exchange rate change on cash...... 1,161 158 202 1,003 (44)
Net cash provided (used) by continuing
OPELALIONS ovcvirecrererrerearesresensnsrensensnsrvnss 10,016 1,738 {20,252) 8,278 21,990
Net cash provided (used) by operating '
activities of discontinued operations............. — 23 (4,152) (23) 4,175
Net cash provided by investing activities of
discontinued Operations..........ccoevecirvceinsinns — 2,971 15,779 (2,971) (12,808)
Net change in cash and cash
EQUIVAIENLS ....c..ceceecrc e re e 3 10,016 $ 4,732 § 8,625) § 5,284 % 13,357

The $5.4 million increase in cash provided by operating activities for 2007, as compared to 2006, was due to
positive working capital changes, as well as the higher earnings discussed earlier under Consolidared Results of
Operations. Partially offsetting these increases was a $29.6 million increase in 20077 contributions to our voluntary
employee beneficiary association (VEBA) trust used to fund medical and severance benefits, as well as a $15.1
million increase in income tax payments. During 2006, we decided that we would no longer pre-fund the VEBA trust
as the tax benefit from the pre-funding no longer exceeds the associated interest cost. As such, during 2006 we made
minimal contributions to the trust as we did not pre-fund the trust and we utilized the prepaid funds in the trust to
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cover benefit payments. Beginning in 2007, we fund the VEBA trust throughout the year as needed to pay medical
and severance benefits.

The $61.1 million increase in cash provided by operating activities for 2006, as compared to 2005, was due to
a $53.1 million decrease in contract acquisition payments related 1o new financial institution contracts, a $30.7
million decrease in income tax payments, a $27.5 million decrease in payments to our VEBA trust used to fund
medical and severance benefits, a $24.5 million decrease in employee profit sharing and pension payments related to
our 2005 operating results and a $7.1 million benefit from wiilizing the December 31, 2005 prepaid amount in the
VEBA twrust. These increases were largely offset by the lower earnings discussed earlier under Consolidated Resuits
of Operations.

Included in cash provided by operating activities were the following operating cash outflows:

Change
. 2007 vs. 2006 vs.

(in thousands) ’ 2007 ) 2006 2005 2006 2005
INCOME 1aX PAYMENLS .ovverererererererererereseserees $ 89944 § 74891 $ 105546 § 15053 $ (30,655
Interest payments ..........ccocvevevvererceneevareenns 57,077 57,035 57,393 42 (358)
VEBA trust contributions to fund medical

and severance benefits......ccoeevveeeiceninnnen 34,100 4,500 32,000 29,600 (27,500
Employee profit sharing and pension

CONHADULIONS .oviiiiiicc e 15,740 12,000 36,470 3,740 (24.470)
Contract acquisition payments.........c.......... 14,230 . 17,029 70,169 (2,799 (53,140)
SEVETANCe PAYMENLS ...vevvereereereereeeerereneerenees 9,606 5,092 9,573 4514 (4,481)

Net cash used by investing activities for 2007 was $22.2 million lower than 2006 due to payments in 2006 for
the Johnson Group acquisition, proceeds from the sale of our industrial packaging product line in 2007 and lower
capital asset purchases in 2007. Net cash used by financing activities for 2007 was $20.3 million higher than 2006
due to the pay-off of a $325.0 million long-term debt maturity and share repurchases of $11.3 million completed in
2007. These increases in cash used were partially offset by net proceeds from the 2007 issuance of $200.0 million of
long-term notes, higher payments on short-term debt in 2006, pay-off of a long-term debt maturity of $50.0 million
in 2006 and lower dividend payments in 2007 resulting from the decision Lo lower our quarterly dividend rate from
$0.40 to $0.25 per share in the third quarter of 2006. Net cash provided by investing activities of discontinued
operations in 2006 was $3.0 million due to the sale of our remaining facility in Europe,

Net cash used by investing activities for 2006 was $22.7 million lower than 2005, primarily due to the
redemption of company-owned life insurance policies in 2006, lower capital expenditures and higher cash proceeds
from facility sales. Partially offsetting these items were payments of $16.5 million for the acquisition of the Johnson
Group in the fourth quarter of 2006, as discussed earlier under Executive Overview. Net cash used by financing
activities for 2006 was $61.8 million higher than 2005 due to increased payments on short-term debt, as we
continued 1o focus on reducing our debt level, as well as a $50.0 million payment on long-term debt which matured
in the third quarter of 2006. These increases were partially offset by a $14.3 million reduction in dividend payments,
as we lowered our quarterly dividend amount from $0.40 per share to $0.25 per share in the third quarter of 2006.
Net cash provided by investing activities of discontinued operations for 2006 was $12.8 mitlion lower than 2005 due
to the sale of our apparel business in 2005, partially offset by the sale of our remaining facility in Europe during
2006.
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Significant cash inflows, excluding those related to operating activities, for each year were as follows:

Change
2007 vs. 2006 vs,
{in thousands) 2007 2006 2005 2006 2005
Proceeds from sales of marketabie
SECULIEIES' ovoeveereeraeessee s sssessersesseeeaes $ 1,057,460 $ — 3 — $1,057460 $ —
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt,
net of debl 1S5UanCe COSIS..viiiiiniiininnnen,s 196,239 — — 196,239 . —
Proceeds from sale of product line and
FACILIEIES .o cviecreec et eeeas 19,214 9,247 2,618 9,967 6,629
Proceeds from issuing shares under
employee plans ... 15,923 8,936 11,247 6,987 (2,311)
Proceeds from redemptions of life
insurance policies ..........ccovininniiinienan, — 15,513 —_ (15,513) 15,513
Net proceeds from sale of discontinued
OPETALONS ..o —_ 2,971 15,779 (2,971) {12,808)

™ During 2007. we purchased short-term marketable securities using the proceeds from the $200.0 million debt we issued in May 2007, as well as
using cash generated from operating activities. On October 1, 2007, we sold our remaining marketable securities and borrowed $120.0 million from
our credit facility primarily to repay our $325.0 million debt maturity plus accrued interest.

Significant cash outflows, excluding those related to operating activities, for each year were as follows:

Change

2007 vs. 2006 vs.
(in thousands) 2007 2006 2005 2006 2005
Purchases of marketable securities'” ............ $ 1,057460 § — 3 — §$1,057460 $ —
Payments on long-term debt ... 326,582 51,362 26,338 275,220 25,024
Cash dividends paid to shareholders............. 52,048 66,973 81,271 (14,925 {14,298}
Net payments on short-term debt................ 45,460 99,686 51,654 (54,226 48,032
Purchases of capital assets..........ccocveennnnee. 32,328 41,324 55,653 (8,996) (14,329)
Payments for common shares repurchased ... 11,288 — — 11,288 —
Payments for acquisitions, net of cash

BCQUITED -..overscriricrr e, 2,316 16,521 2,888 (14,205) 13,633

" During 2007. we purchased short-termn marketable securities using the proceeds from the $200.0 million debt we issucd in May 2007, as well as
using cash generated from operating activities. On October |, 2007, we sold our remaining marketable securities and borrowed $120.0 million from
our credit facility primarily to repay our $325.0 million debt maturity plus accrued interest.

We believe future cash flows provided by operating activities and our available credit capacity are sufficient
to support our operations, including capital expenditures, required debt service and dividend payments, for the next
12 months.
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CAPITAL RESOURCES

Our total debt was $844.0 million as of December 31, 2007, a decrease of $171.7 million from December 31,
2006.

Capital Structure
December 31,
{in thousands) 2007 2006 Change_
Amounts drawn on credit facilities .............. $ 67,200 $ 112,660 $  (45460)
Current portion of long-term debt................ 1,754 326,531 (324,777)
Long-term debt .........ccoiiinivcnninininnneneenes 775,086 576,590 198,496
Total debit.....cocccivieeiiciececene 844,040 1,015,781 (171,741)
Shareholders’ equity {deficil)......ccoverrrerirrnnen 42,162 {(65,673) 107,835
Total capital.....ccocriecomirmmciiinice § - 886,202 $ 950,108 $  (63,906)

As of December 31, 2006, we were in a shareholders’ deficit position due to the required accounting
treatment for share repurchases, completed primarily in 2002 and 2003. Under the laws of Minnesota, our state of
incorporation, shares which we repurchase are considered to be authorized and unissued shares. Thus, share
repurchases are not presented as a separate treasury stock caption in our consolidated balance sheets, but are
recorded as direct reductions of common shares, additional paid-in capital and retained earnings.

We have an outstanding authorization from our board of directors to purchase up to 10 miilion shares of our
common stock. This authorization has no expiration date, and 7.5 million shares remained available for purchase
under this authorization as of December 31, 2007. We repurchased 0.4 million shares during 2007 for $11.3 million,
and we repurchased an additional 0.6 miltion shares for $13.6 million through February 21, 2008. No shares were
repurchased in 2006 or 2005. Further information regarding changes in sharehelders’ equity (deficit} can be found in
the consolidated statements of shareholders’ equity (deficit) appearing in Item 8 of this report.

Debt Structure
December 31,

2007 2006
Weighted- Weighted-
average average
interest interest
(in thousands) Amount rate Amount rate Change
Fixed INterest rate .ooovveeemeeeeeeeeeevccvin s, $ 773,646 57% % 898,345 4.5% $ (124,699)
Floating interest rate ..........ccccocveveveeiiverinnnenn 67,200 5.6% 112,660 6.0% {45,460)
Capital [€aSes . .....coeevvevcmiie e 3,194 10.4% 4776 10.4% (1,582)
Total debt...c.ocoviiiiiicir e $ 844,040 57% $ 1,015,781 47% % (171,741)

Further information concerning our outstanding debt can be found under the caption “Note 13: Debt” of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements appearing in Item 8 of this repont.

We do not anticipate retiring outstanding long-term debt as we believe that is not the best use of our financial
resources at this time. However, we may, from time to time, consider retiring outstanding debt through open market
purchases, privately negotiated transactions or otherwise, Any such repurchases or exchanges would depend on
prevailing market conditions, our liquidity requirements, contractual restrictions and other factors.

We currently have a $500.0 million commercial paper program in place which is supported by two committed
lines of credit, Given our current credit ratings, the commercial paper market is not avaitable to us. As necessary, we
utilize our $500.0 million committed lines of credit to meet our working capital requirements. The credit agreements
governing the lines of credit contain customary covenants requiring a ratio of earnings before interest and taxes to
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interest expense of 3.0 times, as well as limits on levels of subsidiary indebtedness. We were in compliance with all
debt covenants as of December 31, 2007, and we expect 1o remain in compliance with all debt covenants throughout
the next 12 months.

As of December 31, 2007, amounts were available under our committed lines of credit for borrowing or for
support of commercial paper, as follows:

Total Expiration Commitmeﬁt
{in thousands) avaijlable _date fee
Five year line of credit.........coovceiniicennnccnnivciininns § 275,000  July 2010 175%
Five year line of credit.....ereiirniciiiinans 225,000  July 2009 225%
Total committed lines of credit ... 500,000
Amounts drawn on credit facilities...........oevrnennes (67,200)
Outstanding letters of credit ........oooevereerevveicnnnns (11,225)
Net available for borrowing as of
December 31, 2007 ....vvevvrirevereenrierereeireeins 3 421,575

Our current debt ratings as determined by Moody’s Investors Service (Moody’s) are Ba2 for our long-term
debt and Ba2 for our corporate family rating with a stable outlook. In May 2007, Moody’s changed the rating
outlook on our corporate family rating to stable from negative. Moody’s indicated that the change was due to our
improved liquidity position and expectations that improving revenue performance and savings realized from our cost
reduction program will continue to stabilize earnings. Our current long-term debt rating determined by Standard &
Poor’s Ratings Services (S&P) is BB- with a stable outlook. In July 2007, S&P revised our rating outlook to stable
from negative. S&P stated that the revision reflects stabilizing operating trends and adequate flexibility to sustain
credit measures in line with the current rating over the intermedliate term. Our credit agreements do not include
covenants or events of default tied directly to our credit ratings. The $200.0 million notes we issued in May 2007
place a limitation on restricted payments, including increases in dividend levels and share repurchases. This
limitation does not apply if the notes are upgraded to an investment-grade credit rating,

CONTRACT ACQUISITION COSTS

Other non-current assets include contract acquisition costs of our Financial Services segment. These costs,
which are essentially pre-paid product discounts, are recorded as non-current assets upon contract execution and are
amortized, generally on the straight-line basis, as reductions of revenue over the related contract term. Cash
payments made for contract acquisition costs were $14.2 million in 2007, $17.0 million in 2006 and $70.2 million in
2005. Changes in contract acquisition costs for the last three years were as follows:

(in thousands) 2007 2006 2005

Balance, beginning of Year ..., $ 71,721 § 93,664 § 83,825
AdIIONS ..o e 11,984 14,633 50,177
AMOTUZALON ceevvveivvreeecceeeeeeecsee s (28,189) (36,576) (34,731)
Refunds from contract terminations................... — — {3,607)

Balance, end of year ......c.cccoeecviieivnninninnnnns 3 55516 % 71,721 § 93,664

The number of checks being written has been in decline since the mid-1990s, which has contributed to
increased competitive pressure when attempting o retain or acquire clients. Both the number of financial institution
clients requesting contract acquisition payments and the amount of the payments increased in the mid-2000s, and has
fluctuated significantly from year to year. Although we anticipate that we will selectively continue to make contract
acquisition payments, we cannot quantify future amounts with certainty. The amount paid depends on numerous
factors such as the number and timing of contract executions and renewals, competitors’ actions, overall product
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discount levels and the structure of up-front product discount payments versus providing higher discount levels
throughcut the term of the contract. When the overall discount level provided for in a contract is unchanged, contract
acquisition costs do not result in lower net revenue. The impact of these costs is the timing of cash flows. An up-
front cash payment is made rather than providing higher product discount levels throughout the term of the contract.
Beginning in 2006, we sought to reduce the use of up-front product discounts by structuring new contracts with
incentives throughout the duration of the contract. We plan to continue this strategy.

Liabilities for contract acquisition payments are recorded upon contract execution. These obligations are
monilored for each contract and are adjusted as payments are made. Contract acquisition payments due within the
next year are inctuded in accrued liabilities in our consolidated balance sheets. These accruals were $2.5 million as
of December 31, 2007 and $2.7 million as of December 31, 2006. Accruals for contract acquisition payments
included in other non-current liabilities in our consolidated balance sheets were $3.4 million as of December 31,
2007 and $5.4 million as of December 31, 2006.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS, GUARANTEES AND CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

It is not our general business practice to enter into off-balance sheet arrangements or to guarantee the
performance of third parties. In the normal course of business we periodically enter into agreements that incorporate
general indemnification language. These indemnifications encompass such items as product or service defects,
including breach of security, intellectual property rights, governmental regulations and/or employment-related
matters. Performance under these indemnities would generally be triggered by our breach of the terms of the
contract. In disposing of assets or businesses, we often provide representations, warranties and/or indemnities to
cover various risks including, for example, unknown darmage to the assets, environmental risks involved in the sale
of real estate, liability to investigate and remediate environmental contamination at waste disposal sites and
manufacturing facilities, and unidentified tax liabilities and legal fees related to periods prior to disposition. We do
not have the ability to estimate the potential liability from such indemnities because they relate to unknown
conditions. However, we have no reason to believe that any likely liability under these indemnities would have a
material adverse effect on cur financial position, annual results of operations or annual cash flows. We have recorded
liabilities for known indemnifications related to environmental matters. Further information can be found under the
caption “Note 14: Other commitments and contingencies™ of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
appearing in [tem 8 of this report.

We are not engaged in any transactions, arrangements or other relationships with unconsolidated entities or
other third parties that are reasonably likely to have a material effect on our liquidity, or on our access to, or
requirements for capital rescurces. In addition, we have not established any special purpose entities.

As of December 31, 2007, our contractual obligations were as follows:
2009 and 2011 and 2013 and

(in thousands) Total 2008 2010 2012 thereafter
Long-term debt and related

IOLETESE v $ 1054396 $ 43,844 § 87688 $ 387,063 $ 535,801
Amounts drawn on credit

fAaCHINES ..ot 67,200 67,200 — — —
Capital lease obligation and .

related interest .......oooeeeeeeeeeeens 3,507 2,004 1,503 — —
Operating lease obligations ........... 23,857 8,233 12,590 3,032 2
Purchase obligations...........ccceeueue 159,145 59,829 64,893 32,958 1,465
Other long-term liabilities.............. 46,633 21,395 15,824 3,336 6,078

Total oo, $ 1,354738 $ 202,505 $§ 182498 § 426,389 § 543,346
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Purchase obligations include amounts due under contracts with third party service providers. These contracts
are primarily for information technology services. Additionally, purchase obligations include amounts due under
Direct Checks direct mail advertising agreements and Direct Checks and Financial Services royalty agreements. We
routinely issue purchase orders to numerous vendors for the purchase of inventory and other supplies. These
purchase orders are not included in the purchase obligations presented here, as our business partners typically allow
us to cancel these purchase orders as necessary to accommodate business needs. Certain of the contracts with third
party service providers allow for early termination upon the payment of early termination fees. If we were to
terminate these agreements, we would have incurred early termination fees of $37.5 million as of December 31,
2007.

Other long-term liabilities consist primarily of amounts due for our postretirement benefit plans and liabilities
for uncertain tax positions, deferred compensation and workers’ compensation. Of the $86.8 million reported as
other long-term liabilities in our consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2007, $61.5 million is excluded from
the obligations shown in the table above. The excluded amounts include the following:

¢ Benefit payments for postretirement benefit plans — We have contributed funds to these plans for the
purpose of funding our obligations. Thus, we have the option of paying benefits from the assets of the
plans or from the general funds of the company. Additionally, we expect the plan assets to earn income
over time. As such, we cannot predict when or if payments from the general funds of the company will
be required. As of December 31, 2007, three of our postretirement benefit plans were underfunded by a
total of $34.7 million.

s Payments for uncertain tax positions - Due to the nature of the underlying liabilities and the extended
time often needed to resolve income tax uncertainties, we cannol make reliable estimates of the amount
or timing of cash payments that may be required to settle these liabilities. Our liability for uncertain tax
positions, including accrued interest and penalties, was $19.2 million as of December 31, 2007.

s A portion of the amount due under our deferred compensation plan — Under this plan, employees begin
receiving payments upon the termination of employment or disability, and we cannot predict when
these events will occur.

* Insured environmental remediation costs — As of December 31, 2007, the majority of the cosis
included in our environmental accruals are covered by an environmental insurance policy which we
purchased in 2002, The insurance policy does not cover properties acquired in acquisitions subsequent
to 2002. The insurance policy covers pre-existing conditions from third-party claims and cost overruns
through 2032 at certain owned, leased and divested sites, as well as any new conditions discovered at
certain owned or leased sites through 2012. As a result, we expect to receive reimbursements from the
insurance company for environmental remediation costs we incur for these insured sites. The related
receivables from the insurance company are reflected in other current assets and other non-current
assets in our consolidated balance sheets based on the amounts of our environmental accruals for
insured sites.

¢ [tems which will not be paid in cash, such as a deferred gain resulting from a 1999 sale-leaseback
transaction with an unaffiliated third party.

Total contractual obligations do not include the following:

e Payments to our defined contribution pension and 401(k) plans — The amounts payable under our
defined contribution pension and 401 (k) plans are dependent on the number of employees providing
services throughout the year, their wage rates and in the case of the 401(k) plans, whether employees
elect to participate in the plans.

¢ Profit sharing and cash bonus payments — Amounts payable under our profit sharing and cash bonus
plans are dependent on our operating performance.

* Income tax payments which will be remitted on our earnings.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

We have not entered into any material related party transactions during the past three years.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Management's discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operation is based upon our
consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) in the United States of America. We review the accounting policies used in reporting our financial
results on a regular basis. The preparation of these financial statements requires us 10 make estimates and judgments that
affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and the related disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that we believe are
reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which forms the basis for making judgments about the carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Results may differ from these estimates due to
actual outcomes being different from those on which we based our assumptions. The estimates and judgments utilized
are reviewed by management on an ongoing basis and by the audit committee of our board of directors at the end of each
quarter prior to the public release of our financial results. During the first quarter of 2007, we adopted Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 157, Fair Value Measurements and Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) Inierpretation (FIN) No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes. Further information concerning the
adoption of these standards can be found under the caption “Note 1: Significant accounting policies™ of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements appearing in ltem 8 of this report.

APPLICATION OF CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived Trade Names

As of December 31, 2007, goodwiil was comprised of the following:

(in thousands)

Acquisition of NEBS in June 2004 ... vrcenree v rems e 3 493,889
Acquisition of Designer Checks, Inc. in February 2000.............cocoovvvvcemnviennnns 77970
Acquisition of the Johnson Group in October 2006........ccoeovcvrnrerencreneens 7,320
Acquisition of Direct Checks in December 1987 ... 4,267
Acquisition of Dots and Pixels, Inc. in July 2005 .. 1,044
Acquisition of All Trade Computer Forms, Inc. in Februaxy 2007... 804

Goodw1ll $ 585,294

Further information regarding the acquisitions which occurred during the past three years can be found under
the caption “Note 4: Acquisitions and disposition” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements appearing in
Item 8 of this report. Goodwill is tested for impairment on at least an annual basis and between annual evaluations if
events or circumstances occur which could indicate impairment. As discussed earlier under Segment Results, our
Direct Checks segment has been impacted by the decline in check usage, lower customer retention and lower direct
maii consumer response rates. To date, we have been able to offset to a large degree the impact of the resulting
volume decline through cost management efforts and revenue from new accessories and services. The impairment
analysis completed during the third quarter of 2007 indicated no impairment of goodwill.

We also have two indefinite-lived trade names, totaling $59.4 million as of December 31, 2007, related to the
NEBS acquisition. We continually evaluate the remaining useful lives of these assets to determine whether events
and circumstances continue to support an indefinite useful life. 1f we subsequently determine that one or both of
these asselts has a finite useful life, we will first test the asset for impairment and then amortize the asset over its
estimated remaining useful life. Indefinite-lived trade names are tested for impairment on at least an annual basis and
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between annual evaluations if events or circumstances occur which could indicate that the asset is impaired. The
annual impairment analysis completed during the third quarter of 2007 found no indication of impairment. The
valuation determined that the fair value of these assets was $74.5 million, compared to the carrying value of $59.4
mitlion. In determining the fair value, we assumed a discount rate of 10.3% and royalty rates of 2% and 5%. A one
percentage point increase in the discount rate would reduce the indicated fair value of the assets by $8.3 million and
a one percentage point decrease in the royalty rates would reduce the indicated fair value of the assets by $26.7
million. We are currently reassessing our branding strategy. Once this assessment is complete, we will evaluate the
impact, if any, on the carrying value of our trade name intangible assets. An impairment loss may be required if
future events cause a decrease in the indicated fair value of these assets.

The evaluation of asset impairment requires us to make assumptions about future cash flows over the life of
the asset being evaluated. These assumptions require significant judgment and actual results may differ from
assumed or estimated amounts. If these estimates and assumptions change, we may be required to recognize
impairment losses in the future.

Income Taxes

When preparing our consolidated financial statements, we are required to estimate our income taxes in each of
the jurisdictions in which we operate. This process involves estimating our actual current tax obligations based on
expected taxable income, stalutory tax rates and tax credits allowed in the various jurisdictions in which we operate.
In interim reporting periods, we use an estimate of our annual effective tax rate based on the facts available at the
time. Changes in the mix or estimated amount of annual pre-tax income could impact our estimated effective tax rate
in interim periods. In the event there is a significant unusual or one-time item recognized in our results of operations,
the tax attributable to that item is separately calculated and recorded in the interim period the unusual or one-time
item occurred. The actual effective tax rate is calculated at year-end.

Tax law requires certain items to be included in our tax return at different times than the items are reflected in
our results of operations. As a result, the annual effective tax rate reflected in our results of operations is different
than that reported on our tax return (i.e., our cash tax rate). Some of these differences are permanent, such as
expenses that are not deductible in our tax return, and some are temporary differences that will reverse over time,
such as depreciation expense on capital assets. These temporary differences result in deferred tax assets and
liabilities, which are included within our consolidated balance sheets. Deferred tax assets generally represent items
that can be used as a tax deduction or credit in cur tax return in future years for which we have already recorded the
expense in our statements of income. We must assess the likelihood that our deferred tax assets will be realized
through future taxable income, and to the extent we believe that realization is not likely, we must establish a
valuation allowance against those deferred tax assets. Deferred tax liabilities generally represent items for which we
have already taken a deduction in our tax return, but we have not yet recognized the items as expense in our resulis
of operations. Significant judgment is required in evaluating our tax positions, and in determining our provision for
income taxes, our deferred tax assets and liabilities and any valuation allowance recorded against our net deferred
tax assets. We had deferred tax assets in excess of deferred tax liabilities of $4.7 million as of December 31, 2007
and $2.5 million as of December 31, 2006, including valuation allowances of $0.6 million as of December 31, 2007
and $0.7 million as of December 31, 2006. The valuation allowances relate to Canadian operating loss carryforwards
which we do not expect to realize.

On January 1, 2007, we adopted FIN No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes. The new standard
defines the threshold for recognizing the benefits of tax return positions in the financial statements as “more-likely-
than-not” to be sustained by the taxing authorities based solely on the technical merits of the position. If the
recognition threshold is met, the tax benefit is measured and recognized as the largest amount of tax benefit that, in
our judgment, is greater than 50% likely to be realized. Further information regarding the impact of adopting this
new standard can be found under the caption “Note 1: Significant accounting policies” of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements appearing in Item 8 of this report. The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits as of
December 31, 2007 was $14.4 million, excluding accrued interest and penalties. If the unrecognized tax benefits
were recognized in our consolidated financial statements, $7.2 million would affect our effective tax rate. Interest
and penalties recorded for uncertain tax positions are included in our income tax provision. As of December 31,
2007, $4.8 million of interest and penalties was accrued, excluding the tax benefits of deductible interest.

40




Examinations of our federal income tax returns for years prior to 2000 have been closed. Federal income tax refurns
for 2000 through 2004 have been examined by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS), while our federal income tax
returns for 2005 through 2007 remain subject to IRS examination. In general, income tax returns for the years 2003
through 2007 remain subject to examination by major state and city tax jurisdictions. In the event that we have
determined not to file tax returns with a particular state or city, all years remain subject to examination by the tax
Jurisdictions, The ultimate outcome of tax matters may differ from our estimates and assumptions. Unfavorable
settlement of any particular issue would require the use of cash and could result in increased income tax expense.
Favorable resolution would result in reduced income tax expense.

Changes in unrecognized tax benefits during 2007 can be found under the caption: “Note 9: Income tax
provision” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements appearing in Item 8 of this report. Within the next 12
months, it is reasonably possible that our unrecognized tax benefits will change in the range of a decrease of $7.0
million to an increase of $1.1 million as we attempt to settle certain federal and state matters or as federal and state
statutes of limitations expire. We are not able to predict what, if any, impact these changes may have on our effective
tax rate or cash flows,

During 2006, we reduced our income tax provision $1.5 million for net accrual reversals related to settled
issues, primarily resulting from the expiration of the statutes of limitations in various state income tax jurisdictions.
Also during 2006, we reduced our income tax provision $5.0 million for the true-up of certain deferred income tax
balances. As this item was not material 10 2006 or prior periods, we recorded a one-time, discrete benefit to our
provision for income taxes for 2006. No significant adjustments to our provision for income taxes related to reserves
for contingent tax liabilities or deferred income taxes were recorded during 2005.

Postretirement Benefits

Detailed information regarding our postretirement benefit plan, including a description of the plan, its related
future cash flows, plan assets and the actuarial assumptions used in accounting for the plan, can be found under the
caption: “Note 12: Pension and other postretirement benefits” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
appearing in Item 8 of this report.

Our net postretirement benefit expense was $4.8 million for 2007 and $7.8 million for 2006 and 2005. Our
business segments record postretirement benefit expense in cost of goods sold and SG&A expense, based on the
composition of their workforces. QOur postretirement benefit expense and liability are calculated utilizing various
actuarial assumptions and methodologies. These assumptions include, but are not limited to, the discount rate, the
expectled long-term rate of return on plan assets, the expected health care cost trend rate and the average remaining
life expectancy of plan participants. We analyze the assumptions used each year when we complete our actuariai
valuation of the plan. If the assumptions utilized in determining our postretirement benefit expense and liability
differ from actual events, our results of operations for future periods could be impacted.

Discount rate — The discount rate is used to reflect the time value of money. It is the assumed rate at which
future postretirement benefits could be effectively settled. The discount rate assumption is based on the rates of
return on high-quality, fixed-income instruments currently available whose cash flows match the timing and amount
of expected benefit payments. In determining the discount rate, we utilize yield curve approaches to discount each
cash flow stream at an interest rate specifically applicable to the timing of cach respective cash flow. The present
value of cach cash flow stream is aggregated and used to impute a weighted-average discount rate. Additionally, we
consider Moody’s high quality corporate bond rates when selecting our discount rate. In measuring the accumulated
postretirement benefit obligation as of December 31, 2007, we assumed a discount rate of 6,2%. A 0.25 point change
in the discount rate would increase or decrease our annual postretirement benefit expense by approximately $0.2
million and would increase or decrease our postretirement benefit obligation by approximately $2.9 million.

Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets — The long-term rate of return on plan assets reflects the
average rate of earnings expected on the funds invested or to be invested to provide for expected benefit payments.
We base this assumption on an evaluation of our historical trends and experience, taking into account current and
expected market conditions. In measuring the net postretirement benefit expense for 2007, we assumed an expected
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long-term rate of return on plan assets of 8.75%. A 0.25 point change in this assumption would increase or decrease
our annual postretirement benefit expense by approximately $0.3 million.

Expected health care cost trend rate — The health care cost trend rate represents the expected annual rate of
change in the cost of health care benefits currently provided due to factors other than changes in the demographics of
plan participants. In measuring the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation as of December 31, 2007, our
initial health care inflation rate for 2008 was assumed to be 8.25% for participants under the age of 65 and 9.25% for
participants over the age of 65. Our ultimate health care inflation rate was assumed to be 5.25% in 2012 and beyond
for participants under the age of 65 and 5.25% in 2014 and beyond for participants over the age of 65. A one
percentage point increase in the health care inflation rate for each year would increase the accumulated
postretirement benefit obligation by $2.8 million and the service and interest cost components of our annual
postretirement benefit expense by $0.2 million. A one percentage point decrease in the health care inflation rate for
gach year would decrease the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation by $2.5 million and the service and
interest cost components of our annual postretirement benefit expense by $0.1 million.

Average remaining life expectancy of plan participants — In determining the average remaining life
expectancy of plan participants, our actuaries use a mortality table which includes estimated death rates for each age.
We use the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Participant Mortality Table in determining this assumption.

When actual events differ from our assumptions or when we change the assumptions used, an unrecognized
actuarial gain or loss results, Unrecognized gains and losses are reflected in postretirement benefit expense over the
average remaining service period of plan participants, which is currently 8.8 years. As of December 31, 2007 and
2006, our unrecognized net actuarial loss was $96.7 million and $97.9 million, respectively, and was comprised of
the following:

(in thousands) 2007 2006
Claims experience 23938 % 18,454
Health care cost trend .......coeeeeeeeiniiiniciiniicineieens 21,242 23,620
Discount rate assUMpLioN.........ocorrersrrenresiesseerneans 19,105 27,246
Return on plan assets .......ccocoorvnenerrienrescercvaranens 9,148 10,271
L1111 U U TU OO 23,299 18,326

Unrecognized net actuarial 108S......ccovvevererenene $ 96,732 $ 97917

Restructuring Accruals

Over the past several years, we have recorded restructuring accruals as a result of facility closings and other
cost management efforts. Cost management is one of our strategic objectives and we are continually seeking ways to
lower our cost structure. The 2004 acquisition of NEBS resulted in even larger restructuring accruals as we
combined the two companies and exited certain activities. These accruals primarily consist of employee termination
benefits payable under our ongoing severance benefit plan. We record accruals for employee termination benefits
when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the liability is reasonably estimable. As such,
judgment is involved in determining when it is appropriate to record restructuring accruals. Additionally, we are
required to make estimates and assumptions in calculating the restructuring accruals, as many times employees
choose to voluntarily leave the company prior to their termination date or they secure another position within the
company. In these situations, the employees do not receive termination benefits. To the extent our assumptions and
estimates differ from our actual costs, subsequent adjustments to restructuring accruals have been and will be
required. We reversed previously recorded restructuring accruals of $2.6 million in 2007, $0.2 million in 2006 and
$0.6 million in 2005 primarily as a result of fewer employees receiving severance benefits than originally estimated.
Further information regarding our restructuring accruals can be found under the caption “Note 6: Restructuring
accruals” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements appearing in Item 8 of this report.




NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Information regarding the accounting pronouncements adopted during 2007 can be found under the caption:
“Note I: Significant accounting policies” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements appearing in Item 8 of
this report.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R), Business Combinations, which modifies the required
accounting for business combinations. This guidance applies to ail transactions or other events in which an entity
(the acquirer) obtains control of one or more businesses (the acquiree), including those sometimes referred to as
“true mergers” or “mergers of equals.” SFAS No. 141(R) changes the accounting for business acquisitions and will
impact financial statements at the acquisition date and in subsequent periods. We are required to apply the new
guidance to any business combinations completed on or after January 1, 2009.

In December 2007, the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) No.
110. This guidance allows companies, in certain circumstances, to utilize a simplified method in determining the
expected term of stock option grants when calculating the compensation expense to be recorded under SFAS No.
123(R), Share-Based Payment. The simplified method can be used after December 31, 2007 only if a company’s stock
option exercise experience does not provide a reasonable basis upon which to estimate the expected option term.
Through 2007, we utilized the simplified method to determine the expected option term, based upon the vesting and
original contractual terms of the option. Beginning in 2008, we will utilize a more detailed calculation of the expected
option term based on our historical option exercise data.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 (the Reform Act) provides a “safe harbor” for forward-
looking statements to encourage companies to provide prospective information. We are filing this cautionary statement

M N4,

are

LT3

in connection with the Reform Act. When we use the words or phrases “should result,” “believe,” “intend,” “plan,
expected to,” “targeted,” “will continue,” “will approximate,” “is anticipated,” “estimate,” “project” or similar
expressions in this Annual Report on Form [0-K, in future filings with the SEC, in our press releases and in oral

2% L,

statements made by our representatives, they indicate forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Reform Act.

We want 10 caution you that any forward-looking statements made by us or on our behalf are subject to
uncertainties and other factors that could cause them to be incorrect. The material uncertainties and other factors known
to us are discussed in liem 1A of this report and are incorporated into this Item 7 of the report as if fully stated herein.
Although we have attempted to compile a comprehensive list of these important factors, we want to caution you that
other factors may prove to be important in affecting future operating results. New factors emerge from time to time, and
it is not possible for us to predict all of these factors, nor can we assess the impact each factor or combination of factors
may have on our business.

You are further cautioned not to place undue reliance on those forward-looking statements because they speak

only of our views as of the date the statements were made. We undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any
forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.
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Hem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

We are exposed to changes in interest rates primarily as a result of the borrowing activities used to support our
capital structure, maintain liquidity and fund business operations. We do not enter into financial instruments for
speculative or trading purposes. During 2007, we used our committed lines of credit to fund working capital and debt
service requirements. Additionally, we issued $200.0 million of fixed-rate long-term debt in May 2007. The nature and
amount of debt outstanding can be expected to vary as a result of future business requirements, market conditions and
other factors. As of December 31, 2007, our total debt was comprised of the following:

Weighted-
average
Carrying interest
{in thousands) amount Fair value™ rate
Long-term notes maturing December 2012 ...... $ 299062 $ 261,000 5.00%
Long-term notes maturing October 2014.......... 274,584 229,625 5.13%
Long-term notes maturing June 2015 .............. 200,000 199,250 7.38%
Amounts drawn on credit facilities .................. 67,200 67,200 5.62%
Capiltal lease obligation maturing through
September 2009.......cooviiiireee 3,194 3,194 10.41%
Total debt .....ccovivevninmrenisincerireeeeeee. 3 844040 § 760,269 5.67%

" Based on quoted market rates as of December 31, 2007, except for our capital lease obligations which are shown at carrying value.

Although the fair value of our long-term debt is less than its carrying amount, we do not anticipate settling our
outstanding debt at its reported fair value. We do not believe that settling our long-term notes is the best use of our
financial resources at this time.

Based on the outstanding variable rate debt in our pertfolio, a one percentage point increase in interest rates
would have resulted in additional interest expense of $0.5 million for 2007.

We are exposed to changes in foreign currency exchange rates. Investments in and loans and advances to foreign
subsidiaries and branches, as well as the operations of these businesses, are denominated in foreign currencies, primarily
the Canadian dollar. The effect of exchange rate changes is expected to have a minimal impact on our results of
operations and cash flows, as our foreign operations represent a relatively small portion of our business.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

Report of Independent Registered Accounting Firm
To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of Deluxe Corporation:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of
income, comprehensive income, shareholders’ equity (deficit) and cash flows present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Deluxe Corporation and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, and
the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also in our opinion, the
Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2007 based on criteria established in Internal Conirol - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s management is responsible for
these financial statements, for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of
the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on




Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements and
on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our integrated audits {(which were integrated
audits in 2007 and 2006). We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board {United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective
internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits of financial statements
included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. Qur audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our
audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

As discussed in Note | to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed the manner in which it
accounts for share-based compensation in 2006 and the manner in which it accounts for the funded status of its
defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefit plans effective December 31, 2006. As discussed in Note 1
10 the consolidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2007, the Company changed the manner in which it
accounts for uncertain income tax positions and the Company changed the measurement date it uses to measure the
funded status of its defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefit plans.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permil preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota
February 22, 2008
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DELUXE CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(in thousands, except share par value)

December 31,

2007 2006
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENES ......v.vvvveeeirciecerecre st saene $ 21,615 % 11,599
Trade accounts receivable-net of allowances for uncollectible accounts... 85,687 103,014
Inventories and sUPPLES ......ccooiiirermrrrerserrrre s 32,279 42,854
Deferred INCOMIE LAXES vuviiiiieiiriiiisistriim e e eeemeeeeeeeoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeraesarasasnee s 14,901 18,776
Cash held fOr CUSIOIMIETS ........oorvivesieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeereeeeeeeaeereeseeseseessseans 23,285 13,758
OMher CUITENT ASSEES 1ouvviitiie oo oo eeeeeeeemeeameeeeeeesseeeseresassasaresssneesn 14,178 12,116
TOA] CUITENE BSSELS .......eeeevvieeieeerersrrressesenntesseenoeesaeeeaeseessnessareseseesaes 191,945 202,117
Long-Term Investments (including $3,025 of investments at fair value in
2007 — S8 INOLE 1) oot s st srss e s e e nb e sae st e et abeomne 36,013 35,985
Property, Plant, and Equipment-net of accumulated depreciation................... 139,245 142,247
Intangibles-net of accumulated amoOTtiZatioN . ... 148,487 178,537
GOOAWILL....oee ettt s e s e s ramran 585,294 590,543
Other NON-CUITEIE ASSETS 1oivviiiriiisiiiiiitiititee e etmeeseeeeameeseeeeeeaeseeaeeesenmaensasssns 109,771 117,703
TOLAL BSSEES ..oeeeeeeeeeeeeieecierernrtecteesnee s b aasanessrasssnesesnresbbessssessreens 5 1,210,755 $ 1,267,132
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Current Liabilities:
ACCOUNLS PAYADI .o vttt e n e h) 78,871 $ 78,489
ACCTUE HADIIHES. ..ot cvre s s st ssaseassbeeareens 149,763 146,823
ShOT-EITI AEDL. e eebee e cn et 67,200 112,660
Long-term debt due within one year............ccocoveerenvnceecnvcnieccecneeee, 1,754 326,531
Total current HADILILIES ...oooeeveii ettt eeeeeee e eeeneeenn 207,588 664,503
Long-Term Debl.......coo e eesn e s rae s s ra e 775,086 576,590
Deferred INCOME TAXES ....oooii e eieesesresssaeasssesesstntesessssesssasnsesssaseeesan 10,194 16,315
Other Non-Current Liabilities.........oooiieiiiiieieeeeeteiiie e eeeeee e e e e e e eeeeeeeens 86,780 75,397
Commitments and Contingencies (Notes 9, 13 and 14)
Sharcholders’™ Equity (Deficit):
Common shares $1 par value (authorized: 500,000 shares;
issued: 2007 — 51,887; 2000 = 51,519} .o 51,887 51,519
Additional paid-in capital ... 65,796 50,101
Accumulated defiCit........ovveriierieiicrcc s e eeseen (37.530) (125,420)
Accumulated other comprehensive 10SS......ccccviviireseeseressssesssnns (39,046) (41,873)
Total shareholders’ equity (deficit) .....c.ocovevreverire e 41,107 {65,673)
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity (deficit} ....ccocevnvvernenn. $ 1,210,755 $ 1,267,132

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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DELUXE CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

REVENUE ©.vvvevereeieieieiee ettt re e veeeveve et ta et tess e inaananan s
Cost of go0ods s0ld.......ccooververieireeenree e,
Gross Profil .. cciieieini s e rveneresssssrnnssmseesesenens

Selling, general and administrative expense............
Assel impairment LoSS ........oovvveiiiiiiiccecice s

_Net gain on sale of product line and assets held

fOr 8ale .o
Operating INCOME........ccccomiiiiiniinnrisns s

Interest EXPense. .. e
OtheT INCOME....vveeeeereerrreeeeeeeieeeireeeeeeeeeesinsatsresasassaes
[ncome Before Income Taxes .........ccooooeeociiviecicvnininnans

Income tax provision........c.cccveeriniisnnnnnns
Income From Continuing Operations...........ceeuunenn

Income (Loss) From Discontinued Operations ............
INEt INCOMIE ...veeerereicrnrrrrerneseee e see e rene s ss s ns e

Basic Earnings per Share:

Income from continuing OPerations ..............c........
Income (loss) from discontinued operations ...........
Basic earnings per Sshare.......cccvvmiinicin

Diluted Earnings per Share:

Income from continuing Operations ...........ceeeeeeee.
Income (loss) from discontinued operations ...........
Diluted earnings per share...........ccoccimirnnnnnnn

Cash Dividends per Share ...,

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
1,606,367 $ 1,639,654 § 1,716,294
586,561 613,279 608,361
1,019,806 1,026,375 1,107,933
756,034 787,960 803,633
— 44,698 —
(3,773) (4,582) (539)
267,545 198,299 304,839
(55,294) (56,661) (56,604)
5,403 903 2,499
217,654 142,541 250,734
74,139 41,983 92,771
143,515 100,558 157,963
— 396 (442)
143,515 % 100,954 § 157,521
279 3 197 § 312
— 0.01 (0.01)
2.79 1.98 3.11
276 § 195 % 3.10
— 0.01 0.01)
2.76 1.96 3.09
1.00 § 1.30 $ 1.60

47




DELUXE CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(in thousands}

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
NEt INCOME ..o s be e 3 143,515 $ 100,954 § 157,521
Other Comprehensive Income, Net of Tax:
Reclassification of loss on derivative instroments from
other comprehensive income to net income .......ooeeee.e.... 2,281 2,559 2,576
Pension and postretirement benefit plans:
Minimum pension liability adjustment.......c.ccocoevvinnennn. — (269) —
Net actuarial loss arising during the period...................... (6,094) — ——
Reclassification of amounts from other comprehensive
income to net income:
Amortization of prior service credit...........c.ocivvererrene, (2,468) — —
Amortization of net actuarial 108S .................c.oovvrerenn. 6,156 — —
Unrealized foreign currency translation adjustment........... 3,263 255 114
Unrealized gains on securities: _
Unrealized holding gains arising during the year............. —_ 268 99
Less reclassification adjustments for gains included in
NELINCOIMIC ... v ee e ve e s e e res s s rrrees sneeens — (89) (146)
Other Comprehensive InCOME ..........cooeevveveeieeeieceieceee, 3,138 2,724 2,643
Comprehensive INCOME. ..o $ 146,653 § 103,678 § 160,164
Related Tax (Expense) Benefit of Other Comprehensive
Income Included in Above Amounts:
Reclassification of loss on derivative instruments from
other comprehensive income (0 net iINCOME ....vvvveevvevenene $ (1,356) % (1,493) § (1,500)
Pension and postretirement benefit plans:
Minimum pension liability adjustment..........cccoceeinnne. 151 —

Net actuarial loss arising during the period.............c.ovv.. 3,659 — —
Reclassification of amounts from other comprehensive
income to net income:
Amortization of prior service credit.........ccoooveenennnnenn. 1,491 — —
Amortization of net actuanal 1088 .....cccovvveeeveiiienn e (3,708) — —

Unrealized gains on securities:

Unrealized holding gains arising during the year............. — (191) (67
Less reclassification adjustments for gains included in
NELINCOME ..o b ee e — 63 99

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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DELUXE CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)

(in thousands)

, Accumulated
Common shares Additional other Total
Number Par paid-in Accumulated comprehensive shareholders’
of shares value capital deficit loss equity (deficit)
Batance, December 31, 2004.........coovvvvnnnrennnnnne 50,266 $ 50,266 $ 20,761 $ (235651 $ (13,867) $ (178.491)
NEt INCOME ...vevrrerre s — — — 157,521 - 157,521
Cash dividends.........cocceeene. — — — (81,271) — (81.271)
Common shares issued ......ocoevemvrnnecccrecnenns 529 529 10,718 — — 11,247
Tax impact of share-based awards..........cccoonnennnnnne — — 1,593 — — 1,593
Common shares retired...........o.ooevveveevnereeereenenn, (62) (62) (2,209 —_— — (2,271)
Fair value of share-based compensation.................. 2 2 7,001 — — 7,003
Loss on derivatives, net of tax............... — — — — 2,576 2,576
Currency translation adjustment — — — — 114 114
Unrealized loss on securities, net of ax ..ooovvvvveien — — — — 47y (47)
Balance, December 31, 2005.........cccooonirniiiinninieene 50,735 50,735 37,864 (159,401) (11,224) (82,026)
NELINCOME ....c.oiiieirie e - — — 100,954 — 100,954
Cash dividends.....o.oooveeeirenenineeeeeesssen — — — (66,973) — (66,973)
COMMON ShATES ISSUEM . verereereeeeersseereessseress e 810 810 8,126 — —_ 8.936
Tax impact of shire-based awards..........oonninnn — — 728 — — 728
Reclassification of share-based awards to accrued
Tiabilities (NOIE 1} .ovvvvveeeeeeeeeesseeeeeeeeeeeeseeeereeeene — —_ (1,919) —_ — (1.919)
Common shares retired...........ccoeeveeeeeveeeeevereeeeene (3an an (724} — — (755)
Fair value of share-based compensation................. 5 5 6,026 — —_ 6,031
Minimum pension liability, net of tax .................. — —_ — — (269) (269}
Adoption of FASB Statement No. 158, net of tax
(NOE 12) e — — — — (33,373) (33,373)
Loss on derivatives, net of taX ....coooevvvennernnieeenns — —_ — — 2,559 2,559
Currency translation adjustment ... — — — — 255 255
Unrealized gain on securities, net of taX.......oue — — — — 179 179
Batance, December 31, 2006...........cccccoeeeecceeernnnnne. 51,519 51,519 50,101 (125,420) (41,873) (65,673)
NEUINCOME .ovvvvvererverersarsercrsasensessrserersesersarerseserinnns — — — 143,515 — 143,515
Cash dividends...... — — — (52,048) — (52,048)
Common shares issued 767 767 15,971 — — 16,738
Tax impact of share-based awards............ccocoenee... — —_ 297 — — 297
Common shares repurchased ...........cccooveecnnene. (359) (359) (10,929) — — (11,288)
Other common shares retired.............ocovieeevenen. (40) 40) (1,354) — —_ (1.394)
Fair value of share-based compensation — -— 11,710 — —_ 11,710
Adoption of measurement date provision of FASB
Statement No. 158, net of tax (Note 1) ................ — — — (743) {69) {814)
Adoption of FIN No. 48 (Note 1).....ocvrreeernconn, — — — (3,074) — (3.074)
Adoption of FASB Statement No. 159, net of rax
(NOLE 1) e bbbt sramns - —_ — 242 (242) —
Amou_nls related to postretirement benefit plans,
net of tax (NOte 12) .o — —_— —_ —— (2,406} (2.406)
Loss on derivatives, net of tax ......occoeeevvveveveeiesnnees — -— — — 2,281 2,281
Currency translation adjustment ........cccocrecrevenn — — — — 3,263 3,263
Balance, December 31, 2007 .......c.cooovninnncesensnan. 51,887 $ 51,887 $ 65,796 $ (37,530) $ (39,046} $ 41,107

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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- DELUXE CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)
Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
NELIRCOIME c...occteracrcecrree e es e ree e e et bbbt s e e $ 143,515 § 100,954 3% 157,521
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities
of continuing operations;

_Net (income) loss from discontinued OPErations .......cocovorerercncveninennneen. 4 — (396) 442
Depreciation ............. 21,981 25,483 28,993
Amortization of 1mang1bles 45910 59,387 79,355
ASSet IMPAITMENT TOSS .ottt et smenseneenens — 44,698 —
Amortization of CORtract ACQUISILION COSTS .o.ovivrrrirerriececers e eae e e inens 28,189 36,576 34,731
Employee share-based compensation expense............ 13,533 6,191 7,003
Deferred INCOME LAXES .....oooveeeiei e ceeecee et eeesieeeevessreesrnss s ressnessemsrarensneesnne 5,280 (37,375 (11,923)
Other non-cash items, net.. . 15,097 4,018 12,671
Changes in assets and Ilablllues net of effecls of acqumuons product hnc )

disposition and discontinued operations:

Trade accounts receivable... ... oottt e e eenns 6,563 (2.154) (2,594)

Inventories and supplies ..., (779) (505) (2,030)

OURETr CUITENE ASSELS evitrmesrrienrsiressreese et seeressessnseserasssseesssenssesasnssssesesnaes 3,785 28,921 (5,716)
INOI-CUITEIE ASSEES -1ovvvitvisereereeeeereeeoeeeneeraraseeemeeseesneseesmesseeseeraesaesaeenarmans (1.989) (7.153) 8,325

Accounts payable 189 (7,852) (5,035

Contract acquisition PAYMENS....c.cevercereereeereereeeeeererereeneeneeaesenees (14,230) (17,029) (70,169)

Other accrued and other non-current Habilities .........ocovvververvireennn, S (22,328) 5577 (53,295)
Net cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations...................... 244,716 239,341 178,279

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Purchases of capital G88€LS oo irrevreirnerrenisrecrscsernssres e nsse s ras (32,328) (41,324) (55,653)
Payments for acquisitions, net of cash acquired ................... (2,316) (16,521) (2,888)
Purchases of marketable securities .. {1,057,460) — —
Proceeds from sales of marketable securities.. 1,057,460 — —
Proceeds from sale of product line and facnllucs 19,214 9,247 2,618
Proceeds from rcdemplions of life insurance policies .......... — 15,513 —
Other... e 4,459 (89) 6
Net cash uscd by mvcstmg activities of conlmumg opcrauons ............................. (10,971) (33,174) (55,917)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

Net payments on short-term debt.................... (45,460) {99,686) (51,654}
Proceeds from issuance of Iong—term debl net of debt issuance CoStS.......occvrerenne 196,329 — —
Payments on long-term debt (326,582) {51,362} (26,338}
Change in book overdrafts... R (3,006) 3,285 5,200
Proceeds from issuing shares undcr cmploycc plans 15.923 8.936 11,247
Excess tax benefit from share-based employee awards ................................ 1,242 1,213 _
Payments for common shares repurchased ..o (11,288) — —
Cash dividends paid 10 SharehOlders .....vvvvvve v verrvrre s eraes (52,048) (66,973) (81,271
Net cash used by financing activities of continuing operations.........ccccccveneceene (224,890} {204,587) (142.816)
Effect of Exchange Rate Change on Cash ...c.oeevveeiininecvnnrcseereseessinssennns 1,161 158 202
Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities of Discontinued Operations................ — 23 (4,152)
Cash Provided by Investing Activities — Net Proceeds from Sale ..o — 2971 15,779
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents.......coieiiniin oo 10,016 4,732 (8,625)
Cash and Cash Equivalents: Beginning of Year.......cccoovvcoiieiicincne. 11,599 6,867 15,492

ENd O YERE wooooieneeeeeeeeee e e $ 21,615 § 11,599 $ 6,867 °

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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DELUXE CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1; Significant accounting policies

Consolidation — The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Deluxe Corporation and all
majority owned subsidiaries. All intercompany accounts, transactions and profits have been eliminated.

Use of estimates — We have prepared the accompanying consolidated financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In this process, it is necessary for us to
make certain assumptions and estimates affecting the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and
related notes. These estimates and assumptions are developed based upon all available information. However, actual
results can differ from assumed and estimated amounts.

Foreign currency translation — The financial statements of our foreign subsidiaries are measured in the
respective subsidiaries’ functional currencies, primarily Canadian dollars, and are translated into U.S. dollars. Assets
and tiabilities are translated using the exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date. Revenue and expenses are
transiated at the average exchange rates during the year. The resulting translation gains and losses are reflected in
accumulated other comprehensive loss in the shareholders’ equity (deficit) section of our consolidated balance
sheets. Foreign currency transaction gains and losses are recorded in other income in our consclidated statements of
income,

Cash and cash equivalents — We consider all cash on hand and other highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents. The carrying amounts reported in the consolidated
balance sheets for cash and cash equivalents approximate fair value. As a result of our cash management system,
checks issued by us but not presented to the banks for payment may create negative book cash balances. Such
negative balances are included in accounts payable and totaled $13.5 million as of December 31, 2007 and $16.5
million as of December 31, 2006.

Marketable securities — Marketable securities which were purchased and sold during 2007 consisted of
investments in tax-exempt mutual funds. They were classified as available for sale and were carried at fair value on
the consolidated balance sheet, based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets. The cost of securities
sold was determined using the specific identification method.

Trade accounts receivable — Trade accounts receivable are initially recorded at fair value upon the sale of
goods or services to customers. They are stated net of allowances for uncollectible accounts, which represent
estimated losses resulting from the inability of customers to make the required payments. When determining the
allowances for uncollectible accounts, we take several factors into consideration including the overall composition of
accounts receivable aging, our prior history of accounts receivable write-offs, the type of customer and our day-to-
day knowledge of specific customers. Changes in the allowances for uncollectible accounts are included in selling,
general and administrative (SG&A) expense in our consolidated statements of income. The point at which
uncollected accounts are written off varies by type of customer, but does not exceed one year from the date of sale.

Inventories and supplies — Inventories and supplies are stated at the lower of average cost or market. Average
cost approximates computation on a first-in, first-out basis. Supplies consist of items not used directly in the
production of goods, such as maintenance and janitorial supplies ulilized in the production area.

Cash held for customers — As part of cur Canadian payroll services business, we collect funds from clients to
pay their payroll and related taxes. We hold these funds temporarily until payments are remitted to the clients’
employees and the appropriate taxing authorities. These funds are reported as cash held for customers in our
consolidated balance sheets. The corresponding liability for these obligations is included in accrued liabilities in our
consolidated balance sheets,

Long-term investmenis — Long-term investments consist primarily of cash surrender values of life insurance
contracts. The carrying amounts reported in the consolidated balance sheets for these investments approximate fair
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value. Additionally, long-term investments include investments in domestic mutual funds totaling $3.0 miltion as of
December 31, 2007 and $3.3 million as of December 31, 2006. Effective January 1, 2007, we elected to report these
investments using the fair value option under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 159, The
Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities. As such, these investmenis were reported as
trading securities as of December 31, 2007, and unrealized gains and losses generated during 2007 were reflected in
other income in our consolidated statement of income. As of December 31, 2006, the mutua! fund investments were
classified as available for sale securities, and unrealized gains and losses, net of tax, were reported in accumulated
other comprchensive loss in the shareholders’ equity (deficit) section of our consolidated balance sheet. The
investments are carried at fair value, based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets, Changes in the fair
value of these investments have historically been insignificant and were insignificant during 2007. Realized gains
and losses and permanent declines in value are included in other income in our consolidated statements of income.
The cost of securities sold is determined using the average cost method.

Property, plant and equipment — Property, plant and equipment, including leasehold and other improvements
that extend an asset’s useful life or productive capabilities, are stated at historical cost. Buildings are assigned 40-
year lives and machinery and equipment are generally assigned lives ranging from one to 11 vears, with a weighted-
average life of 8.3 years as of December 31, 2007. Buildings, machinery and equipment are generally depreciated
using accelerated methods. Leasehold and building improvements are depreciated on the straight-line basis over the
estimated useful life of the property or the life of the lease, whichever is shorter. Maintenance and repairs are
expensed as incurred. Gains or losses resulting from the disposition of property, plant and equipment are included in
SG&A expense in the consolidated statements of income, with the exception of facility sales. Such sales are reported
separately in the consolidated statements of income.

Intangibles — Intangible assets are stated at historical cost. Amortization expense is generally determined on
the straight-line basis over periods ranging from one to 15 years, with a weighted-average life of 5.8 years as of
December 31, 2007. Customer lists and distributor contracts are amortized using accelerated methods. Certain trade
name assets have been assigned indefinite lives. As such, these assets are not amortized, but are subject to
impairment testing on at least an annual basis. Gains or losses resulting from the disposition of intangibles are
included in SG&A expense in the consolidated statements of income.

We capitalize costs of software developed or obtained for internal use, including website development costs,
once the preliminary project stage has been completed, management commits to funding the project and it is
probable that the project will be completed and the software will be used to perform the function intended.
Capitalized costs include only (1) external direct costs of materials and services consumed in developing or
cbtaining internal-use software, (2) payroll and payroll-related costs for employees who are directly associated with
and who devote time to the internal-use software project, and (3) interest costs incurred, when significant, while
developing internal-use software. Costs incurred in populating websites with information about the company or
products are expensed as incurred. Capitalization of costs ceases when the project is substantially complete and
ready for its intended use. The carrying value of internal-use software is reviewed in accordance with our policy on
impairment of long-lived assets and amortizable intangibles.

Impairment of long-lived assets and amortizable intangibles — We evaluate the recoverability of property,
plant, equipment and amortizable intangibles not held for sale whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that an asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable. Such circumstances could include, but are not limited to, (1)
a signiftcant decrease in the market value of an asset, (2) a significant adverse change in the extent or manner in
which an asset is used or in its physical condition, or {3) an accumulation of costs significantly in excess of the
amount originally expected for the acquisition or construction of an asset. We measure the carrying amount of the
asset against the estimated undiscounted future cash flows associated with it. If the sum of the expected future net
cash flows is less than the carrying value of the asset being evaluated, an impairment loss would be recognized. The
impairment loss would be calculated as the amount by which the carrying value of the asset exceeds the fair value of
the asset. As quoted market prices are not available for the majority of our assets, the estimate of fair value is based
on various valuation techniques, including the discounted value of estimated future cash flows.

We evaluate the recoverabilily of property, plant, equipment and intangibles held for sale by comparing the
asset’s carrying amount with its fair value less costs to sell. Should the fair value less costs to sell be less than the
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carrying value of the long-lived asset, an impairment loss would be recognized. The impairment loss would be
calculated as the amount by which the carrying value of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset less costs to sell.

The evaluation of asset impairment requires us to make assumptions about future cash flows over the life of
the asset being evaluated. These assumptions require significant judgment and actual results may differ from
assumed and estimated amounts,

Impairment of non-amortizable intangibles and goodwill — In accordance with SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets, we evaluate the carrying value of non-amortizable trade names and goodwill during the
third quarter of each year and between annual evaluations if events occur or circumstances change that would
indicate a possible impairment. Such circumstances could include, but are not limited to, (1) a significant adverse
change in legal factors or in business climate, (2) unanticipated competition, or (3) an adverse action or assessment
by a regulator.

We compare the carrying amount of non-amortizable trade names to their estimated fair values. Should the
estimated fair value be less than the carrying value of the asset being evaluated, an impairment loss would be
recognized. The impairment loss would be calculated as the amount by which the carrying value of the asset exceeds
the fair value of the asset. The estimate of fair value is based on a relief from royalty method which calculates the
cost savings associated with owning rather than licensing the trade name. An assumed royalty rate is applied to
forecasted revenue and the resulting cash flows are discounted.

When evaluating whether goodwill is impaired, we compare the fair value of the reporting unit to which the
goodwill is assigned to its carrying amount. In calculating fair value, we use the income approach. The income
approach is a valuation technique under which we estimate future cash flows using the reporting units’ financial
forecasts from the perspective of an unrelated market participant. Future estimated cash flows are discounted to their
present value to calcuiate fair value. For reasonableness, the summation of our reporting units’ fair values is
compared to our market capitalization. If the carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, then the
amount of the impairment loss must be measured. The impairment loss would be calculated by comparing the
implied fair value of the reporting unit goodwill to its carrying amount. In calculating the implied fair value of
goodwill, the fair value of the reporting unit is allocated to all of the other assets and liabilities of that unit based on
their fair values. The excess of the fair value of a reporting unit over the amount assigned to its other assets and
liabilities is the implied fair value of goodwill. An impairment loss would be recognized when the carrying amount
of goodwill exceeds its implied fair value. The evaluations performed during 2007, 2006 and 2005 did not identify
any goodwill impairment losses.

Contract acquisition costs — We record contract acquisition costs when we sign or renew certain contracts
with our financial institution clients. These costs, which are essentially pre-paid product discounts, consist of cash
payments or accruals related to amounts owed to financial institution clients by our Financial Services segment.
Contract acquisition costs are generally amortized as reductions of revenue on the straight-line basis over the related
contract term. Currently, these amounts are being amortized over periods ranging from one to 10 years, with a
weighted-average life of 5.6 years as of December 31, 2007. Whenever events or changes occur that impact the
related contract, including significant declines in the anticipated profitability, we evaluate the carrying value of the
contract acquisition costs to determine if impairment has occurred. Should a financial institution cancel a contract
prior to the agreement's termination date, or should the volume of orders realized through a financial institution fall
below contractually-specified minimums, we generally have a contractual right to a refund of the remaining
unamortized contract acquisition costs. These costs are included in other non-current assets in the consolidated
balance sheets.

Advertising costs ~ Deferred advertising costs include materials, printing, labor and postage costs refated to
direct response advertising programs of our Direct Checks and Small Business Services segments. These costs are
amortized as SG&A expense over periods (not exceeding 18 months) that correspond to the estimated revenue
streams of the individual advertisements. The actual revenue streams are analyzed at least annually to monitor the
propriety of the amortization periods. Judgment is required in estimating the furure revenue streams, especially with
regard to check re-orders which can span an extended period of time. Significant changes in the actual revenue
streams would require the amortization periods to be modified, thus impacting our results of operations during the
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period in which the change occurred and in subsequent periods. For our Direct Checks segment, approximately 82%
of the costs of individual advertisements are expensed within six months of the advertisement. The majority of the
deferred advertising costs of our Small Business Services segment are fully amortized within six months of the
advertisement. Deferred advertising costs are included in other non-current assets in the consolidated balance sheets,
as portions are amortized over periods in excess of one year.

Non-direct response advertising projects are expensed the firsi time the advertising takes place. Catalogs
provided to financial institution clients of the Financial Services segment are accounted for as prepaid assets until
they are shipped to financial institutions. The total amount of advertising expense for continuing operations was
$123.3 million in 2007, $118.1 million in 2006 and $135.2 million in 2005.

Restructuring accruals = Over the past several years, we have recorded restructuring accruals as a result of
facility closings and cost management efforts. These accruals primarily consist of employee termination benefits
payable under our ongoing severance benefit plan. We record accruals for employee termination benefits when it is
probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the liability is reasonably estimable. As such, judgment
is involved in determining when it is appropriate to record restructuring accruals. Additionally, we are required to
make estimates and assumptions in calculating the restructuring accruals, as many times employees choose to
voluntarily leave the company prior to their termination date or they secure another position within the company. In
these situations, the employees do not receive termination benefits. To the extent our assumptions and estimates
differ from actual employee behavior, subsequent adjustments to restructuring accruals have been and will be
required. Restructuring accruals are included in accrued liabilities and other non-current liabilities in our
consolidated balance sheets.

Deferred income taxes — Deferred income taxes result from temporary differences between the financial
reporting basis of assets and liabilities and their respective tax reporting bases. Current deferred tax assets and
liabilities are netted in the consolidated balance sheets, as are long-term deferred tax assets and liabilities. Future tax
benefits are recognized to the extent that realization of such benefits is more likely than not,

 Derivative financial instruments — In the past, we have used derivative financial instruments to hedge interest
rate cxposures related to the issuance of long-term debt (see Note 8). We do not use derivative financial instruments
for speculative or irading purposes.

We recognize all derivative financial instruments in the consolidated financial statements at fair value
regardless of the purpose or intent for holding the instrument. Changes in the fair value of derivative financial
instruments are recognized periodically either in income or in shareholders’ equity (deficit) as a component of
accumulated other comprehensive loss, depending on whether the derivative financial instrument qualifies for hedge
accounting, and if so, whether it qualifies as a fair value hedge or a cash flow hedge. Generally, changes in fair
values of derivatives accounted for as fair value hedges are recorded in income along with the portion of the change
in the fair value of the hedged items that relate to the hedged risk. Changes in fair values of derivatives accounted for
as cash flow hedges, to the extent they are effective as hedges, are recorded in accumulated other comprehensive loss
net of tax. We present amounts used to settle cash flow hedges as financing activities in our consolidated slatements
of cash flows. Changes in fair values of derivatives not qualifying as hedges are reported in income.

Revenue recognition — We recognize revenue when (1) persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, (2)
delivery has occurred or services have been rendered, (3) the sales price is fixed or determinable, and (4)
collectibility is reasonably assured. The majority of our revenues are generated from the sale of products for which
revenue is recognized upon shipment or customer receipt, based upon the transfer of title. Our services, which
account for the remainder of our revenue, consist primarily of fraud prevention and payroll services. We recognize
these service revenues as the services are provided.

Revenue includes amounts billed to customers for shipping and handling and pass-through costs, such as
marketing materials for which our financial institution clients reimburse us. Costs incurred for shipping and handling
and pass-through costs are reflected in cost of goods sold. While we do provide our customers with a right of return,
revenue is not deferred. Rather, a reserve for sales returns is recorded in accordance with SFAS No. 48, Revenue
Recognition When Right of Return Exists, based on significant historical experience.
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At times, a financial institution client may terminate its contract with us prior to the end of the contract term.
In many of these cases, the financial institution is contractually required to remit a contract termination payment.
Such payments are recorded as revenue when the termination agreement is executed, provided that we have no
further service or contractuat obligations, and collection of the funds is assured.

Revenue is presented in the consolidated statements of income net of rebates, discounts, amortization of
contract acquisition costs and sales tax. We enter into contractual agreements with financial institution clients for
rebates on certain products we scll. We record these amounts as reductions of revenue in the consolidated statemenis
of income and as accrued liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets when the related revenue is recorded. At times
we may also sell products at discounted prices or provide free products to customers when they purchase a specified
product. Discounts are recorded as reductions of revenue when the related revenue is recorded. The cost of free
products is recorded as cost of goods sold when the revenue for the related purchase is recorded. Additionally,
reported revenue for our Financial Services segment does not reflect the full retail price paid by end-consumers to
their financial institutions. Revenue reflects the amounts paid te us by our financial institution clients.

Employee share-based compensation ~ On January 1, 2006, we adopted SFAS No. 123(R), Share-Based
Payment, using the modified prospective method. Prior to this, we were applying the fair value provisions of SFAS
No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, in our accounting for employee share-based compensation
awards. We adopied SFAS No. 123 on January 1, 2004, using the modified prospective method of adoption
described in SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure. As such, our
results of operations for all periods presented include compensation expense for all outstanding employee share-
based awards. The adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) had the following impacts on our consolidated financial
statements:

* Effective January 1, 2006, a portion of our restricted stock unit awards were reclassified from shareholders’
deficit to accrued liabilities in our consolidated balance sheet. Certain of these awards may be settled in cash
if an employee voluntarily chooses 1o leave the company. Under the provisions of SFAS No. 123(R), these
awards must be classified as liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet and must be re-measured at fair value
as of each balance sheet date. The amount reclassified as of January 1, 2006 totaled $1.9 million, which
approximated the fair value of these awards on their grant dates. The re-measurement of these awards,
including the effect of the change in accounting principle in 2006, resulted in a $14,000 decrease in SG&A
expense in 2007 and a $0.6 million decrease in SG&A expense in 2006. The cumulative effect of the change
in accounting principle in 2006 was not presented separately in the consolidated statement of income, as it
was not material.

* We modified our method of recognizing compensation expense for share-based awards granted to individuals
achieving “qualified retirce™ status prior to completion of the options’ normal vesting period. Previously, we
recognized expense for such awards over their applicable vesting peried, with cost recognition accelerated if
and when an employee retired with qualified retiree status. Upon adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), we are
required to recognize the entire expense for these awards over the pertod from the date of grant until the date
an employee is expected to achieve qualified retiree status under the terms of the applicable award agreement.
This change is applied only to new awards granted afier January 1, 2006. The terms of our awards granted
subsequent to January 1, 2006 require that the compensation committee of our board of directors determine on
an individual basis whether an employee is a qualified retiree upon their termination of employment with the
company. As such, we do not accelerate the recognition of expense on these awards until the compensation
committee makes this determination. If we had applied this expense recognition methodology to awards
granted prior to January 1, 2006, it would have increased diluted earnings per share $0.01 for 2007 and 2006.
This methodology would have had no impact on diluted earnings per share for 2005.

* In November 2005, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued FASB Staff Position (FSP) No.
FAS 123(R)-3, Transition Election Related to Accounting for the Tax Effects of Share-Based Payment Awards.
This FSP provides an alternative method for calculating the net excess tax henefits available to absorb tax
deficiencies as required under SFAS No. 123(R). We elected 1o utilize the transition method outlined in this FSP
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in accounting for the income tax consequences of employee share-based compensation awards. Upon the
adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), we had a positive income tax windfall pool.

e SFAS No. 123(R) requires that the cash retained as a result of the tax deductibility of employee share-based
awards be presented as a component of cash flows from financing activities in the consolidated statement of
cash flows. In prior periods, we reported these amounts as a component of cash flows from operating
activities. For 2005, $1.6 million was included in cash provided by operating activities of continuing
operations for the excess tax benefit of employee share-based awards.

The adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) had the following dollar impacts on our 2006 consolidated statement of
income and our consolidated statement of cash flows:

(in thousands, except per share amounts) Increase
Income before INCOME tAXES. ..o b 649
Income from continuing operations ... 435
NELINCOIMIE........ocitviierirci et eas e 435
Earnings per share — basic ..., 0.01

Earnings per share — diluted ..., —
Cash provided by financing activities ..o, 1,213

Earnings per share — Basic eamings per share is based on the weighted-average number of common shares
outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is based on the weighted-average number of common shares
outstanding during the year, adjusted to give effect to potential common shares such as stock options, restricted stock
units and unvested restricted stock issued under our stock incentive plan (see Note 10). When determining the
denominator for the diluted earnings per share calculation under the treasury stock method, we exclude from assumed
proceeds the impact of pro forma deferred tax assets.

Comprehensive income — Comprehensive income includes charges and credits to shareholders’ equity (deficit)
that are not the result of transactions with shareholders. Our total comprehensive income consists of net income,
gains and losses on derivative instruments, changes in the funded status and amortization of amounts related to our
pension and postretirement benefit plans, and foreign currency translation adjustments. In previous years, total
comprehensive income also inctuded minimum pension liability adjustments and unrealized gains and losses on
securities. These items are no longer included in comprehensive income due to the adoption of SFAS No. 158,
Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans, and SFAS No. 159, The Fair
Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities. The items of comprehensive income, with the exception
of net income, are included in accumulated other comprehensive loss i in our consolidated balance sheets and
statements of shareholders’ equity (deficit).
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Recently adopted accounting pronouncements — On January 1, 2007, we adopted FASB Interpretation (FIN)
No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes. The new standard defines the threshold for recognizing the
benefits of tax return positions in the financial statements as “more-likely-than-not” 1o be sustained by the taxing
authorities based solely on the technical merits of the position. If the recognition threshold is met, the tax benefit is
measured and recognized as the largest amount of tax benefit that in our judgment is greater than 50% likely to be
realized. The adoption of FIN No. 48 impacted our consolidated balance sheet as of January 1, 2007 as follows:

Increase/
(in thousands) (decrease)
Current deferred income (axes .........ooeeev.n... 3 59
GOOAWIll ..o 576
Other non-current assels......oovvevveeeeiercienerenns 330
Accrued liabilities ..........ocovveeiroievr e, ' (8,332)
Other non-current liabilities ..........oeevvvennnein 20,139
Non-current deferred income taxes .............. (7,768}
Accumtlated deficit........ccoovevveniveervicrnenninns 3.074

"The total amoumt of unrecognized tax benefits as of January 1, 2007 was $16.2 million, excluding accrued
interest and penalties. If the unrecognized tax benefits were recognized in our consolidated financial statements, $8.6
million would affect our effective tax rate. Interest and penalties recorded for uncertain tax positions were included
in our provision for income taxes in the consolidated statements of income prior to the adoption of FIN No. 48, and
we continue this classification subsequent to the adoption of FIN No. 48, As of January 1, 2007, $4.7 million of
interest and penalties was accrued. excluding the tax benefits of deductible interest.

On January 1, 2007, we adopted the measurement date provision of SFAS No. 158, Emplovers’ Accounting for
Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans. SFAS No. 158 requires companies 1o measure the funded
status of a plan as of the date of its year-end balance sheet. We historically used a September 30 measurement date. To
transition to a December 31 measurement date, we completed plan measurements for our postretirement benefit and
pension plans as of December 31, 2006. In accordance with SFAS No. 158, postretirement benefit expense for the
period from October 1, 2006 through December 31, 2006, as calculated based on the September 30, 2006 measurement
date, was recorded as an increase to accumulated deficit of $0.7 million, net of tax, as of January 1, 2007. Additionally,
we adjusted our postretirement assets and liabilities to reftect the funded status of the plans, as calculated based on the
December 31, 2006 measurement date. This adjustment, along with the postretirement benefit expense for the period
from October 1, 2006 through December 31, 2006, resulted in an increase in other comprehensive loss of $0.1 miflion,
net of tax, as of January 1, 2007. Postretirement benefit expense reflected in our 2007 consolidated statement of income
is based on the December 31, 2006 measurement date. Further information regarding the expense included in our
consolidated statements of income can be found in Note 12: Pension and other postretirement benefits.

On January 1, 2007, we adopted SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements. This new standard addresses how
companies should measure fair value when they are required to use a fair value measure for recognition or disclosure
purposes under generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in the United States. In February 2008, the FASB
issued FSP No. FAS 157-2, Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157, which delays the effective date of SFAS No.
157 for nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities, except for items that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in
the financial statements on a recurring basis. Because we adopted SFAS No. 157 on January 1, 2007, the delay outlined
in FSP No. FAS 157-2 does not apply to us.

On a recurring basis we are required to measure the following assets at fair value: available for sale marketable
securities; a long-term mutual fund investment accounted for under the fair value option of SFAS No. 159, The Fair
Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities; plan assets of our postretirement benefit and pension plans;
indefinite-lived intangible assets; and goodwill. The fair values of marketable securities, the long-term mutual fund
investment and substantially all of the plan assets of our postretirement benefit and pension plans are based on quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets. Fair values for indefinite-lived intangible assets and goodwill are calculated
as discussed in our accounting policy regarding impairment of non-amortizable intangibles and goodwill. During 2007,
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only the required annual impairment analysis of indefinite-lived intangibles and goodwill was performed, as there were
no indicators of impairment during the year. In addition, for disclosure purposes, we are required to measure the fair
value of our outstanding debt, with the exception of our capital lease obligation. The fair value of debt is determined
using quoted prices in active markets for identical liabilities. Information regarding the fair value of debt can be found in

Note 13: Debt.

No marketable securities were held as of December 31, 2007. Information regarding the fair value of plan assets
of our postretirement benefit and pension plans can be found in Note 12: Pension and other postretirement benefits.

Other assets measured at fair value during 2007 were as follows:

Fair value measurements using

Fair value Quoted prices in Significant
as of active markets  Significant other unobservahle
measurement for identical observable inputs

(in thousands) date assets (Level 1) inputs (Level2) . (Level 3)
Long-term mutual

fund investment ........... $ 3,025 § 3,025 § — 3 —
Indefinite-lived trade

DAMES vveerrrreeeeaeneeeeeeenans 74,503 — —_ 74,503
Goodwill'"? .......ccovvvennne 2,494,281 = — 2,494,281

{1 Fair value represents the fair value of reporting units to which goodwill is assigned. Because the fair value of our reporting units was greater than

the carrying value of our reporting units, the implied fair value of goodwill was not reguired to be calculated.

Gains of $0.2 million for our long-term mutual fund investment were included in SG&A expense during 2007.

No gains or losses related to our other fair value measurements were recorded during 2007.

Changes during 2007 in the fair value of assets valued using unobservable inputs we developed, known as Level

3 fair value measurements under SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements, were as follows:

! Indefinite-
lived
(in thousands) intangibles Goodwill Total
Fair value, December 31, 2006........cccvveeeeereee e csissaessirnnnns $ 73012 $ 1939403 $ 2012415
Unrealized gain........oooireeiee e 1,491 554,878 556,369
Fair value, December 31, 2007.......ccoiiiinenenrecrnsessrvnreesee e $ 74503 $ 2494281 $§ 2,568,784

' The change in fair value is not reflected in our consolidated financial statements.

On January 1, 2007, we adopted SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and

Financial

Liabilities. This new standard permits companies to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other

items at fair value that were not previously required to be measured at fair value. We have elected the fa

ir value

option for a mutual fund investment previously classified as available for sale. This investment was carried at fair
value on our consolidated balance sheets. However, under the fair value option, unrealized gains and losses are now

reflected in our consolidated statements of income, as opposed to being recorded in accumulated other

comprehensive loss on the consolidated balance sheets. This investment corresponds to our liability under an
officers’ deferred compensation plan. This deferred compensation plan is not available to new participants and is
fully funded by the mutual fund investment. The liability under the plan equals the fair value of the mutual fund
investment, so changes in the value of both the plan asset and the liability are now netted in the consolidated
statements of income. This mutua) fund investment had a fair value of $3.0 million as of December 31, 2007 and
$3.3 million as of December 31, 2006, and is included in long-term investments on our consolidated balance sheets.
The long-term investments caption on our consolidated balance sheet also includes life insurance policies which are
recorded at their cash surrender values. The fair value of the mutual fund investment is determined using quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets. Changes in the fair vatue of this investment have historically been
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insignificant and were insignificant during 2007. As required by SFAS No. 159, the cumulative unrealized gain
related to this mutual fund investment of $0.2 million, net of tax, as of January 1, 2007, was reclassified from
accumulated other comprehensive loss to accumulated deficit as of January 1, 2007. The unrealized pre-tax gain on
this investmemn as of January 1, 2007 was $0.4 million,

Accounting pronouncemenis not yet adopted — In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R},
Business Combinations, which modifies the required accounting for business combinations. This guidance applies to
all transactions or other events in which an entity (the acquirer) obtains control of one or more businesses (the
acquiree), including those sometimes referred to as “true mergers” or “mergers of equals.” SFAS No. 141(R)
changes the accounting for bustness acquisitions and will impact financial statements at the acquisition date and in
subsequent periods. We are required to apply the new guidance to any business combinations completed on or after
January 1, 2009.

In December 2007, the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) No.
110. This guidance allows companies, in certain circumstances, to utilize a simplified method in determining the
expected term of stock option grants when calculating the compensation expense to be recorded under SFAS No.
123(R)}, Share-Based Paymeni. The simplified method can be used after December 31, 2007 only if a company’s stock
option exercise experience does not provide a reasonable basis upon which 10 estimate the expected option term.
Through 2007, we utilized the simplified method to determine the expected option term, based upon the vesting and
original contractual terms of the option. Beginning in 2008, we will utilize a more detailed calculation of the expected
option term based on our historical option exercise data.

Note 2: Supplementary balance sheet and cash flow information

Marketable securities — Marketable securities purchased and sold during 2007 consisted of investments in tax-
exempt mutual funds. The funds were comprised of variable rate demand notes, municipal bonds and notes, and
commercial paper. The cost of these investments equaled their fair value due to the short-term duraticn of the
underlying investments. No realized or unrealized gains or losses on marketable securities were generated during
2007. Purchases of and proceeds from sales of available for sale marketable securities were $1,057.5 million for
2007. We held no marketable securitics at December 31, 2007.

Trade accounts receivable — Net trade accounts receivable was comprised of the following at December 31:

(in thousands) 2007 2006

Trade accounts receivable............oeeccvivinienen $ 92,881 % 111,203

Allowances for uncollectible accountS.onnnnn... {7,194} {8,189}
Trade accounts receivable —net ... $§ 85,687 § 103,014

Changes in the allowances for uncollectible accounts were as follows:

(in thousands) 2007 2006 2005

Balance, beginning of year .......ccc.occoevvvvevvvennnnn, $ 8,189 § 7903 3§ 5,199
Bad debt €XPense ........occovevuveivienenieesiennnennnn, 8,448 8,956 8,808
Write-offs, net of recoveries .......oovvveeeoeeeee, (9,443) (8,670) (6,104)

Balance, end of year ........c.ccccecnniiicceinninnnn S 7,194 % 8,180 % 7,503
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Inventories and supplies — Inventories and supplies were comprised of the following at December 31:

{in thousands) 2007 2006
RAW MAETIALS e eeeeeerecreesersesrmsresnsssesensnsenressans 9 6803 $ 7,663
Semi-finished goOdS ..o 10,886 13,761
Finished 200dSs.....coocvimerrimmivrrimeimie i 8,499 11,257

Total INVENIOTIES 1veveeeerceeeeeeersivrsrareessesrasressnnees 26,188 32,681
Supplies, primarily production.....c.ccooevvecennene. 6,091 10,173

Inventories and supplies..........ccoverininnnens $ 32279 % 42,854

Property, plant and equipment — Property, plant and equipment was comprised of the following at December

31

(in thousands) 2007 2006

Land and land improvements...........cccovcrervercviees $ 35805 % 35,593

Buildings and building improvements................. 133,852 132,771

Machinery and equUipment.......ocevereeererieisenrinnenens 296,240 201,838
TOLAL o vcv e 465,987 460,202

Accumulated depreciation..........ccooecviinninnnns (326,742) (317,955)

" Property, plant and equipment — Nt ... § 139,245 $ 142,247

Intangibles — Intangibles were comprised of the following at December 31:

2007 2006
Gross Net Gross Net
carrying  Accumulated carrying carrying  Accumulated carrying
(in thousands) amount amortization amount amount amortization amount
Indefinite-lived:

Trade names ..........cceeeeeeen. $ 59400 $ — § 59400 §% 59,400 § — § 59400
Amortizable intangibles:

Internal-use software ......... 278,802 (243.,483) 35,319 264,847 (228,719) 36,128

Customer Bsts ..o, 110,165 (85,199) 24,966 114,344 (71,088) 43,256

Distributor CONLTacts .......... 30,900 (19,016) 11,884 30,900 (14,552) 16,348

Trade names .........ccceceeenis 30,369 (16,708) 13,661 31,644 (12,350) 19,294

Other....ooevivevreceeeccemecnne, 7,667 (4,410) 3,257 7,596 (3,485) 4,111

Amortizable intangibles... 457,903 (368,816) 89,087 449,331 (330,194) 119,137

Intangibles.......cooeeeennv. $ 517,303 § (368,816) $ 148487 $ 508731 $ (330,194) $ 178,537
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Total amortization of intangibles was $45.9 million in 2007, $59.4 million in 2006 and $79.4 million in 2005.
Of these amounts, amortization of internal-use software was $16.6 million in 2007, $25.2 million in 2006 and $38.2
million in 20035. Based on the intangibles in service as of December 31, 2007, estimated amortization expense for
each of the next five years ending December 31 is as follows:

(in thousands)

2008 $ 36,842
2009 ... 24,404
2010, s 10,056
2011 5,403

We acquire internal-use software in the normal course of business. In conjunction with acquisitions (see Note
4), we also acquired certain other amortizable intangible assets. The following intangible assets were acquired during
the years indicated:

2007 2006 2005
Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
average average average
amortization amortization amortization

{in thousands) Amount period Amount period Amount period
CuStomer lists ..oeevreieranns 3 — — 3 4,200 5 years $ 971 9 years
Internal-use software ......... 17,398 4 years 18,984 3 years 38,220 5 years

Trade names .........cceeeerrennee — — 1,400 5 years —_ —_
OtheT . — — — — 674 3 years
Acquired intangibles...§ {7,398 4 years 3 24,584 4 years $ 39,865 5 years

Goodwill — As of December 31, 2007, goodwill was comprised of the following:

(in thousands)

Acquisition of New England Business Service, Inc. (NEBS) in June 2004 ......... $ 493,889
Acquisition of Designer Checks, Inc. in February 20007 .......cooocoovrvvvenrvieirnnnens 77,970
Acquisition of the Johnson Group in October 2006 (see Note )" ............cccc.... 7.320
Acquisition of Direct Checks in December 1987 ... 4,267
Acquisition of Dots and Pixels, Inc. in July 2005 (see Note 4)......cccovecrcermrnncn 1,044
Acquisition of All Trade Computer Forms, Inc. in February 2007 (see Note 4).. 304

GOOAWILL.....coirc ettt et et et ese s B 585,294

) This goodwill is deductible for tax purposes.
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Changes in goodwill were as follows;

Small
Business Direct
(in thousands} Services Checks Total
Balance, December 31, 2005, o coeer et escnerrsnreeenans 3 498,886 $ 82,237 § 581,123
Acquisition of Johnson Group (see NOtE 4)...cocrriiiiiieniiinn, 7,320 — 7,320
Adjustment to NEBS acquisition deferred income taxes............ 2,103 — 2,103
Currency translation adjustment ..o innecnnninnes. (3} — (3)
Balance, December 31, 2006.........covveeririmmimie i, 508,306 82,237 590,543
Sale of industrial packaging product line (see Note 4} ............... (5,864) — (5,864)
Adjustment to NEBS acquisition income tax receivable and
deferred INCOME (AKES ...oiiciiiirenrnrererrrerirreesanessre s resssnesssassres s (915) — (915}
Acquisition of All Trade Computer Forms, Inc. (see Note 4)..... 711 _— 711
Adoption of FIN No. 48 (see Note 1} ..o, 576 — 576
Currency translation adjustment ... 243 — 243
Balance, December 31, 2007.................... PR CTSUPPO 3 503,057 % 82,237 § 585,294

Other non-current assets — Other non-current assets as of December 31 were comprised of the following:

{in thousands) 2007 2006
Contract acquisition costs (net of accumulated

amortization of $82,976 and $97,910,

FESPECTIVELY) cerrciiiciiciineienssm s $ 55,516 § 71,721
Deferred advertising Costs........cinnririninrinninerens 26,009 27,89!
OHRET .-..coivcvesecenr e e et et e secssa st e s 28,246 18,091

Other NON-CUITENE @SSELS .....vvvvreeee e eeecerreresierse 109,771 § 117,703

Changes in contract acquisition costs were as follows:

(in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
-Balance, beginning of year ... $ 71,721 $ 93664 % 83,825
ADBONS™ .o 11,984 14,633 50,177
AMOTHZAON vevveeeeeeeeeee v s res s e e ee e e (28,189) (36,576) (34,731)
Refunds from contract terminations...........cevuee. — —_ (5,607)
Balance, end of Year.......cccoeveeirsinricncninecn § 55,516 % 71,721 $ 93,664

M Contract acquisition costs are accrued upon contract execution.
in 2007, $17,029 in 2006 and $70,169 in 2005.

Cash payments made for contract acquisition costs were $14,230
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Accrued liabilities - Accrued liabilities as of December 31 were comprised of the following:

(in thousands) 2007 2006
Employee profit sharing and pension.............vu.e.. $ 40,294 % 20,890
Cash held for CuSIoMErS ....oocvvveiicec et ieeenes 23,285 13,758
CUSIOMET TEDALES ....ce.ceev e s 20,397 19,314
Wages, including vacation...........coeeeevcecrnennnnene 17,275 17,214
{1 10 5 USSR 5414 7,197
Restructuring due within one year (see Note 6)..... 5,050 10,697
INCOME LAXES ... eeeeeieiecrs e e svan e e e s 3,396 25,219
L1 T OO TSRO PO T PO TS OO OUO U 34,652 32,534

Accrued liabilities .........cccccoeeevvceeeececrnes $ 149763 § 146,823

Supplemental cash flow disclosures — Cash payments for interest and income taxes were as follows for the
years ended December 31:

{in thousands) 2007 2006 2005

Interest Paid......coovvveciceeccieiie et $ 57,077 $ 57,035 $ 57,393
Income taxes paid ..o, 89,944 74,891 105,546

As of December 31, 2007, we had accounts payable of $3.9 million related to capital asset purchases. These
amounts were reflected in property, plant and equipment and intangibles in our consolidated balance sheet as of
December 31, 2007, as we did receive the assets as of that date. The payment of these liabilities will be included in
purchases of capital assets on the consolidated statements of cash flows when these liabilities are paid.

As of December 31, 2005, we had accounts payable of $8.5 million related to capital asset purchases. The
payment of these liabilities was included in purchases of capital assets on the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year ended December 31, 2006.

For 2007, other investing activities reported on the consolidated statement of cash flows was primarily
comprised of payments of $1.6 million received on a mortgage note receivable, benefits of $1.2 million received
under life insurance policies and cash proceeds of $1.1 million received from the sale of miscellancous fixed assets.
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Note 3: Earnings per share

The following table reflects the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing operations.
During each period, certain options, as noted below, were excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per share
because their effect would have been antidilutive.

(in thousands, except per share amounts) 2007 2006 2005
Earnings per share — basic:
Income from continuing operations .........c.ccoeeee. $ 143,515 § 100,558 § 157,963
Weighted-average shares outstanding................. 51,436 51,001 50,574
Earnings per share — basic......coococceeoerncenrcremiencecnes $ 279 % 1.97 $ 3.12

Earnings per share — diluted:

Income from continuing operations ... 5 143,515 100,558 $ 157,963
Re-measurement of share-based awards

classified as Habilities.......c..coovcvvreercerseernrenrinens (10) (584) —
Income available to common shareholders.......... $ 143,505 § 99974 §$ 157,963
Weighted-average shares outstanding.................. 51,436 51,001 50,574

Dilutive impact of options, restricted stock units,
unvested restricted stock and employee stock

PUChASE PIAN.....coveeceriririres s emas 496 229 341
Shares contingently issuable ...........ccccoriiirineronee — — 21
Weighted-average shares and potential dilutive

shares outstanding ........ccocoeeveevnevecrvsnrresccicnnenes 51,932 51,230 50,936

Earnings per share — diluted......cooocneircnisinnienees $ 276§ 195 % 3.10

Weighted-average antidilutive options excluded
from calculation....o..irver e ccisrcsr e 2,124 3,028 1,860

Earnings per share amounts for continuing operations, discontinued operationé and net income, as presented
on the consolidated statements of income, are calculated individually and may not sum due to rounding differences.

Note 4: Acquisitions and disposition

2007 acquisition — In February 2007, we acquired all of the common stock of All Trade Computer Forms, Inc.
(All Trade) for cash of $2.3 million, net of cash acquired. All Trade is a custom form printer based in Canada and is
included in our Small Business Services segment. The acquisition was funded using availability on our existing
credit facilities. All Trade’s operating results are included in our consolidated results of operations from the
acquisition date. The allocation of the purchase price to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed resulted in
goodwill of $0.7 million. We believe this acquisition resulted in goodwill due to All Trade’s expertise in custom
printing which we expect will help us expand our core printing capabilities and product offerings for small
businesses.

2007 disposition — In January 2007, we completed the sale of the assets of our Small Business Services industrial
packaging product line for $19.2 million, realizing a pre-tax gain of $3.8 million. This sale had an insignificant impact
on diluted earnings per share because the effective tax rate specifically attributable to the gain was higher since the
goodwill written-off is not deductible for tax purposes. This product line generated approximately $51 million of




revenue in 2006. The disposition of this product line did not qualify to be reported as discontinued operations in our
consolidated financial statements.

2006 acquisition — On October 25, 2006, we acquired the assets of the Johnson Group and its affiliated
companies for $316.5 million, net of cash acquired. The Johnson Group provides prepress, printing, mailing and
fulfillment, and finishing services and is included in our Small Business Services segment. The acquisition was
funded using availability on our existing credit facilities. The Johnson Group’s operating results are included in our
consolidated results of operations [rom the acquisition date. The allocation of the purchase price to the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed resulted in goodwill of $7.3 million, which is deductible for tax purposes. We
believe this acquisition resulted in the recognition of goodwill primarily because of the opportunities it provides to
expand our business in the custom, full color, digital and web-to-print space with our small business customers. It
also provides potential opportunities longer term, specifically in the area of literature management, for financial
institutions. Amortizable customer lists of $4.2 million are being amortized over five years using accelerated
methods and amortizable trade names of $1.4 million are being amortized over five years on the straight-line basis.
Other assets acquired consisted primarily of trade accounts receivable and property, plant and equipment.

2005 acquisition - In July 2005, we acquired all of the outstanding stock of Dots & Pixels, Inc. for $2.0
million, net of cash acquired. Dots & Pixels is a Canadian-based full-color digital printer and is included in our
Small Business Services segment. The acquisition was funded using commercial paper borrowings. Dots & Pixels’
operating results are included in our consolidated results of operations from the acquisition date. The atlocation of
the purchase price to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed resulted in goodwill of $0.9 million. We believe this
acquisition resulted in goodwill primarily due to Dots & Pixels” proprietary printing capabilities and our ability to
bring these technologies to our Canadian customers.

Note 5: Discontinued operations

Discontinued operations in 2006 consisted of the rental income and expenses associated with a building
located in the United Kingdom related to NEBS European businesses which were sold in December 2004, The
building was sold in the second quarter of 2006 for $3.0 million, resulting in a pre-tax gain of $0.5 million.

Discontinued operations in 2005 consisted of the NEBS apparel business known as PremiumWear, as well as
the rental income and expenses associated with the building in the United Kingdom. The sale of PremiumWear was
completed in the third quarter of 2005 for $15.8 million, resulting in a pre-tax gain of $0.8 million,

Revenue and income (loss) from discontinued operations for the years ended December 31 were as follows:

(in thousands) 2006 2005
REVETIUG ..ottt e st s e e tn e e $ 51 % 33,249

Income (loss} from operations AR (1,0606)

Gain on disposal.........cccoveevnnvceecce e 543 798
[NCOME 1aX BXPENSE ....oceeererr e viretitenee e senreans {168) (174)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations...... $ 396 % (442)
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Note 6: Restructuring accruals

2007 restructuring charges — During 2007, we recorded restructuring accruals of $7.1 million for employee
severance related to employee reductions across various functional areas resulting from our cost savings initiatives. The

- restructuring accruals included severance benefits for 236 employees. These employee reductions are expected to be

completed by the end of 2008, with severance payments fully paid by mid-2009 using cash from operations. Also during
2007, we reversed $2.6 million of restructuring accruals due to fewer employees receiving severance benefits than
originally estimated and the re-negotiation of operating lease obligations. These restructuring charges, net of reversals,
were reflected as a $0.4 million reduction of cost of goods sold, an increase of $4.7 million in SG&A expense and a $0.2
million reduction of the gain recognized on the sale of our industrial packaging product line (see Note 4) in our 2007
consolidated statement of income.

2006 restructuring charges — During 2006, we recorded restructuring accruals of $11.1 million for employee
severance related to employee reductions within our shared services functions of sales, marketing, customer care,
fulfillment, information technology, human resources and finance, as well as the closing of our Financial Services
customer service call center located in Syracuse, New York. The Syracuse facility was closed in January 2007 and
the other employee reductions were substantially completed in the fourth quarter of 2007. These reductions were the
result of our cost reduction initiatives. The restructuring accruals included severance payments for 501 employees,
the majority of which were paid in 2007 utilizing cash from operations. Also during 2006, we reversed $0.2 million
of previously recorded restructuring accruals. These restructuring charges, net of the reversals, were reflected as cost
of goods sold of $1.2 million and SG&A expense of $9.7 million in our 2006 consolidated statement of income.

Acquisition-related restructuring — In conjunction with the NEBS acquisition in June 2004, we recorded
restructuring accruals of $30.2 million related to NEBS activities which we decided to exit. The restructuring
accruals included severance benefits and $2.8 million due under noncancelable operating leases on facilities which
were vacated as we consolidated operations. The severance accruals included payments due to 701 employees.
During the second quarter of 2005, we reduced the acquisition-related restructuring accruals by $0.5 million due to a
change in estimate as to the number of employees who would receive severance benefits. This adjustment reduced
goodwill, and thus, is not reflected in our 2005 consolidated statement of income. All severance benefits were fully
paid during 2007 and the remaining payments due under the operating lease obligations will be paid through early
2009 utilizing cash from operations.
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Restructuring accruals of $5.1 million as of December 31, 2007 are reflected in accrued liabilities in our
consolidated balance sheet. Restructuring accruals of $11.2 miilion as of December 31, 2006 are reflected in accrued
liabilities and other non-current liabilities in our consolidated balance sheet. By company initiative, our restructuring

accruals were as follows:

NEBS °
2003 2004 acquisition 2006 2007
{in thousands) initiatives initiatives related initiatives initiatives Total
Balance, December 31, 2004 ......... 4 3 2,351 3 14,556 3 — 8 — $ 16,911
Restructuring charges ... 25 335 75 — — 435
Restructuring reversals................. — (397) (183) — — {580}
Acquisition adjustment ................ — — (514) —_ — (514)
Payments, primarily severance..... (29) (2,279) (7,401) — — (9,709)
Balance, December 31, 2005 ......... — 10 6,533 — — 6,543
Restructuring charges .................. - — 438 10,701 - 11,139
Restructuring reversals................. - - — (229) — (229)
Payments, primarily severance..... — {10} (5,146) (1,086) — (6,242)
Balance, December 31, 2006 ......... —_ —_ 1,825 9.386 - 11,211
Restructuring charges .................. — —_ — 158 6,928 7.086
Restructuring reversals..........cc..... — —_ (656) (1,415) (562) (2,633)
Payments, primarily severance..... — — (1,133} (7,804) (1,677) (10,614)
Balance, December 31, 2007 ......... — 3 — $ 36 L3 325 % 4,689 $ 5,050
Cumulative amounts;
Restructuring charges ... 11,999 $ 5,850 ) 30,243 5 10,859 % 6,928 $§ 65879
Restructuring reversals...........oc.... (1,320) (531) (839) (1,644} (562) (4,896)
Payments, primarily severance..... (10,679) (5,319 (29,368) (8,850) (1,677) (55,933)
Balance, December 31, 2007 .......$ — % — 3 36 3 325 3% 4,689 $ 5,050




The components of our restructuring accruals, by segment, were as foliows:

Operating
lease
Employee severance benefits obligations
Small * Small
Business Financial Direct Business
{in thousands) Services Services Checks Corporate'” Services Total
Balance, December 31, 2004 .......% 11,820 $ 1,802 $ 204 $ 326 $ 2,759 5 16911
Restructuring charges .......ceveeee — 25 171 164 75 435
Restructuring reversals............. (183) (388) — (9 — (580)
Acquisition adjustment .............. (514) — — — — (514)
PaYMeNLS....cceereemerecssiiiisianinns (7,288) (1,439) (363) (481) (136) {9,709)
Balance, December 31, 2005 ....... 3,835 — 10 — 2,698 6,543
Restructuring charges ........c.cc... 2,754 3,261 128 4,949 47 11,139
Restructuring reversals.......c....... (€3] (165) — (60) — {229)
PAYMENTS .coeeecreerrernenrerncreene (4,281) (393) (10) (408) (1,150) (6,242)
Balance, December 31, 2006 ....... 2,304 2,703 128 4,481 1,595 11,211
Restructuring charges ................ 2,625 1,049 — 3412 — 2 7.086
Restructuring reversals......oooueee. (233) 471 (142) (1,236) (551) (2,633)
Inter-segment transfer ..........c..... 633 378 32 (1,043 — —
PaymeEnts.....cocovvrcveernerncrvcrmerneneens (3,328) (2,706) (18) (3,554) (1,008) (10,614)
Balance, December 31, 2007 ....... 2,001 $ 953 3 — $ 2,060 5 36 3 5,050
Cumulative amounts:
Restructuring charges ... 32,466 $ 18,521 3 2,710 g 9,264 $ 2,918 $ 65,879
Restructuring reversals........... (420) (2,380) (240) (1,30%) (551) (4,896)
Inter-segment transfer ... 633 378 32 (1,043} — —
Payments.....ccoerrmerinnrrioeens (30.678) (15,566) (2,502} (4,856) {2,331) (55,933)
Balance, December 31, 2007 ... 2,001 $ 953 $ — $ 2,060 3 36 $ 5050

{1 A5 discussed in Note 17: Business segment information, corporate costs are allocated to our business segments based on segment revenue. As such, the net
Corporate restructuring charges are reflected in the business segment operating income presented in Note 17 in accordance with this allocation methodology.
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The number of employees reflected in our restructuring accruals and reversals, by initiative, was as follows:

NEBS
2003 2004 acquisition 2006 2007
initiatives initiatives related initiatives initiatives Total

Balance, December 31, 2004 ...... 3 40 625 — — 668

Restructuring charges ............... — 3 4 — — 7

Restructuring reversals.............. — (18) (188) — — (206)

Employees severed.......cccovvee (3} (25) (175) — — (203)
Balance, December 31, 2005 ...... — — 266 — — 266

Restructuring charges ............. - - 3 605 - 608

Restructuring reversals.............. - - {1} (54) - (55)

Employees severed.................... - — (265} (149) - {414)
Balance, December 31, 2006 ...... — - 3 402 - 405

Restructuring charges ............... —_ —_ — — 236 236

Restructuring reversals.............. — —_ n (30) (19) (70)

Employees severed.......c..ouoe.. — — (2) (351) (125) (478)
Balance, December 31, 2007 ...... - _ —_ i 92 93

In addition to severance and remaining operating lease obligations, we also incurred other costs related to facility
closures, including equipment moves, training and travel. These costs were expensed as incurred and totaled $0.1
million for 2007, $1.5 million for 2006 and $2.2 million for 2005.

Note 7: Asset impairment loss

In June 2006, we determined that a software project intended to replace major portions of our existing order
capture, billing and pricing systems would not meet our future business requirements in a cost-effective manner.
Therefore, we made the decision to abandon the project. Accordingly, we wrote down the carrying value of the refated
internal-use software to zero during the second quarter of 2006. This resulted in a non-cash asset impairment loss of
$44.7 million, of which $26.4 million was allocated to the Financial Services segment and $18.3 million was allocated to
the Small Business Services segment.

Note 8: Derivative financial instruments

During 2004, we entered into $450.0 million of forward starting interest rate swaps to hedge, or lock-in, the
interest rate on a portion of the $600.0 million debt we issued in October 2004 (see Note 13). The termination of the
lock agreements in 2004 yielded a deferred pre-tax loss of $23.6 million. During 2002, we entered into two forward rate
lock agreements to effectively hedge the annual interest rate on $150.0 million of the $300.0 million notes issued in
December 2002 (see Note 13). The termination of the lock agreements in December 2002 yielded a deferred pre-tax loss
of $4.0 million. These losses are reflected, net of tax, in accumulated other comprehensive loss in our consolidated
balance sheets and are being reclassified ratably to our statements of income as increases to interest expense over the
term of the related debt.
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Note 9: Income tax provision
The components of the income tax provision for continuing operations were as follows:

{in thousands) 2007 2006 20035

Current 1ax provision:
Federal......coveoeeecieereesr et 3 59,595 § 74263 § 95,484
SLALE cvvverenrrreaeaeseeeeeeesrat et ses et res et satse st enresnessiasn 9,264 5,095 9,210
TOUAL 1oeveneceereienire e essee e s e sessanssanenarnsans 68,859 © 79,358 104,694
Deferred tax provision (benefit)......ooeieeenne, 5,280 (37,375) (11,923)
Provision for InCOme taxes......c.vvvnsssecrenrens $ 74,139 % 41,983 $ 92,771

Our income tax provision for 2003 included tax expense of $0.7 million related to the repatriation of $8.1
million from our Canadian operations under the foreign earnings repatriation provision within the American Jobs
Creation Act of 2004. This new law provided for a special one-time deduction of 85% of certain foreign earnings
that were repatriated and which met certain requirements.

The effective tax rate on pre-lax income from continuing operations differed from the U.S. federal statutory
tax rate of 35% as follows:

2007 2006 2005
Income tax at federal statutory rate.........c.c.oceevein, 315.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State income tax expense, net of federal income
1aX BENELIt . vveee e 2.8% 0.5% 2.1%
Change in unrecognized tax benefits, including
interest and penalties ..........oovienienicenncresien 0.2% — —_
Change in tax contingencies'......c.ccocnuenerrerrereeeee — 0.7% (0.3%)
Deferred income tax adjustmenlm ......................... — (3.5%) —
Qualified production activity credit . ooooevceinnen (1.8%) (1.6%) (0.9%)
Receivables for prior year lax returns™............ . (1.4%) — —
- (0.7%) (1.6%) 1.1%
INCOME 18X PrOVISION....c.oivs et 34.1% 29.5% 37.0%

1) During 2006, accruals related 1o unresolved tax contingencies mere than offset net accrual reversals of $1.5 million related to settled issues,
¥ g . . g + - . + - . -
primarily resulting from the expiration of the statute of Timitations in varicus state income lax jurisdictions.

@ Dyring 2006, we reduced our provision lor income taxes $5.0 million for the truc-up of certain deferred income tax balances. As this item was
not material to our current or prior periods, we recorded a one-time, discrete benefit 1o our provision for income taxes for the year ended
December 31, 2006.

) Relates to amendments o prior year income tax retums claiming refunds primarily associated with the funding of medical costs through our
voluntary employee beneficiary association (VEBA) trust, as well as state income tax credits and related interest.
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On January 1, 2007, we adopted FIN No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes (see Note 1}. This
new standard defines the threshold for recognizing the benefits of tax return positions in the financial statements. A
reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits, excluding accrued interest and
penalties, is as follows:

(in thousands)

Balance, January 1, 2007 ........ccoooriiiinceeereeesrseneseee e s 5 16,202
Additions for tax positions of curtent year ......cvceovveevreencnvninnnns ' 398
Additions for (ax positions Of Prior Y&ars .......cccoeveernreerereereeenane. 979
Reductions for tax positions of prior years .......eceeoeeeeceevcnecnrnan, (1,159)
Settlements ......cooeeveveeece e, (2,131)
Lapse of statutes of Hmitations..........c.ccoveeeveneeieseenccnesicnescsssveenns (394)

Balance, December 31, 2007 ... vvivireeivieeinrienrririnssstresssssermsssenseense $ 14,395

If the unrecognized tax benefits were recognized in our consolidated financial statements, $7.2 million would
affect our effective tax rate. Our income tax provision included expense for interest and penalties of $0.9 million in
2007. Our accruals for interest and penalties, excluding the tax benefits of deductible interest, were $4.8 million as of
December 31, 2007. Examinations of our federal income tax returns for years prior to 2000 have been closed.
Federal income tax returns for 2000 through 2004 have been examined by the Internal Revenue Service {(IRS), while
our federal income tax returns for 2005 through 2007 remain subject to IRS examination. In general, income tax
returns for the years 2003 through 2007 remain subject (o examination by major state and city tax jurisdictions. In
the event that we have determined not to file tax returns with a particular state or city, all years remain subject to
examination by the tax jurisdiction.

Within the next 12 months, it is reasonably possible that our unrecognized tax benefits will change in the
range of a decrease of $7.0 million to an increase of $1.1 million as we attempt to setile certain federal and state tax
matters or as federal and state statutes of limitations expire. We are not able to predict what, if any, impact these
changes may have on our effective tax rate.

The ultimate outcome of tax matters may differ from our estimates and assurmptions. Unfavorable settlement
of any particular issue would require the use of cash and could resuilt in increased income tax expense. Favorable
resolution would result in reduced income tax expense.

Prior to the adoption of FIN No. 48 on January I, 2007, we established reserves for income tax contingencies
when, despite our belief that the tax return positions were fully supportable, certain positions were likely to be
challenged. We adjusted these reserves in light of changing facts and circumstances, such as the closing of a tax
audit. Qur effective tax rate for 2006 and 2005 included the impact of reserve provisions and changes o reserves, as
well as related interest and penalties. Qur reserve for contingent tax liabilities totaled $8.9 miilion as of December
31, 2006 and is included in accrued liabilities in our consolidated balance sheet.
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Tax-effected temporary differences which gave rise to deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 31 were
as follows:

2007 2006
Deferred Deferred
Deferred tax Deferred tax

(in thousands) tax assets liabilities tax assets liabilities
Intangible ASSELS.....ooovierevereiiiivcrinninvasisnaraeeees $ — 5 24326 % — % 20,555
GoodWill....coovirveeee e — 21,793 — 17,073
Property, plant and equipment.............ocoivnins 2,840 —_ — 772
Deferred advertising Costs ......orveeecrrereererecsians — 9,800 — 9,106
Employee benefit ptans®” ......cc..oooecviiorriniene, 33,106 — 34,445 —
Interest rate lock agreements (see Note 8)......... 5,279 —_ 6,514 —
Reserves and aceruals............oooceivnivvcvnniennnns 10,959 - 15,156 -
Federal benefit of state uncertain tax positions.. 4,982 — —_ —
INVEREOTIES e veevevesatare s rerseermeeeesnnneeesrreeneenes 2,137 - 3,123 -
AL OEL ...t 4,995 3,040 4,362 3,981
Total deferred 1AXES . ...ooovvviivecvveeerereeeeeensenane 64,298 58,959 63,600 60,487
Valuation allowance ...........cccceevvimenrmninsinienens {632) — (652) —
Net deferred taxes......cccooviviiiinieienirenreeeens $ 63,666 $ 58,959 $ 62,048 § 60,487

) Deferred income taxes were impacted by the adoption of the recognition provisions of SFAS No. 158, Employers’ Accounting for Defined
Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Pluns, as of December 31, 2006, Further information can be found in Note 12.

Deferred income taxes have not been recognized on unremitted earnings of our foreign subsidiaries, as these
amounts are intended to be reinvested indefinitely in the operations of those subsidiaries.

The valuation allowances relate to Canadian operating loss carryforwards which we do not expect to realize.
As of December 31, 2007, we had Canadian operating loss carryforwards of $1.8 million which expire at various
dates between 2010 and 2013. We also had state net operating loss carryforwards of $1.9 million which expire at
various dates up to 2026.

Note 10; Share-based compensation plans

Our employee share-based compensation plans consist of our employee stock purchase plan and our stock
incentive plan. Under our stock incentive plan, we currently have non-qualified stock options, restricted stock units and
restricted share awards outstanding. There are 8.5 million shares of common stock reserved for issuance under the stock
incentive plan, with 2.8 million of these shares remaining available for issuance as of December 31, 2007.
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The following amounts were recognized in our consolidated statements of income for share-based compensation
plans;

{in thousands) 2007 2006 2005

StoCK OPLONS 1ovovveeeveesceee e, $ 2,766 % 2,025 % 3,448
Restricted shares and restricted stock units ......... 10,425 3,379 2,325
Employee stock purchase plan..............ccoc.ccune.. 342 787 810
Performance share plan™.............ccoooovoorrvenene, — — 420
Total share-based compensation expense........... 3 13,533 % 6,191 $ 7,003
Income tax benefit c...couceeeeeeivevireereeeeeseeean, $ 4709 § 1,826 $ 2,591

© No awards were eamed under our performance share plan. As such, no expense for this plan was recorded in 2007 or 2006. Expense was recorded
in 2005 based on our estimate at that time of the awards that would be eamed. As a portion of the award was based on market conditions, this expense
could net be reversed in accordance with SFAS No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment.

As of December 31, 2007, the total compensation expense for unvested awards not yet recognized in our
consolidated statements of income was $10.5 million, net of the effect of estimated forfeitures, This amount is expected
to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.5 years.

Non-qualified stock options — All options allow for the purchase of shares of common stock at prices equal to the
stock’s market value at the date of grant. Options become exercisable beginning one year after the grant date, with one-
third vesting each year over three years. Options may be exercised up to seven years following the date of grant. In the
case of qualified retirement, death, disability or involuntary termination without cause, options vest immediately and the
period over which the options can be exercised is shortened. Employees forfeit unvested options when they voluntarily
terminate their employment with the company, and they have up 1o three months to exercise vested options before they
are cancelled. In the case of involuntary termination with cause, the entire unexercised portion of the award is cancelled.
All options vest immediately upon a change of control, as defined in the award agreement. We determine the fair value
of options using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The estimated fair value of options, including the effect of
estimated forfeitures, is recognized as expense on the straight-line basis over the options’ vesting periods. The following
weighted-average assumptions were used in the Black-Scholes model in determining the fair value of stock options
granted:

2007 2006 2005
Risk-free interest rate (%) ....coccivv v ieennecenennens 4.8 4.6 3.9
Dividend yield (%) ....cooovieir v, 4.4 4.2 39
Expected volatility () ......cooevvrivivvnirencrceenenens 26.1 22.1 20.5
Weighted-average option life (years).........ccoeevnen. 4.5 4.7 5.7

. The risk-free interest rate for periods within the expected option life is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in
effect at the grant date. Expected volatility is based on the historical volatility of our stock. We utilized the simplified
method to determine the expected option term, based upon the vesting and original contractual terms of the option.
Beginning in 2008, we will utilize a more detailed caiculation of the expected option term based on our historical option
exercise data,
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Information regarding options issued under the current and all previous plans was as follows:

Weighted-
Aggregate average
Weighted- intrinsic remaining
Number of average exercise value (in  contractual
option shares price thousands) term (years)

Outstanding at December 31, 2004....... 3250496 § 36.84

Granted .......coooovieviineienieneee e rrens 239,087 39.63

EXercised ....cooovvieivcieeeeee e (325,858) 25.29

Forfeited or expired ..o (203,340) 36.62
Outstanding at December 31, 2005........ 2960385 38.46

Granted ... 795,700 25.83

ExXercised ....ovooviinvinee e eeeeeeens (295,485) 19.19

Forfeited or expired ......c.ooevevirecrnne. (393,642) 36.53
Qutstanding at December 31, 2006....... 3,066,958 37.27

Gramted .........coovvverriesreeeeeeeeeereme e 914,425 32.73

Exercised ...oooceeciiiiicierenveesree e e 425,717 31.36

Forfeited or expired ........coveeveiverecnee (271,377 37.89
Qutstanding at December 31, 2007....... 3284229 36.85 $ 5,306 3.4
Exercisable at December 31, 2005 ....... 2,256,758 % 38.12
Exercisable at December 31, 2006 ....... 2,265,244 40.46
Exercisable at December 31, 2007 ....... 1,988,907 40.78 $ 2,235 1.8

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of options granted was $6.01 per share for 2007, $4.17 per share for
2006 and $6.13 per share for 2005. The intrinsic value of a stock award is the amount by which the fair value of the
underlying stock exceeds the exercise price of the award. The total intrinsic value of options exercised was $3.5 million
for 2007, $2.1 million for 2006 and $4.4 million for 2005.

Restricted stock units — Certain employees have the option o receive a portion of their bonus payment in the form
of restricted stock units. When employees elect this payment method, we provide an additional matching amount of
restricted stock units equal to one-half of the restricted stock units earned under the bonus plan. These awards vest two
years from the date of grant. In the case of approved retirement, death, disability or change of control, the units vest
immediately. In the case of involuntary termination without cause or voluntary termination, employees receive a cash
payment for the units carned under the bonus plan, but forfeit the company-provided matching amount. The fair value of
these awards is determined on the date of grant based on the market value of our common stock. Compensation expense,
including the effect of estimated forfeitures, is recognized over the applicable service period. Because the bonus portion
of these awards may be settled in cash upon voluntary termination of employment, this portion of the awards is included
in accrued liabilities in our consolidated balance sheets, and is re-measured at each reporting period based on the current
market value of our common stock. The company-provided match portion of the awards is never settled in cash. As
such, this portion of the awards is recorded in equity at the grant date fair value and is not re-measured each reporting
period.

In addition to awards granted to employees, non-employee members of our board of directors can elect to receive
all or a portion of their fees in the form of restricted stock units. Directors are issued shares in exchange for the units
upon the earlier of the tenth anniversary of February 1* of the year following the year in which the non-employee
director ceases to serve on the board or such other objectively determinable date pre-elected by the director. The fair
value of these unit awards is based on the market value of our common stock on the date of grant. Compensation
expense is recognized immediately, as the awards are for past services.
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Each restricted stock unit is convertible into one share of common stock upon completion of the vesting period.
Information regarding our restricted stock units was as follows:

Weighted-
Aggregate average
Weighted- intrinsic  remaining
Number of average grant value (in  contractual
units date fair value thousands) term (years)
Qutstanding at December 31, 2004....... 40905 $ 38.45
Granted ...oooevveinieeeeee e 154,356 35.54
Vested ..oomeeeeeeteirecececini e (63,362) 37.14
' Forfei[f:d ............................................. (5,798) 3544
QOutstanding at December 31, 2005....... 126,101 35.68
Granted ........cooevveeveecccee e 15938 22.18
Vested ..o e (20,307) 35.44
Forfeited ... (41,875) 35.23
Outstanding at December 31, 2006....... 79,857 33.31
Granted ..o e 10,743 34.71
VESIEA . .vevvrrere e iescnessis e ssne s (37,490) 34.53
Outstanding at December 31, 2007....... 53,110 32.73 $ 1,747 5.6

Of the awards outstanding as of December 31, 2007, 554 restricted stock units are classified as liabilities in our
consolidated balance sheet at a value of $18 thousand. As of December 31, 2007, these units had a fair value of $32.89
per unit and a weighted-average remaining contractual term of 0.1 year.

The total intrinsic value of restricted stock units vesting was $1.1 mitlion for 2007, $0.4 million for 2006 and
$2.1 million for 2005. We made cash payments to settle share-based liabilities of $0.1 million in 2007, $0.5 million in
2006 and $0.1 million in 2005.

Restricted shares — We currently have two types of restricted share awards outstanding. Certain of these awards
have a set vesting pertod at which time the restrictions on the shares lapse. The vesting period on these awards currently
ranges from two to three years. The fair value of these awards is based on the market value of an unrestricted share on
the grant date and is recognized, net of the effect of estimated forfeitures, over the vesting period. We have also granted
performance-accelerated restricted shares. The restrictions on these awards lapse three years from the grant date.
However, if the performance criteria are met, the restrictions on one-half of the awards will lapse one year from the grant
date. Fair value is based on the market value of an unrestricted share on the date of grant and is recognized, net of the
effect of estimated forfeitures, over the vesting period.

For both types of restricted share awards, the restrictions lapse immediately in the case of qualified retirement,
death or disability. In the case of involuntary termination without cause or a change of control, restrictions on a pro-rata
portion of the shares lapse based on how much of the vesting period has passed. In the case of voluntary termination of
employment or termination with cause, the remaining restricted shares are forfeited.
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Information regarding unvested restricted shares was as follows:

Weighted-

Number of average grant

shares date fair value
Unvested at December 31, 2004 ......oooovvinvirensienne 44803 % 42.36
GIANIED 11 eers s s e ss s reecseneneennes 51,925 . 3947
VESIEA ..ottt (9,746) 41.66
Forfeited ..o (4,099) 41.16
Unvested at December 31, 2005 ..o 82,883 40.70
Granted ..o 401,630 25.51
VESEE ...eievreenesree i c et b sa e (20,958) 36.90
| 28T 1 1 =1t A USSR (85,462) 78.99
Unvested at December 31, 2006......c..oovveececincnn, 378,093 27.52
Granted ..o e 250,150 33.00
Vested ... (87,133) 29.09
Foarfeited ......ovveievmreeecrcrccrc ettt (36,977) 30.10
Unvested at December 31, 2007 ....cooviniviiiiiiennene. 504,133 29.78

The total fair value of restricted shares vesting was $3.3 million for 2007, $0.4 million for 2006 and $0.3 million
for 2005.

Employee stock purchase plan — Under our employee stock purchase plan, eligible employees may purchase
Deluxe common stock at 85% of its market value at the end of each six-month purchase period. Priorto August 1, 2006,
the plan contained a “look-back™ provision under which the purchase price was calculated as 85% of the lower of the
stock’s market value at the beginning or end of the six-month purchase period.

During 2007, 90,452 shares were issued under this plan at prices of $25.44 and $32.10. During 2006, 180,277
shares were issued under this plan at prices of $22.76 and $14.45. During 2005, 91,902 shares were issued at prices of
$32.53 and $32.99. Prior to August 1, 2006, we utilized the Black-Scholes option pricing model to calculate the fair
value of these awards. This fair value plus the 15% discount amount was recognized as compensation expense over the
six-month purchase period. Subsequent to August 1, 2006, the 15% discount amount is recognized as compensation
expense over the six-month purchase period.

Note 11: Employee benefit plans

Profit sharing, defined contribution and 401(k) plans — We maintain a profit sharing plan, a defined contribution
pension plan and a plan established under section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code to provide retirement benefits for
certain employees. These plans cover substantially ali full-time and some part-time employees. Employees are eligible to
participate in the plans on the first day of the quarter following their first full year of service. We also provide cash
bonus programs under which employees may receive an annual cash bonus payment based on our annual operating
performance.

Contributions to the profit sharing and defined contribution plans are made solely by Deluxe and are remitted
to the plans’ respective trustees. Benefits provided by the plans are paid from accumulated funds of the trusts. In
2007, 2006 and 2005, contributions to the defined contribution pension plan equaled 4% of eligible compensation.
Contributions to the profit sharing plan vary based on the company’s performance. Under the 401(k) plan, employees
under the age of 50 could contribute up to the lesser of $15,500 or 50% of eligibte wages during 2007. Employees
50 years of age or older could make contributions of up to $20,500 during 2007. Beginning on the first day of the
quarter following an employee’s first full year of service, we match 100% of the first 1% of wages contributed by
employees and 50% of the next 4% of wages contributed. All employee and employer contributions are remitted to
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the plans’ respective trustees and benefits provided by the plans are paid from accumulated funds of the trusts.
Payments made under the cash bonus programs vary based on the company’s performance and are paid in cash
directly to employees.

Employees are provided a broad range of investment options to choose from when investing their profit
sharing, defined contribution and 401(k) plan funds. Investing in our common stock is not one of these options,

although funds selected by employees may at times hold our common stock.

Expense recognized in the consolidated statements of income for these plans was as follows:

{in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Profit sharing/cash bonus plans ..., $ 23,379 § 3.845 % 976
Defined contribution penston plan..........c.cecoeve. 10,761 11,313 10,975
AOT(K) PIAN oo eeeesesensions 6,482 7,065 8,084

Deferred compensation plan — We have a non-qualified deferred compensation plan that allows eligible
employees to defer a portion of their compensation. Participants can elect to defer up to a maximum of 100 percent
of their base salary plus up to 50 percent of their bonus for the year. The compensation deferred under this plan is
credited with earnings or losses measured by the mirrored rate of return on investments elected by plan participants.
Each participant is fully vested in all deferred compensation and earnings. A participant may elect to receive
deferred amounts in one payment or in monthly installments upon termination of employment or disability. Our total
liability under this plan was $10.2 million as of December 31, 2007 and $11.4 million as of December 31, 2006.
These amounts are reflected in accrued liabilities and other long-term liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets.
We fund this liability through investments in company-owned life insurance policies, as well as investments in
domestic mutual funds. These investments are included in long-term investments in the consolidated balance sheets
and totaled $16.3 million as of December 31, 2007 and $15.7 million as of December 31, 2006.

Voluntary employee beneficiary association trust — We have formed a VEBA trust to fund employee and
retiree medical costs and severance benefits, Contributions to the VEBA trust are tax deductible, subject to
limitations contained in the Internal Revenue Code. VEBA assets primarily consist of fixed income investments.
Historically, we made the majority of our contributions to the trust in the first quarter of the year and funded our .
obligations from the trust assets throughout the year. During 2006, we decided to change this practice. We now fund
the VEBA, trust throughout the year because the tax benefit from pre-funding the trust no longer exceeds the interest
cost associated with the pre-funding. We made contributions to the VEBA trust of $34.1 million in 2007 and $4.5
million in 2006. Qur liability for incurred but not reported medical claims exceeded the prepaid balance in the
VEBA trust by $3.1 million as of December 31, 2007 and $0.3 million as of December 31, 2006. These amounts are
reflected in accrued habilities in our consolidated balance sheets.

Note 12: Pension and other postretirement benefits

We have historically provided certain health care benefits for a large number of retired employees. Employees
hired prior to January 1, 2002 become eligible for benefits if they attain the appropriate years of service and age prior to
retirement. Employees hired on January 1, 2002 or later are not eligible to participate in our retiree health care plan. In
addition to our retiree health care plan, we also have supplemental executive retirement plans (SERP’s) in the United
States and Canada and a pension plan which covers certain Canadian employees. These pension plans were acquired as
part of the NEBS acquisition in 2004,

T




On December 31, 2006, we adopted the recognition provisions of SFAS No. 158, Employers’ Accounting for
Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans. This standard required companies to recognize the
overfunded or underfunded status of a defined benefit postretirement plan as an asset or liability on the balance sheet
and to recognize changes in that funded status in the year in which the change occurs through comprehensive
income. The adjustments required to reflect the funded status of our postretirement benefit and pension plans as of
December 31, 2006 were as follows:

Before After
application application
of SFAS of SFAS
(in thousands) No. 158 Adjustments No. 158
Deferred INCOME TAXES .....coveeverrrreserisirerinesiserans b 20,080 $ (1,304) $ 18,776
Other NON-CUTTENE ASSELS ...vvvvveeereeeserarsvreessrenrens e 139,509 (21,806) 117,703
TOAL BSSCLS cuvvvrierresreiereereersissereesnesrsssrnssanensnenis 1,290,242 (23,110) 1,267,132
Accrued liabilities.........oveeeeeerrrmiesiiiiiin e, 150,802 (3,979} 146,823
Deferred iNCOME LAXES .....ocvveiervirerrniresiaceemesiniianns 37,074 (20,759) 16,315
Other non-current liabilities... ..o, 40,396 35,001 75,397
Total HabilitIES . .vivervevreeeeeereeinesenerereerisesenseensenns 1,322,542 10,263 1,332,805
Accumulated other comprehensive loss............... (8,500) (33,373) (41,873)
Total sharcholders’ defiCit...coocvieveevririminiiicrenen. (32,300) (33,373) (65,673}

SFAS No. 158 also requires companies to measure the funded status of a plan as of the date of its year-end
balance sheet beginning no later than December 31, 2008. We historically used September 30 as our measurement date.
Effective January 1, 2007, we changed to a December 31 measurement date (see Note 1).

In July 2006, we adopted an amendment to our postretirement benefit plan. The amendment limits the total
amount we will pay toward retiree medical costs. The limit was set at 150% of the average cost per retiree in 2006.
Medical costs incurred above the pre-determined limit will be paid by retirees. We expect the cap will be reached in four
to six years. We completed a plan re-measurement as of July 31, 2006 to calculate the impact of this plan amendment.
This change reduced our accumulated postretirement benefit obligation by $29.5 miilion. This amount will be
recognized as a reduction of our postretirement benefit expense over a period of 22 years, the average remaining life of
plan participants. This change resulted in a $0.7 million reduction in our postretirement benefit expense for 2006.
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Obligations and funded starus — The following table summarizes the change in benefit obligation, plan assets
and funded status during 2007 and 2006:

Postretirement
(in thousands) henefit plan Pension plans
Change in benefit obligation:

Benefit obligation, December 31, 2005 ............. $ 143,195 §$ 9,691
SEIVICE COSLorirniiiiniiiiie s iceeerc e en b esmeeerearee e 1,000 209
TNEETEST COSturritieanneeciiststeiceneeeeeeeeessssaseesssanne 7.338 473
Actuarial 0SS — NEL......cocecerriciirnierireresmaeenees 11,273 4
Benefits paid from plan assets, the VEBA

trust (see Note 11) and company funds.......... (13,803) (446)
Plan amendments ...........cocoeveviveeeevneieee e, (29,525) —
Currency translation adjustment ...............c...... — (30)

Benefit obligation, December 31, 2006............ 119,478 9.901
SEIVICE COSLavrrniiminriiieieieenerrersecine e reesreeerens 156 222
INterest CoSLan i eaens 7,011 514
Actuarial 10ss (2ain) — Net......coveeericrrcmrnnnnns 15,7175 (185)
Benefits paid from plan assets, the VEBA

trust (see Note 11) and company funds .......... (10,779) (557)
Change in measurémem date (see Note 1)....... 1,664 338
Currency translation adjustment ... — 1,095

Benefit obligation, December 31, 2007............. $ 133,305 % 11,328

Change in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets, December 31, 2005 ... $ 90,589 % 4,869
Actual return on plan assets........cooeeevveeeresenee. 7,996 555
Company contributions..........cccoceeiiviniinnnnn. — 776
Benefits and expenses paid........cccoocoveennrnnnenn, (10,342) (152)
Currency translation adjustment ..............c.cc.... — (49)
Fair value of plan assets, December 31, 2006 ... 88,243 5,999
Actual return on plan assets.........coccovviininnnns 14,504 109
Company contributions. ............c.veeeeceneecnnennan, — 463
Benefits and expenses paid.........ococoieivineene, — (234)
Currency translation adjustment ..........c..ooeeee. — 1,025
Fair value of plan assets, December 31, 2007 ... $ 102,747 % 7.362

Funded status, December 31, 2006.........cccoov $ (31,235 $ (3,902)

Funded status, December 31, 2007 .......covvevenne... $ (30,538) $ (3,966)

Plan assets of our postretirement medical plan do not include the assets of the VEBA trust discussed in Note
11. Plan assets consist only of those assets invested in a trust established under section 401(h) of the Internal
Revenue Code. These assets can be used only to pay retiree medical benefits, whereas the assets of the VEBA trust
may be used to pay medical and severance benefits for both active and retired employees.
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Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31 were as follows:

Postretirement benefit

plan Pension plans
2007 2006 2007 2006
Other NON-CUITENE ASSELS w.oeververecrrrrrerrnieens $ — % — 3 178 % 187
Accrued liabilities. ....ccoovevmnninirinenees — — 324 324
Other non-current liabilities.........c..ooueen. 30,558 31,235 3,820 3,765

Amounts included in other comprehensive loss that have not been recognized as components of postretirement
benefit expense were as follows:

Postretirement benefit

_ plan Pension plans
(in thousands) ’ 2007 2006 2007 2006
Unrecognized prior service credit............ $ (40,021) % {44,969) $ — % —
Unrecognized net actuarial 1085.............. 96,732 97,917 492 219
Fourth quarter contribution..............cccee.e. — — — 80
Tax effeCt..ccciiricvereinrererecee s (20,924 (19,512) (162) (93)
Amount recognized in accumulated
other comprehensive loss, net of tax ... § 35,787 % 33436 $ 330§ 206

The unrecognized prior service credit for our postretirement benefit plan resulted from a 2003 curtailment and
other plan amendments. These changes resulted in a reduction of the accurmulated postretirement benefit obligation.
This reduction was first used to reduce any existing unrecognized prior service cost, then to reduce any remaining
unrecognized transition obligation. The excess is the unrecognized prior service credit. The prior service credit
generated by the 2006 plan amendment is being amortized on the straight-line basis over the average remaining life
expectancy of plan participants of 22 years. Prior service credit generated before 2006 and unrecognized actuarial
gains and losses are being amortized over the average remaining service period of plan participants, which is
currently 8.8 years. The unrecognized net actuarial loss for our postretirement benefit plan resulted from experience
different from that assumed or from changes in assumptions. This amount was comprised of the following as of
December 31:

(in thousands) 2007 2006
ClAIMS EXPETIENCE ovvvererereesaserrenseneecesersreresssesre $ 23938 $ 18,454
Health care cost trend ......ouvcvvvrmreeeaeeeeecccvssrssnnans 21,242 ' 23,620
Discount rate assumption.........cemsen 19,105 27,246
Return on plan assets ......oveeeeeesiainiisinniine: 9,148 10,271
(07111 OO TR ST 23,299 18,326

Unrecognized net actuarial 1085......cooovoiiinninn, $ 96,732 § 97,917
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Amounts included in accumulated other comprehensive loss as of December 31, 2007 which we expect to
recognize in postretirement benefit expense during 2008 are as follows:

Postretirement Pension
{in thousands) benefit plan plans
Prior service credit ovoiveeereerire s $ (3,959) % —
Net actuarial 1SS c.ocveivevrireriircecieesresessnesrneeesnees 9,478 134
TOAL ..ottt eneeneren, B 5519 8§ 134

The accumulated benefit obligation (ABO) for all of our pension plans was $11.3 million as of December 31,
2007 and $9.9 million as of December 31, 2006. The ABO differs from the projected benefit obligation because it
does not include an assumption as to future compensation levels.

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, two of our three pension plans, the United States SERP plan and the
Canadian pension plan, had accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets, as follows:

{in thousands) 2007 2006
Projected benefit obligation.........occvecvvnrcviena $ 10,448 % 9,129
Accumulated benefit obligation.........coocevviirenn, 10,448 9,101
Fair value of plan assets..........c.ccooocivnnveninninn, 6,304 5,039

Net pension and postretirement benefit expense — Net pension and postretirement benefit expense for the
years ended December 31 consisted of the following components:

Postretirement benefit plan Pension plans

(in thousands) 2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005
SEIVICE COSluvnrrnrrrinrnrnieiiererrereneseeans 3 156 $ 1,000 $ 782 % 223 % 209 5 289
Interest CoSt e eorecreiee e 7,011 7.338 6,915 514 473 588
Expected return on plan assets............. (8.,264) (7,690) {6,695) (262) (300) (263)
Amortization of prior service credit..... (3,959 (2,841) 2,617) — —_ _
Amortization of net actuarial losses..... 9,857 9,992 9,375 7 9 —

Total periodic benefit expense......... 4,801 7,799 7,760 432 391 614
Curtailment 1088 .....ccocvivirervnieeieinennn — — — — . — 139

Net periodic benefit expense ..........$ 4801 % 7,799 § 7,760 % 482 % 391 §$ 753

Actuarial assumptions — Effective Jannary 1, 2007 we changed to a December 31 measurement date when
completing the calculations related to our pension and postretirement benefit plans (see Note 1). Historically, we
used a September 30 measurement date.

In measuring benefit obligations as of December 31, the following assumptions were used:

Postretirement benefit plan Pension plans
2007 2006 2007 2006
DHSCount rate........ocovvvveemiccinineeenens 6.20% 5.75% 4.43% -6.20% 4.60% -5.75%
Rate of compensation increase ............... — — — 3.50%

The discount rate assumption is based on the rates of return on high-quality, fixed-income instruments
currently available whose cash flows match the timing and amount of expected benefit payments. In determining the
discount rate, we utilize yield curve approaches to discount each cash flow stream at an interest rate specifically
applicable to the timing of each respective cash flow, The present value of each cash flow stream is aggregated and

81




used to impute a weighted-average discount rate. Additionally, we consider Moody’s high quality corporate bond
rates when selecting our discount rate.

In measuring net periodic benefit expense for the years ended December 31, the following assumptions were

used:

Postretirement benefit plan Pension plans’

(in thousands) 2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005
DASCOUNE FAtE..c.vieeiereermcie i 5.75% 5.50% 5.75% 4.43% -575% 4.50%-5.50% 5.75% - 6.25%
Expected return on plan assets...... 8.75% 8.15% 8.75% 4.50% 6.25% 6.00%

— 3.50% 3.50%

Rate of compensation increase ..... — — —

In determining the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets, we first study historical markets. We then
use this data to estimate future returns assuming that long-term historical relationships between equity and fixed
income investments are consistent with the widely accepted capital market principle that assets with higher volatility
generate a greater return over the long run. We evaluate current market factors such as inflation and interest rates
before we determine long-term capital market assumptions. We also review historical returns to check for

reasonableness and appropriateness.

In measuring the benefit obligation for our postretirement medical plan, the following assumptions for health
care cost trend rates were used:

2007 2006 2005
Participants Participants Participants Participants All
under age 65 over age 65 under age 65 over age 65  participants
Health care cost trend rate assumed for
NEXL YEAT 1vvvercecemcncectasrimnnnnssssrreseeaess © R.25% 9.25% 9.00% 10.00% 9.75%
Rate to which the cost trend rate is
assumed to decline (the ultimate trend
FAIE) ceroieveererreiermeseerereemeeeeeeestsbssanannsasnan, 525% 5.25% 5.25% 5.25% 5.25%
Year that the rate reaches the uitimate
IrENd TALE oevveieeeeeeecerrreceeee ettt ne s v raraes 2012 2014 2012 2014 2011

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for health care plans. A
one-percentage-point change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects:

One- One-
percentage- percentage-
point point
(in thousands) increase decrease
Effect on total of service and interest COSt.......ccc.... $ 163 % (145)
Effect on benefit obligation ... 2,826 (2,526)

Plan assets — The allocation of plan assets by asset category as of the measurement date was as follows:

Postretirement benefit

plan Pension plans
2007 2006 2007 2006
EQUIty SECUIIIES 1vovvvverectririsisserssirsinssessisssennans 79% 85% 7% 8%
DEbt SECUTIHES .veeveeereerersreeeeeeiisbsissssessvasssnsesnencns 21% - 15% 86% 84%
Cash and cash equivalents .......... SSSRUURUR — — 7% 8%
Total 100% 100% 100% 100%
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Our postretirement health care plan and the Canadian pension plans have assets that are intended to meet
long-term obligations. In order to meet these obligations, we employ a total return investment approach which
considers cash flow needs and balances long-term projected returns against expected asset risk, as measured using
projected standard deviations. Risk tolerance is established through careful consideration of projected plan liabilities,
the plan’s funded status, projected liquidity needs and current corporate financial condition,

For our postretirement health care plan, we adopted new asset allocation targets in September 2007 based on
our liability and assel projections. As such, the curremt atlocation of plan assets is 30% equity secorities and 20%
fixed income securities. Within the equity securities category, the allocation is: 59% large capitalization equities,
29% international equities and 12% small and mid-capitalization equities. Through most of 2007 our allocation of
plan assets was 76% equity securities and 24% fixed income securities. Within the equity securities category, the
allocation was: 42% large capitalization equities, 33% small and mid-capitalization equities and 25% international
equities. Through most of 2006, we targeted an allocation of plan assets of 80% equity securities and 20% fixed
income securities for our postretirement medical plan. Within equity securities, we targeted the following allocation:
35% large capitalization equities, 25% small capitalization equities, 20% mid-capitalization equities and 20%
international equities. Plan assets are not invested in real estate, private equity or hedge funds and are not leveraged
beyond the market value of the underlying investments. Investment risk is measured and monitored on an ongoing
basis through quarterly investment portfolio reviews, annual liability measurements and periodic asset/liability
studies,

Through June 30, 2006, the defined benefit companent of the Canadian pension plan invested in a pooled
balance fund. The plan was frozen on July 1, 2006 and is expected to be fully seutled in 2010. As such, its assets as
of December 31, 2007 were invested in fixed income investments. The investments utilized by this plan conform to
our Statement of Investment Policies & Procedures and are overseen by an investment committee. The committee
reviews our policies and liability structure annually and reviews the performance of plan assets on a quarterly basis.
In December 2007, we decided to terminate the Canadian SERP plan. Benefits due under this plan are expected to be
fully seuled in 2008. As of December 31, 2007, one-half of the assets of this plan were held by the Canada Revenue
Agency in a refundable non-interest bearing account and one-half of the assets were invested in a global equity fund.

Cash flows ~ We are not contractually obligated to make contributions to the assets of our postretirement
medical benefit plan, and we do not anticipate making any such contributions during 2008. However, we do
anticipate that we will pay net retiree medical benefits of $10.0 million during 2008.

We have fully funded the United States SERP obligation with investments in company-owned life insurance’
policies. The cash surrender value of these policies is included in long-term investmenis in the consolidated balance
sheets and totaled $5.3 million as of December 31, 2007 and $5.2 million as of December 31, 2006. We plan to pay
pension benefits of $1.5 million during 2008, including final settlement of the Canadian SERP plan. We plan to
make contributions of $0.2 million to the defined benefit component of the Canadian pension plan during 2008.

The following benefit payments are expected to be paid during the years indicated:

Pension
Postretirement benefit plan plans
Gross Expected Net
benefit Medicare benefit Gross benefit
(in thousands) payments subsidy payments payments
2008 .., $ - 11,000 $ 1,000 ) 10,000 §$ 1,516
2009 ..o e e, 11,400 1,200 10,200 533
2000 e 12,000 1,300 10,700 7,582
2011 e 12,600 1,400 11,200 310
20012 o 13,100 1,500 11,600 300
2013 = 2017 (o, 66,100 8,500 57,200 - 1,440
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Note 13: Debt

Debt outstanding as of December 31 was as follows:

(in thousands) 2007 2006
5.0% senior, unsecured notes due December 15, 2012, net of discount ......  §$ 299,062 §$ 298,872
5.125% senior, unsecured notes due October 1, 2014, net of discount........ 274,584 274,523
7.3753% senior, unsecured notes due June 1, 2015 .o, 200,000 —
Long-term portion of capital lease obligations .............ccovivmvesvereinieanninnnen. 1,440 3,195
Long-term portion of debt.. ... 775,086 576,590
3.5% senior, unsecured notes repaid October 1, 2007, net of discount .......  § — 5 324,950
Amounts drawn on credit FACHHEES .........oooeverreveosssisnesssssssessissesarsrenes 67,200 112,660
Capital lease obligations due within one year...........ococeiivviiminnnnininne 1,754 1,581
Short-term portion of debt.........vieimi e 68,954 439,191
TOMALAEDE ..ottt sa st en st ensessasssssnsassaseansncenees D 844,040 $ 1,015,781

Our senior, unsecured notes include covenants that place restrictions on the issuance of additional debt, the
execution of certain sale-leaseback agreements and limitations on certain liens. Discounts from par value are being
amortized ratably as increases to interest expense over the term of the related debt.

In May 2007, we issued $200.0 million of 7.375% senior, unsecured notes maturing on June 1, 2015. The
notes were issued via a private placement under Rule 144A of the Securities Act of 1933. These notes were
subsequently registered with the SEC via a registration statement which became efiective on June 29, 2007. Interest
payments are due each June and December. The notes place a limitation on restricted payments, including increases
in dividend levels and share repurchases. This limitation does not apply if the notes are upgraded to an investment-
grade credit rating. Principal redemptions may be made at our election at any time on or after June 1, 2011 at
redemption prices ranging from 100% to 103.688% of the principal amount. We may also redeem up to 35% of the
notes at a price equal to 107.375% of the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest using the proceeds of
certain equity offerings completed before June 1, 2010. In addition, at any time prior to June 1, 2011, we may
redeem some or all of the notes at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest
and a make-whole premium. I we sell certain of cur assets or experience specific types of changes in control, we
must offer to purchase the notes at 101% of the principal amount. Proceeds from the offering, net of offering costs,
were $196.3 million. These proceeds were used to repay amounts drawn on our credit facility and to invest in
marketable securities. On October 1, 2007, we used proceeds from liquidating all of our marketable securities and
certain cash equivalents, together with a $120.0 million advance on our credit facilities, primarily to repay $325.0
million of 3.5% unsecured notes plus accrued interest. The fair market value of the notes issued in May 2007 was
$199.3 million as of December 31, 2007, based on quoted market prices.

In October 2004, we issued $325.0 million of 3.5% senior, unsecured notes which matured and were repaid
on October 1, 2007 and $275.0 million of 5.125% senior, unsecured notes maturing on October 1, 2014. The notes
were issued via a private placement under Rule 144 A of the Securities Act of 1933. These notes were subsequently
registered with the SEC via a registration statement which became effective on November 23, 2004. Interest
payments are due each April and October. Proceeds from the offering, net of offering costs, were $595.5 million.
These proceeds were used to pay off commercial paper borrowings used for the acquisition of NEBS. The fair
market value of the $275.0 million notes was $229.6 million as of December 31, 2007, based on quoted market
prices.

In December 2002, we issued $300.0 million of 5.0% senior, unsecured notes maturing on December 15,
2012. These notes were issued under our shelf registration statement covering up to $300.0 million in medium-term
notes, thereby exhausting that registration statement. Interest payments are due each June and Decembet. Proceeds
from the offering, net of offering costs, were $295.7 million. These proceeds were used for general corporate
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purposes, including funding share repurchases, capital asset purchases and working capital. The fair value of these
notes was $261.0 million as of December 31, 2007, based on quoted market prices.

Our capital lease obligation bears interest at a rate of 10.4% and is due through 2009. We also have operating
leases on certain facilities and equipment. Future minimum lease payments under our capital obligation and
noncancelable operating leases as of December 31, 2007 were as follows:

Capital Operating

(in thousands} lease leases
2008t e $ 2,004 % 8,233
2009 i 1,503 7,658
2 OSSOSO — 2,635
2012 s — 397
2013 and thereafter.......coccviciicirennnionereie e — 2

Total minimum lease payments ............coueeee.. 3,507 % 23,857
Less portion representing interest.........coooouee. (313}

Present value of minimum lease payments ..... 3,194
Less current portion ... eiinsivieceneecnnans {1,754)

Long-term portion of obligation.........cccccoere. § 1,440

Total future minimum lease payments under capital and noncancelable operating leases have not been reduced
by minimum sublease rentais due under noncancelable subleases. As of December 31, 2007, minimum future sub-
lease rentals were $3.5 million for our capital lease and $0.5 million for operating leases.

The composition of rent expense for the years ended December 31 was as follows:

(in thousands) 2007 2006 2005

MINIMUIm rentals.......ccoovvenervieieneevinessesseee e $ 9,143 $ 11,024 3 14,398

Sublease rentals ........cccccvveiiieee i, (2,058) (2,200) (1,764)
Net rental 8Xpense ......c.ccvvvvneerecreninniisinieeenen, $ 7,085 3 8,824 Y 12,634

Depreciation of the asset under our capital lease is included in depreciation expense in the consolidated
statements of cash flows, The balance of the leased asset as of December 31 was as follows:

(in thousands) 2007 2006

Buildings and building improvements ...........c.oe... $ 11,574 $ 11,574

Accumulated depreciation............oveeecrveecnnniins (9,821) (8,819)
Net assets under capital leases.......ccocovccvene. $ 1,753 $ 2,755
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As of December 31, 2007, we had a $500.0 million commercial paper program in place. Given our current credit
ratings, the commercial paper market is not available to us. We also have committed lines of credit which are available
for borrowing and to support our commercial paper program. The credit agreements governing the lines of credit contain
customary covenants requiring a ratio of earnings before interest and taxes to interest expense of 3.0 times, as well as
limits on the levels of subsidiary indebtedness. No commercial paper was outstanding during 2007. The daily average
amount outstanding under our lines of credit during 2007 was $45.5 million at a weighted-average interest rate of
5.57%. As of December 31, 2007, $67.2 million was outstanding at an interest rate of 5.62%: The daily average amount
outstanding under our commercial paper program and lines of credit during 2006 was $162.5 million at a weighted-
average interest rate of 5.34%. As of December 31, 2006, no commercial paper was ouistanding and $112.7 million was
outstanding under our lines of credit at a weighted-average interest rate of 6.01%. As of December 31, 2007, amounts
were available under our committed lines of credit for borrowing or for support of commercial paper, as follows:

Total  Expiration Commitment

{in thousands) - available date fee
Five year line of credit ... $ 275,000 July 2010 .175%
Five year line of credit ..., 225,000 July 2009 225%

Total committed lines of credit..........oouvnnnee 500,000
Amounts drawn on credit facilities ..............coui. (67,200)
Quistanding letters of credit.........cvinnirineene (11,225)

Net available for borrowing as of
December 31, 2007 ceorcieiveemeircrcrecsorseneee. $ 421,575

Absent certain defined events of default under our debt instruments, and as long as our ratio of earnings
before interest, taxes depreciation and amortization to interest expense is in excess of two to one, our debt covenants
do not restrict our ability to pay cash dividends at our current rate.

Note 14: Other commitments and contingencies

Indemnifications ~ In the normal course of business we periodically enter into agreements that incorporate
general indemnification language. These indemnifications encompass such items as product or service defects,
including breach of security, intellectual property rights, governmental regulations and/or employment-related
matters. Performance under these indemnities would generally be triggered by our breach of the terms of the
contract. In disposing of assets or businesses, we often provide representations, warranties and/or indemnities to
cover various risks including, for example, unknown damage to the assets, environmental risks involved in the sale
of real estate, liability to investigate and remediate environmental contamination at waste disposal sites and
manufacturing facilities, and unidentified tax liabilities and legal fees related to periods prior to disposition. We do
not have the ability to estimate the potential liability from such indemnities because they relate to unknown
conditions. However, we have no reason to believe that any likely liability under these indemnities would have a
material adverse effect on our financial position, annual results of operations or cash flows. We have recorded
liabilities for known indemnifications related to environmental matters.

Environmental matters — We are currently involved in environmental compliance, investigation and
remediation activities at some of our current and former sites, primarily printing facilities of our Financial Services
and Small Business Services segments which have been sold over the past several years. Remediation costs are
accrued on an undiscounted basis when the obligations are either known or considered probable and can be
reasonably estimated. Remediation or testing costs that result directly from the sale of an asset and which we would
not have otherwise incurred, are considered direct costs of the sale of the asset. As such, they are included in our
assessment of the carrying value of the asset.

Accruals for environmental matters were $8.3 million as of December 31, 2007 and $5.0 million as of
December 31, 2006, primarily related to facilities which have been sold. These accruals are included in accrued
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liabilities and other long-term liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets. Accrued costs consist of direct costs of
the remediation activities, primarily fees which will be paid to outside engineering and consulting firms. Although
recorded accruals include our best estimates, our total costs cannot be predicted with certainty due to various factors
such as the extent of corrective action that may be required, evolving environmental laws and regulations and
advances in environmental technology. Where the available information is sufficient to estimate the amount of the
liability, that estimate is used. Where the information is only sufficient to establish a range of probable liability and
no point within the range is more likely than any other, the lower end of the range is used. We do not believe that the
range of possible outcomes could have a material effect on our financial condition, results of operations or tiquidity.

As of December 31, 2007, substantially all costs included in our environmental accruals are covered by an
environmental insurance policy which we purchased during 2002, The insurance policy does not cover properties
acquired in acquisitions subsequent to 2002. However, costs included in our environmental accruals for such
properties were minor as of December 31, 2007. As such, we do not anticipale any significant net cash outlays for
environmental matters in 2008. The policy covers up to $12.9 million of remediation costs, of which $2.8 million has
been paid through December 31, 2007. The insurance policy also covers up to $10.0 million of third-party claims
through 2032 at ceriain owned, leased and divested sites, as well as any new conditions discovered at certain owned
or leased sites through 2012. We consider the realization of recovery under the insurance policy to be probable based
on the insurance contract in place with a reputable and financially-sound insurance company. As our environmental
accruals include our best estimates of these costs, we have recorded receivables from the insurance company within
other current assets and other non-current assets based on the amounts of our environmental accruals for insured
sites.

Self-insurance — We are self-insured for certain costs, primarily workers’ compensation claims and medical
and dental benefits. The liabilities associated with these items represent our best estimate of the ultimate obligations
for reported claims plus those incurred, but not reported. The liability for worker’s compensation, which totaled $9.9
million as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, is accounted for on a present value basis. The difference between the
discounted and undiscounted workers’ compensation liability was $0.8 million as of December 31, 2007 and $0.9
million as of December 31, 2006. We record liabilities for medical and dental benefits payable for active employees
and those employees on long-term disability. Our liability for active employees is not accounted for on a present
value basis as we expect the benefits to be paid in a relatively short period of time. Our liability for those employees
on long-term disability is accounted for on a present value basis and in accordance with SFAS No. 112, Employers’
Accounting for Postemployment Benefits. Our total liability for these medicat and dental benefits totaled $8.5 million
as of December 31, 2007 and $7.9 million as of December 31, 2006. The difference between the discounted and
undiscounted medical and dental liability was $1.0 million as of December 31, 2007 and $1.5 million as of
December 31, 2006.

Our self-insurance liabilities are estimated, in part, by considering historical claims experience, demographic
factors and other actuarial assumptions. The estimated accruals for these liabilities, portions of which are calculated
by third party actuarial firms, could be significantly affected if future events and claims differ from these
assumptions and historical trends.

Litigation — We are party to legal actions and claims arising in the ordinary course of business. We record
accruals for legal matters when the expected outcome of these matters is either known or considered probable and
can be reasonably estimated. Our accruals do not include related legal and other costs expected to be incurred in
defense of legal actions. Based upon information presently available, we believe that it is unlikely that any identified
matters, either individually or in the aggregate, will have a material adverse effect on our annual results of
operations, financial position or liquidity.

Litigation of income tax matters is accounted for under the provisions of FIN No. 48, Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes. Further information can be found in Note 9: Income tax provision.
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Note 15: Common stock purchase rights

In February 1988, we adopted a shareholder rights plan under which common stock purchase rights
automatically attach to each share of common stock we issue. The rights plan is governed by a rights agreement
between us and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as rights agent. This agreement most recently was amended
and restated as of December 20, 2006 (Restated Agreement).

Pursuant to the Restated Agreement, upon the occurrence of certain events, each right will entitle the holder to
purchase one share of common stock at an exercise price of $100. The exercise price may be adjusted from time to
time upon the occurrence of certain events outlined in the Restated Agreement. In certain circumstances described in
the Restated Agreement, if.(i) any person becomes the beneficial owner of 20% or more of the company’s common
stock, (ii) the company is acquired in a merger or other business combination or (i) upon the occurrence of other
events, each right will entitle its holder to purchase a number of shares of common stock of the company, or the
acquirer or the surviving entity if the company is not the surviving corporation in such a transaction. The number of
shares purchasable at the then-current exercise price will be equal to the exercise price of the right divided by 50% of
the then-current market price of one share of common stock of the company, or other surviving entity, subject to
adjustments provided in the Restated Agreement. The rights expire December 31, 2016, and may be redeemed by the
company at a price of $.01 per right at any time prior to the occurrence of the circumstances described above. The
Restated Agreement requires an independent director review of the plan at least once every three years.

Note 16: Shareholders’ equity (deficit)

As of December 31, 2006, we were in a shareholders’ deficit position due to the required accounting treatment
for share repurchases, completed primarily in 2002 and 2003. Share repurchases are reflected as reductions of
shareholders’ equity in the consolidated balance sheets. Under the laws of Minnesola, our state of incorporation, shares
which we repurchase are considered to be authorized and unissued shares. Thus, share repurchases are not presented as a
separate treasury stock caption in our consolidated balance sheets, but are recorded as direct reductions of common
shares, additional paid-in capital and retained earnings.

We have an outstanding authorization from our board of directors to purchase up to 10 million shares of our
common stock. This authorization has no expiration date, and 7.5 million shares remain available for purchase under this
authorization as of December 31, 2007, We repurchased 0.4 million shares during 2007 for $11.3 million, and we
repurchased an additional 0.6 million shares for $13.6 million through February 21, 2008. No shares were repurchased
in 2006 or 2005.

Accumulated other comprehensive loss as of December 31 was comprised of the following:

{in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Postretirement and defined benefit pension plans:
Unrealized prior service credit.......cocoveeevcercirecnn $ 25305 % 28,398 3 —
Unrealized net actuarial 10SSes......ooueverneeeernnernnens (61,422) (61,993) —
Fourth quarter plan contributions...........cccoviene. — (47 —
Postretirement and defined benefit pension
plans, net of tAX ... {36,117} (33,642) —_
Loss on derivatives, net of 13X ..o (8,881) (11,162) (13,721)
Unrealized gain on securities, net of tax ...........oe... — 242 63
Currency translation adjustment ...........occvvvennnn, 5952 2,689 2434
Accumulated other comprehensive loss............. $ (39,046) $ (41.873) $ (11,224)
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Note 17: Business segment information

We operate three business segments: Small Business Services, Financial Services and Direct Checks. Small
Business Services sells business checks, printed forms, promotional products, marketing materials and related services
and products 1o small businesses and home offices through direct response marketing, financial institution referrals, sales
representatives, independent distributors and the internet. Financial Services sells personal and business checks, check-
related products and services, stored value gift cards and customer loyalty, retention and fraud monitoring/protection
services to financial institutions. Direct Checks sells personal and business checks and related products and services
directly to consumers through direct response marketing and the internet, All three segments operate primarily in the
United States. Small Business Services also has operations in Canada. No single customer accounted for more than 10%
of revenue in 2007, 2006 or 2005.

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in Note 1. We atlocate corporate costs to
our business segments, including costs of our executive management, human resources, supply chain, finance,
information technology and legal functions. Generally, where costs incurred are directly attributable to a business
segment, primarily within the areas of information technology, supply chain and finance, those costs are reported in that
segment’s results. Due to our shared services approach to many of our functions, certain costs are not directly
atiributable to a business segment. These costs are allocated to our business segments based on segment revenue, as
revenue is a measure of the relative size and magnitude of each segment and indicates the level of corporate shared
services consumed by each segment. Corporate asset balances are not allocated to the segments. Depreciation and
amortization expense related to corporate assets which was allocated to the segments was $31.9 million in 2007, $18.9
million in 2006 and $14.7 million in 2005. Corporate assets consist primarily of property, plant and equipment, internal-
use software, inventories and supplies related to our corporate shared services functions of manufacturing, information
technology and real estate. Additionally, corporate assets include long-term investments and deferred income taxes,

Effective January 1, 2007, we reclassified as corporate assets the property, plant and equipment, internal-use
software, inventories and supplies related to our corporate shared services functions of manufacturing, information
technology and real estate. These assets had previously been managed as business segment assets and were reported
within our business segments. Becanse we realigned our organization and implemented a shared services approach for
most functions, these assets are now managed as corporate assets which we do not allocate to our business segments.
Asset and capital expenditure information for prior periods has been recast to reflect this change.

Upen the acquisition of NEBS in June 2004, we did not begin allocating corporate costs to the NEBS portion of
Small Business Services, as NEBS continued to utilize its legacy systems and organizations as we developed and
implemented plans for the integration of the businesses. On April 1, 2005, NEBS implemented certain of our corporate
information systems and began utilizing most of our corporate shared services functions. As such, we began allocating
corporate costs to the NEBS portion of the Small Business Services segment for those corporate functions being utilized
by the NEBS business. As of January |, 2006, NEBS was fully integrated into all of our corporate {unctions and we
began allocating our corporate costs to all of our business segments, based on segment revenue.

We are an integrated enterprise, characterized by substantial intersegment cooperation, cost allocations and the

sharing of assets. Therefore, we do not represent that these segments, if operated independently, would report the
operating income and other financial information shown,
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The following is our segment information as of and for the years ended December 31:

Reportable business segments

Small
Business  Financial Direct :

{in thousands) Services Services Checks Corporate Consolidated
Revenue from external customers:  2007... $§ 939,139 § 457,292 § 209,936 $ — % 1,606,367 !
2006.... 969,809 458,118 211,727 — 1,639,654 -

2005.... 932,286 537,525 246,483 — 1,716,294

Operating income: 2007 ... 130,462 74,305 62,778 — 267,545

2006.... 86,764 46,613 64,922 — 198,299

2005.... 105,118 119,677 80,044 — 304,839

Depreciation and amortization 2007 ... 53,161 9,936 4,794 — 67,891

expense: 2006.... 63,214 14,548 7,108 —_ 84,870

2005.... 72,165 27,708 8,475 — 108,348

Asset impairment loss: 2007 .... — — — — —_

2006.... 18,285 26,413 -— — 44,698

2005.... — — — — —

Total assets: 2007 .... 750,483 66,475 102,452 291,345 1,210,755

2006.... 784,815 90,075 105,041 287,201 1,267,132

2005.... 804,591 112,977 107,047 401,260 1,425,875

Capital asset purchases: 2007 .... — — — 32,328 32,328

2006.... —_ — — 41,324 41,324

2005.... — — — 55,653 55,653

During 2007, we modified the manner in which we classify our revenue by product type. The change in
classification was primarily comprised of removing certain deposit slip items from accessories and promotional
products and including them in other printed products, including forms. Prior year information has been recast to

reflect the current year classification. Revenue by product was as follows:

(in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Checks and related services......ooovvivcevisiineae 1,045,008 § 1,041,523 $ 1,110,695
Other printed products, including forms....... 380,632 375,025 377,756
Accessories and promotional products.......... 129,169 134,618 144,693
Packaging supplies and other........................ 51,558 88,488 83,150
TOtal TEVENUE ...t 1,606,367 $ 1,639,654 $ 1,716,294
The following information is based on the geographic locations of our subsidiaries:
{in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Revenue from external customers:
United States.......cccooovver v vcnveccceccree e, 1,534,804 § 1,570,824 $ 1,656,633
Canada.......oevevevieiiiiiiiiiies e, 71,563 68,830 59,661
Total reVenue . ..ccoovveeeie e 1,606,367 § 1,639,654 $ 1,716,294
Long-lived assets:
United Sta1es......coveevrivieicenieninenceniensrennne. 1,005,145 § 1,052,257 $ 1,195,112
Foreign, primarily Canada.........c..cccocoeoe. 13,665 12,758 16,825
Total long-lived assets............................ 1,018810 % 1,065,015 $ 1,211,937
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DELUXE CORPORATION

SUMMARIZED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

2007 Quarter Ended

March 31!/ June 30 September 30  December 31

REVEIUE ..ottt $ 403834 $ 399871 $ 388,636 $ 414,026

Gross profit......ccocvevciricricinnnnen, 254,517 257,077 245,138 263,074

INEL INCOIMIE. ..ottt eeeeeneeeeeen 35,228 35975 32,160 40,152

Earnings per share:

Basic oo e 0.69 0.70 0.62 0.78

Diluted.......cooovveeieereeeee e 0.68 0.69 0.62 0.77

Cash dividends per share........c.ccooeeeeee. 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25

2006 Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 September 30®  December 31°

Revenue ... . $ 411,430 $ 402,959 § 398,087 $ 427,178

Gross profit....cee e 255454 251,291 248,358 271,272

Net income (loss) 24,668 (2,367) 31,163 47,490
Earnings (loss) per share:

Basic oo 0.49 (0.05) 0.61 0.93

Dilted ..o e 0.48 (0.05) : 0.61 ©092

Cash dividends per share...................... . 0.40 0.40 0.25 0.25

12007 first quarter résults include income tax expense of $1.2 million for discrete itemns, primarily the non-deductible write-off
of goodwill related to the sale of our industrial packaging preduct line, partially offset by the final settlement of an uncertain
tax position.

2007 third quarter results include a $1.3 million reduction in income tax expense for discrete items, primarily the
reconciliation of our 2006 federal income tax return to our 2006 income tax provision. Results also include net pre-tax
restructuring accruals of $2.1 million related to various employee reductions.

\

2007 fourth quarter results include a $1.8 million reduction in income tax expense for discrete items, primarily adjustments to
receivables related to prior year income tax returns. Results also include net pre-tax restructuring accruals of $2.7 million
related to various employee reductions.

“ 2006 second quarter results include a pre-tax asset impairment loss of $44.7 million related to the abandonment of a software
project.

. 2006 third quarter results include a $2.9 million reduction in income tax expense related to changes in our legal entity
structure and the settlement of prior period tax audits. Results also include net pre-tax restructuring accruals of $2.1 million
related to various employee reductions.

¥ 2006 fourth quarter results include a pre-tax gain of $11.0 million from the termination of an underperforming outsourced

payroll services contract, a $5.0 million reduction in income tax expense related to one-time deferred tax adjustments, as well
as net pre-tax restructuring accruals of $8.4 million related to various employee reductions.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures — As of the end of the period covered by this report (the Evaluation Date),
we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of management, including the Chief
Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended {the 1934
Act)). Based upon that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of the
Evaluation Date, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective to ensure that information required to be
disclosed in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is (i) recorded, processed, summarized and
reported within the time periods specified in applicable rules and forms, and (ii) accumulated and communicated to our
management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, to allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosure.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting — There were nio changes in our internal control over financial
reporting identified in connection with our evaluation during the quarter ended December 31, 2007, which have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting — Management of Deluxe Corporation is
responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. Internal control over
financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles in the United States of America.

i

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements, Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deterioraie,

Management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007.
In making this assessment, it used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSQO) in Internal Control — Integrated Framework, Based on this assessment we have concluded that, as
of December 31, 2007, our internal control over financial reporting was effective based on those criteria. The attestation
report on our internal control over financial reporting issued by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP appears in ltem 8 of this
report.

Item 9B. Other Information.

None,
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PART 111

Except where otherwise noted, the information required by Items 10 through 14 is incorporated by reference
from our definitive proxy statement, to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days of our
fiscal year-end, with the exception of the executive officers section of ltem 10, which is included in Part I, Item i of
this report.

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

See Part [, Item 1 of this report “Executive Officers of the Registrant.” The sections of the proxy statement
entitied *“Item 1: Election of Directors,” *“Board Structure and Governance—Audit Committee Expertise; Comptaint-
Handling Procedures,” “Board Structure and Governance—Meetings and Committees of the Board of Directors—
Audit Committee,” “Stock Ownership and Reporting—Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance”
and “Board Structure and Governance—Code of Ethics and Business Conduct” are incorporated by reference to this
report.

The full text of our Code of Ethics and Business Conduct (Code of Ethics) is posted on the Investor Relations
page of our website at www.deluxe.com under the “Corporate Governance” caption. We intend 1o satisfy the
disclosure requirement under Item 5.05 of Form 8-K regarding an amendment to, or waiver from, a provision of the
Code of Ethics that applies to our principal executive officer, principat financial officer, principal accounting officer
or controller or persons performing similar functions by posting such information on our website at the address and
location specified above.

Item 11. Executive Compensation,

The sections of the proxy statement entitled “‘Compensation Committee Report,” “Executive Compensation,”
“Director Compensation” and *Board Structure and Governance—Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider
Participation” are incorporated by reference to this report.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters.

The section of the proxy statement entitled “Stock Ownership and Reporting—Security Ownership of
Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” is incorporated by reference to this report. The information
required pursuant to ltem 201(d) of Regulation 5-K is incorporated by reference to this report from the
section of the proxy statement entitled “Item 4: Approval of the 2008 Stock Incentive Plan—Equity
Compensation Plan Information.”

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

None of our directors or officers, nor any known person who beneficially owns, directly or indirectly, five
percent of our common stock, nor any member of the immediate family of any of the foregoing persons has any
material interest, direct or indirect, in any transaction since January 1, 2007 or in any presently proposed transaction
which, in either case, has affected or will materially affect us. None of our directors or officers is indebted to us.

The sections of the proxy entitled “Board Structure and Governance—Board Oversight and Director

Independence” and “Board Structure and Governance—Related Party Transaction Policy and Procedures” are
incorporated by reference to this report.
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Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

The sections of the proxy statement entitled “Fiscal Year 2007 Audit and Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm—Fees Paid to Registered Public Accounting Firm” and “Fiscal Year 2007 Audit and Independent
i Registered Public Accounting Firm—Policy on Audit Committee Pre-Approval of Accounting Firm Fees and
Services” are incorporated by reference to this report. '

1.1

2.1

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

Exhibit
Number

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.

(a) Financial Statements and Schedules

(b) Exhibit Listing

The following exhibits are filed as part of or are incorporated in this report by reference:

Description

Purchase Agreement, dated September 28, 2004, by and among us and J.P.
Morgan Securities Inc. and Wachovia Capital Markets, LLC, as
representatives of the several initial purchasers listed in Schedule 1 of the
Purchase Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.1 to the Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on October 4, 2004)

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of May 17, 2004, by and among us,
Hudson Acquisition Corporation and New England Business Service, Inc.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit (d)(1) to the Deluxe Corporation
Schedule TO-T filed with the Commission on May 25, 2004)

Articles of Incorporation (incorporated by reference to the Annual Report on
Form 10-X for the year ended December 31, 1990}

Bylaws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2006)

Amended and Restated Rights Agreement, dated as of December 20, 200_6, by
and between us and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Rights Agent,
which includes as Exhibit A thereto, the Form of Rights Certificate
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K
filed with the Commission on December 21, 2006)

First Supplemental Indenture dated as of December 4, 2002, by and between
us and Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, N.A. (formerly, Norwest Bank
Minnesota, National Association), as trustee {incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.1 to the Form 8-K filed with the Commissien on December 5, 2002)

The financial statements are set forth under Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Financial statement
schedules have been omitted since they are either not required or not applicable, or the required information is shown
in the consolidated financial statements or notes.

Method of
Filing
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4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

Indenture, dated as of April 30, 2003, by and between us and Wells Fargo
Bank Minnesota, N.A. (formerly Norwest Bank Minnesota, National
Association), as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.8 to the
Registration Statement on Form S-3 (Registration No. 333-104858) filed with
the Commission on April 30, 2003)

Form of Officer’s Certificate and Company Order authorizing the 2014 Notes,
series B (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.9 to the Registration
Statermnent on Form S-4 (Registration No. 333-120381) filed with the
Commission on November 12, 2004)

Specimen of 5 1/8% notes due 2014, series B (incerporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.10 to the Registration Statemeni on Form S-4 (Registration No. 333-
120381) filed with the Commission on November 12, 2004)

Indenture, dated as of May 14, 2007, by and between us and the The Bank of
New York Trust Company, N.A., as trustee (including form of 7.375% Senior
Notes due 2015) {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on May 15, 2007)

Registration Rights Agreement, dated May 14, 2007, by and between us and
J.P. Morgan Securities Inc., as representative of the several initial purchasers
listed in Schedule 1 to the Purchase Agreement related to the 7.375% Senior
Notes due 2015 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on May 15, 2007)

Specimen of 7.375% Senior Notes due 2015 (included in Exhibit 4.6)

Deluxe Corporation 2004 Annual Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June
30, 2004)**

Deluxe Corporation 2000 Stock Incentive Plan, as Amended (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 2002)**

Annex [ to the Deluxe Corporaticn 2000 Stock Incentive Plan, Non-employee
Director Stock and Deferral Plan, as Amended (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December
31, 2006)**

Amended and Restated 2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2001 )**

Deluxe Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan {2001 Restatement)
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 200} )**

First Amendment of the Deluxe Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan
(2001 Restatement) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4,3 to the Form 5-8
filed January 7, 2002)**
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10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

Second Amendment of the Deluxe Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan
(2001 Restatement) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002)**

Third Amendment of the Deluxe Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan
(2001 Restatement) {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005)**

Deluxe Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan Trust (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Form S-8 filed January 7, 2002)**

Deluxe Corporation Executive Deferred Compensation Plan for Employee
Retention and Other Eligible Arrangements {incorporated by reference 1o
Exhibit 10.24 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
June 30, 2000)**

Deluxe Corporation Supplemental Benefit Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit (10)(B) to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1995)**

First Amendment to the Deluxe Corporation Supplemental Benefit Plan (2001
Restatement) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the. year ended December 31, 2001)**

Description of modification to the Deluxe Corporation Non-Employee
Director Retirement and Deferred Compensation Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 1997)**

Description of Non-employee Director Compensation Arrangements, updated
Janvary 1, 2008%*

Form of Severance Agreement entered into between Deluxe and the following
executive officers: Anthony Scarfone, Luann Widener, Terry Peterson,
Leanne Branham, Mike Degeneffe, Richard Greene, Lynn Koldenhoven and
Jeff Stoner (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 10 the Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000)**

Form of Executive Retention Agreement entered into between Deluxe and the
following executive officers: Anthony Scarfone, Luann Widener, Mike
Degeneffe, Richard Greene and Jeff Stoner (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.19 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2000)**

Form of Executive Retention Agreement between Deluxe and Lee Schram
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K
filed with the Commission on Apri! 17, 2006)**

Form of Executive Retention Agreement, dated as of August 8, 2007, by and
between Deluxe and Lee J. Schram (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1
to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on August 10,
2007)**

Filed
herewith

*

96




[0.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

Form of Executive Retention Agreement, dated as of August 8, 2007, by and
between Deluxe and each Senior Vice President (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 99.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on
August 10, 2007)**

Form of Executive Retention Agreement, dated as of August 8, 2007, by and

between Deluxe and each of three Vice Presidents (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 99.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission
on August 10, 2007)**

Form of Agreement for Awards Payable in Restricted Stock Units
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K
filed with the Commission on January 28, 2005)** ‘

Form of Non-employee Director Non-qualified Stock Option Agreement
{incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the Annual Report on Form 10-
K for the year ended December 31, 2004)%%

Form of Non-employee Director Restricted Stock Award Agreement
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to the Annual Report on Form 10-
K for the year ended December 31, 2004)%*

Form of Agreement as to Award of Restricted Common Stock (Non-
Employee Director Grants) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on Qctober 27,
2006)*+*

Form of Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Award Agreement (ver.
4/07) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Report on
Form 10Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2007)**

Form of Non-qualified Stock Option Agreement (as amended February 2006)
{(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Repert on Form 8-K
filed with the Commission on February 21, 2006)**

Form of Non-qualified Stock Option Agreement (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.21 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2004)**

Form of Performance Award Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.22 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2004)**

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (Two-Year Retention Term)
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Current Report on Form §-K
filed with the Commission on February 21, 2006)**

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.23 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2004)%*

Form of Performance Accelerated Restricted Stock Award Agreement (2006
grants) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on
Form 8-K filed with the Commission on February 21, 2006)*#*
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10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

12.1

21.1

231

24.1

311

31.2

32.1

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (version 2/07) {incorporated
by reference to exhibit 10.28 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2006)**

Form of Performance Accelerated Restricted Stock Award Agreement
(version 2/07) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.29 to the Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006)**
Employment Agreement dated as of April 10, 2006, between Deluxe and Lee
Schram (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Current Report on
Form 8-K filed with the Commission on April 17, 2006)**

Offer letter, dated as of September 15, 2006, between Deluxe and Richard S.
Greene (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2006)**

Statement re: Computation of Ratios

Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Power of Attorney
CEO Certification of Periodic Report pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

CFO Certification of Periodic Report pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002

CEO and CFO Certification of Periodic Report pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

*Incorporated by reference

**Denotes compensatory plan or management contract

Note to recipients of Form 10-K: Copies of exhibits will be furnished upon written request and payment of

reasonable expenses in furnishing such copies.

Filed
herewith

Filed
herewith

Filed
herewith

Filed
herewith

Filed
herewith

Filed
herewith

Furnished
herewith
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

DELUXE CORPORATION
Date: February 22, 2008 By: _/s/ Lee Schram

Lee Schram
Chief Executtve Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated on February 22, 2008.

Signature Title
By fs/Lee Schram Chief Executive Officer
Lee Schram {Principal Executive Officer)
By _fs/ Richard 8. Greene : Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
Richard S. Greene (Principal Financial Officer)
By _/s/ Terry D. Peterson Vice President, Investor Relations and Chief Accounting
Terry D. Peterson Officer

(Principal Accounting Officer)

*

Ronald C. Baldwin Director
*

Charles A. Haggerty Director
¥

Isaiah Harris, Jr. Director
* 4

Don J. McGrath Director
*

Cheryl Mayberry McKissack Director
*

Neil J. Metviner Director
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*
Stephen P. Nachtsheim Director

%

Mary Ann O’Dwyer Director

*
Martyn R. Redgrave Director

*By: fs/Lee Schram
Lee Schram
Attorney-in-Fact
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit No. Description

10.14 Description of Non-employee Director Compensation Arrangements,
updated January 1, 2008

12.1 Statement re: Computation of Ratios

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant

231 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

241 Power of Attorney

311 CEO Cenification of Periodic Report pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 CFO Certification of Periodic Report pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

321 CEQO and CFO Certification of Periodic Report pursuant to Section 906

of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
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VOTE BY INTERNET - www,proxyvote.com
iJse the Internet to transmit your voting instructions up until 11:59 BM. {CT)
on Aprit 29, 2008, Have your proxy card in hand when you access the web site
and fallow the instructions to obtain your records and to create an electronic
nELUXEc - voting instruction form.

DELUXE CORPORATION ELECTRONIC DELIVERY QF FUTURE SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATIONS

If you would like to reduce the costs incurred by Deluxe Corporation in maiting
3680 VICTORIA STREET NORTH praxy materials, you can consent to receiving all future proxy statements,
SHOREVIEW, MINNESOTA 55126-2966 proxy cards and annual reports electronically via e-mail or the Internet. To sign

up for electronic delivery, please follow the instructions above to vote using
the Internet and, when prompted, indicate that you agree to receive or
access shareholder communications electrgnically in future years.

VOTE 8Y PHONE - 1-800-560-1965

Use any touch-tone telephone to transmit your voting instructions up until
11:59 PM. (CT) on April 29, 2008, Have your proxy card in hand when you
call and then follow the instructions.

VOTE BY MAIL .
Mark, sign and date your proxy card and return it in the postage-paid
envelope we have provided or retum it to Deluxe Corporation, /o Broadridge,
51 Mercedes Way, Edgewood, NY 11717,

TO VOTE, MARK BLOCKS BELOW IN BLUE OR BLACK INK AS FOLLOWS: DELXE1 KEEP THIS PORTION FOR YOUR RECORDS
) THIS PROXY CARD IS VALID ONLY WHEN SIGNED AND DATED, ' DETACH AND RETURN THIS PORTION ONLY .
DELUXE CORPORATION For Withhold For All To withhoid authoﬁl_y to vote for any individual
All All Except  nominee(s), mark “For All Except” and write the

Vote On Directors number(s) of the nominee(s) on the lina below.

1. Election of Directors o 0 a
Nominees:
01} Ronald C. Baldwin 06) Neil J. Metviner
02) Charles A. Haggerty 07) Stephen P. Nachtsheim !
03) Isaiah Harris, Jr. 08) Mary Ann O'Dwyer
04) Don ). McGrath 09) Martyn R. Redgrave .

05) Cheryl E. Mayberry McKissack  10) Lee ). Schram '

For Against Abstaln

Vote On Proposals

2. Ratification of the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as Deluxe Corparation's independent registered public accounting firm for the year (] 0 0
ending December 31, 2008,

3. Approval of the Deluxe Corporation 2008 Annual Incentive Plan. ! U D U

4,  Approva! of the Deluxe Corporation 2008 Stock Incentive Plan. D D U

5. Take action on any other business that may properly come before the meeting and any adjournment thereof,

Signature [PLEASE SIGN WITHIN BOX] Date Signature (Joint Owners) Date




Important Notice Regarding Internet Availability of Proxy Materials for the Annual Meeting:
The Proxy Statement and Annual Report to Shareholders (including the Annual Report on Form-10K) are available
at www.proxyvote.com.

s —— — ——— —— i — ———— —— i — — — —— ——— . f— — e S — e — e m— e AR S S

Deluxe Corporation
This proxy is solicited on behalf of the Board of Directors.

I

|

| The undersigned appoints Stephen P. Nachtsheim, Lee J. Schram and Anthony C. Scarfone as proxies
| (the "Named Proxies"), each with the power to act alone and to appoint his substitute, and authorizes each of
| them to represent and to vote, as designated on the other side of this proxy card, all shares of common stock of
! Deluxe Corporation held of record by the undersigned on March 5, 2008, at the annual meeting of shareholders
to be held on April 30, 2008, and at any adjournment thereof.

This proxy, when properly executed, will be voted as designated on the other side. If no choice is
specified, this proxy will be voted "FOR" each of the nominees for the Board of Directors listed in
Item 1 on the other side and "FOR" Proposals 2 through 4. Also, by signing this proxy, you revoke all
prior proxies and authorize the above Named Proxies to vote in their discretion upon such other
business as may properly come before the meeting. Deluxe Corporation anticipates that no other
business will be conducted at the meeting. The undersigned hereby acknowledges receipt of the proxy
statement for the annual meeting of shareholders.




Celuxe Corporation

3680 Victoria Street N.
Shoreview, MN 55126-2966
P.O. Box 64235

St. Paul, MN 55164-0235
www.deluxe.com

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
TO BE HELD APRIL 30, 2008

To the Shareholders of Deluxe Corporation:

The 2008 annual meeting of shareholders will be held at the Deluxe Corporation headquarters
located at 3680 Victoria Street North, Shoreview, Minnesota on Wednesday, April 30, 2008, at 2:00 p.m.
Central Time for the following purposes:

1. To elect ten directors to hold office until the 2009 annual meeting of shareholders.

2. To consider and act upon a proposal to ratify the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
as our independent registered public accounting firm for the year ending December 31, 2008,

3. To consider and act upon a proposal to approve the Deluxe Corporation 2008 Annual Incentive
Plan so that Deluxe can treat payments under this plan as tax-deductible performance-based
compensation for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

4. To consider and act upon a proposal to approve the Deluxe Corporation 2008 Stock Incentive
Plan.

5. To take action on any other business that may properly come before the meeting and any
adjournment thereof.

Shareholders of record at the close of business on March 5, 2008, are entitled to vote at the
meeting and at any adjournment thereof.

This year, we are furnishing proxy materials to our shareholders over the Internet. This
process expedites the delivery of proxy materials and saves the company expense. In addition,
materials remain easily accessible to shareholders, and shareholders receive clear instructions
for requesting paper copies of these materials and voting.

We are mailing the Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials (“Internet Natice”) to
shareholders on or about March 17, 2008. The Internet Notice contains instructions for your use
of this new process, including how to access our Proxy Statement and Annual Report and how to
vote online. In addition, the Internet Notice contains instructions on how you may (i) receive a
paper copy of the Proxy Statement and Annual Report, if you received only an Internet Notice this
year, or (ii) elect to receive your Proxy Statement and Annual Report only over the Internet, if you
received them by mail this year.




It is important that your shares be represented at the Annual Meeting. Whether or not you
plan to attend the Annual Meeting in person, please return your vote as soon as possible to
ensure the presence of a quorum and save Deluxe further expense. You may vote your shares
over the Internet. If you received a paper copy of the proxy card by mail, you may sign, date and
mail the proxy card in the envelope provided. Instructions regarding the methods of voting are
contained in the Internet Notice and in the Proxy Statement. Voting over the Internet or by mailing
a proxy card will not limit your right to vote in person or to attend the Annual Meeting.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Anthony C. Scarfone
Secretary

March 10, 2008




DELUXE CORPORATION

3680 Victoria Street N., Shoreview, Minnesota 55126-2966

Proxy Statement
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INFORMATION CONCERNING SOLICITATION AND VOTING

What is the purpose of the meeting?
At our annual meeting, shareholders will act on the matters disclosed in the Notice of Annual Meeting of
Shareholders that preceded this proxy statement. The four proposals scheduled to be voted on at the meeting are {o:

» Elect ten directors;

» Ratify the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as Deluxe’s independent registered public accounting
firm; '

+ Approve the Annual Incentive Plan; and
* Approve the Stock Incentive Plan.

We will also consider any other business that may be properly presented at the meeting (although we are not
expecting any other matters to be presented), and management will report on Deluxe’s performance during the last fiscal
year and respond o questions from shareholders.

The Board of Directors of Deluxe is asking you to vote on the proposed items of business.

How does the Board recommend that | vote?
The Board of Directors recommends a vote:

o FOR all of the nominees for director;

» FOR the ratification of the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP a$ Deluxe’s independent registered
public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2008;

¢« FOR approval of the Annual Incentive Plan; and '
» FOR approval of the Stock Incentive Plan,

Who is entitled to vote at the meeting?

The Board has set March 5, 2008, as the record date for the meeting. If you were a shareholder of record at the
close of business on March 5, 2008, you are entitled to vote at the meeting. You have one vote for each share of common
stock you held on the record date.

As of the record date, 51,524,764 shares of Deluxe common stock were outstanding. Deluxe does not have any
other class of capital stock outstanding.

How many shares must be present to hold the meeting?

A quorum is necessary to hold the meeting and conduct business. The presence of sharehoiders who can direct the
vote (with respect to the election of directors) of at least a majority of the outstanding shares of common stock as of the
record date is considered a quorum. A shareholder is counted present at the meeting if;

« the shareholder is present and votes in person at the meeting; or
» the shareholder has properly submitted a proxy or voted by telephone or through the Internet.

What is the difference between a shareholder of record and a “street name” holder?
If your shares are registered directly in your name, you are considered the shareholder of record with respect to
those shares.

If your shares are held in a stock brokerage account or by a bank or other nominee, you are still considered the
beneficial owner of the shares, but your shares are held in “street name”.

How do | vote my shares? ' ‘
We are mailing the Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials (fhe “internet Notice™) to shareholders of record

on or about March 17, 2008. You will not receive a printed copy of the proxy materials unless you request to receive these

materials in hard copy by following the instructions provided in the Internet Notice. Instead, the Internet Notice will instruct
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you how you may access and review all of the important information contained in the proxy materials. The Internet Notice
also instructs you how you may submit your proxy via the Internet. If you received an Internet Notice by mail and would like
to receive a printed copy of our proxy materials, you should follow the instructions for requesting such materials included in
the Internet Notice.

Via the Internet — You can simplify your voting by voting your shares via the Internet as instructed in the Internet
Notice. The Internet procedures are designed to authenticate your identity to allow you to vote your shares and confirm that
your instructions have been property recorded.

internet voting facilities for shareholders of record are available 24 hours a day and will close at 11:59 p.m. {CT) on
April 29, 2008. You may access this Proxy Statement and related materials by going to http://www.investoreconnect.com
and entering the control number as shown on your internet Notice. You will then be directed to select a link to
www.proxyvote.com where you will be able to vote on the proposals presented here.

. By Mail — Shareholders who receive a paper proxy card may elect to vote by mail and should complete, sign and
date their proxy card and mail it in the pre-addressed envelope that accompanies the delivery of paper proxy cards. Proxy
cards submitted by mail must be received by the time of the Annual Meeting in order for your shares to be voted.
Shareholders who hold shares beneficially in street name may vote by mail by requesting a paper proxy card according to the
instructions contained in the Internet Notice received from your broker or other agent, and then completing, signing and
dating the voting instructions card provided by the brokers or other agents and mailing it in the pre-addressed envelope
provided.

By Telephone — Shareholders may elect to vote over the telephone by calling 800-690-6903 (toll-free). The
telephone voting procedures have been set up for your convenience. The procedures have been designed to verify your
identity, to allow you to give voting instructions and to confirm that those instructions have been recorded properly.

What does it mean if | receive more than one Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials?

It means you hold shares registered in more than one account. To ensure that all of your shares are voted, if you
vote by telephone or through the Internet, vote once for each internet Notice you receive. If you wish to consolidate your
accounts, please contact our stock transfer agent, Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., at P 0. Box 64854, St. Paul, Minnesota 55164 or
by telephone at 800-468-9716 (toll-free).

You may also receive a “voting instructions” card which looks very similar to a proxy card. Voting instructions are
prepared by brokers, banks or other nominees for shareholders who hold shares in street name.

Can | vote my shares in person at the meeting?

Yes. If you are a shareholder of record, you may vote your shares at the meeting by completing a ballot at the
meeting. However, even if you currently plan to attend the meeting, we recommend that you submit your proxy ahead of time
so that your vote will be counted if, for whatever reason, you later decide not to attend the meeting.

If you hold your shares in street name, you may vote your shares in person at the meeting only if you obtain a signed
proxy from your broker, bank or other nominee giving you the right to vote such shares at the meeting.

What vote is required to elect directors?
In accordance with Minnesota law, directors are elected by a plurality of votes cast. This means that the ten
nominees receiving the highest number of votes will be elected, provided that a quorum is present at the mesting.

What vote is required on proposals other than the election of directors?

With respect to each item of business to be voted on at the meeting other than the election of directors, the
affirmative vote of a majority of the shares present and entitled to vote with respect to that item is required for the approval of
the item (provided that the total number of shares voted in favor of the proposai constitutes more than 25 percent of the
outstanding shares). '

How are votes counted?
Shareholders may either vote “FOR” or “WITHHOLD” authority to vote for the nominees for the Board of Directors.
Shareholders may also vote “FOR,"” “AGAINST” or “ABSTAIN" on the other proposals.

If you vote WITHHOLD or ABSTAIN, your shares will be counted as present at the meeting for the purposes of
determining a quorum.
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If you WITHHOLD authority to vote for one or more of the directors, this has the same effect as a vote against the
director or directors for which you WITHHOLD your authority. If you ABSTAIN from voting on the proposals, your abstention
has the same effect as a vote against those proposals.

If you hold your shares in street name and do not provide voting instructions to your broker, your shares will be
counted as present at the meeting for purpose of determining a quorum. Your shares may he voted on ltem 1: Election of
Directors and Item 2: Ratification of Appointment of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, at the discretion of your
broker. Your shares will not be voted on any proposal for which your broker does not have discretionary authority to vote, in
this case Item 3: Approval of the Annual incentive Plan and Item 4: Approval of the Stock Incentive Plan. As a result, please
be sure to provide instructions to your broker so your shares can be voted on ltems 3 and 4.

What if | do not specify how | want my shares voted?

If you vote your shares directly (as opposed to voting through a broker or other intermediary) and do not specify on
your proxy card {or when giving your proxy by telephone or via the Internet) how you want to vote your shares, we will vote
them:

+ FOR the election of all of the nominees for director;

+ FOR the ratification of the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as Deluxe’s independent registered
public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2008;

» FOR the approval of the Annual Incentive Plan; and
* FOR the approval of the Stock Incentive Plan.

Can | change my vote?
Yes. You may change your vote and revoke your proxy at any time before it is voted at the meeting in any of the
following ways:

» by sending a written notice of revocation to Deluxe's Corporate Secretary,

« by submitting another properly signed proxy card at a later date to the Corporate Secretary,
» by submitting another proxy by telephone or through the Internet at a later date; or

s by voting in person at the meeting.

Who pays the-cost of proxy preparation and solicitation?

Deluxe pays for the cost of proxy preparation and solicitation, including the charges and expenses of brokerage firms
or other nominees for forwarding proxy materials to beneficial owners. We have retained Georgeson Shareholder
Communications, Inc., a proxy solicitation firm, to assist in the solicitation of proxies for a fee of approximately $7,500, plus
associated costs and expenses.

We are soliciting proxies primarily by use of the Internet. In addition, proxies may be solicited by mail, telephone or
facsimile, or personally by directors, officers and regular employees of Deluxe. These individuals receive no additional
compensation beyond their regular sataries for these services.

STOCK OWNERSHIP AND REPORTING

Director and Executive Officer Ownership Guidelines

The Board has established stock ownership guidelines for directors and executive officers. These guidelines set
ownership targets for each director and officer, with the expectation that the target be achieved within five years of the later of
the date the ownership guidelines were implemented or the individual first became a director or officer, whichever is
applicable. The Board also maintains guidelines restricting a director's or officer's ability to sell shares received upon the
exercise of options or vesting of other stock-based awards until they have achieved their ownership targets. The ownership
target for non-employee directors is shares having a value of at least five times the current Board retainer. Executive officers
have targets based on a multiple of their annual base salary. The ownership target for the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ") is
five times his annual base salary, the target for the Company’s Senior Vice Presidents is two times their annual base salary,
and the target for the Company’s Vice Presidents who are members of the Company’s Executive Leadership Team is one
and one-half times their annual base salary.




Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

The following table shows, as of March 5, 2008 (unless otherwise noted), the number of shares of common stock
beneficially owned by (1) each person who is known by Deluxe to beneficially ewn more than five percent of Deluxe's
outstanding common stock, (2) each director and nominee far director of Deluxe, (3) each executive officer named in the
Summary Compensation Table that appears on page 28 in this proxy statement {(each, a “Named Executive Officer”), and (4)
all of the current directors, nominees and executive officers of Deluxe as a group. Except as otherwise indicated, the
shareholders listed in the table have sole voting and investment powers with respect to the common stock owned by them.

Amount and
Nature of
Beneficial
Name of Beneficial Owner Ownership Percent of Class

Barclays ' 6,541,900 12.41%
State Street Bank and Trust Co. ? 4,565,974 8.86
Lee J. Schram * 315,966 *
Richard S. Greene * 41,379 *

* |Anthony C. Scarfone ° 164,020 *
Luann E. Widener ® 89,039 *
Terry D. Peterson ’ 26,406} .
Renald C. Baldwin 1,000 *
iCharles A. Haggerty ° 48,179 *
saiah Harris, Jr. ° 9,494 *
Don J. McGrath ™° 1,955 *
Cheryl E. Mayberry McKissack " 15,382 *
Neil J. Metviner - *
Stephen P. Nachtsheim ™ 30,008, *
Mary Ann O’'Dwyer 16,676 .
Martyn R. Redgrave " 22,225 *
All directors, nominees and executive officers
as a group (18 persons) *° 867,181 1.67

* Less than 1 percent.

1 Based on a Schedule 13G filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 10, 2008, reporting beneficial
ownership as of December 31, 2007 by Barclays Global Investors, NA., (4,387,258 shares, 3,874,436 shares to which it
holds sole voting power), Barclays Global Fund Advisors (1,757,664 shares), Barclays Global Investors, Ltd. (290,750
shares, 248,649 shares to which it holds sole voting power), Barclays Global Investors Japan Limited (80,853 shares),
and Barclays Global Investors Canada Limited {15,375 shares). These entities report their ownership as a group and
are, collectively, the beneficial owners of 6,541,900 shares of common stock.

2 Based on a Schedule 13G filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 12, 2008, reporting
beneficial ownership as of December 31, 2007 by State Street Bank and Trust Company.
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3 Includes 185,733 shares receivable upon the exercise of options that will become exercisable within 60 days, and
98,838 shares of restricted stock.

4 Includes 19,300 shares receivable upon the exercise of options that will become exercisable within 60 days, and 17,687
shares of restricted stock.

5 Includes 127,925 shares receivable upon the exercise of options that are currently exercisable or will become
exercisable within 60 days, and 14,130 shares of restricted stock.

6 Includes 54,903 shares receivable upan the exercise of options that are currently exercisable or will become exercisable
within 60 days, and 16,350 shares of restricted stock.

7 Includes 14,484 shares receivable upon the exercise of options that are currently exercisable or will become exercisable
within 60 days, and 5,630 shares of restricted stock.

8 Includes 4,000 shares receivable upon the exercise of options that are currently exercisable or will become exercisable
within 60 days, 1,320 shares of restricted stock, 32,727 shares held by the Haggerty Family Trust, and 7,861 restricted
- stock units recelved in lieu of director's fees pursuant to the deferral option under the Deluxe Corporation Non-Employee
Director Stock and Deferral Plan (the “Director Plan™).

9 Includes 1,000 shares receivable upon the exercise of options that are currently exercisable or will become exercisable
within 60 days, 1,320 shares of restricted stock, and 3,903 restricted stock units received in lieu of director’s fees
pursuant to the deferral option under the Director Plan.

10 Includes 955 restricted stock units received in lieu of director's fees pursuant to the deferral option under the Director
Plan,

11 Includes 4,000 shares receivable upon the exercise of options that are currently exercisable or will become exercisable
within 60 days, and 1,320 shares of restricted stock.

12 Inciudes 4,000 shares receivable upon the exercise of options that are currently exercisable or will become exercisable
within 60 days, 1,320 shares of restricted stock, 2,000 shares held by the Nachtsheim Family Trust and 17,029
restricted stock units received in lieu of director's fees pursuant to the deferral option under the Director Plan,

13 Includes 2,000 shares receivable upon the exercise of options that are currently exercisable or will become exercisable
within 60 days, 1,320 shares of restricted stock, and 10,085 restricted stock units received in lieu of director's fees
pursuant to the deferral option under the Director Plan.

14 Includes 4,000 shares receivable upon the exercise of options that are currently exercisable or will become exercisable
within 60 days, 1,320 shares of restricted stock, and 11,634 restricted stock units received in lieu of director's fees
pursuant to the deferral opticn under the Director Plan.

15 Includes 477,031 shares receivable upon the exercise of options that are currently exercisable or will become
exercisable within 60 days, 182,281 shares of restricted stock, and 51,467 restricted stock units received in lieu of
directors’ fees pursuant to the deferral option under the Director Plan.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), and related regulations,
require Deluxe's directors and executive officers, and any persans holding more than ten percent of Deluxe’s common stock
{collectively, “Reporting Persons”), to report their initial ownership of Deluxe securities and any subsequent changes in that
ownership to the Securities and Exchange Commission. Based on our review of the reports filed and written representations
submitted by the Reporting Persons, we believe that all Reporting Persons timely filed all required Section 16{a) reports for
the most recent fiscal year.

ITEM 1: ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Nominees for Election

There are currently ten individuals serving on the Board of Directors. As of the date of the meeting the Board has set
the size of the Board at ten directors and recommends that the ten individuals presented on the following pages be elected to
serve on the Board until the 2009 annual meeting of shareholders. All of the nominees are current directors. In addition, with
the exception of Mr. Schram, who serves as Deluxe's CEO and therefore cannot be deemed independent, all nominees have
been determined by the Board to meet the independence standards of the New York Stock Exchange {see the discussion of
Director Independence in the "BOARD STRUCTURE AND GOVERNANCE?” section of this proxy statement).
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Each of the ten individuals listed has consented to being named as a nominee in this proxy statement and has
indicated a willingness to serve if elected. However, if any nominee becomes unable to serve hefore the election, the shares

represented by proxies may be voted for a substitute designated by the Board, unless a contrary instruction is indicated on
the proxy.

RONALD C. BALDWIN Age 61
Director Since June 2007

Vice Chairman (Retired}, Huntington Bancshares Inc.

Mr. Baldwin served as Vice Chairman of Huntington Bancshares Inc. from April
2001 until his retirement in December 2006. Huntington is a regional bank
holding company, and Mr. Baldwin was responsible for overseeing Huntington's
regional banking line of business, which provided both commercial and retail
financial products and services through nearly 400 regional banking offices. Mr.
Baldwin is a 35-year veteran of the banking and financial services industry.

| CHARLES A. HAGGERTY Age 66
. Director Since December 2000

Chairman (Retired), Western Digital Corporation

Mr. Haggerty was Chairman of the Board of Western Digital Corporation from
July 1993 until his retirement in June 2000. Mr. Haggerty was also Chief
Executive Officer of Western Digital from July 1993 to January 2000, and was
President from June 1992 to July 1993. Western Digital is a manufacturer of
hard disk drives. Mr. Haggerty is also a director of Beckman Coulter, Inc.,
Pentair, Inc., Imation Corp and LS| Corporation.

ISAIAH HARRIS, JR. Age 55
Director Since August 2004

President (Retired), BellSouth Advertising & Publishing Group

Prior to the December 29, 2006, acquisition of BellSouth Corporation (“BellSouth”) by
AT&T Corp., Mr. Harris served as President of BellSouth Advertising & Publishing Group
{*A&P"), a subsidiary of BellSouth, a position he assumed in December 2004. A&P was
responsibie for the marketing and publishing of The Real Yellow Pages® from BellSouth,
and included BeliSouth Advertising & Publishing Corporation, The Berry Company,
Stevens Graphics and IntelliVentures. Mr. Harris also was responsibte for the
corporation’s Asian and South American wireless telecommunications operations.
Effective February 7, 2007, Mr. Harris resigned from AT&T. He joined BellSouth in 1997,
and during his tenure there held various executive positions, including President of
BellSouth Enterprises from January to December 2004, President of Consumer Services
from September 2000 to December 2003, and Vice President of Finance from January to
September 2000. Mr. Harris also serves as a director of CIGNA Corporation.
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DON J. McGRATH Age 59
Director Since June 2007

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, BancWest Corporation

BancWaest is a $70 billion bank holding company serving nearly four million
households and businesses, and is a wholly-owned subsidiary of BNP Paribas,
a European leader in banking and financial services. Mr. McGrath has served
as BancWaest's Chairman and CEQ since January 2005 and as a director since
1988. Prior to becoming CEQ, he served as BancWest's President and Chief
Operating Officer, from November 1998 to December 2004. Mr. McGrath
served as CEO of Bank of the West from 1996 through the end of 2007 and
currently serves as Chairman of the Bank of the West and Vice Chairman of
First Hawaiian Bank, both of which are subsidiaries of BancWest. In 2008, Mr.
McGrath received a Presidential appointment to the President’'s Councii on
Financial Literacy. He has nearly 40 years of experience in the banking and
financial services industry.

CHERYL E. MAYBERRY McKISSACK Age 52
Director Since December 2000

President and Chief Executive Officer, Nia Enterprises, LLC

Nia Enterprises, LLC is an interactive communications company for research
services and diversity marketing, which Ms. Mayberry McKissack founded in
2000. From November 1997 to November 2000, Ms. Mayberry McKissack
served as Senior Vice President and General Manager of worldwide sales and
marketing for Open Port Technology, Inc., a provider of Internet infrastructure  *
messaging solutions. Ms. Mayberry McKissack also serves as a director of
Private Bancorp, Inc.

NEIL J. METVINER Age 49
Director Since June 2007

Executive Vice President and President, Global Mailstream, Europe, Pitney Bowes, Inc.

Mr. Metviner joined Pitney Bowes in 2000, and maintains full oversight
responsibility for the company’'s European mailing operations. Serving over two
million customers worldwide — from the largest global enterprise to the smallest
home office — Pitney Bowes is a global mailstream technology company,
offering hardware, software and services to help companies optimize the flow of
physical and electronic mail, documents and packages across their operations.
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STEPHEN P. NACHTSHEIM Age 63
Director Since November 1995

Non-Executive Chairman of Deluxe and Vice President (Retired}, Intel Corperation

In November 2005, Mr. Nachtsheim was appointed Non-Executive Chairman of
the Board of Deluxe. Prior to that, he served as the Board's Lead Independent
Director, a role he had assumed in December 2003. Mr. Nachtsheim was a
Corporate Vice President of Intel Corporation, a designer and manufacturer of
integrated circuits, microprocessors and other electronic components, and the
co-director of Intel Capital from 1998 until his retirement in August 2001,

MARY ANN O'DWYER Age 52
Director Since October 2003

Senior Vice President - Finance and Operations and Chief Financial Officer, Wheels, Inc.

Ms. O'Dwyer joined Wheels, Inc. in 1991 and has been their Chief Financial
Officer since 1994. She also has held the position of Senior Vice President —
Finance and Operations since 2000. Wheels, Inc. is a major provider of
automotive fleet management services. Ms. O'Dwyer also serves as a director
of Wheels, Inc.

MARTYN R. REDGRAVE Age 55
Director Since August 2001

Executive Vice President and Chief Administrative Officer, Limited Brands, Inc.

_ Mr. Redgrave has been serving as Executive Vice President and Chief
Administrative Officer of Limited Brands, Inc., since March 2005, and also
served as Chief Financial Cfficer from January 2006 to May 2007. Limited
Brands is one of the world's leading personal care, beauty, intimate apparel and
apparel specialty retaiters. Prior to joining Limited Brands, Mr. Redgrave served
for eleven years as the Executive Vice President-Finance and Chief Financial
Officer of Carlson Companies, Inc., a worldwide provider of hospitality, travel
and marketing services.
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LEE J. SCHRAM Age 46
Director Since May 2006

Chief Executive Officer of Deluxe

Mr. Schram became CEO of Deluxe Corporation on May 1, 2006. Prior to
joining Deluxe, Mr. Schram served as senior vice president of NCR
Corporation’s Retail Solutions Division, with responsibilities for NCR's global
retail store automation and point-of-sale solutions business, including
development, engineering, marketing, sales, and support functions. Mr.
Schram began his professional career with NCR Corporation in 1983, where he
held a variety of positions of increasing responsibility that included both
domestic and international assignments. From September 2000 to January
2002, he served as chief financial officer for the Retail and Financial Group.
Thereafter, he became vice president and general manager of Payment and
Imaging Solutions in NCR's Financial Services Division, a position he held until
March 2003, when he became senior vice president of the Retail Solutions
Division.

The Board of Directors recommends that you vote FOR the election of each nominee named above.

BOARD STRUCTURE AND GOVERNANCE

Board Oversight and Director Independence

Deluxe’s business, property and affairs are managed under the general direction of cur Board of Directors. In
providing this oversight, the Board adheres to a set of Corporate Governance Guidelines designed to ensure that the Board
has access to relevant information, and is structured and operates in a manner allowing it to exercise independent business
judgment. The complete text of Deluxe’s Corporate Governance Guidelings is posted on the Investor Relations page of the
Investors section of cur website at www.deluxe.com under the “"Corporate Governance” caption.

A critical component of our corporate governance philosophy is that a majority of our directors, and preferably a
substantial majority, be individuals who meet strict standards of independence, meaning that they have no relationship with
Deluxe, directly or indirectly, that could impair their ability to make objective and informed judgments regarding all matters of
significance to Detuxe and its shareholders. The listing standards of the New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE") require that a
majority of our directors be independent, and that our Corporate Governance, Audit and Compensation Committees be
comprised entirely of independent directors. In order to be deemed independent, a director must be determined by the Board
to have no material relationship with Deluxe cther than as a director. In accordance with the NYSE listing standards, our
Board has adopted formal Director Independence Standards setting forth the specific criteria by which the independence of
our directors will be determined, including restrictions on the nature and extent of any affiliations directors and their
immediate family members may have with Deluxe, its independent registered public accounting firm, or any commercial or
not-for-profit entity with which Deluxe has a relationship. Consistent with regulations of the Securities and Exchange ~
Commission (“SEC”), our Director Independence Standards also prohibit Audit Committee members from accepting, directly
or indirectly, any consulting, advisory or other compensatory fee from Deluxe, other than in their capacity as Board or
committee members. The complete text of our Director Independence Standards is posted on the Investor Relations page of
the Investors section of our website at www.deluxe.com under the “Corporate Governance” caption.

The Board has determined that every director and nominee, with the exception of Mr. Schram, satisfies our Director
Independence Standards. The Board also has determined that every member of its Corporate Governance, Audit and
Compensaticn Committees is an independent director.
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Related Party Transaction Policy and Procedures

The Board maintains written procedures under which the Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for
reviewing potential or actual conflicts of interest, including any proposed related party transactions and interlocking
relationships between executives and Board members. The Committee will determine whether any such potential or actual
conflicts would require disclosure under securities laws, cause a director to be disqualified from being deemed independent,
or cause a transaction being considered by the Board to be voidable if the conflict were not disclosed. The Committee also
will consider whether the proposed transaction would result in a violation of any law or be inappropriate in light of the nature
and magnitude of any interest of the director or executive in the entity or transaction giving rise to the potential conflict.

The Committee may take those actions it deems necessary, with the assistance of any advisors it deems
appropriate, in considering potential conflicts of interest. While it is expected that in most instances the Committee can make

the necessary determination, where required by state law or due to the significance of the issue, the matter will be referred to
the full Board for resolution.

Meetings and Committees of the Board of Directors

There were seven meetings of the Board of Directors in 2007, six of which were regular meetings. Each director
attended, in person or by telephone, at least 75 percent of the aggregate of all meetings of the Board and its committees on
which he or she served during the year. It is our policy that directors attend our annual shareholder meetings and all such
directors are expected to be in attendance at this year's meeting. Seven of the eight directors then serving on the Board
attended last year's annual meeting of shareholders.

The Board of Directors has four standing committees:
s Audit Committee;
+ Compensation Committee;

» Corporate Governance Committee; and
¢ Finance Committee.

Each of the Board committees has a written charter, approved by the Board, establishing the authority and
responsibilities of the committee. Each committee's charter is posted on the Investor Relations page of the Investors section
of our website at www.deluxe.com under the “Corporate Governance” caption. A copy of each charter is available in print

free of charge to any shareholder who submits a request to; Corporate Secretary, Deluxe Corporation, 3680 Victoria Street
North, Shoreview, Minnesota 55126.

The following tables provide a summary of each committee’s responsibilities, the number of meetings held by each
committee during the last fiscal year and the names of the directors currently serving on the committee.

Audit Committee

Responsibilities Number of meetings in
« Appoints and replaces the independent registered public accounting firm, 2007: 10
subject to ratification by our shareholders, and oversees the work of the
independent registered public accounting firm. Directprs who serve on the
+ Pre-approves all auditing services and permitted non-audit services to be committee:
performed by the independent registered public accounting firm, including
related fees. Martyn R. Redgrave, Chair
¢ Reviews and discusses with management and the independent registered Ronald C. Baldwin

. . . . Isaiah Harris, Jr.
public accounting firm our annual audited financial statements and Ch:‘ryl E rlvllaybrerry McKissack

recommends to the Board whether the audited financial statements should Mary Ann O'Dwyer
be included in Deluxe's Annual Report on Form 10-K.
¢ Reviews and discusses with management and the independent registered
public accounting firm our quarterly financial statements and the
associated earnings news reteases.
» Reviews and discusses with management and the independent registered
public accounting firm significant reporting issues and judgments relating
to the preparation of our financial statements, including the adequacy of
internal controls.
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Reviews and discusses with the independent registered public accounting
firm our critical accounting policies and practices, alternative treatments of
financial information within generally accepted accounting principles that
have been discussed with management, and other material written
communications between the independent registered public accounting
firm and management.

Oversees the work of our internal auditors.

Reviews the effectiveness of Deluxe’s legal and ethical compliance
programs and maintains procedures for receiving, retaining and handling
complaints by employees regarding accounting, internat controls and
auditing matters.

Compensation Committee

Responsibilities

Develops cur executive compensation philosophy.

Evaluates and recommends incentive compensation plans for executive
officers and other key managers, and all equity-based compensation
plans, and oversees the administration of these and other employee
compensation and benefit plans.

Reviews and approves corporate goals and objectives relating to the
CEQ’s compensation, leads an annual evaluation of the CEQ's
performance in light of those goals and objectives, and determines, in
conjunction with the Board, the CEQ’s compensation based on this
evaluation.

Reviews and approves other executive officers’ compensation.
Establishes and certifies attainment of incentive compensation goals and
performance measurements applicable to our executive officers.

Corporate Governance Committee

Responsibilities —

Reviews and recommends the size and composition of the Board, including
the'mix of management and independent directors.

Establishes criteria and procedures for identifying and evaluating potential
Board candidates.

Reviews nominations received from the Board or shareholders, and
recommends candidates for election to the Board.

Establishes policies and procedures to ensure the effectiveness of the
Board, including poticies regarding term limits, review of qualifications of
incumbent directors, and conflicts of interest.

Establishes guidelines for conducting Board meetings.

¢ Oversees the annual assessment of the Board's performance.
s In consultation with the Compensation Committee, reviews and

recommends to the Board the amount and form of all compensation paid to
directors.

Recommends to the Board the size, composition and responsibilities of all
Board committees.

Reviews and recemmends candidates for key executive officer positions
and monitors management succession plans.

Develops and recommends corporate governance guidelines, policies and
procedures.
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Number of meetings in
2007: 6

Directors who serve on the
committee:

Charles A. Haggerty, Chair
Don J. McGrath

Neil J. Metviner

Stephen P. Nachtsheim

Number of meetings in
2007: 4

Directors who serve on the
committee:

Cheryl E. Mayberry McKissack,
Chair

Isaiah Harris, Jr.

Don J. McGrath

* Stephen P. Nachtsheim




Finance Committee

Responsibilities Number of meetings in
» Evaluates acquisitions, divestitures and capital projects in excess of $5 2007: 6
million, and reviews other material financial transactions outside the scope
of normal on-going business activity. Directors who serve on the
* Reviews and approves the Company’s annual financing plans, as well as - committee:
credit facilities maintained by the Company.
« Reviews and recommends policies concerning corporate finance matters, Mary Ann O'Dwyer, Chair
including capitalization, investment of assets and debt/equity guidelines. Ronald C. Baldwin
« Reviews and recommends dividend policy and approves declarations of Charles A. Haggerty

regular shareholder dividends. Neil J. Metviner

+ Reviews and makes recommendations to the Board regarding financial Martyn R. Redgrave
strategy and proposals concerning the sale, repurchase or split of Deluxe
securities.

Corporate Governance Principles

As indicated above, our Board has adopted a set of Corporate Governance Guidelines to assist it in carrying out its
oversight responsibilities. These Guidelines address a broad range of topics, including director qualifications, director
nomination processes, term limits, Board and committee structure and process, Board evaluations, director education, CEQ
evaluation, management succession planning and conflicts of interest. The complete text of the Guidelines is posted on the
Investor Relations page of the Investors section of our website at www.deluxe.com under the “Corporate Governance”
caption. A copy of the Guidelines is available in print free of charge to any shareholder who submits a request to: Corporate
Secretary, Deluxe Corporation, 3680 Victoria Street North, Shoreview, Minnesota 55126.

Code of Ethics and Business Conduct

Al of our directors and employees, including our CEQ, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Accounting Officer and other
executives, are required to comply with our Code of Ethics and Business Conduct (“Code of Ethics”) to help ensure that our
business is conducted in accordance with the highest legal and ethical standards. Qur Code of Ethics requires strict
adherence to the letter and spirit of all laws and regulations applicable to our business and covers all areas of professional
conduct, including customer relationships, respect for co-workers, conflicts of interest, insider trading, the integrity of our
financial recordkeeping and reporting, and the protection of our intellectual property and confidential information. Employees
are required to bring any violations and suspected violations of the Code of Ethics to Deluxe’s attention through management
or Deluxe's law department, or by using our confidential compliance hotline.

The full text of our Code of Ethics is posted on the Investor Relations page of the Investors section of our website at
www.deluxe.com under the “Corporate Governance” caption. The Code of Ethics is available in print free of charge to any .
shareholder who submits a request to: Corpaorate Secretary, Deluxe Corporation, 3680 Victoria Street North, Shoreview,
Minnesota 55126.

Board Composition and Qualifications

Our Corporate Governance Committee oversees the process for identifying and evaluating candidates for the Board
of Directors. Directors and nominees for director should have diverse backgrounds and possess the qualifications,
experience and knowledge to enable them to contribute effectively to the evaluation of our business strategies and to the
Board's oversight role. The Corporate Governance Committee believes that a predominance of Board members should have
a background in business and should include both actively employed and retired senior corporate officers, and that directors
should range in age so as to maintain a sound balance of board tenure and experience, as well as staggered retirement
dates.

The Board of Directors has established the following specific guidelines for nominees to the Board:

« A majority of the Beard must be comprised of independent directors, the current standards for which are
discussed above under “Board Oversight and Director Independence.”

« As ageneral rule, non-employees should not be nominated for re-election to the Board after their 72™ birthday or
having served for 12 years from their initial election to the Board, although the Board retains the ability to grant
exemptions to these limits where it determines that such an exemption will serve the interests of Deluxe and its
shareholders.
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+ A non-employee director who ceases to hold the employment position held at the time of election to the Board, or
who has a significant change in position, should offer to resign. The Corporate Governance Committee will then
consider whether the change of status is likely to impact the director's qualifications and make a recommendation
to the Board as to whether the resignation should be accepted.

¢ Management directors who terminate employment with Deluxe should offer to resign. The Board will then decide
whether to accept the director's resignation, provided that no more than one former CEQ should serve on the
Board at any one time.

Other selection criteria used to evaluate potential candidates may include successful senior level business
management experience or experience that fulfills a specific need, prior experience and proven accomplishment as a director
of a public company, commitment to attending Board and committee meetings, a reputation for honesty and integrity, interest
in serving the needs of shareholders, employees and communities in which we operate, and compatibility with existing
directors.

Director Selection Process

All Board members are elected annually by our shareholders, subject to the Board’s right to fill vacancies in existing
or new director positions on an interim basis. Based on advice from the Corporate Governance Committee, each year the
Board will recommend a slate of directors to be presented for etection at the annual meeting of shareholders.

The Corporate Governance Committee will consider candidates submitted by members of the Board and our
shareholders, and the Committee will review such candidates in accordance with our bylaws and applicable legal and
regulatory requirements. Candidates nominated by shareholders are evaluated in accordance with the same criteria and
using the same procedures as candidates submitted by Board members or the CEQ.

When a vacancy or a new position on the Board needs to be filled, the CEQ, in consultation with the Chair of the
Corporate Governance Committee, will draft a profile of the candidate he or she believes would provide the most meaningful
contributions to the Board as a whole. The profile will be submitted to the Corporate Governance Committee for approval. In
order to properly staff its varicus committees and support its succession planning initiatives, the Board currently believes that
a Board consisting of nine {o eleven directors is the optimal size. The Corporate Governance Committee has made it a
practice in recent years to engage third-party search firms to assist it in identifying suitable candidates. The firms selected,
as well as the specific terms of the engagement, are based on the specific search criteria established by the Commitiee,
Members of the Board also are given the opportunity to submit names of potential candidates based on the profile developed.
Each candidate will be subject to an initial screening process after which the Corporate Governance Committee will select the
candidates that it wishes to interview. The Chair of the Board, CEQC and at least a majority of the Corporate Governance
Committee will interview each candidate and, concurrently with the interviews, the candidate will confirm his or her availability
for regularly scheduled Board and committee meetings. The Committee will also assess each candidate’s potential conflicts
of interest. The Committee will review the interviewers' reports and recommendations, and make the final determination as
to which candidates will be recommended for election to the Board. Depending on when suitable candidates are identified,
the Board may decide to appoint a new director to serve on the Board until the next annual meeting of shareholders.

Our bylaws stipulate that if a shareholder wishes to nominate a candidate at the annual meeting of shareholders, the
shareholder must give written notice of the nomination to our CEQ or Corporate Secretary no later than the deadline for
submitting shareholder proposals for the applicable annual meeting. The shareholder must attend the meeting with the
candidate and propose the candidate's nomination for election to the Board at the meeting. The shareholder's notice must
set forth as to each nominee: (1) the name, age, business address and residence address of the person, (2) the principal
occupation or employment of the person, (3) the number of shares of our stock owned by the person, {4) the written and
acknowledged statement of the person that such person is willing to serve as a director, and (5) any other information relating
to the person that would be required to be disclosed in a solicitation of proxies for election of directors pursuant to Regulation
14A under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, if the candidate had been nominated by or on behalf of the
Board. No shareholders submitted director nominations in connection with this year's meeting. Any shareholders desiring to
present a candidate at the 2009 annual meeting of shareholders must do so prior to November 10, 2008.

Non-Executive Chairman; Executive Sessions

Mr. Nachtsheim is the Non-Executive Chairman of the Board and is expected to serve until such time as a new Chair
is elected by the Board. He has been re-nominated to a thirteenth term on the Board to provide continuity in the Chairman
position in light of the recent addition of several new Board members, and to minimize the risk of distraction from a change in
the Board leadership as Mr. Schram continues to transition into his role as CEQ. Mr. Nachtsheim's duties include moderating
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meptings or executive sessions of the independent directors and acting as the principal liaison between the independent

diréctors and the CEQ with respect to Board governance issues. Our independent directors make it a practice to meet in
executive session without management present at each Board meeting. Likewise, all Board committees regularly meet in
exacutive session without management.

Communications with Directors

Any interested party having concerns about our governance or business practices, or otherwise wishing to
communicate with our independent directors, may submit their concerns in writing to the Nen-Executive Chairman of the
Board or the independent directors as a group in the care of the office of: Corporate Secretary, Deluxe Corporation, 3680
Vicloria Street North, Shoreview, Minnesota 556126.

Audit Committee Expertise; Complaint-Handling Procedures

In addition to meeting the independence requirements of the NYSE and the SEC, all members of the Audit
Committee have been determined by the Board to meet the financial literacy requirements of the NYSE'’s listing standards.
Thel Board also has determined that at least one member of the Audit Committee, including Martyn Redgrave, the Committee
Chgir, is an “audit committee financial expert’ as defined by SEC regulations.

In accordance with federal law, the Audit Committee has adopted procedures governing the receipt, retention and
hanflling of complaints regarding accounting and auditing matters. These procedures include a means for employees to
submit concerns on a confidential and anonymous basis, through Deluxe’s compliance hotline.

Compensation Committee Processes and Procedures

The authority and responsibilities of the Compensation Committee are governed by its charter, a copy of which can
be found on Deluxe Corporation's website at www.deluxe.com, together with applicable laws, rules, regulations and NYSE
listing standards.

The Compensation Committee is authorized to review and approve corporate goals and objectives related to the
CEQ's compensation, lead the Board's evaluation of the CEO’s performance in light of those goals and objectives, and
determine the CEQ's compensation based on the evaluation and input from the Board as a whole. The Committee is
expeacted to engage the entire Board in its evaluation of the CEO’s performance and appropriate level of compensation.

The Committee also reviews and approves each executive officer's base pay and incentive compensation levels,
stock ownership targets, employment-related agreements and any special benefit plans or programs for executives. As part
of this responsibility, the Committee evaluates and makes recommendations to the Board regarding the Company’s
compensation philosophy and structure, the design of incentive compensation plans in which executives participate and all
equity plans. It establishes incentive compensation goals and performance measurements for executives and determines the
levels of achievement of each executive relative to the goals and measurements. Subject to limits imposed by the plans,
applicable law and the Board, the Committee also oversees administration of equity-based plans, deferred compensation
plansg, benefit plans, retirement and Employee Retirement Income Security Act {*"ERISA") excess plans, and also is
responsible for determining the formula used to calculate contributions to the company’s current profit sharing plan. The
Compmittee has delegated to management committees the responsibility to administer broad-based benefit plans and the
responsibility to oversee investment options and management of retirement and deferred compensation programs.

Aithough matters of director compensation ultimately are the responsibility of the full Board, the Compensation
Compmittee works in conjunction with the Board's Corporate Governance Committee and its independent compensation
consultants in evaluating director compensation tevels, making recommendations regarding the structure of director
compensation, and developing a director pay philosophy that is aligned with the interests of the Company’s shareholders.

The Committee has the authority to engage compensation consultants to assist it in conducting the activities within
its ggneral scope of responsibility. Since 2001, the committee has retained Watson Wyatt Worldwide, inc. as its independent
consiltant. The Committee has the sole authority to retain, terminate and approve the fees of a compensation consultant for
the plurpose of assisting in the evaluation of director, CEQ and executive compensation.
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Compensation Committee interlocks and Insider Participation

The Compensation Committee is comprised entirely of independent directors. No member of the Compensation
Committee has been an officer or employee of Deluxe. None of our executives serve as a member of the Compensation
Committee of any other company that has an executive serving as a member of the Deluxe Board of Directors. None of our
executives serve as a member of the board of directors of any other company that has an executive serving as a member of
the Compensation Committee.

Non-Employee Director Compensation

Directors who are employees of Deluxe do not receive compensation for their service on the Board other than their
compensation as employees. Non-employee directors each receive a $50,000 annual Board retainer, payable quarterly. For
2007, the Non-Executive Chairman received an incremental $100,000 annual retainer, payable quarterly.

in order to fairly compensate non-employee directors for their service on Board committees, the elements and
responsibilities of which will fluctuate from time to time, committee members are paid fees for each committee meeting
attended, with the chair of each committee also receiving an annual retainer for serving as the chair.

For 2007, the committee fee structure was as follows:

Audit Committee Other Standing Committees

%) ($)
Chair Retainer 15,000 5,000
In-Person Meeting Attendance 2,000 1,500
Telephonic Meeting Attendance 1,000 750

Non-employee directors also receive $1,500 for each approved site visit and director education program attended, up
to a maximum of five per year, in the aggregate. Directors also may receive additional compensation for the performance of
duties assigned by the Board or its committees that are considered beyond the scope of the ordinary responsibilities of
directors or committee members,

Deluxe maintains a Non-Employee Director Stock and Deferral Plan (the "Director Plan”), which was approved by
shareholders as part of Deluxe’s 2000 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended (the “Stock Incentive Plan™). The purpose of the
Director Plan is to provide an oppaortunity for non-employee directors to increase their ownership of Deluxe’s common stock
and thereby align their interest in the long-term success of Deluxe with that of other shareholders. Under the Director Plan,
each non-employee director may elect to receive, in lieu of cash retainers and fees, shares of Deluxe common stock. The
shares of comman stock receivable pursuant to the Director Plan are issued quarterly or, at the option of the director,
credited to the director in the form of deferred restricted stock units. These restricted stock units vest and are converted into
shares of common stock on the earlier of the tenth anniversary of February 1st of the year following the year in which the
non-employee director ceases to serve on the Board or such other objectively determinable date as is etected by the director
in his or her deferral election (for example, upon termination of service as a director). Each restricted stock unit entitles the
holder to receive dividend equivalent payments equal to the dividend payment on one share of common stock. Any restricted
stock units issued pursuant to the Director Plan will vest and be converted into shares of common stock in connection with
certain defined changes of control of Deluxe. All shares of common stock issued pursuant to the Director Plan are issued
under Deluxe’s Stock Incentive Plan and must be held by the non-employee director for a minimum period of six months from
the date of issuance.

Under the terms of the Stock Incentive Plan, non-employee directors also are eligible to receive other equity-based
awards to further align their interests with shareholders and assist them in achieving and maintaining their established share
ownership targets. Any stock options granted to non-employee directors must have an exercise price equal to the fair market
value of Deluxe’s common stock on the date of grant, and no more than 5,000 options may be granted to a non-employee
director in any one year. Non-employee directors did not receive any option grants in 2007, but each non-employee director
re-elected to the Board at last year's annual meeting did receive a grant of 1,320 shares of restricted stock on April 25, 2007,
with an approximate grant date value of $50,000, which shares vest one year from the grant date. Equity grants to directors
are determined by the Compensation Committee, in consultation with the Corporate Governance Committee, as required by
the Board’'s governance processes.
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Non-employee directors who were elected to the Board prior to October 1997 also are eligible for certain retirement
pdyments under the terms of a Beard retirement plan that has since been replaced by the Director Plan. Under this
predecessor plan, non-employee directors with at least five years of Board service who retire, resign or otherwise are not
ndminated for re-election are entitled to receive an annual payment equal to the annual Board retainer in effect on July 1,
1997 ($30,000 per year) for the number of years during which he or she served on the Board prior to October 31, 1997. As a
result, no further benefits are accruing under this plan. In calculating a director's eligibility for benefits under this plan, partial
yeprs of service are rounded up to the nearest whole number. Retirement payments do not extend beyond the lifetime of the
retiree and are contingent upon the retiree’s remaining available for consultation with management and refraining from
er}aging in any activity in competition with Deluxe. Mr. Nachtsheim is the only current director eligible for benefits under this
plan.

The following tahle summarizes the compensation earned by each nen-employee director during 2007.

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION
Fees Earned or Stock Option All Other
Paid in Cash’ Awards® Awards® Compensation® Total
Name . (%) (%) ($) ($) (%)

Ronald C. Baldwin® 39,500 0 0 0 39,500
T. Michael Glenn® 31,750 42 262 2,042 651 76,705
Charles A. Haggerty 73,000 71,540 2,874M 2,693 150,107
Isajah Harris, Jr. 70,000 76,313 2,042 2,777 151,132
William A. Hawkins, IIlI” 44 250 76,246 2,874 2,447 125,817
Cheryl E. Mayberry '

McKissack 77,500 71,540 2,874 2,693 154,607
Don J. McGrath® 31,000 0 0 0 31,000
NeJI J. Metviner® 35,500 0 0 0 35,500
Stephen P. Nachtsheim 165,000 71,5400 2,874 2,693 242,107
Mary Ann O'Dwyer 75,750 71,540 2,874 2,693 152,857,
Maityn R. Redgrave 89,000 71,540 2,874 2,693 166,107

1 |Under the Non-Employee Director Stock and Deferral Plan (the “Director Plan”), directors may elect to receive their fees
in the form of stock, including the right to defer such stock into restricted stock units. Amounts reflected are the total fees
earned by the directors, including amounts elected to be received in the form of stock or restricted stock units.

2 |Amounts in the table reflect dollar amounts recognized for financia! statement reporting purposes for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2007, in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standard ("SFAS”) No. 123(R), Share-
Based Payment. As a result, amounts reported may reflect expense recognized in 2007 with respect to awards made in
prior years. Each director then serving on the Board received a restricted stock grant of 1,320 shares on April 25, 2007,
which shares vest one year from the date of grant. The grant date value of the April 2007 grants was approximately
$50,000. As of December 31, 2007, the following board members each held 1,320 shares of restricted stock: Haggerty,
Harris, Mayberry McKissack, Nachtsheim, O’Dwyer and Redgrave.

3 [No options were granted to the non-employee directors in 2007. Amounts in the table reflect dollar amounts recognized
for financial statement reporting purposes for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, in accordance with SFAS No.
123(R), for options granted in prior years. As of December 31, 2007, the number of outstanding options held by each
director was as follows: T. Michael Glenn, 1,000; Charles A. Haggerty, 4,000; Isaiah Harris, Jr., 1,000; William A.
Hawkins, lll, 2,000; Cheryl E. Mayberry McKissack, 4,000; Stephen P. Nachtsheim, 6,000; Mary Ann O’'Dwyer, 2,000,
and Martyn R. Redgrave, 4,000. All outstanding options expire seven years from the grant date, vest in equal 1/3
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increments on each of the first three anniversaries of the grant date, and carry exercise prices equal to the closing price
of the Company's common stock on the grant date.

4 Amounts reflect dividends paid in 2007 on unvested restricted stock awards.
5 Messrs. Baldwin, Metviner and McGrath were elected to the Board on July 1, 2007.
6 Mr. Glenn retired from the Board on April 25, -2007.

7 Mr. Hawkins retired from the Board on August 23, 2007.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

| Compensation Discussion and Analysis
Introduction

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the various tables and accompanying narrative
disclosure appearing in this proxy statement. Those tables and narrative provide more detailed information regarding the
compensation and benefits awarded to, earned by, or paid to our Chief Executive Officer (*"CEQ") and the other executive
officers named in the Summary Compensation Table appearing on page 28 (collectively the “Named Executive Officers”), as
well as the plans in which such officers are eligible to participate.

Compensation Objectives and Philosophy
Deluxe is committed to providing executive compensation that attracts, motivates and retains the best possible
executive talent for the benefit of our shareholders, supports Deluxe’s business objectives, and aligns the interests of the
executive officers, including our Named Executive Officers, with the long-term interests of our shareholders. We believe
these objectives are achieved by:
s Continually evaluating the competitiveness of our compensation programs relative to comparable organizations;

e Emphasizing performance-based pay through annual incentive opportunities that are based on the achievement of
specific business objectives (i.e., pay for performance},

+ Providing equity-based incentives that promote the creation of long-term shareholder value;

» Delivering a significant portion of total compensation through performance-based pay linked to financial results and
shareholder return; and

» Ensuring that the Named Executive Officers hold meaningful equity stakes in Deluxe.
Roles of Committee, Outside Compensation Advisors and Management in Compensation Decisions

The Deluxe compensation program is designed to align all components of pay opportunity (base pay, annual
incentive pay, lang-term incentive pay, and benefits) at or near the median of the market, for each component and as a
whole, and reward performance that meets or exceeds performance goals that are established, reviewed and approved each
year by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors (sometimes referred to in this section as the "Committee”}. In
arriving at the appropriate levels of pay and incentive opportunities, the Committee also considers the overall cost of the
compensation program so as to achieve proper balance between the need to reward employees and to deliver returns to
Deluxe's shareholders. Accordingly, the Committee annually reviews the proportion of operating income used to reward
employee performance through incentive plan payments.

The Committee has responsibility for guiding our executive compensation philosophy and overseeing the design of
executive compensation programs. The Committee also recommends the compensation to be paid to the CEO (with
approval from the full Board of Directors) and reviews and approves the compensation paid to other executive officers. The
Committee is composed entirely of “independent directors” as defined by the New York Stock Exchange corporate
governance rules.
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The Committee has engaged, and regularly meets with, an independent compensation consultant regarding
executive compensation levels and practices. Watson Wyatt Worldwide, Inc. has served as the Committee's independent
consultant since 2001. This consultant is deemed independent in that it is selected by and reports directly to the Committee
with its primary contact being the Chair of the Committee. Watson Wyatt did not provide to the Company any consulting
services on subjects other than executive compensation during 2007.

Management supports the work of the Committee and its independent consuttant by providing company information
and data, as requested. Company executives also make recommendations with respect to incentive plan targets in the
context of management's business and operational plans. The CEO attends each Committee meeting, meets with the
Committee and independent consultant as necessary to discuss business strategy, and also meets with the Commiittee
annually to discuss each executive's individual performance and make recommendations on incentive awards and
adjustments to base salary for those executives. The Board's non-employee directors evaluate the CEQ each year and the
Committee provides advice to the Board regarding the CEO’s compensation based on that evaluation and current market
data provided by the independent consultants.

Competitive Market Review

For 2007, the Committee commissioned Watson Wyatt to provide a competitive market review of Deluxe’s executive
compensation program in comparison to relevant benchmarks. The data presented by Watson Wyatt was used for analyzing
each pay component; the mix of base pay, annual incentive compensation, and long-term incentive values for the Named
Executive Officers; and other benefit-related decisions. Based on the recommendation of its compensation consuitant, the
Committee reviewed two benchmarks for assessing executive pay at Deluxe; published survey data representing companies
similar in size to Deluxe, and companies comprising the S&P Mid-Cap 400. The Committee endorsed the use of the S&P
Mid-Cap 400 for executive pay analysis based on the fact that Deluxe is a member of the S&P Mid-Cap 400 index, together
with its conclusion that this index is representative of companies similar to Deluxe in terms of market capitalization, revenue,
and total assets. In addition to using the S&P Mid-Cap 400, market data is drawn from multiple published surveys of broader
general industry practices, with a particular focus on industrial companies with revenues comparable to Deluxe. Three
survey sources were combined to create the published survey benchmark. The three surveys were: 2007/2008 Watson
Wyatt Top Management Survey; 2007 Mercer Executive Compensation Survey; and 2007 Towers Perrin Executive
Compensation Survey, The S&P Mid-Cap 400 benchmark data is based on proxy statement disclosures for the index
companies’ Named Executive Officers, and the published surveys provide data for the Named Executive Officers and
broader executive leadership team.

Executive Officer Compensation Program

In constructing an overall compensation program, the Committee balances those components that are guaranteed
(such as salary and benefits) against components that are “at risk” and require the achievement of certain levels of
performance. The Committee also strives for a batance between compensation tools that reward the executives for-the
achievement of short-term goals, while also focusing on the long-term growth of the Company. Compared to Deluxe’s
general employee population, the Committee believes that executives, including the Named Executive Officers, shou!d have
a greater percentage of their total compensation dependant upon reaching performance targets, a higher percentage of
which is oriented toward long-term objectives rather than short-term performance. Long-term incentive compensation
typically has been awarded in the form of equity, while short-term incentive compensation has been paid in cash. Each year
the Committee reviews the form and amount of equity grants to ensure alignment with the Company’s overall compensation
philosophy and to reward attainment of Company goals.

Elements of Compensation

For 2007, the principal components of our executive compensation program consisted of the following:

base salary;

* annual incentive plan;

long-term equity incentives in the form of stock options and performance accelerated restricted stock;

. ﬁon-quaiiﬁed deferred compensation plan;

broad-based retirement plans; and

* cash allowance perquisite program.
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Compensation Mix

The primary components of executive compensation (base salary, and performance-based pay in the form of annual
incentives and long-term incentives) for our Named Executive Officers for 2007 were allocated, at targeted levels of
performance, with a higher percentage of performance-based pay compared to base salary. The average target percentage
of performance-based pay for the Named Executive Officers is 63% of total compensation, with a higher percentage for the
CEOQ and a lower percentage for the Vice Presidents. Of the total performance-based compensation for the Named
Executive Officers, approximately 66% is targeted to be long-term compensation as opposed to annual compensation. Pay
practices for the Named Executive Officers emphasize pay for performance and a longer term focus than pay practices for
the general employee population.

Base Salaries

The Committee annually reviews the base salaries of Deluxe’'s Named Executive Officers. The CEO makes
recommendations for changes to base salaries based on each executive's individual performance and the market data
presented by the Committee's independent compensation consultants. The Committee performs the same analysis with
respect to the CEQ's salary. During 2007, base salaries of our executive officers generally were set at or near the median of
salaries paid to executive officers of the S&P Mid-Cap 400 companies in simitar positions. Peviations from the median can
be the result of experience in the position, individual performance exceeding or falling short of expectations, or the
individual's scope of responsibilittes. For the most recent fiscal year, the average base salary increase for the Named
Executive Officers was 4.3%. The actual change for each Named Executive Officer is illustrated in the summary
compensation table. The increase in base salaries included merit adjustments, a base adjustment for Mr. Peterson in
recognition of his expanded role as Chief Accounting Officer, Controller and Vice President, Investor Relations, and a market
adjustment for Mr. Scarfone to better align his pay to the market for General Counsel positions in companies in the S&P Mid-
Cap 400. .

Annual Incentive Plan

Named Executive Officers and other officers and management employees seltected by the Committee paricipate in
the Deluxe Corporation Annual Incentive Plan {the “Annual Incentive Plan™), which has been approved by our shareholders.
The 2007 target amounts approved by the Committee under the Annual Incentive Plan were intended to provide annual cash
compensation {i.e., base salary plus bonus) approximating the median of the cash compensation offered to executive officers
in similar positions. Bonuses earned may exceed the target amount if performance goals are exceeded, and are less than
the target amount if the performance goals are not fully attained, with no bonus payouts if Deluxe's performance is below
certain minimum thresholds. Although the Committee retains the discretion to adjust payouts under the Annual Incentive
Plan, in accordance with Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code (“Section 162(m)"), the Committee may not increase
the payouts to the CEQ and other Named Executive Officers under the Annual Incentive Plan. To promote stock ownership
by the Named Executive Officers and other participants and further align their interests with those of our shareholders,
participants may choose to receive up to 100 percent of their Annual Incentive Plan payout in restricted stock units, in which
case the Company will provide a 50 percent match on the amounts so elected to be received in restricted stock units. The
restricted stock units vest on the second anniversary of the date of the grant. We believe the 50% match and two-year
vesting period encourages executive stock ownership and drives employee retention. For the 2007 plan year payout, three
of the Named Executive Officers elected to defer all or a portion of their bonus payout into restricted stock units.

Performance Measures and Objectives

For the Named Executive Officers, the two performance factors that were considered in determining incentive
compensation for 2007 under the Annual Incentive Plan were consolidated revenue and adjusted operating income.
“Adjusted operating income” is based on operating income as publicly reported by the Company in its consolidated
financial statements, but includes pre-defined adjustments (as permitted by Section 162(m)} to eliminate the effects of
items outside the control of management that may create a windfall or shortfall in attainment of operating income targets,
such as the adoption of new accounting principles, asset impairments, mergers and acquisitions, restructuring charges,
etc. As indicated above, the Committee also retains discretion to make other adjustments to these calculations, provided
such adjustments do not result in any increase to amounts payable to the Named Executive Officers, and did, in fact,
make an adjustment to the Company’s revenue results due to a price increase not factored into the original revenue
target approved at the beginning of the year, which had the effect of reducing the payouts under the Annual Incentive
Plan in 2007. We believe revenue and operating income are critical drivers of our strategy to achieve profitable and
sustainable growth, and thereby create long-term value for our shareholders. Each component was weighted equally,
with target performance set in line with the Company’s annual operating plan {("AOP”} targets. These AOP targets also
served as the basis for the financial performance expectations communicated publicly at the beginning of the year.
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In establishing the metrics and payout scales under the Annual Incentive Plan, although revenue and operating
income are weighted equally, a minimum threshold of adjusted operating income must be achieved before any incentive
can be paid out. Operating income and revenue targets for the Annual Incentive Plan in 2007 had been set at
aggressive but realistic levels, and required year-aver-year operating income growth to achieve the targeted payout
fevels. The minimum payout threshold under the operating income metric had been set at 80 percent of the target to
provide a reasonabie opportunity to achieve some level of payout in light of the aggressive nature of such goals. The
scale had been expanded compared to 2006 to require a higher level of operating income performance (comparad to the
target) in order to achieve the maximum payout. The payout scale for the revenue component of the plan was essentially
the same as in 2006, and required achievement of at least 95 percent of the target to earn a minimum payout.

Adjusted Operating Percent of
Performance Level Income Revenue Target Award
(50%) {50%) (%)
Maximum 120% of operating plan 103% of revenue plan 200
Target Operating plan Revenue plan 115
Threshold 80% of operating plan 95% of revenue plan 40
Below Threshold 0

Actual award payments
Deluxe's actual performance in 2007 exceeded the targets for both adjusted operating income and revenue.

Measures {Millions) Target Actual Weighting Payout Percent
{$) ($) (%) (% of target)
Adjusted Operating Income 250 - 264 50 139
Revenue 1,587 1,601 50 122
Blended Payout Percentage 130

This performance resulted in actual award payments to the Named Executive Officers that exceeded each individual's target
award opportunity. For each Named Executive Officer, the payouts based on 2007 performance exceeding both the adjusted
operating income and revenue targets were as follows:

Target Annual 2007 Actual
Incentive Incentive

Name {% of salary) {% of salary)
Lee Schram 100 130
Richard S. Greene S0 65
Luann E. Widener 50 65
Anthony C. Scarfone 50 65
Terry D. Peterson 40 52

‘Long-Term Incentive Compensation

After analyzing a variety of approaches for delivering long-term incentive value to the executives and other key
employees who participate in the Company’s long-term incentive program, beginning in 2006 the Committee endorsed a
strategy that employs a combination of stock options and performance accelerated restricted stock. Given that cash flow is
viewed by the Company as another key financial performance metric, the partial vesting accelerator utilized in these
restricted stock grants is a threshold measure of operating cash flow. Named Executive Officers, together with other
designated key employees, received grants of stock options and performance accelerated restricted stock in 2007. The
Company believes this strategy achieves several critical objectives, including:

s  Supporting and rewarding the achievement of Deluxe’s long-term business strategy and objectives;
» Encouraging decisions and behavior that will increase shareholder value;
¢ Reinforcing the pay-for-performance orientation of the overall executive compensation program;

s Allowing Deluxe to attract and retain key executive talent by providing competitive incentive and total compensation
opportunities; and
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» Promoting share ownership and facilitating achievement of the ownership guidelines.

The target value of the long-term incentive compensation for 2007 approximated the median of the long-term
incentive compensation provided to executive officers in the S&P Mid-Cap 400 group of companies where such comparisons
were possible and otherwise relied on the median reported in published surveys. All long-term incentive awards to
executives and other key employees are granted on the same date, with the exception of awards made in conjunction with an
individual's promotion or hire into the Company or as necessary to facilitate broader retention of key employees. For 2007,
the grant date for the equity awards coincided with the regularly scheduled February Compensation Committee meeting. The
timing of the annual grants also aligns with the employee performance evaluation process and is outside any regular stock
trading blackout period. The exercise price of all 2007 option grants is the closing price of Deluxe stock on the grant date.

For 2007, the long-term incentive value was divided equally between stock options and performance accelerated
restricted stock. The 50 percent delivered in stock options vests in three equal annual installments beginning on the first
anniversary of the grant date and focuses the executives on share price appreciation. The remainder of the long-term
incentive value is delivered in performance accelerated restricted stock. The performance accelerated restricted stock vests
three years from the grant date, but vesting on 50 percent of the stock can be accelerated to the first anniversary of the grant
date, based on achievement of a threshold level of operating cash flow. The Company achieved the minimum cash flow
target of $227 million in 2007, delivering actual net operating cash flows of $245 million. The performance accelerated
restricted stock focuses the executive on making decisions that deliver cash flows and otherwise support long-term
shareholder value, and also encourages stock ownership. On February 13, 2007, in recognition of Mr. Schram’s individual
performance and leadership, and the fact that his 2006 bonus was adversely affected by an unforeseen write-off of a
software project that had been initiated prior to his joining the Company, he was granted 2,000 shares of restricted stock
valued at $65,200 on the grant date, subject to two-year cliff vesting.

Deferred Compensation Plan

Deluxe maintains a deferred compensation plan under which executives and other key employees may choose to
defer up to 100 percent of base salary (less applicable deductions) and up to 50 percent of any bonus payout into multiple
investment options. The investment options match, or are similar to, the investment options available to employees in the
Company’s broad-based retirement plans.

Retirement Program

The Named Executive Officers are eligible to participate in the same qualified retirement plans available to most
employees. The program consists of three components, including a defined contribution pension plan, an annual profit
sharing plan (under which contributions, if any, are based on Deluxe's performance), and a 401{k) plan. The retirement
program is regularly benchmarked against companies that are in businesses similar to Deluxe and/or are located in
geographic areas from which we recruit talent to ensure that it is competitive in the market. The incremental value of benefits
provided to the Named Executive Officers under this program is included in the All Other Compensation column of the
Summary Compensation Table.

Deluxe also has a non-qualified defined contribution plan which restores benefits lost under the foregoing qualified
plans due to Internal Revenue Code limits, also known as an ERISA excess plan. Contributions for the Named Executive
Officers under this plan for 2007 are also reflected in the Ali Other Compensation column of the Summary Compensation
Tabte.

Cash Allowance Perquisite Program

In 2007, all Named Executive Officers, with the exception of Mr. Schram, participated in the executive officer
Personal Choice Program. The Personal Choice Program changed in 2007 to provide a fixed cash allowance to Named
Executive Officers in lieu of any other perquisites. The quarterly cash allowance of $7,500 for Senior Vice Presidents and
$5,000 for Vice Presidents on the Executive Leadership Team is intended to cover personal expenses typically incurred by
executives as a result of their positions (such as vehicle expenses, personal security systems, financial and tax planning,
etc.). As with the other compensation components, this program is compared to market benchmarks of other perquisite
programs on an annual basis. The Company chose this program as being more flexible for the executives, less
administratively burdensome, and less costly to the organization because there are no tax gross-ups on the amounts
provided under this program.
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Stock Ownership Guidelines

Deluxe has established stock ownership guidelines for its executive officers and independent Board members, and
the Compensation Committee regularly reviews each executive officer's and director's progress toward attaining his or her
ownership target. The current guideline for the CEO is five times annual base salary, for all senior vice presidents is two
times annual base salary and for vice presidents who are members of the executive leadership team is one and one-half
times annual base salary. The guidelines call for the targeted level of ownership to be achieved within five years of the later
of the date the ownership guidelines were implemented, or the time the individual becomes an executive officer. For
purposes of calculating an executive's stock ownership under these guidelines, stock options are not included. While
restricted shares and restricted stock units convertible into shares are included, only 60 percent of their value is counted
toward the ownership target prior to vesting, based on the rationale that approximately 40 percent of such shares or units will
be withheld or surrendered by the executive upon vesting to cover taxes. At the time of the 2007 review, executives were
either at their share ownership target or had increased their actual share ownership over the previous year. The Committee,
therefore, determined that the executives were continuing toward their ownership targets at an appropriate pace, and it will
review their progress again in 2008.

In addition to the stock ownership guidelines, executive officers and directors are subject to share retention and
holding period requirements. Under this policy, individuals who have not achieved their ownership targets must retain 75
percent of the net shares (i.e., shares remaining after exercise costs and applicable taxes are covered) upon the exercise of
stock options and vesting of other equity awards, and are required to hold the shares until the ownership targets are met.
The Company also maintains a general policy against transactions by directors and executive officers intended to hedge the
economic risk of ownership in Deluxe stock, and requires any such hedging transactions to be pre-approved by the Board's
Corporate Governance Committee.

Severance, Retention and Change of Control Arrangements

Deluxe has entered into severance arrangements or agreements with each of its Named Executive Officers
(collectively “arrangements”). The arrangements are intended to facilitate the executives’ attention to the affairs of Deluxe
and to recognize their key role within the Company. If their employment is terminated without “cause” by Deluxe or by the
executive with *good reason,” he or she is eligible to receive severance benefits. The Severance Calculation table appearing
later in this proxy statement, together with the accompanying narrative to that table, explains in detail the benefits provided
under these arrangements and the circumstances under which a Named Executive Officer would be eligible for severance
benefits. Receipt of these benefits is conditioned upon the Named Executive Officer entering into a release and agreeing to
maintain the confidentiality of Company confidential information for a period of two years after their termination. Mr.
Schram’s employment agreement also requires that for two years after he ceases to be employed by Deluxe he will not
engage in any business that competes with Deluxe, will not hire any employee or induce an employee to provide confidential
information to a third party, and will not induce any customer or supplier to stop doing business with the Company.

The Company also has entered into retention agreements (“Retention Agreements™) with Mr. Schram and the Named
Executive Officers that are designed to ensure that Deluxe will receive the continued service of the Executive in the event of
the possibility or occurrence of a change of control, by reducing the distraction that could be caused by personal uncertainty
about their compensation and benefits under those circumstances. These Retention Agreements are addressed in greater
detail in the narrative accompanying the Change in Control Calculations table appearing later in this proxy statement.
Generally speaking, however, these Retention Agreements provide incentives for the Named Executive Officer to remain with
Deluxe through a contemplated change of control, and provide certain benefits in the event the Named Executive Officer's
employment is negatively impacted as a result of, or following, a change of control. [n other words, benefits are not paid out
automatically upon a change of control, but enly if the Named Executive Officer's employment is negatively affected {i.e., a
double trigger). Moreover, the severance arrangements described above do not apply if the Named Executive Officer's
employment is terminated following a change of controt under circumstances that would entitle them to receive benefits under
the Retention Agreements. In 2007, the Committee delivered to the CEO and each Senior Vice President then party to a
Retention Agreement a notice of non-renewal under the current Retention Agreements, such that they will terminate by their
terms on December 18, 2009. Coinciding with the notices of non-renewal, the Committee authorized the execution of new
Retention Agreements that take effect upon expiration of the current agreements. (n addition to amending the current
agreements to comply with Internal Revenue Code Section 4084, the new Retention Agreements reduce the renewable term
from three years to two years, place a limit on tax gross-up payments, and reduce the payment multiple for the senior vice
presidents from three times to two times salary and bonus. Retention Agreements also were entered into with the vice
presidents on the executive leadership team. The terms of these agreements are addressed in the narrative accompanying
the Change in Control Calculations table appearing later in this proxy statement.
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Compliance with Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code |

Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code limits the deductibility of compensation in excess of $1 million paid to
certain executive officers, unless such compensation qualifies as “performance-based compensation.” Among other things,
in order to be deemed performance-based compensation for Section 162(m} purposes, the compensation must be based on
the achievement of pre-established, objective performance criteria and must be pursuant to a plan that has been approved by
Deluxe’s shareholders. With the exception of a peortion of the compensation paid to Mr. Schram, which included certain one-
time awards and benefits as part of his hiring package that do not qualify as performance-based compensation, we expect
that all compensation paid in 2007 to the executive officers under the plans and programs described abave will qualify for
deductibility, either because the compensation is below the threshold for non-deductibility provided in Section 162(m) or
because the payment of such compensation complies with the performance-based compensation provisions of Section
162(m).

The Company believes that it is important to continue to be able to take all available tax deductions with respect to
the compensation paid to its executive officers, and has taken such actions as may be necessary to continue to gualify
significant portions of executive compensation as performance-based under Section 162(m).

Compensation Committee Report

The Compensation Committee has reviewed and discussed with management the foregoing Compensation
Discussion and Analysis. Based on our review and discussion with management, we have recommended to the Board of
Directors that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in this proxy statement and be incorporated by
reference into Deluxe Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ending December 31, 2007.

MEMBERS OF THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

Charles A. Haggerty, Chair
Don J. McGrath

Neil J. Metviner

Stephen P. Nachtsheim

Executive Compensation Tables

The Summary Compensation Table, Other Compensation Supplemental Table, and Grants of Plan-Based Award
Table presented on the following pages summarize the total compensation paid to or earned by each of the individuals who
served as Deluxe’'s Chief Executive Officer or Chief Financial Officer during any part of 2007, and the next three mast highly
compensated executive officers for 2007 (collectively, the “Named Executive Officers”). The following narrative is provided to
help you understand the information presented in those tables.

In accordance with the employment agreement executed at the time of his hiring, and to replace forfeited
compensation earned at his previous employer, Mr. Schram was granted 59,575 shares of restricted stock on May 1, 20086,
the date he commenced his employment with the Company. Fifty percent of the grant vested on May 1, 2007 with the
remaining 50 percent scheduled to vest on May 1, 2008. As discussed in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis section
of the proxy statement, in February 2007, in addition to receiving grants of stock options and performance accelerated
restricted stock under the Company’s long-term incentive program, Mr. Schram received a supplemental grant of 2,000
shares of restricted stock, which is subject 1o two-year cliff vesting.

The base salaries of executives were generally set at or near the median for executive officers of the S&P Mid-Cap
400 companies in similar positions. The executives participate in the Company’s Annual Incentive Plan, under which
bonuses can be earned based on pre-established performance criteria. For 2007, these criteria included adjusted operating
income and revenue. The perfarmance criteria under the Plan were exceeded in 2007 which resulted in payments to the
Named Executive Officers as outlined in the tables.

All of the Named Executive Officers participate in a long-term incentive compensation program, pursuant to which
they were awarded stock options and performance accelerated restricted stock in 2007, The target value of the program
approximates the median of long-term incentive compensation provided to executive officers in the S&P Mid-Cap 400 group
. of companies. The awards to executives under the program were granted on the same day as awards to all eligible
employees. The exercise price for each option grant is the closing price of Deluxe’s stock on the grant date. The options
vest annually in one-third increments, and performance accelerated restricted stock awards vest after three years, except
that 50 percent of the performance accelerated stock awards could vest within one year if a 2007 cash flow target were
achieved. The cash flow target was met and acceleraticn did occur on 50% of the performance accelerated restricted stock.
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Dividend or dividend equivalents for these equity-related awards are paid at the same rate and time as regularly scheduled
dividends, although no dividend equivalents are paid on options.

The Named Executive Officers, other than the CEQO, also participate in a program that provides a quarterly cash

allowance for personal expenses typically incurred by executives, and was discussed previously in the Compensation
Discussion and Analysis section of this proxy statement.

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

Non-Equity
. Option_ | incentive Plan All Other
Name Year Salary Bonus' [Stock Awards’| Awards® Compensation‘ Compensations Total
(8) (%) ($) {%) {$) ($) {$}
Lee J. Schram® 2007 $745,000 30 $2,673,387] $582,814 $0 $121,249 $4,122,450
Chief Executive Officer 2008 483,333 541,667 606,631 152,992 0 146,768 1,931,391
Richard S. Greene’
Sr. Vice President & Chief{ 2007 354,167 a . 203,142 105,575 230,739 127,083 1,020,706
Financial Officer 20086 87,500 0 12,500 O 10,938 5,197 116,135
Luann E. Widener
ISr. Vice President &
President — Financial
Services & Small 2007 345,000 0 561,019 149,588 56,211 80,739 1,192,557
Business Segments 2006 304,948 0 194,808 61,485 38,119 67,718J 667,078
iAnthony C. Scarfone
[Sr. Vice President,
General Counsel & 2007 320,000 q 404 116 132,793 145,962 85,0240 1,087,897
Secretary 2008 290,000 0 203,799 53,688 36,250 68,927 652,664
Terry D. Peterson
\Mice President & Chief 2007 282,200 0 152,426 47,917 147,083 53,447 683,073
Accounting Officer 2006 240,158 0 95,983 16,471 24,016 42,8580 419,508

1 Mr. Schram's 2006 bonus payment included a guaranteed bonus of $241,667 (representing 50 percent of his target
bonus eligibility for the year), and a signing bonus of $300,000, both of which payments were provided for in his
employment agreement dated Agpril 10, 20086.

2 The amounts in this column reflect the dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2006 and 2007, in accordance with SFAS 123(R), of awards or forfeifures under the long-term
incentive program, and thus may include amounts attributable to awards granted prior to the reported years.
Assumptions used in the calculation of these amounts are included in Note 10 to the Company's Consolidated Financial
Statements filed as part of the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the years ended December 31, 2008, and
December 31, 2007. As described in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis section of this proxy statement, in
addition to restricted stock awards issued under the Company's long-term incentive program, recipients of awards under
the Annual Incentive Plan (AIP) may elect to receive all or a portion of their incentive compensation in the form of
restricted stock units. If an election is made to receive restricted stock units, the amount of the cash foregone is
increased (or matched) at a rate established by the Compensation Committee in determining the number of units
awarded. For 2007 the match rate was 50%. For awards earned during 2007, restricted stock units were granted on
January 22, 2008 in lieu of cash compensation as follows: 56,945 units ($1,456,084) to Mr. Schram; 9,888 units
($252,862) to Ms Widener; and 3,668 units {$33,791) to Mr. Scarfone. The 2007 SFAS 123(R) expense for these
awards also is listed in this column and the restricted stock units received by such persons is based on the closing price
of the Company's common stock on the date of grant of such units ($25.57 on January 22, 2008). The portion of their
AIP compensation paid in cash is listed in the "Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation” column. The threshold, target,
and maximum values for the AIP, including the 50% match percentage based on the individual elections made by each
Named Executive Officer prior to the start of the plan period, are listed on the table titled “Grants of Plan-Based Awards.”

3 The amounts in this column reflect the dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2006 and 2007, in accordance with SFAS 123(R), of awards or forfeitures under the long-term
incentive program, and thus may include amounts attributable to awards granted prior to the reported years.
Assumptions used in the calculation of these amounts are included in Note 10 to the Company's Consolidated Financial
Statements filed as part of the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the years ended December 31, 2006, and
December 31, 2007. :
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4 The amounts listed in this column for 2007 reflect cash amounts paid to the Named Executive Officers under the AIP. As

described in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis section and note 2 to this table, recipients of awards under the
AIP may elect to receive all or a portion of their incentive compensation in the form of restricted stock units. If an election
is made to receive restricted stock units, the amount of the cash foregone is increased (or matched) at a rate established
by the Compensation Committee in determining the number of units awarded. The 2007 SFAS 123(R) expense
attributable to awards taken as restricted stock units is listed in the “Stock Awards” column, while the portion of AIP
compensation paid in cash is listed in this column. The threshold, target, and maximum values for the AIP, including the
50% match percentage based on the individual elections made by each Named Executive Officer prior to the start of the
plan period, are listed on the table titied “Grants of Plan-Based Awards.” The amounts listed in this column for 2006
reflect the dollar amounts paid to the Named Executive Officers for achievement of the operating income performance
metric established under the 2006 Supplemental Performance Program.

5 A detailed description of the amounts listed in this column is contained in the "Other Compensation Supplemental Table"
immediately following this table.

6 Mr. Schram commenced his employment with Deluxe on May 1, 2008.

7 Mr. Greene commenced his employment with Deluxe on October 2, 2006.

OTHER COMPENSATION SUPPLEMENTAL TABLE
Perks and Payments/ Company Dividends or
Other Tax Accruals on | Contributions Earnings on
Personal Reimburse- | Termination to Defined Stock or
Name Benefits' ment? Plans Contribution Option Other® | Total
($) ($) ($) Plans® ($) Awards* ($) ($) ($)

Lee J.
Schram 0 1,102 0 18,225 93,335 | 8,587 | 121,249
Richard S.
Greene 30,000 36,655 0 0 . 10,428 | 50,000 | 127,083
Luann E.
Widener 30,000 0 0 18,225 24450 | 8,084 | 80,739
Anthony C.
Scarfone 34,500 3,299 0 18,225 22,388 | 6,694 | 85,026
Terry D.
Peterson 20,000 0 0 18,225 11,080 | 4,142 | 53,447

1 Amounts include Personal Choice Program cash allowances and, for Mr. Scarfone, reimbursement of approved 2006 tax
and financial planning expenses which were paid in 2007. The tax gross-up for the tax and financial planning
reimbursement is included in the Tax Reimbursement column. There is no tax gross-up for the Personal Choice
Program.

2 Amounts for Mr, Schram and Mr. Greene reflect tax gross-up on reimbursement of the relocation expenses recorded in
the “Other” column. The amount listed for Mr. Scarfone includes the tax gross-up for approved tax and financial planning
expenses recorded in the first column.

3 Amounts listed in this column reflect Company contributions up to applicable ERISA limits, with ERISA excess amounts
included in the “Other” column of this table.

4 Amounts reflect dividends and dividend equivalents paid on restricted stock and restricted stock units, respectively.
Dividend equivalents are paid at the same rate and at the same time as regularly declared dividends.

5 Armounts listed are ERISA excess and benefit plan equivalent amounts for the year, which generally are contributed to

the Named Executive Officers’ non-qualified deferred compensation account within 90 days after the end of the year.
The amounts for Mr. Schram and Mr. Greene also reflect reimbursement of relocation expenses, as provided for in their
employment agreements.
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GRANTS OF PLAN-BASED AWARDS

All Other All Other
Estimated Future Payouts Under Estimated Future Payouts Under Equity Af::::;. A?vp;lrgl;' Exerclse Grant Date
Non-Equity Incentive Plan Awards’ Incontive Ptan Awards' Number Number of or Basa Fair Valua
of Shares Securities Price of of Stock
Grant of Stock Undeﬂyln;; Option and Option
Name Date Threshold Target Maximurm | Threshold Targot Maximum or Units Options Awards Awards *
{$) (s} (s} ($} {3 {5) (#) (% ($/Sh) ($)
Lea J. 193,200 32,65 1,201,704
Schram 2113107 - - - 447,000 1,117,500 2,235,000 26,9004 878,286
. 2,000* 65,300
Richard S. 57,900 32.65 360,138
Greene 21307 70,833 177,084 354,167 - - - 8.000° 261.200
Luann E. 51,500 3265 320,330
Widener 21307 17,250 43,125 86,250 77625 194,063 388,125 7.100 231.818
Anthony C. 45,000 32.65 278,800
Scarfone 213007 44,800 112,000 224,000 28,800 72,000 144,000 6.200* 202.430
Tery D. n 15,400 3265 95,788
Pelerson 213107 45,152 112,880 225,760 - - 2.100* 68,566

1 The amounts listed reflect the estimated payouts under the Annual Incentive Plan for 2007 based on each executive’'s
election to receive any such payout in cash {i.e., non-equity), restricted stock units (i.e., equity), or a combination of the
two. Amounts reported in the Equity Incentive column include the 50% match provided on that portion of the AIP payout
elected to be received in the form of restricted stock units. Restricted stock units vest on the second anniversary of the
grant date. The actual payouts earned under the Annual Incentive Plan for 2007 are reflected in the “Sumrmary
Compensation Table.”

2 Stock options have seven-year terms and vest 33-1/3 percent per year over three years. The exercise price of all options
is the closing price of the Company’s stock on the grant date.

3 The grant date fair value of options is based on the stock price at the time of grant multiplied by the Black-Scholes value
of 19.0505 percent.

4 Performance accelerated restricted stock grants that vest on the third anniversary of the award date. The restricted stock
award agreements provided that 50 percent of the shares would vest on the first anniversary if the Company achieved a
2007 cash flow performance threshold. The performance threshold was achieved, so partial vesting occurred on
February 13, 2008.

5 Restricted stock grant that vests on the second anniversary of the grant date.
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OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR-END

Option Awards Stock Awards
Number of Number of
Securities Securities
Underlying Underlying Mumber of Shares{ Market Value of
Name Unexercised Unexercised Option or Units of Stock | Shares or Units of
Options Options Exercise Option Held That Have |Stock That Have Not
# (# Price Expiration Not Vested Vested
Exercisable Unexercisable ($) Date (#) {$)
193,200 3268 2/13114)
l.ee J. Schram 26,9007 884,741
2,000° 65,780
60,667] 121,333 23.50) 5/1/13 29,7887 979,727
27,200 894,608
Richard S. 57,800 32.65 2/13/14]
reene 8,0007 263,120
5,787’ 190,3
h;ann E. 51,500" 32.65 21131 .
idener 7,100 233,519
10,133'3 24.99 3/1/13 2,200'9 72,358
11,600" 26.58 2114113 2,300 75,647
2,667 1,333 39.63 412712 2,600 85,514
2,870} 42,35 5/4/11 9,100 299 299
10,000 38.54 31010 1,000 32,890
10,000 47 67 3/14/098
45,000°" 32.65 2/13/14;
Anthony C. 6,200‘q 203,918
[Scarfone '
8,700 17,4003 26.58, 211413 3.9002j 128,271
3,200 1,600° 39.63 4/271 2 11,0007 361,798
4,800 42.35 514111 1,03027 33,877
30,000 38.54 31010
30,000 47 .67 3/14/09
25,925 16.42 10/26/10;
Terry D. 15,4007 32.65  2/13114)
|Peterson : 2,100 69,069
3,600 7,200%7 26.58 2114113 1,600°3 52,624
1,433 717° 39.63 412712 7,000 230,230
380™ 12,498

Based on the cldsing price of Deluxe common stock on December 31, 2007 ($32.89 per share).

Lee J. Schram: 2 - Stock options granted on 2/13/2007 vest in three equal installments on 2/13/2008, 2/13/2009, and

2/13/2010. 3 - Stock options granted on 5/1/08 with the remainder of the unvested options vesting in two equal

installments on 5/1/08 and 5/1/09. 4 — Performance Accelerated Restricted Stock (“PARS") granted on 2/13/2007, of
which 50% vested on 2/13/2008 with the remainder vasting on 2/13/2010. 5 - Restricted stock granted on 2/13/07
which vests on 2/13/09. 6 — Restricted stock granted on 5/1/06 vests on 5/1/08. 7 - PARS granted on 5/1/06 vests

on 5/1/08.

2/13/2010. 10 — Restricted stock granted on 10/2/06 vests on 10/2/08
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Richard S. Greene: 8 - Stock options granted on 2/13/2007 vest in three equal installments on 2/13/2008, 2/13/2009,
and 2/13/2010. 9 - PARS granted on 2/13/2007, of which 50% vested on 2/13/2008 with the remainder vesting on



Luann E. Widener: 11 - Stock options granted on 2/13/2007 vest in three equa!l installments on 2/13/2008, 2/13/2009,

and 2/13/2010. 12 — Stock options granted on 3/1/06 with the remainder of the unvested opticns vesting in two equal
installments on 3/1/08, and 3/1/09. 13 - Stock opticns granted on 2/14/06 with the remainder of the unvested options
vesting in two equal installments on 2/14/08, and 2/14/09. 14 — Stock options granted on 4/27/05 with the remainder
of the unvested opticns vesting on 4/27/08. 15 — PARS granted on 2/13/2007, of which 50% vested on 2/13/2008
with the remainder vesting on 2/13/2010. 16 — PARS granted on 3/1/06 vests on 3/1/09. 17 — Restricted stock
granted on 3/1/06 vests on 3/1/08. 18 — PARS granted on 2/14/06 vests on 2/14/09. 19 — Restricted stock granted
on 2/14/086 vests on 2/14/08. 20 - Restricted stock granted on 4/27/05 vests on 4/27/08.

Anthony C. Scarfone: 21 - Stock options granted on 2/13/2007 vest in three equal installments on 2/13/2008, 2/13/2009,

and 2/13/2010. 22 - Stock options granted on 2/14/06 with the remainder of the unvested options vesting in two
equal installments on 2/14/08, and 2/14/09. 23 — Stock options granted on 4/27/05 with the remainder vesting on
4/27/08. 24 - PARS granted on 2/13/2007, of which 50% vested on 2/13/2008 with the remainder vesting on
2M3f2010. 25 - PARS granted on 2/14/06 vests on 2/14/09. 26 — Restricted stock granted on 2/14/06 vests on
2/14/08. 27 — Restricted stock granted on 4/27/05 vests on 4/27/08.

Terry D. Peterson: 28 — Stock options granted on 2/13/2007 vest in three equal installments on 2/13/2008, 2/13/2009,

and 2/13/2010. 29 — Stock options granted on 2/14/06 with the remainder of the unvested options vesting in two
equal installments on 2/14/08, and 2/14/09. 30 - Stock options granted on 4/27/05 with the remainder of the
unvested options vesting on 4/27/08. 31 - PARS granted on 2/13/2007, of which 50% vested on 2/13/2008 with the
remainder vesting on 2/13/2010. 32 - PARS granted on 2/14/06 vests on 2/14/09. 33 — Restricted stock granted on
2/14/06 vests on 2/14/08. 34— Restricted stock granted on 4/27/05 vests on 4/27/08.

OPTION EXERCISES AND STOCK VESTED

Option Awards Stock Awards
Number of Number of
Shares Value Shares Value
Acquired on | Realized on | Acquired on | Realized on
Name Exercise Exercise Vesting Vesting
{#) {$) (#) (%)
Lee J. Schram' 0 0 29,787 1,145,012
Richard S. Greene 0 0 0 0
Luann E. Widener® 10,867 152,087 4,490 136,180
Anthony C. Scarfone® 0 0 5,653 171,823
Terry D. Peterson 0 0 4] 0

For Mr. Schram, 29,787 shares of restricted stock vested on May 1, 2007 at a value of $38.44 per share.

Ms Widener exercised 5,800 stock options on May 7, 2007, and 5,067 stock options on May 8, 2007. The fair market
value of the Company's stock on the date of exercise was $39.80 and $39.8637, respectively. On January 25, 2007,
3,890 restricted stock units vested at a value of $28.75 per share and on May 4, 2007, 600 shares of restricted stock
vested at a value of $40.57 per share. ‘

For Mr. Scarfone, 4,523 restricted stock units vested on January 25, 2007 at a value of $28.75 per share and on May
4, 2007, 1,030 shares of restricted stock vested at a value of $40.57 per share.

Deferred Compensation Plan

Detuxe's Deferred Compensation Plan permits eligible employees to defef annually receipt of up to 100 percent of

base salary, and up to 50 percent of bonuses. In connection with this plan, Deluxe has created a non-qualified grantor
trust (commonly known as a "Rabbi Trust”), through which Deluxe's obligations under the plan are funded. No assets are
set aside for individual participants in the plan, and the trust assets remain subject to the claims of Deluxe’s creditors. -
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Amounts deferred under the plan are payable on the earliest to occur of a change of control of Deluxe, the participant’s
termination of employment, disability or death, or the date for payment selected by the participant, unless a delay in
payments is otherwise required by Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code ("Section 409A"). Deferred amounts are
credited with gains and losses based on the performance of deemed investment options (i.e., phantom funds) selected by
the participant. Deluxe also may make ERISA excess payments and/for contributions of benefit plan equivalents to
participants’ accounts if IRS limits or the deferrals made by a participant under this plan have the effect of reducing the
contributions they otherwise would receive from Deluxe under the Company's qualified benefit plans.

NON-QUALIFIED DEFERRED COMPENSATION

Executive Company | Aggregate | Aggregate | Aggregate

ContributionsContributions| Earnings in Withdrawals/ Balance at

Name inLastFY |inLastFY'| LastFY? [|Distributions| Last FYE®

(%) (%) (%) (%) ()

Lee J. Schram O 0 0 O 0
Richard S. Greene 0 o O O 0
Luann E. Widener 0 3,398 2,327 0 41,317
Anthony C. Scarfone 96,000 2,800 27,249 0 432 625
Terry D. Peterson 0 8086 40 O 846

1 Amounts represent ERISA excess and benefit plan equivalent payments to restore retirement plan contributions that
could not be made to the executives’ qualified retirement plan accounts due to IRS wage limits or that were lost due to
the executive's election to defer compensation. These payments are made after the end of the year to which they
relate. As a result, amounts shown in this table would be reported for the preceding fiscal year in the “All Other
Compensation” column of the Summary Compensation Table.

2 Participants in this plan allocate their deferrals inte phantom funds similar to the funds available under the Company’s
qualified retirement plans. Amounts reported reflect the performance of these phantom funds.

3 The amounts reported in previous years’ Summary Compensation Tables were: $5,098 for Ms. Widener; $185,711
for Mr. Scarfone, and $806 for Mr. Peterson.

Severance, Retention and Change of Control Arrangements

Deluxe has entered into severance arrangements or agreements with each of its Named Executive Officers. Mr.
Schram’s employment agreement contains provisions with respect to severance, and the other Named Executive Officers
are subject to separate severance agreements (collectively “arrangements”). The arrangements are intended to facilitate
the executive’s attention to the affairs of Deluxe and to recognize their key role within the Company. Under Mr. Schram’s
arrangement, he would be eligible to receive severance benefits if his employment is terminated without cause by Deluxe
or by him with Good Reason. Under his employment agreement, “Good Reason” includes (1) a material reduction in
authority, duties or responsibilities without his written consent; (2) a material reduction in his total compensation or a
failure by the Company to comply with his employment agreement; (3) a termination of his employment by the Company
in a manner that does not comply with his employment agreement; or (4) a request by the Company that he act or omit to
act in a way that viclates the Company's ethical guidelines or practices. Mr. Schram’s employment agreement provides
the following benefits if he is terminated by Deluxe without cause or he terminates his employment for Good Reason: (1)
12 monthly payments of his then current monthly base salary; {2} for a period of 12 months following completion of the
initial 12 months of salary continuation, an additional monthfy payment equal to the amount, if any, that his monthly base
pay as of termination exceeds any monthly compensation he may earn from subsequent employment in that month; (3)
executive level outplacement services for up to 12 months; and (4) an additional lump-sum payment of $13,000 to assist
with expenses incurred in connection with his transition.

The severance arrangements with the other Named Executive Officers contain a similar definition of Good
Reason and add, as an additional basis for resigning with Good Reason, a requirement to relocate more than 50 miles
from his or her then current location. If these executives are terminated by Deluxe without cause or the executive
terminates his or her employment for Good Reason, he or she will receive payments calculated on the same basis as the
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payments that Mr. Schram would receive, except that any additional monthly payment following the first 12 months of
salary continuation would last for only six months. Receipt of these benefits by Mr. Schram or any other Named
Executive Officers is conditioned upon the executive entering into a release. The Named Executive Officers are required
by their severance arrangements to maintain the confidentiality of Company confidential information for a period of two
years after their termination. Mr. Schram's employment agreement also requires that for two years after he ceases to be
employed by Deluxe he will not engage in any business that competes with Deluxe, will not hire any Company employee
or induce an employee to provide confidential information to a third party, and will not induce any customer or supplier to
stop deing business with the Company.

The severance arrangements are not effective if the executive's employment is terminated following a change of
control under circumstances that would entitle them to receive benefits under the retention agreements described below
(“Retention Agreements”).

The Company has entered into Retention Agreements with Mr. Schram, the Senior Vice Presidents and select
Vice Presidents who are members of the executive leadership team (“hereinafter, “Executives”) that are designed to
ensure that Deluxe will receive the continued service of the Executive in the event of a change of control, by reducing the
distraction that could be caused by personal uncertainty about their compensation and benefits under those
circumstances. Under the Retention Agreements, each of the participating Executives agrees to remain employed by
Deluxe, and Deluxe agrees to continue to employ each Executive, until the second anniversary following a “Change of
Control” (as that term is defined in the Retention Agreements). During the two-year period (the “Employment Period”),
each Executive is entitled to maintain a position, authority, duties and responsibiiities at least commensurate with the most
significant of those held by the Executive during the 180-day period prior to the date (the “Effective Date") of the Change
of Control. The annual base salary of an Executive may not be reduced below that earned by the Executive during the
twelve-month period preceding the Effective Date, provided, however, that the annual base salary may be reduced to an
amount that is not less than 90 percent of the base salary in effect on the Effective Date pursuant te an across-the-board
reduction of base salary similarly affecting all executive officers of Deluxe. 1n determining any increase in an Executive's
base salary during the Employment Period, the Executive is to be treated in a manner consistent with other peer
executives. The Executives are also entitled to receive annual incentive payments during the Employment Period on the
same objective basis as other peer executives, although in no event may an Executive’s annual target bonus opportunity
be less favorable to the Executive than that provided by Deluxe in the last fiscal year prior to the Effective Date, and if the
bonuses payable to other peer executives during the Employment Period are not wholly based on objective criteria, the
Executive's annual incentive payment must be at least equal to an amount determined with reference fo the Executive’s
average annual incentive payments for certain periods ending prior to the Effective Date. During the Employment Period,
each Executive is also entitled to-participate in Deluxe's stock incentive, retirement, and other benefit plans on the same
basis as Deluxe's other Executives, and the benefits to the Executives under such plans generally may not be reduced
from those provided during the one-year period prior to the Effective Date.

If, during the Employment Period, Deluxe terminates a participating Executive’s employment other than for
“Cause” or “Disability,” or the Executive terminates his or her employment for "Good Reason” (as those terms are defined
in the Retention Agreements), the Executive is entitled to a lump-sum payment equal to the sum of any unpaid base
salary, deferred compensation and accrued vacation pay through the date of termination, plus a pro-rated annual
incentive payment for the year of termination based on the greater of (1) the Executive’s target bonus under Deluxe’s
annual incentive plan in respect of the year in which the termination occurs or, if greater, for the year in which the Change
of Control occurs (the “Target Bonus”") and (2) the annual incentive payment that the Executive would have earned for the
year in which the termination occurs based upon projecting to the end of that year Deluxe’s actual performance through
the termination date. In addition, the Executive is entitled to receive a tump-sum payment equal to three times for Mr.
Schram and the Senior Vice Presidents, and one time for Vice Presidents, the sum of the Executive's annual base salary
and the higher of the Target Bonus or the average of the Executive’s annual incentive payments for the last three full
fiscal years prior to the Effective Date, plus three times for Mr. Schram and the Senior Vice Presidents, and one time for
Vice Presidents, the amount that would have been contributed by Deluxe or its affiliates to the retirement and
supplemental retirement plans in which the Executive participated prior to his or her termination. Certain resignations and
terminations in anticipation of Changes of Control also constitute qualifying terminations. The Executives are also entitled
to the continuation of their medical, disability, life and other health insurance benefits for up to a three-year period for Mr.
Schram and the Senior Vice Presidents, and one-year period for Vice Presidents, after a quallfymg termination and to
certain out-placement services.

The Retention Agreements also provide that if any payment or benefit received or to be received by an Executive,
whether or not pursuant to his or her Retention Agreement, would be subject to the federal excise tax on “parachute
payments” as defined in Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code, Deluxe will pay to the Executive an additional
amount so that the Executive realizes, after the payment of such excise tax and any income tax or excise tax on such
additional amount, the amount cof such compensation.
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In 2007, the Board’s Compensation Committee delivered to the CEOQ and each Senior Vice President then party
to a Retention Agreement a notice of non-renewal under the current Retention Agreements, such that they will terminate
by their terms on December 18, 2009. Coinciding with the notices of non-renewal, the Committee authorized the
execution of new Retention Agreements that take effect upon expiration of the current agreements. In addition to
amending the current agreements to comply with Internal Revenue Code Section 409A, the new Retention Agreements
reduce the renewable term of the agreements from three years to two years, place a limit on tax gross-up payments, and
also include a reduction in the salary and bonus payment multiple for the Senior Vice Presidents from three times to two
times. The Retention Agreements with the Vice Presidents were entered into at the same time the new agreements were
executed with the CEO and Senior Vice Presidents.

Deluxe also utilizes standard forms of stock option and restricted stock award agreements in conjunction with its
long-term incentive program. These agreements provide for accelerated vesting of the awards, in whole or in part, upon
certain events, including termination of the employee without cause or a change of control. Generally speaking, for
awards issued prior to 2007, stock options vest in full, and restricted stock vests pro rata, upon termination without cause
or a change of control. For awards issued in 2007, vesting upon a change of control will only be accelerated if the
acquiring or surviving entity fails to honor the award agreements with comparable equity, or if the employee is terminated
without cause or resigns for Good Reason (as defined in the agreements) following the change of control.

The foregoing summary is qualified in its entirety by reference to the complete text of Mr. Schram's Employment
Agreement, and the forms of Retention Agreement, severance agreement and equity award agreements, all of which are
filed as exhibits to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007.

The following table illustrates the benefits that would be received by the named executives under the severance
arrangements described above, assuming a hypothetical severance occurring on the last business day of the prior fiscal
year.

SEVERANCE CALCULATIONS
Restricted
Salary Stock Option Stock .
Name Continuation® Outplacement’ | Acceleration ¥ | Acceleration Other Total
($) ($) {3) (% (%) (%)

Lee J. 1,510,000 9,500 1,185,685 1,224,495 13,000 3,942,680
Schram

Richard S. 532,500 8,500 13,896 191,716 13,000 ) 760,612
Greene

Luann E. 517,500 9,500 156,622 799,227 13,000 1,495,849
Widener

Anthony C. 480,000 9,500 109,810 502,987 13,000 1,115,297
Scarfone

Terry D. 426,360 9,500 44,295 279,269 13,000 772,424
Peterson

1 Salary continuation benefits include twelve months of full salary, plus the difference in compensation otherwise
earned by the individual and their base salary at termination from Deluxe for (a) an additional twelve months for the
CEOQ, and {b) an additional six months for the other executives. Amounts shown assume no employment is secured
after the initial twelve months, and therefore reflect maximum amounts payable.

2 Estimated cost of outplacement services for twelve months.

3 Accelerated vesting on stock options at the time of termination, with three months to exercise. The value is based on
the closing price of Deluxe common stock on December 31, 2007 ($32.89 per share).

4 Pro-rata acceleration of vesting on restricted stock based on the date of termination. Value based on the closing price
of Deluxe common stock on December 31, 2007 ($32.89 per share). The amount for Mr. Schram includes full vesting
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of the unvested shares attributed to a one-time grant made upon hire to replace forfeited equity compensation from
his prior employer. The amount listed for Ms. Widener assumes approved retiree status at the time of severance,
which requires at least 20 years of services and more than 75 points {age plus years of service) with the Company, as
well as Compensation Committee approval, and results in full vesting of awards.

5 Lump-sum payment in lieu of benefits continuation.
The following table illustrates the benefits that would be received by the Named Executive Officers under the

Retention Agreements described above, assuming a hypothetical triggering event occurring on the last business day of
the prior fiscal year.

CHANGE OF CONTROL CALCULATIONS

Due on Change of
Control followed
by termination by CE:: ?anof
Name Type of Compensation Company without Const,rol
cause or by (%)
Executive for
Good Reason ($)
Severance ' 4,530,000
Vesting of Options * 1,185,688 1,139,320
Vesting of Restricted Stock ° 2,039,749 1,377,240
Lee J. Schram Benefit Continuation * 45,000
Retirement Plan Contribution ° 231,030
Qutplacement ° 25,000
Total Payments Before Excise Tax 8,056,467 2,516,560
Excise Tax Gross-Up ’ 2,158,620
Total 10,215,087 2,516,560
Due on Change of
Control followed
by termination by CI?:: znof
Name Type of Compensation Company without Con?rol

cause or by
Executive for
Good Reason ($)

(%)

Severance 1,597,500

Vesting of Options * 13,896

Vesting of Restricted Stock ° 257,921 71,864
Richard S. Greene Benefit Continuation * 45,000

Retirement Plan Contribution > 81,473

Outplacement ® 25,000

Total Payments Before Excise Tax 2,020,790 71,864

Excise Tax Gross-Up * 782,512

Totat 2,803,302 71,864
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Due on Change of
Control followed

C o Due on
. by termination by Change of
Name Type of Compensation Company without Control
cause or by ($)
Executive for
Good Reason ($)
Severance 1,552,500
Vesting of Options * 165,609 153,249
Vesting of Restricted Stock * 253,622 88,497
Luann E. Widener Benefit Continuation * 45,000
Retirement Plan Contribution ° 79,178
Outplacement * 25,000
Total Payments Before Excise Tax 2,120,908 241,746
Excise Tax Gross-Up ’ 728,672
Total 2,849,581 241,746
Due on Change of
Control followed
_ by tem\inatipn by CE ::ggnof
Name Type of Compensation Company without Control
cause or by ($)
Executive for
Good Reason ($)
Severance ' 1,440,000
Vesting of Options * 120,594 109,794
Vesting of Restricted Stock * 218,245 74,051
Anthony C. Scarfone Benefit Continuation * 45,000
Retirement Plan Contribution ° 73,440
Outplacement ° 25,000
Total Payments Before Excise Tax 1,922,279 183,845
Excise Tax Gross-Up 645,217
Total 2,567,496 183,845
Due on Change of
Control followed
. by termination by CI? ::’ g‘;nof
Name Type of Compensation Company without Control
: causeprby ($)
Executive for
Good Reason ($)
Severance ' 397,936
Vesting of Options “ 49,128 45,432
Vesting of Restricted Stock s 84,112 35,272
Terry D. Peterson Benefit Continuation * 15,000
Retirement Plan Contribution ° 20,295
Outplacement ® 25,000
Total Payments Before Excise Tax 591,471 80,704
Excise Tax Gross-Up ’ 0
Total 591,471 80,704
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1 Severance is equal to three times for Mr. Schram and the Senior Vice Presidents, and one time for Mr. Peterson, the
total of (a) the current base salary, plus (b} the higher of the individual's target annual bonus or the average actual
bonus earned for each of the prior three years.

2 The amount listed in the column titled “Due on Change of Control followed by termination by Company without cause
or by Executive for Good Reason” reflects full acceleration of options. The amount listed in the column titled “Due on
Change of Control” reflects full acceleration of options for grants made prior to 2007 and no acceleration on stock
options granted in 2007.

3 The amount listed in the column titled “Due on Change of Control followed by termination by Company without cause
or by Executive for Good Reason” reflects pro-rated acceleration of restricted stock. The amount listed in the column
titled “Due on Change of Control” reflects pro-rated acceleration of restricted stock granted prior to 2007 and no
acceleration on restricted stock granted in 2007,

4 Assumes $15,000 annually for three years for Mr. Schram and the Senior Vice Presidents, and for one year for Mr,
Peterson.

5 Assumes 4 percent defined contribution and 1.1 percent profit sharing payment annually for three years.

6 Assumes full use of the 12-month executive outplacement program at an amount not to exceed $25,000.

7 The excise tax imposed by the Internal Revenue Code ("Code”) on excess “parachute payments” is 20 percent. This
excise tax, together with any corresponding tax gross-up, applies only if the total value of change in control payments
calculated under Section 280G of the Code equals or exceeds three times the average annual compensation
attributable to the executive's employment with Deluxe over the prior five-year period. As a result, the gross-up
amount shown reflects the executive's unique earnings history with Deluxe and can vary significantly from year to
year,

FISCAL YEAR 2007 AUDIT
AND INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Audit Committee Report

The following is the report of the Audit Committee with respect to Deluxe’s audited financial statements presented
in its Annual Report to Shareholders for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, which include the consolidated balance
sheets of Deluxe as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive
income and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007, and the notes thereto. The
information contained in this Audit Committee Report shall not be deemed to be “scliciting material” or to be “filed” with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, nor shall such information be incorporated by reference into any future filing under
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, except to the extent that
Deluxe specifically incorporates it by reference in such filing.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors currently is comprised of the five undersigned directors, all of
whom have been determined by the Board to be independent under the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission
and the New York Stock Exchange. The Audit Committee acts under a written charter approved by the Board of
Directors. The Audit Committee reviews the adequacy of that charter on an annuai basis. A complete copy of the
Committee's charter is posted on the Investor Relations page of the Investors section of Deluxe’s website at
www deluxe.com under the “Corporate Governance” caption.

As stated in its charter, the Audit Committee assists the Board in monitoring the integrity of Deluxe's financial
statements, the effectiveness of the internal audit function and independent registered public accounting firm, and
Deluxe’s compliance systems. In carrying out these responsibilities, the Audit Committee met with Deluxe management
periodically during the year to consider the adequacy of Deluxe's internal controls and the objectivity of its financial
reporting. The Audit Committee discussed these matters with PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Deluxe's independent
registered public accounting firm, and with the appropriate financial personnel and internal auditors, and met privately on
a regular basis with both the independent registered public accounting firm and with the internal auditors, each of whom
reports and has unrestricted access to the Audit Committee.
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The Audit Committee reviewed with management and the independent registered public accounting firm Deluxe’s
2007 audited financial statements and met separately with both management and the independent registered public
accounting firm to discuss and review those financial statements and reports prior to issuance. Management has the
primary responsibility for Deluxe's financial statements and the overalt reporting process, including Deluxe’s system of
internal controls. Management has represented, and PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP has indicated in its opinion to the
Audit Committee, that Deluxe maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over its financial reporting as of
December 31, 2007, and that the financial statements were prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles and fairly present, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of Deluxe.

The Audit Committee also received from, and discussed with, the independent registered public accounting firm
the written disclosures and letter required by Independence Standards Board Standard No. 1 (Independence Discussions
with Audit Committees). These items relate to that firm's independence from Deluxe. As part of its efforts to ensure the
independence of Deluxe’s independent registered public accounting firm, the Committee maintains a policy requiring the
pre-approval by the Committee of all services to be provided by the independent registered public accounting firm, and
reviews all services actually performed by the independent registered public accounting firm in connection with its
discussions regarding the independent registered public accounting firm's continued independence. The Audit Committee
also discussed with the independent registered public accounting firm the matters required to be discussed by Statement
on Auditing Standards Nos. 61 and 90 (Communication with Audit Committees), which include, among other items,
matters related to the conduct of the audit of Deluxe’s financial statements.

Based on the review and discussions referred to above, the Committee recommended to Deluxe’s Board of
Directors that Deluxe’s audited financial statements be included in Deluxe's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2007.

MEMBERS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

Martyn R. Redgrave, Chair
Ronald C. Baldwin

Isaiah Harris, Jr.

Cheryl E. Mayberry McKissack
Mary Ann O'Dwyer

Fees Paid to Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Aggregate fees for professional services rendered for Deluxe by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP during the years
ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 were as follows:

2007 2006
Audit Fees $1,685,554 $1,768,706
Audit-Related Fees 0 4,500
Tax Fees 0 0
All Other Fees 8,000 8,000
fotal Fees $1,693,554 $1,781,206

The Audit Fees billed for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 were for professional services rendered
for audits of the annual consotidated financial statements and the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting,
reviews of the related quarterly financial statements included in Deluxe’s quarterly reports on Form 10-Q filed with the
SEC, services in connection with the filing of SEC registration statements, and consultations regarding accounting or
. disclosure treatment of transactions which were directly part of the audit.

The Audit-Related Fees billed in the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006 were for employee benefit plan audits.
All Other Fees in 2007 and 2006 consist of fees incurred by the Company for Human Resource benchmarking data
provided by Saratoga, an affiliate of Pricewaterhouse Coopers LLP.

-39- |




The Audit Committee approved all of the services and fees described above.
Policy on Audit Committee Pre-Approval of Accounting Firm Fees and Services

In order to assure that our independent registered public accounting firm is engaged only to provide audit and
non-audit services that are compatible with maintaining their independence, the Audit Committee has adopted a policy
which requires the Audit Committee to review and approve all services to be provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
before the firm is engaged to provide such services. The Audit Committee may delegate its pre-approval authority to one
ar more members of the Audit Committee; provided, however, that a full report of any such delegated approvals must be
given at the next Audit Committee meeting. The Audit Committee is required to specifically approve the fee levels for all
services. Requests for approval of services must be jointly submitted to the Audit Committee by the independent
registered public accounting firm, Deluxe's Chief Financial Officer and Deluxe's Vice President of Internal Audit, and must
include (1) a joint statement as to whether, in their view, the request is consistent with the SEC's rules on auditor
independence and (2) a reasonably detailed description of the proposed services. The complete text of our Audit and
Non-Audit Services Pre-Approval Policy is posted on the Investor Relations page of the Investors section of our website at
www.deluxe.com under the “Corporate Governance” caption. A copy of the Policy is available in print free of charge to
any stockholder who submits a request to: Corporate Secretary, Deluxe Corporation, 3680 Victoria Street North,
Shoreview, Minnesota 551286.

ITEM 2: RATIFICATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT
REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Audit Committee has appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as Deluxe’s independent registered public
accounting firm to examine Deluxe’s financial statements and internal controls over financial reporting for the fiscal year
ending December 31, 2008. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP has acted as Deluxe’s independent registered public
accounting firm since 2001.

Fursuant to the Audit Committee’s charter, the Board of Directors is submitting the appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as Deluxe's independent registered public accounting firm for fiscal year ended December
31, 2008 to the shareholders for ratification. Shareholder approval of this appointment is not required, but the Board is
submitting the selection of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP for ratification in order to obtain the views of the Company's
shareholders. If the appointment is not ratified, the Audit Committee will reconsider its selection. Deluxe anticipates that
representatives of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP will be present at the meeting, will have the opportunity to make a
statement if they so desire and will be able to respond to appropriate guestions from shareholders.

The Board of Directors recommends that you vote FOR the ratification of the selection of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as Deluxe’s independent registered public accounting firm.

ITEM 3: APPROVAL OF THE 2008 ANNUAL INCENTIVE PLAN

GENERAL

As explained in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis section of this proxy statement, annual incentive
compensation is an integral part of our compensation program. In recent years, our management and highly
compensated employees have received awards under Deluxe's 2004 Annual Incentive Plan, which expires on December
31, 2008. The proposed plan, if approved, would become effective on January 1, 2009. The purpose of these annual
incentive plans is to advance the interests of Deluxe and its shareholders by attracting and retaining key employees
through competitive compensation packages, and to provide employees with an opportunity to increase their ownership of
" our commaon stock, which will align their personal interests to Deluxe’s long-term success. As in the case of the current
plan, the proposed 2008 Annual Incentive Plan (the “2008 Incentive Plan” or “Plan”) is designed to reward executive
officers and key employees only if specific, objective, predetermined performance goals are achieved during a
perfarmance period.

Subject to shareholder approval, the 2008 Incentive Plan is designed so that compensation paid under the Plan
will be tax deductible by Deluxe under Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”).
Section 162(m) of the Code generally limits to $1,000,000 the amount that Deluxe is allowed each year to deduct for
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compensation paid to our chief executive officer and our three most highly compensated executive officers other than our
chief financial officer (sometimes referred to as “162(m) officers”). However, “qualified performance-based compensation”
is not subject to this deductibility limit. The 2008 Incentive Plan contains provisions necessary for the incentive payments
made under the Plan to qualify as performance-based compensation, including the requirement that Deluxe’s
shareholders approve the business criteria upon which performance goals are based and a limit on the maximum amount
that may be paid to an executive officer with respect to any performance period.

In accordance with the requirements of Section 162(m) of the Code, the 2008 Incentive Plan is being presented to
shareholders for their approval. If the shareholders approve the Plan, all incentive payments under the Plan would be
deductible under Section 162(m) of the Code for the next five fiscal years. If the Plan is not approved by shareholders, no
awards would be paid to the 162(m) officers under the Plan. In such event, the Compensation Committee could use an
alternative framework for the annual incentive program, but such alternative likely would not comply with Section 162(m).

The complete text of the 2008 Incentive Plan is attached as Appendix A to this proxy statement. The following
summary is qualified in its entirety by reference to Appendix A.

SUMMARY OF THE 2008 INCENTIVE PLAN

Eligibility

Participation in the Plan would be limited to executive officers and other key employees setected by the
Compensation Committee. As of the date of this proxy statement, approximately 150 employees would be expected to be
participants in the 2008 Incentive Plan.

Administration

The Plan would be administered by the Compensation Committee of the Board, which consists solely of
individuals who qualify as “non-employee directors” within the meaning of Rule 16b-3 under the Exchange Act and
“outside directors” within the meaning of Section 162(m) of the Code. On or prior to the 90th day of each performance
period under the Plan, the Compensation Committee must designate the participants, set the performance goals for the
awards for the applicable performance period, determine the percentage of any match to be provided on that portion of
awards participants elect to receive in the form of equity as opposed to cash, and determine the other terms and
conditions of the awards. Before March 15 of the year following a performance period, the Compensation Committee
would be required to certify the extent to which the applicable performance goals have been achieved and the payments
to be made based on that certification. The Compensation Committee also would have the authority to interpret the Plan,
and to establish rules and make any determinations for the administration of the Plan in accordance with applicable law.

The Compensation Committee would have the authority to delegate any of its powers and duties under the 2008
Incentive Plan to one or more of Deluxe's officers or a committee of such officers, unless such delegation would cause the
Plan to fail to comply with the provisions of Section 162(m) of the Code. In addition, the Compensation Committee would
be prohibited from delegating its power to make determinations regarding awards for executive officers.

Determination of Incentive Awards; Payment

Awards granted to participants under the Plan would be specified as a dollar amount or percentage of annual
base salary, as determined by the Compensation Committee. The right to receive payment of any award would be based
solely on the attainment of one or more specific, objective, predetermined performance goals selected by the
Compensation Committee within the first 90 days of a performance period. For the chief executive officer and other
162(m) officers, performance goals would be based solely on one or more of the following business criteria: sales values;
margins; volume; cash flow; stock price; market share; revenue; sales; earnings per share; profits; earnings before
interest expense and taxes; earnings before interest expense, interest income and taxes; earnings before interest
expense, taxes, and depreciation andfor amortization; earnings before interest expense, interest income, taxes, and
depreciation and/or amortization; return on equity or costs; return on invested or average capital employed; economic
value; or cumulative total return to sharehotders. The Compensation Committee could designate other performance
criteria for awards to participants who are not 162{m) officers of Deluxe. Performance goals could be set to relate to a
particular individual, an identifiable business unit or Deluxe as a whole.
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The maximum amount of any payment that could be made to an individual participant pursuant to the Plan for any .
performance period could not exceed $5,000,000. Once awards have been calculated under the predetermined criteria,
the Compensation Committee could not make an adjustment that would increase the payment to any 162{m) officer for
any performance period, but would have discretion to reduce the payment that would otherwise be payable under the
performance criteria. The Compensation Committee would have the discretion to increase or decrease the amount of an
award othenmse payable to any participant who is not a 162(m) officer.

The Compensation Committee could permit participants to elect to receive all or portion of their incentive payment
in the form of cash, shares of common stock, restricted stock units or a combination of these. All equity compensation
paid to participants would be granted under and governed by the terms and conditions of Deluxe’s 2008 Stock Incentive
Plan, a copy of which is attached to this proxy statement and also is being submitted for shareholder approval (see ltem 4
below). The Compensation Committee could also award additional shares of common stock or restricted stock units to
participants who elect to receive their incentive payment in the form of equity (i.e., provide an equity match}, provided that
the value of all such shares and restricted stock units, combined with other awards payable to an individual participant
under the Plan, would not exceed $5,000,000 for any performance period. Shares of common stock and restricted stock
units would be granted under and governed by the terms and conditions of Deluxe’s 2008 Stock Incentive Plan. We
expect that a participant who receives restricted stock units would also receive cash payments equivalent to any cash
dividends paid on a corresponding number of shares of Deluxe common stock until such time the restricted stock units are
forfeited or exchanged for shares of common stock. Participants may also elect to defer any cash incentive payments in
accordance with any available deferred compensation plan.

Amendment and Termination

The Board of Directors would have the authority to amend, suspend or terminate the 2008 Incentive Plan without
the approval of Deluxe's shareholders unless, in the absence of shareholder approval, such action would violate the rules
or regulations of the New York Stock Exchange or any other securities exchange that are applicable to Deluxe. The Plan
would terminate by its terms on December 31, 2013, No awards could be granted under the Plan after it terminates, but
outstanding awards could extend beyond the termination unless otherwise expressty provided in the Plan.

Federal Tax Consequences

The following is a summary of the principal federal income tax consequences generally applicable to incentive
payments that could be made under the 2008 Incentive Plan.

The amount of any cash or the dollar value of any common stock received outright and not subject to forfeiture, or
common stock received upon vesting of restricted stock units granted in connection with the Plan, would be taxable as
ordinary income to a participant. Subject to the usual rules concerning reasonable compensation, and assuming that, as
expected, compensation paid under the Plan is “qualified performance-based compensation” within the meaning of
Section 162(m) of the Code, Deluxe would be entitled to a corresponding tax deduction no later than the time a participant
recognizes ordinary income from an award under the Plan.

Participants who received shares of common stock pursuant to the Plan that were not transferable and subject to
a substantial risk of forfeiture would-be required, unless a special election were made pursuant to the Code, to recognize
ordinary income equal to the fair market value of such securities, determined as of the first time such securities become
transferable or were not subject to a substantial risk of forfeiture, whichever occurred earlier. Deluxe would expect to be
entitled to a corresponding tax deduction. It is not anticipated that there would be any tax consequences to Deluxe in
connection with a subsequent disposition of any securities acquired by a participant,

BOARD VOTING RECOMMENDATION

The Board of Directors recommends that you vote FOR the proposal to approve the Deluxe Corporation
2008 Annual Incentive Plan.
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ITEM 4: APPROVAL OF THE 2008 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN
GENERAL

Deluxe's shareholders approved the Company's current Stock Incentive Plan in 2000 and approved amendments
to that plan in 2002 and 2004 (the “2000 Stock Incentive Plan”). The 2000 Stock Incentive Plan expires on December 31,
2008. The Company proposes to replace the 2000 Stock Incentive Plan with the 2008 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2008
Stock Incentive Plan” or “Plan™), subject to shareholder approval. If approved, the 2008 Stock Incentive Plan would
immediately become effective and the 2000 Stock Incentive Plan would simultaneously terminate. The Plan provides for
grants of various types of stock-based awards that are designed to align the interests of our executive officers and other
key employees with the long-term interests of our shareholders and to support Deluxe’s business objectives. We intend
to continue to rely on a combination of options and other stock-based awards to achieve our compensation objectives.
This strategy is outlined in further detail in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis section of this proxy statement.
Accordingly, the Board of Directors recommends approval of the 2008 Stock Incentive Plan, as described below.

The 2008 Stock Incentive Plan would make 4,000,000 shares available for awards under the Plan. In accounting
for usage of this authorized pool of shares, however, certain awards such as restricted stock and performance awards
(referred to as “Full Value Awards”) would have the effect of reducing the available pool more than other awards, as
further described below and in the Plan. The proposed Plan also would permit performance awards paid under it to be tax
deductible to Deluxe under Section 162(m) of the Code, as “qualified performance-based compensation,” as did the 2000
Stock Incentive Plan.

If the 2008 Stock Incentive Plan is not approved by shareholders, Deluxe will continue to use the 2000 Stock
Incentive Plan in its current form as the framework for its equity-based incentive compensation program until its expiration
date. However, after its expiration date, we would not be able to continue to offer a long-term incentive program that
employs equity awards, which could put us at a competitive disadvantage in recruiting and retaining talent, and aisc make
it more difficult for us to align employee interests with those of our shareholders through a program that includes stock
ownership. Without shareholder approval, Performance Awards and similar long-term cash incentives also would not be
tax deductible to the Company under Section 162(m) of the Code.

The following is a summary of the material terms of the 2008 Stock Incentive Plan. The compiete text of the Plan
is attached as Appendix B to this proxy statement. The following summary is qualified in its entirety by reference to
Appendix B.

SUMMARY OF THE 2008 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

Shares Available For Awards

The 2008 Stock Incentive Plan would provide for the issuance of up to 4,000,000 shares of common stock,
subject to adjustment for any dividend or other distribution, recapitalization, stock split, merger or other similar corporate
transaction or event affecting our shares of common stock. The Plan would provide that no participant may be granted an
award of more than 500,000 shares in the aggregate in any calendar year, the value of which award or awards is based
solely on an increase of the value of shares after the date of grant of the award or awards.

If any shares of common stock subject to any award or to which an award related were not purchased or are
forfeited, or if any such award terminated without the delivery of any shares, the shares previously set aside for such
awards would be available for future awards under the Plan. Shares delivered to the Company or withheld from an award
for payment of an exercise price or tax withholfding would not be available for future grants under the Plan. Shares
underlying awards that allowed the holder to receive or purchase shares would be counted against the aggregate number
of shares available under the Plan. If an award or a portion of it provided for receipt of shares without payment of an
amount equal to the fair market value of the shares at the time of the grant (referred to as Full Value Awards), the
aggregate number of shares available for grants under the Plan would be reduced by the number of shares underlying
such Full Value Award multiplied by 2.29, or if such an award were forfeited or terminated without delivery of the shares,
the number of shares that again became eligible for grants would be multiplied by 2.29.

Administration

The Compensation Committee would administer the 2008 Stock Incentive Plan and have full power and authority
to determine when and to whom awards would be granted and the type, amount, form of payment and other terms and
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conditions of each award, consistent with the provisions of the Plan and applicable law. Subject to the provisions of the
Plan, the Compensation Committee could amend or waive the terms and conditions of an outstanding award, but would
be prohibited from repricing outstanding stock cptions or changing the time or form of payment of an outstanding award in
a way that would cause the Plan to fail to comply with Section 409A of the Code. The Compensation Commitiee would
have authority to interpret the Plan and establish rules and regulations for its administration. In the event of a merger or
similar transactions, the Compensation Committee could cause shares underlying outstanding awards to be converted
into stock of the resulting entity or could cause the awards to be settled by a cash payment equal to the fair market value
of the resulting shares reduced by the exercise price of the award or cancelled without payment if the fair market value did
not exceed the exercise price. The Compensation Committee could delegate its powers and duties to one or more of
Deluxe's officers, except that the Compensation Committee could not delegate any of its powers and duties with respect
to individuals who were subject to Section 16 of the Exchange Act or in a way that would cause the 2008 Stock Incentive
Plan to fail to comply with any of the requirements of Section 162(m) of the Code.

Eligible Employees

Any employee or non-employee director of Deluxe or its affiliates selected by the Compensation Committee would
be eligible to receive an award under the 2008 Stock Incentive Plan. As of the date of this proxy statement, if the Plan
were in effect, approximately 225 employees officers and directors would be eligible as a class to be selected by the
Compensation Committee to receive awards under the Plan,

Types of Awards and Terms and Conditions
The 2008 Stock Incentive Plan would permit the granting of:

+ stock options;

» stock appreciation rights (“SARs");

* restricted stock and restricted stock units;

« performance awards;

« dividend equivalents; and

« other stock-based awards valued in whole or in part by reference to or otherwise based
upon the value of the Company's common stock.

Awards could be granted alone, in addition to, in combination with or in substitution for any other award granted
under the Plan or any other compensation plan. Notwithstanding the foregoing, although a stock appreciation right could
be granted in tandem with a non-qualified stock option, the recipient could exercise only one or the other and the shares
would be counted only once toward reduction of the authorized share pool. Awards could be granted for no cash
consideration or for such minimal cash consideration as might be required by applicable law, and could provide that upon
the grant or exercise thereof, the holder would receive cash, shares of common stock or other securities, awards or
property, or any combination of these. The exercise price per share under any stock option, the grant price of any SAR
and the purchase price of any security which could be purchased under any other stock-based award could not be less
than the fair market value on the date of grant of such option, SAR or award. Determinations of fair market value under
the Plan would be made in accordance with methods and procedures established by the Compensation Committee, but
the fair market value of Deluxe shares always would be based on the closing price of those shares on the relevant date.

Stock Options. Options granted under the Plan could not have terms longer than ten years, except that in the
event the recipient of an incentive stock option owned more than ten percent of the Company’s stock, the term of the
option could be no longer than five years. Option recipients could exercise their options by tendering cash, shares of
common stock or other consideration having a fair market value on the date the option was exercised equal to the
exercise price, ar 110% of the fair market value if the payment were in exercise of an incentive stock option by a
participant who owned more than ten percent of the Company's stock. The Plan would not permit the grant of additional
options to purchase shares of commaon stock to participants who exercised their options by delivery of shares in payment
of the exercise price. The fair market value of incentive stock options granted te an individual in any one year could not
exceed $100,000, and no options could be granted at an exercise price less than the fair market value of the undertying
shares on the date of grant.

Stock Appreciation Rights. The holder of a SAR would be entitled to receive the excess of the fair market
value, calculated as of the exercise date, of a specified number of shares of common stock over the grant price of the
SAR, which can be no less than the fair market value of the underlying shares on the grant date.

Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units. Shares of restricted stock and restricted stock units would be
subject to such restrictions as the Compensation Committee might impose (including any limitations on the right to vote or
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the right to receive dividends). These restrictions could lapse separately or in combination at any time, in installments or
otherwise as the Compensation Committee determined. Restricted stock and restricted stock units could not be
transferred by the holder until the restrictions established by the Compensation Committee lapsed. Holders of restricted
stock units would have the right, subject to any terms and conditions imposed by the Compensation Committee, to receive
shares of common stock at some future date. Except as otherwise determined by the Committee, upon termination of the
holder's employment (as determined under criteria established by the Compensation Committee) during the applicable
restriction period, shares of restricted stock and restricted stock units would be forfeited. The Compensation Commitiee
also would retain the authority, when it found that a waiver would be in the best interests of Deluxe, to waive all or part of
any remaining restrictions.

Performance Awards. Performance awards granted under the 2008 Stock Incentive Plan would be intended o
qualify as “performance-based compensation” within the meaning of Section 162(m) of the Code. Performance awards
would give participants the right to receive payments based solely upon the achievement of certain performance goals
during a specified performance period. With respect to performance awards intended to qualify as “performance-based
compensation,” the Compensation Committee would establish the performance criteria and target awards for each award
recipient within the first 90 days of each performance period. Performance goals would be based solely on one or more of
the following business criteria: sales values; margins; volume; cash flow; stock price; market share; revenue, sales;
earnings per share; share price; profits; earnings before interest expense and taxes; earnings before interest expense,
interest income and taxes; earnings before interest expense, taxes, and depreciation andfor amortization; earnings before
interest expanse, interest income, taxes, and depreciation and/or amortization; return on equity; assets or costs; retum on
invested or average capital employed; economic value; or cumulative total return to shareholders,

The measure of performance would be set by reference to an absolute standard or a comparison with specified
companies or groups of companies and would be applied at individual or organizational levels. Following the close of a
performance period and prior to payment of any amount with respect to a performance award, the Compensation
Committee would certify the attainment of applicable goals and such certification would occur in sufficient time to permit
payment to be made by the fifteenth day of the third month following the end of the performance period. The aggregate
dollar value of performance awards paid to any recipient in any calendar year could not exceed $5,000,000. Ifa
participant died, became permanently and totally disabled or if such participant's employment were terminated for some
other reason, the Compensation Committee could provide for a pro rata payment of the award for periods leading up to
the termination of employment.

Other Stock-Based Awards. Under the 2008 Stock Incentive Plan, dividend equivalents could be authorized by
the Compensation Committee with respect to Restricted Stock, Restricted Stock Units or Performance Awards payable in
stock, but not with respect to options or stock appreciation rights, which provide for payments (in cash, shares of common
stock or otherwise, as determined by the Compensation Committee) equivalent to the amount of cash dividends to other
shareholders with respect to a number of shares of common stock determined by the Compensation Committee. These
dividend equivalents would be paid at the same time as dividends paid to the Company’s shareholders, unless the
Compensation Committee were to specify otherwise in the applicable award agreements. The Compensation Committee
would also be authorized to establish the terms and conditions of other stock-based awards.

Certain Awards to Non-Employee Directors. Each non-employee director would be eligible to receive or elect
to receive his or her fees for service on the Board and its committees in shares of common stock or restricted stock units,
and to defer the receipt of any such shares by filing with the Company an election to do so no later than December 31 of.
the year preceding the year to which the election would apply. Any director whose initial appointment to the Board
accurred during the year would have 30 days from such appointment to file an election which would then apply to the
remainder of the year. Each non-empioyee director also would be eligible to receive non-qualified stock options, stock
appreciation rights, and restricted stock or restricted stock units.

if a participating director left the Board prior to the end of a fiscal quarter, the director would be paid the quarterly
installment of the fees for the quarter in accordance with the director's previously filed election provided that the director
would not continue or resume providing services to the Company.

In the event of a change of control as defined by Section 409A of the Code, the stock units deferred by a
participating director as of the last business day prior to the change of control would be converted inte an equal number of
shares of the resulting entity, and such shares would be issued or distributed to the participating director as soon as
practical.

Duration, Termination and Amendment. Unless earlier discontinued or terminated by the Board of Directors,
the 2008 Stock Incentive Plan would expire on December 31, 2018. No awards could be made after that date. However,
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unless otherwise expressly provided in the Plan or an applicable award agreement, any award granted under the Plan
prior to its expiration could extend beyond the end of such period.

The Board of Directors could amend, alter or discontinue the Plan at any time, although shareholder approval
would be required for any action that would increase the number of shares available or the award limits under the Plan, or
cause Deluxe to be unable, under the Code, to grant incentive stock options. Shareholder approval also would be
required for any action that, absent such approval, would violate the rules and regulations of the New York Stock
Exchange, any other securities exchange or the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. applicable to Deluxe.

Federal Tax Consequences

The grant of an option or SAR under the 2008 Stock Incentive Plan would not be expected to result in any taxable
income to the recipient. The holder of an incentive stock option generally would have no taxable income upon exercising
the option {except that a liability might arise pursuant to the alternative minimum tax), and Deluxe would not be entitled to
a tax deduction when an incentive stock option was exercised. Upan exercising a non-qualified stock option, participants
would recognize ordinary income equal to the excess of the fair market value of the shares of common stock acquired on
the date of exercise over the exercise price, and Deluxe would be entitled at that time to a tax deduction in the same
amount. Upon exercising a SAR, the amount of any cash received and the fair market value on the exercise date of any
shares of common stock received would be taxable to the recipient as ordinary income and deductible by Deluxe. The tax
consequence to a participant upon a disposition of shares acquired through the exercise of an option or SAR would
depend on how long the shares were held and whether such shares were acquired by exercising an incentive stock option
or by exercising a non-qualified stock option or SAR. Generally, there would be no tax consequence to Deluxe in
connection with disposition of shares acquired under an option, except that Deluxe might be entitled to a tax deduction in
the case of a disposition of shares acquired under an incentive stock option before the applicable incentive stock option
holding periods set forth in the Code have been satisfied.

With respect to other awards that would be payable either in cash or shares of common stock and were either
transferable or not subject to substantial risk of forfeiture, the holder of such an award would recognize ordinary income
equal to the excess of (1) the cash or the fair market value of the shares of common stock received (determined as of the
date of such receipt) over (2) the amount (if any} paid for such shares of common stock by the holder of the award, and
Deluxe would be entitied at that time to a deduction for the same amount. With respect to an award that would be
payable in shares of common stock that were restricted as to transferability and subject to substantial risk of forfeiture,
uniess a special election were made pursuant to the Code, the holder of the award would recognize ordinary income
equal to the excess of (a) the fair market value of the shares of common stock received (determined as of the first time the
shares become transferable or not subject to substantial risk of forfeiture, whichever occurs earlier) over (b) the amount (if
any) paid for such shares of common stock by the holder, and Deluxe would be entitled at that time to a tax deduction in
the same amount. Subject to the usual rules concerning reasonable compensation, and assuming that, as expected,
performance awards paid under the Plan were "qualified performance-based compensation” within the meaning of Section
162(m) of the Code, Deluxe would be entitled to a corresponding tax deduction at the time a participant recognized
ordinary income.

Special rules might apply in the case of individuals subject to Section 16 of the Exchange Act. In particular,
unless a special election were made pursuant to the Code, shares received pursuant to the exercise of a stock option or
SAR, or when restricted stock units vested, might be treated as restricted as to transferability and subject to a substantial
risk of forfeiture for a period up to six months after the date of exercise or vesting. Accordingly, the amounts of any
ordinary income recognized, and the amount of Deluxe's tax deduction, would be determined as of the end of such period.

Under the 2008 Stock Incentive Plan, the Compensation Committee could permit participants receiving or
exercising awards, upon such terms and conditions as it may impose, to surrender shares of common stock (either shares
received upon the receipt or exercise of the award or shares previously owned by the participant) or other property to
Deluxe to satisfy federal and state tax obligations.

BOARD VOTING RECOMMENDATION

The Board of Directors recommends that you vote FOR the proposal to approve the Deluxe Corporation
2008 Stock Incentive Plan.
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2007:

The following table provides information concerning all of our equity compensation plans as of December 31,

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of
securities to be Weighted-average
issued upon exercise price of | Number of securities remaining
exercise of outstanding available for future issuance
Plan category outstanding options, warrants under equity compensation
options, warrants and rights plans (excluding securities
and rights (%) reflected in the first column)
Equity
compensation 3,337,339 36.26"" 7,152,380
plans approved by
shareholders
Equity
compensation
plans not approved None None None
by shareholders
Total 3,337,339 36.26 7,152 380

Includes awards granted under our 2000 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended, and cur previous stock incentive
plan, adopted in 1994. The number of securities to be issued upon exercise of cutstanding options, warrants and
rights includes 3,284,229 outstanding stock options and 53,110 restricted stock unit awards. In addition, as of
Cecember 31, 2007, there were 504,133 unvested restricted stock awards. As of February 20, 2008, and taking
into account the 2008 annual grants made on that day, there were outstanding 3,778,662 options, with a weighted
average exercise price of 34.73 and a weighted average remaining term of 3.83 years, and 533,596 unvested
shares of restricted stock. With the exception of an estimated 4,191 shares allocated to first quarter director fee
payments {see footnote 2 below), no further grants are anticipated before the annual meeting of shareholders on
April 30, 2008, and we anticipate that 2,024,620 shares will remain available for future issuance under our 2000
Stock Incentive Plan as of that date. If the 2008 Stock Incentive Plan is approved at the annual meeting, the 2000
Stock Incentive Plan will be terminated and none of these shares will remain available for future issuance.

Includes 4,357,348 shares reserved for issuance under our Amended and Restated 2000 Employee Stock
Purchase Plan. As of December 31, 2007, of the total available for future issuance, 2,566,976 shares remained
available, in the aggregate, for grants of restricted stock, restricted stock units and performance awards under our
2000 Stock Incentive Plan. Since December 31, 2007, an estimated aggregate of 856,623 additional shares have
been allocated to awards made under the 2000 Stock Incentive Pian, consisting of the following: 81,132 shares
for restricted stock units issued on January 22, 2008, in connection with elections made by employees to receive
a portion of their 2007 annual incentive compensation in the form of equity; 175,600 shares for performance
accelerated restricted stock and 595,700 shares for stock options granted on February 20, 2008, as part of the
grants made under the Company’s long-term incentive program; and an estimated 4,191 shares to be allocated
on March 15, 2008, pursuant to elections made by certain non-employee directors to receive a portion of their
quarterly compensation in equity. This estimate is based upon non-employee directors’ first quarter
compensation of $94,381.32 divided by the closing price of Deluxe common stock of $22.52 on February 20,
2008. Dividend equivalents are not paid on outstanding options.

2009 SHAREHOLDER PROPOSALS

Any shareholder proposals intended to be included in the proxy statement for the annual meeting of shareholders

in 2009 must be received by Deluxe’s Corporate Secretary at 3680 Victoria Street N., Shoreview, Minnesota 55126-2966
no later than the close of business on November 10, 2008. Proposals received by that date will be included in Deluxe's
2008 proxy statement if the proposals are proper far congideration at an annual meeting and are required for inclusion in
the proxy statement by, and conform to, the rules of the SEC.

Deluxe’s Bylaws provide that a shareholder may present a proposal at the 2009 annual meeting of shareholders

that is not included in Deluxe’s proxy statement if proper written notice is given to Deluxe’s Chief Executive Officer or
Corporate Secretary at the Company's principal executive offices no later than the close of business on November 10,
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2008. The proposal must contain the information required by Deluxe’s Bylaws. You may obtain a copy of the Bylaws by
writing to Deluxe's Corporate Secretary.

OTHER BUSINESS

The Board of Directors does not intend to present any business at the meeting other than the matters specifically
set forth in this proxy statement and knows of no other business scheduled to come before the meeting. If any other
matters are brought before the meeting, the persons named as proxies will vote on such matters in accordance with their
judgment of the best interests of Deluxe and its shareholders. The proxies solicited by Deluxe will confer discretionary’
authority on the persons narned therein as proxies to vote on any matter presented at the meeting of which the Board of
Directors did not have knowledge a reasonable time before Deluxe printed and mailed these proxy materials.

ANNUAL REPORT TO SHAREHOLDERS AND FORM 10-K

Shareholders who wish to obtain a copy of our 2007 Annual Report and/ar a copy of the Form 10-K filed with the
SEC for the year ended December 31, 2007, may do so without charge by viewing these documents on our website at
www.deluxe.com or by writing to: Corporate Secretary, Deluxe Corporation, 3680 Victoria Street North, Shoreview,
Minnesota 55126.

By order of the Board of Directors

Anthony C. Scarfone
Secretary

March 10, 2008
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APPENDIX A

DELUXE CORPORATION
2008 ANNUAL INCENTIVE PLAN

1. ESTABLISHMENT.On February 20, 2008, the Board of Directors of Deluxe Corporation
{"Deluxe”), upon recommendation by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors, approved
an incentive plan for executives and key employees of the Company as described herein, which plan
shall be known as the "Deluxe Corporation 2008 Annual Incentive Plan.” This Pian shall be submitted for
approval by the shareholders of Deluxe at the 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, and no benefits
shall be paid to Executives pursuant to this Plan unless and until this Plan has been approved by the
shareholders.

2. PURPOSE.The purpose of this Plan is to advance the interests of Deluxe and its
shareholders by attracting and retaining key employees, and by stimulating the efforts of such employees
to contribute to the continued success and growth of the business of the Company. This Plan is further
intended to provide employeges with an opportunity to increase their ownership of the Deluxe’s common
stock and, thereby, to increase their persona! interest in the long-term success of the business in a
manner designed to increase shargholder value.

3. DEFINITIONS.When the following terms are used herein with initial capital letters, they
shall have the following meanings: ’

31 Base Salary - a Participant’'s annualized base salary, as determined by the
Compensation Committee, as of the last day of a Performance Period.

3.2 Code - the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as it may be amended from time to time, and
any proposed, temporary or final Treasury Regulations or other authoritative administrative guidance
promulgated thereunder.

3.3 Common Stock - the common stock, par value $1.00 per share, of Deluxe.

3.4 Company - Deluxe Corporation, a Minnesota corporation, and its subsidiaries or
affiliates, whether now or hereafter established.

3.5 Compensation Committee - the Compensation Committee, a standing committee of the
Board of Diractors of Deluxe, or such other committee as may be designated by the Board of Directors to
administer the Plan; provided that if any committee other than the Compensation Committee is
designated, such committee shall have at least two members, and shall consist exclusively of members of
the Board of Directors each of whom is both “independent” as defined by Section 3.03A.02 of the Listed
Company Manual of the New York Stock Exchange and a “non-employee director” within the meaning of
Rule 16b-3 promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended (the “1934 Act™}, or -any successor rule or regulation. At least two members of the
Compensation Committee shall be “outside directors” within the meaning of Treasury Regulations §1.162-
27(e)(3), and if there are other members of the Compensation Committee that are not outside directors as
so defined, any grant to, or determination with respect to, an Executive shall be made by a subcommittee
of the Compensation Committee composed only of the outside directors as so defined.

36 Deferred Compensation Plan — the Deluxe Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan,
as amended and restated effective October 26, 2000, and thereafter amended from time to time, or such
~ other deferred compensation plan as may be designated by the Compensation Committee for purposes
of making deferral elections pursuant to Section 6.1 for any Performance Period.
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3.7 Executives - all Participants for a given Performance Period designated by the
Compensation Committee as “Executives” for purposes of this Plan. The Compensation Committee shall
designate as Executives all Participants it reasonably believes may be “covered employees” under
Treasury Regulations §1.162-27(c}(2), as interpreted by IRS Notice 2007-49, for that Performance
Period.

3.8 Match Percentage - the percentage established by the Compensation Committee
pursuant to the Plan as provided in Section 6.1 below.

3.9 Maximum Award Percentage - a percentage, which may be greater or less than 100%,
as determined by the Compensation Committee for each Participant with respect to each Performance
Period and with respect to each Performance Factor.

3.10 Other Participants - all Participants for a given Performance Period who are not
designated as "Executives” by the Compensation Committee for such Performance Period.

3.1 Participants - any management or highly compensated employees of the Company who
are designated by the Compensation Committee prior to the start of a Performance Period as Participants
in this Plan. Directors of the Company who are not also employees of the Company are not eligible to
participate in the Plan. Participants shall be designated as either Executives or Other Participants by the
Compensation Committee as provided in Section 4.3 below.

3.12 Performance Factor - the pre-established, objective performance goals selected by the
Compensation Committee for each Participant with respect to each Performance Period and which shall
be determined solely on account of the attainment of one or more pre-established, objective performance
goals selected by the Compensation Committee in connection with the grant of an award hereunder,
provided, however, that in the case of Other Participants, such performance goals need not be objective
and may be based on such business criteria as the Compansation Committee may determine to be
appropriate, which may include financial and nonfinancial performance goals that are linked to such
individual's business unit or the Company as a whole or to such individual’s areas of responsibility. The
objective performance goals for Executives shall be based solely on one or more of the following
business criteria, which may apply to the individual in question, an identifiable business unit or the
Company as a whole, and on an annual or other periodic or cumulative basis: sales vatues, margins,
volume, cash flow, stock price, market share, revenue, sales, earnings per share, profits, earings before
interest expense and taxes, eamings before interest expense, interest income and taxes, earnings before
interest expense, taxes, and depreciation and/or amortization, earnings before interest expense, interest
income, taxes, and depreciation and/or amortization, return on equity, costs or assets, return on invested
or average capital employed, economic value, or cumulative total return to shareholders (in each case,
whether compared to pre-selected peer groups or not).

3.13 Performance Period - each consecutive twelve-month period commencing on January 1
of each year during the term of this Plan, beginning with January 1, 2009.

3.14  Plan - this Deluxe Corporation 2008 Annual Incentive Plan.

3.15  Stock Incentive Plan - the Deluxe Carporation 2008 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended
from time to time.

3.16  Target Award - a dollar amount or a percentage of Base Salary, which may be greater or
less than 100%, as determined by the Compensation Committee with respect to each Participant for each
Performance Period.

3.17  Units - Restricted Stock Units, as defined in the Stock Incentive Plan.
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4. ADMINISTRATION.

4.1 Power and Authority of Compensation Committee. The Plan shall be administered by
the Compensation Committee. The Compensation Committee shall have full power and authority, subject
to all the applicable provisions of the Plan and applicable law, to {a) establish, amend, suspend or waive
such rules and regulations and appoint such agents as it deems necessary or advisable for the proper
administration of the Plan, (b) construe, interpret and administer the Plan and any instrument or
agreement relating to the Plan, (c) determine, from time to time, whether shares of Common Stock and/or
Units will be made available to Participants under the Plan, and (d) make all other determinaticns and
take all other actions necessary or advisable for the administration of the Plan. Unless otherwise
expressly provided in the Plan, each determination made and each action taken by the Compensaticn
Committee pursuant to the Plan or any instrument or agreement relating to the Plan shall be (i} within the
sole discretion of the Compensation Committee, (i} may be made at any time and (iii) shall be final,
binding and conclusive for all purposes on all persons, including, but not limited to, Participants, and their
legal representatives and beneficiaries, and employees of the Company.

42 Delegation. The Compensation Committee may delegate its powers and duties under
the Plan to one or more officers of the Company or a committee of such officers, subject to such terms,
conditions and limitations as the Compensation Committee may establish in its sole discretion; provided,
however, that the Compensation Committee shall not delegate its power (a) to make grants to or
determinations {including certification pursuant to Section 4.4} regarding officers or directors of the
Company who are subject to Section 16 of the 1934 Act or (b} in such a manner as would cause the Plan
not to comply with the provisions of Section 162(m) of the Code.

4.3 Determinations made prior to each Performance Period. On or before the 90th day
of each Performance Period, the Compensation Committee shall;

(a) designate all Participants (including designation as Executives or Other Participants) for
such Performance Period;

(b}. establish a Target Award and a Match Percentage for each Participant; and

(c) with respect to each Participant, establish one or more Performance Factors and a
corresponding Maximum Award Percentage for each Performance Factor.

4.4 Certification. Following the close of each Performance Period and prior to payment of
any amount to any Participant under the Plan, the Compensation Committee must certify in writing which
of the applicable Performance Factors for that Performance Period (and the corresponding Maximum
Award Percentages) have been achieved and certify as to the attainment of alf other factors upon which
any payments to a Participant for that Perfoermance Period are to be based. Such certification shall be
made in time to permit payments to be made not later than the fifteenth day of the third month following
the end of the Performance Period.

45 Shareholder Approval. The material terms of this Plan shall be disclosed to and
submitted for approval by shareholders of the Company in accordance with Section 162{m) of the Code.
No amount shall be paid to any Executive under this Plan unless such shareholder approval has been
obtained.

5. INCENTIVE PAYMENT.

5.1 Formula. Each Participant shall receive an incentive payment for each Performance
Period in an amount not greater than:
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(a) the Participant’'s Target Award for the Performance Period, multiplied by

(b) the Participant's Maximum Award Percentage for the Performance Period that
corresponds to the Performance Factor achieved by the Participant for that Performance Pericd.

5.2 Limitations.

(a) Discretionary Increase or Reduction. The Compensation Committee shall retain sole
and absolute discretion to increase or reduce the amount of any incentive payment otherwise payable to
any Participant under this Plan, but may not increase the payment to any Executive for any Performance
Period.

(b) Continued Employment. Except as otherwise provided by the Compensation
Committee, no incentive payment under this Plan with respect to a Performance Period shall be paid or
owed to a Participant whose employment terminates prior to the last day of such Performance Period.

(c) Maximum Payments. No Participant shall receive a payment under this Plan for any
Performance Period in excess of $5.0 million, including the vatue of any Match Percentage.

6.  BENEFIT PAYMENTS

6.1 Time and Form of Payments. Prior to a date specified by the Compensation
Committee, but in no event later than the date immediately preceding the first day of the Performance
Period unless otherwise permitted by the Deferred Compensation Plan in accordance with Section 409A
of the Code, each Participant shall elect whether to receive benefits which may be paid under the Plan in
cash or in the form of shares of Common Stock or Units (whichever is made available by the
Compensation Committee to such Participant in the Compensation Committee’s sole discretion) or some
combination thereof., Participants who elect to receive some percentage of the incentive payment in the
form of cash shall be entitled to elect, at the same time as the cash election is made, to defer such receipt
in accordance with the'terms of the Deferred Compensation Plan, in which event the time and form of
payment of the deferred amount shall be governed exclusively by the terms of the Deferred
Compensation Plan. In the event a Participant has elected to receive some percentage of the incentive
payment in the form of cash, and subject to any such deferred compensation election, such cash
incentive shall be paid as scon as administratively feasible after the Compensation Committee has made
the certifications provided for in Section 4.4 above and otherwise determined the amount of such
Participant’s incentive payment payable under this Plan, but in no event later than the fifteenth day of the
third month following the end of the Performance Pericd. In the event that a Participant chooses to
receive some percentage of the incentive payment in the form of shares or Units (as the case may be), in
lieu of cash (the “Share Dollar Amount”), the Participant shall be entitled to receive shares of restricted
Common Stock or Units {as the case may be) equal to a percentage (the “Match Percentage”) of the
Share Dollar Amount established by the Compensation Committee pursuant to this Plan. The number of
shares or Units issued or granted pursuant to this Section 6.1 shall be determined based on the fair
market value of a share of Common Stock (as determined in accordance with the terms of the Stock
Incentive Plan) as of the date specified by the Compensation Committee that such shares or Units are to
be issued or awarded, after the Compensation Committee has made the certifications required by
Section 4.4 above and otherwise determined the amount of a Participant’s incentive payment payable
under this Plan.

In the event a Participant has elected to receive some percentage of the incentive payment in the
form of shares of Common Stock or Units (as the case may be), such shares or Units shall be issued or
awarded, respectively, pursuant to the Stock Incentive Plan, which shares or Units shall be subject to
such forfeiture rights and to such restrictions regarding transfer as may be established by the
Compensation Committee; provided, however, that the individual share limitations contained in Section
4(d)(i) and (ii) of the Stock Incentive Plan shall not apply to shares issued under this Plan, but the
aggregate value of any cash, shares and Units paid or granted to any Participant for any Performance
Period shall be subject to Section 5.2(c) of this Plan.
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6.2 Nontransferability. Except as otherwise determined by the Compensation Committee,
no right to any incentive payment hereunder, whether payable in cash, shares or cther property, shall be
transferable by a Participant otherwise than by will or by the laws of descent and distribution; provided,
however, that if 50 determined by the Compensation Committee, a Participant may, in the manner
established by the Compensation Committee designate a beneficiary or beneficiaries to exercise the
rights of the Participant and receive any cash, shares or property hereunder upon the death of the
Participant. No right to any incentive payment hereunder may be pledged, attached or otherwise
encumbered, and any purported pledge, attachment or encumbrance thereof shall be void and
unenforceable against the Company.

6.3 Tax Withholding. In order to comply with all applicable federal or state income, social
security, payroll, withholding or other tax laws or regulations, the Compensation Commitiee may establish
such policy or policies as it deems appropriate with respect to such laws and regulations, including
without limitation, the establishment of policies to ensure that all applicable federal or state income, social
security, payroll, withholding or other taxes, which are the sole and absolute responsibility of the
Participant, are withheld or collected from such Participant. In order to assist a Participant in paying all or
part of the federal and state taxes to be withheld or collected upon receipt or payment of (or the lapse of
restrictions relating to} an incentive payment payable hereunder, the Compensation Committee, in its sole
discretion and subject to such additional terms and cenditions as it may adopt, may permit the Participant
to satisfy such tax obligation by {a) electing to have the Company withhold a portion of the shares of
Common Stock otherwise to be delivered upon payment of (or the lapse of restrictions relating to) an
incentive payment hereunder with a fair market value equal to the amount of such taxes or (b) delivering
to the Company shares of Common Stock other than the shares issuable upon payment of (or the lapse
of restrictions relating to) such incentive payment with a fair market value equal to the amount of such
taxes. The election, if any, must be made on or before the date that the amount of tax to be withheld is
determined.

7. AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION; AND ADJUSTMENTS.

Except to the extent prohibited by applicable law and unless otherwise expressly provided in the
Plan:

(a) Amendments to the Plan. The Board of Directors of the Company may amend, alter,
suspend, discontinue or terminate the Plan, without the approval of the shareholders of the Company,
except that no such amendment, alteration, suspension, discontinuation or termination shall be made
that, absent such approval, would viclate the rules or regulations of the New York Stock Exchange, any
other securities exchange or the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. that are applicable to the
Company.

{b) Waivers of Incentive Payment Conditions or Rights. The Compensation Committee
may waive any conditions of or rights of the Company under any right to an incentive payment hereunder,
prospectively or retroactively.

{c) Limitation on Amendments to Incentive Payment Rights. Neither the Compensation
Committee nor the Company may amend, alter, suspend, discontinue or terminate any rights to an
incentive payment, prospectively or retroactively, without the consent of the Participant or holder or
beneficiary thereof, except as otherwise herein provided.

(d} Correction of Defects, Omissions and Inconsistencies. The Compensation
Committee may correct any defect, supply any omission or reconcile any inconsistency in the Plan in the
manner and to the extent it shall deem desirable to carry the Plan into effect.

53




8. MISCELLANEOUS

8.1 Effective Date. This Plan shall be deemed effective, subject to shareholder approval, as
of January 1, 2009,

8.2 Term of the Plan. Unless the Plan shall have been discontinued or terminated, the Plan
shall terminate on December 31, 2013. No right to receive an incentive payment shall be granted with
respect to a Performance Period that will end after the termination of the Plan. However, unless
otherwise expressly provided in the Plan, any right to receive an incentive payment theretofore granted
may extend beyond the termination of the Plan, and the authority of the Board of Directors and
Compensation Committee to amend or otherwise administer the Plan shall extend beyond the termination
of the Plan.

8.3 Headings. Headings are given to the Sections and subsections of the Plan solely as a
convenience to faciiitate reference. Such headings shall not be deemed in any way matenal or relevant
to the construction or interpretation of the Plan or any provision thereof.

8.4 Applicability to Successors. This Plan shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of
the Company and each Participant, the successors and assigns of the Company, and the beneficiaries,
personal representatives and heirs of each Participant. If the Company becomes a party to any merger,
consolidation or reorganization, this Plan shall remain in full force and effect as an obligation of the
Company or its successors in interest (except to the extent modified by the terms of the Stock Incentive
Plan with respect to the shares of restricted Common Stock or Units {as the case may be) issued
pursuant to Section 6.1 hereof).

8.5 Employment Rights and Other Benefit Programs. The provisions of this Plan shall not
give any Participant any right to be retained in the employment of the Company. tn the absence of any
specific agreement to the contrary, this Plan shall not affect any right of the Company, or of any affiliate of
the Company, to terminate, with or without cause, any Participant's employment at any time. This Plan
shall not replace any contract of employment, whether oral or written, between the Company and any
Participant, but shall be considered a supplement thereto. This Plan is in addition to, and not in lieu of,
any other employee benefit plan or program in which any Participant may be or become eligible to '
participate by reason of employment with the Company. No compensation or benefit awarded to or
realized by any Participant under the Plan shall be included for the purpose of computing such
Participant's compensation under any compensation-based retirement, disability, or similar plan of the
- Company unless required by law or otherwise provided by such other plan.

86 No Trust or Fund Created. This Plan shall not create or be construed to create a trust
or separate fund of any kind or a fiduciary relationship between the Company or any affiliate and a
Participant or any other person. To the extent that any person acquires a right to receive payments from
the Company or any affiliate pursuant to this Plan, such right shall be no greater than the right of any
unsecured general creditor of the Company or of any affiliate.

8.7 Governing Law. The validity, construction and effect of the Plan or any incentive
payment payable under the Plan shall be determined in accordance with the taws of the State of
Minnesota.

8.8 Severability. If any provision of the Plan is or becomes or is deemed to be invalid, illegal
or unenforceable in any jurisdiction such provision shall be construed or deemed amended to conform to
applicable laws, or if it cannot be so construed or deemed amended without, in the determination of the
Compensation Committee, materially attering the purpose or intent of the Plan, such provision shall be
stricken as to such jurisdiction, and the remainder of the Plan shall remain in full force and effect.
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8.9 Certain Tax Matters. All of the terms and conditions of the Plan shall be interpreted in
such a fashion as to qualify all compensation paid hereunder as “qualified performance-based
compensation” within the meaning of Section 162(m) of the Code, and so that no payments constitute
deferred compensation subject to Section 409A of the Code unless a Participant elects to defer a
payment pursuant to the Deferred Compensation Plan.
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APPENDIX B

DELUXE CORPORATION 2008 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

Section 1. Purpose; Shareholder Approval; Termination of 2000 Plan.

(a) The purpose of the Plan is to promaote the interests of the Company and its shareholders
by aiding the Company in attracting management personnel capable of assuring the future success of the
Company, by offering such personnel incentives to put forth maximum efforts for the success of the
Company's business, and by affording such personnel an opportunity to acquire a proprietary interest in
the Company.

(b) The Plan shall be submitted to the shareholders of the Company at the annual meeting of L
shareholders for 2008, and shall take effect upon approval by the shareholders. Awards may be made by

the Committee prior to the date of shareholder approval, but all such Awards shall be subject to
shareholder approval and, if the Plan is not approved by the shareholders, shall be null and void.

(c) This Plan supersedes the Deluxe Corporation 2000 Stock Incentive Plan, as approved by
the shareholders of the Company at the annual meeting of the shareholders held on August 4, 2000, and
as previously amended {the “2000 Plan"). The 2000 Plan is hereby terminated, effective on the date of
shareholder approval of this Plan, and subject to such approval. No additional awards shall be granted
under the 2000 Plan following the effective date of termination; provided that the 2000 Plan shall remain
in effect with respect to awards previously granted under the 2000 Plan in accordance with Section 12
thereof.

Section 2. Definitions.
As used in the Plan, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth below:
{(a) “Affiliate” shall mean (i} any entity that, directly or indirectly through one or more

intermediaries, is controlled by the Company and (ii) any entity in which the Company has a significant
equity interest, in each case as determined by the Committee.

{b) “Annual Incentive Plan” shall mean the Deluxe Corporation 2008 Annual Incentive Plan.
The Annual Incentive Plan allows designated employees of the Company and its Afiiliates to elect to
receive annual incentive payments in the form of Shares or Restricted Stock Units as determined by the
Committee. All Shares and Restricted Stock Units issued pursuant to the Annual Incentive Plans
constitute Awards under this Plan and are subject to all terms of this Plan (including without limitation
Section 4(a), (b), and {(c)}, except as otherwise provided herein.

(c) “Award" shall mean any Option, Stock Appreciation Right, Restricted Stock, Restricted
Stock Unit, Performance Award or Dividend Equivalent granted under the Plan.

(d) “Award Agreement” shall mean any written agreement, contract or other instrument or
document evidencing any Award granted under the Plan.

(e) “Code” shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time,
and any Treasury Regulations or other authoritative administrative guidance promulgated thereunder,

(N “Committee” shall mean the Compensation Committee, a standing committee of the
board of directors of the Company, or such other committee as may be designated by the board of
directors to administer the Plan; provided that if any committee other than the Compensation Committee
is designated such committee shall have at least two members, and shall consist exclusively of members
of the board of directors each of whom is both “independent” as defined by Section 3.03A.02 of the Listed
Company Manual of the New York Stock Exchange and a “non-employee director” within the meaning of
Rule 16b-3. At least two members of the Committee shall be “outside directors” within the meaning of
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Treasury Regulations §1.162-27(e)(3), and if there are other members of the Committee that are not
outside directors as so defined, the following determinations shall be made be made by a subcommittee
of the Committee composed only of the outside directors as so defined: (i) any grant of an Option or
Stock Appreciation Right to a person who either is at the time of grant, or the Committee determines is
likely to become, a “covered employee” as defined by Treasury Regulations §1.162-27(c)(2), as
interpreted by IRS Notice 2007-49, or (i) any grant to, or determination with respect to, a Performance
Award that is intended to be a “qualified performance-based compensation” within the meaning of Section
162(m) of the Code. :

Q) “Company” shall mean DELUXE CORPORATION, a Minnesota corporation, and any
successor corporation.

{h) “Dividend Equivalent” shall mean any right granted under Section 6(e) of the Plan.

(i) “Eligible Person” shall mean a Non-Employee Director and any employee (as determined
by the Committee) providing services to the Company or any Affiliate who the Committee determines to
be an Eligible Person.

() “Fair Market Value” of a Share shall be equal to the closing price of one Share on the
New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE") on the relevant date as reported by the Wall Street Joumal, Midwest
Edition {or, if such publication is no longer avaitable, such other authoritative source as may be
designated by the Committee); provided that if, on such date, the NYSE is not open for business or there
are no Shares traded on such date, the Fair Market Value of a Share shall be equal to the closing price of
one Share on the first day preceding such date on which the NYSE is open for business and has reported
trades in the Shares. With respect to any property other than Shares (including, without limitation, any
other securities), the Fair Market Value of such property determined by such methods or procedures as
shall be established from time to time by the Committee.

{k) “Full Value Award” shall mean a grant of Restricted Stock or Restricted Stock Units, a
Performance Award, the matching portion of an Award (if any) under the Annual Incentive Plan, and any
Award (or portion thereof) that provides for a Participant to receive Shares, or the value thereof, without
payment of an amount at least equal to the Fair Market Value of the Shares at the time of grant.

{ “Incentive Stock Option™ shall mean an Option granted under Section 6(a) of the Plan that
is intended to meet the requirements of Section 422 of the Code or any successor provision.

(m}) “Non-Employee Director” shall have the meaning provided in Section 7(a) of the Plan.

{n) “Non-Qualified Stock Option™ shall mean an Option granted under Section 6(a) of the
Plan that is not intended to be an Incentive Stock Option.

{0) “Option” shall mean an Incentive Stock Option or a Non-Qualified Stock Option.

{p) “Participant” shall mean an Eligible Person designated to be granted an Award under the
Plan.

(@) “Performance Award” shall mean any right granted under Section 6(d) of the Plan.

(r “Person” shall mean any individual, corporation, partnership, association or trust.
(s) “Ptan” shall mean this 2008 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended from time to time.
(t) “Restricted Stock” shall mean any Share granted under Section 6(c) of the Plan.
(u) “Restricted Stock Unit” shall mean any unit granted under Section 6(c) of the Plan

evidencing the right to receive a Share (or a cash payment equal to the Fair Market Value of a Share) at
some future date.

{v) “Rule 16b-3" shall mean Rule 16b-3 promulgated by the Securities and Exchange
Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or any successor rule or
regulation.
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{w) “Section 162(m)" shall mean Section 162(m) of the Code and the applicable Treasury
Regulations or other authoritative administrative guidance promulgated thereunder.

{x) “Shares” shall mean shares of common stock, $1.00 par value, of the Company or such
other securities or property as may become subject to Awards pursuant to an adjustment made under
Section 4(c) of the Plan.

) “Stock Appreciation Right” shall mean any right granted under Section 6(b) of the Plan.

Section 3. Administration.

(a) Power and Authority of the Commiftee. The Plan shall be administered by the
Committee. Except as provided in Section 8 and subject to the express_provisions of the Plan and to
applicable law, the Committee shall have full power and authority to: (i) designate Participants; (ii)
determine the type or types of Awards to be granted to each Participant under the Plan; {iii) determine the
number of Shares to be covered by {or with respect to which payments, rights or other matters are to be
calculated in connection with) each Award; (iv) determine the terms and conditions of any Award or
Award Agreement; (v) amend the terms and conditions of any Award or Award Agreement and accelerate
the exercisability of Options or the lapse of restrictions relating to Restricted Stock or other Awards,
provided that no such revision shall viclate subsection (¢) of this Section, extend the term of any Award
beyond 10 years from the original grant date, or otherwise include any feature in the Award that coutd not
have been included at the original grant date; (vi) determine whether, to what extent and under what
circumstances Awards may be exercised in cash, Shares, other securities, other Awards or other
property, or canceled, forfeited or suspended; (vii) determine whether, to what extent and under what
circumstances cash, Shares, other securities, other Awards, other property and other amounts payable
with respect to an Award under the Plan shall be deferred either automatically or at the election of the
holder thereof or the Committee; (viii) interpret and administer the Plan and any instrument or agreement
relating to, or Award made under, the Flan; (ix) establish, amend, suspend or waive such rules and
regulations and appoint such agents as it shall deem appropriate for the proper administration of the Plan;
and (x) make any other determination and take any other action that the Committee deems necessary or
desirable for the administration of the Plan. Unless otherwise expressly provided in the Plan, afl
designations, determinations, interpretations and other decisions under or with respect to the Plan or any
Award shall be within the sole discretion of the Committee, may be made at any time and shall be final,
conclusive and binding upon any Participant, any holder or beneficiary of any Award and any employee of
the Company or any Affiliate.

(b) Delegation. The Committee may delegate its powers and duties under the Plan to one or
more officers of the company or an Affiliate or a committee of such officers, subject to such terms,
conditions and limitations as the Committee may establish in its sole discretion; provided, however, that
the Committee shall not delegate its powers and duties under the Plan (i) with regard to officers or
directors of the Company or any Affiliate who are subject to Section 186 of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended, if the effect of such delegation would make the exemption under Rule 16b-3
unavailable or {ii) in such a manner as would cause the Plan not to comply with the requirements of
Section 162(m) of the Code.

(c) ©  Prohibition on Repricing. The Committee may not amend any Option or Stock
Appreciation Right to reduce its exercise price, or authorize or permit the exchange of any Option or
Stock Appreciation Right for a new Option or Stock Appreciation Right with a lower exercise price or any
other transaction which has the effect of reducing the exercise price of an outstanding Option or Stock
Appreciation Right, without obtaining the consent of the shareholders of the Company.

(d) Compliance with Section 409A. The Plan shall be administered in accordance with
Section 409A of the Code, and the regulations promulgated thereunder. Without limiting the generality of
the foregoing, in no event shall the Committee permit any change to the time or form of payment of any
portion of an Award that constitutes a form of deferred compensation subject to Section 409A (including
the payment of any Dividend Equivalents) unless the Committee determines that such change is
permitted by Section 409A.
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Section 4. Shares Available for Awards.

(@) Shares Available. Subject to adjustment as provided in Section 4(c}), the number of
Shares available for granting Awards under the Plan shall be 4,000,000. Shares to be issued under the
Plan may be either Shares reacquired or authorized but unissued Shares. If any Shares covered by an
Award or to which an Award relates are not purchased or are forfeited, or if an Award otherwise
terminates without delivery of any Shares, then the number of Shares counted against the aggregate
number of Shares available under the Plan with respect to such Award, to the extent of any such
forfeiture or termination, shall again be available for grants under the Plan. Shares which are delivered to
the Company, or withheld from an Award, for payment of the exercise price of an Option or Stock
Appreciation Right, or for payment of tax withholding, shall not again be available for grant. The limits of
this Section 4(a) shall not apply to a Performance Award payable solely in cash, in which the amount of
the Award is not determined directly or indirectly by reference to the value of Shares.

{b) Accounting for Awards; Fungible Shares. For purposes of this Section 4, an Award other
than a Full Value Award shall reduce the aggregate number of Shares available for grants under the Plan
by the total number of Shares covered by the Award, without reduction for shares that are withheld for
payment of the exercise price or withholding taxes. A Full Value Award shall reduce the aggregate
number of Shares available for grants under the Plan by the number of Shares covered by the Full Value
Award multiplied by 2.29. If any Full Value Award is forfeited or terminates without delivery of the Shares,
s0 that the Shares covered by the Full Value Award are again avaitable for grants pursuant to subsection
(a), the number of Shares that again becomes eligible for grants shall also be multiplied by 2.29.

N (c) Adjustments. In the event that the Committee shall determine that any dividend or other
distribution {whether in the form of cash, Shares, other securities or other property), recapitalization, stock
split, reverse stock split, reorganization, merger, consolidation, split-up, spin-off, combination, repurchase
or exchange of Shares or other securities of the Company, issuance of warrants or other rights to
purchase Shares or other securities of the Company or other similar corporate transaction or event
affects the Shares such that an adjustment is determined by the Committee to be appropriate in order to
prevent dilution or enlargement of the benefits or potential benefits intended to be made available under
the Plan, then the Committee shall, in such manner as it may deem equitable, adjust any or all of (i} the
number and type of Shares (or other securities or other property) which thereafter may be made the
subject of Awards, (ii) the number and type of Shares (or other securities or other property) subject to
outstanding Awards and (iii) the purchase or exercise price with respect to any Award, provided, however,
that the number of Shares covered by any Award or to which such Award relates shall always be a whole
number. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, in the case of a merger or consolidation of the
Company or similar transaction, the Committee may cause the Shares underlying outstanding Awards to
be converted into stock or securities of the entity resulting from the merger or consolidation, or may cause
such Awards to be settied by a cash payment equal to the Fair Market Value of the Shares as a result of
the transaction reduced by the exercise price of the Award, if any, or to be cancelled without payment of
consideration if the Fair Market Value does not exceed the exercise price.

(d) Awards Limitation Under the Plan.

(i) Section 162(m) Limitation for Certain Types of Awards. No Eligible Person may
be granted Options, Stock Appreciation Rights or any other Award or Awards under the Plan, the value of
which Award or Awards is based solely on an increase in the value of the Shares after the date of grant of
such Award or Awards, for more than 500,000 Shares {subject to adjustment as provided in Section 4(c)
of the Plan) in the aggregate in any calendar year. The foregoing limitation shall not include any Shares
acquired pursuant to the Annual Incentive Pian.

(ii) Section 162({m) Limitation for Performance Awards. The maximum amount
payable pursuant to all Performance Awards to any Participant in the aggregate in any calendar year
shall be $5.0 million in value, whether payable in cash, Shares or other property. This limitation does not
apply to any Award subject to the limitation contained in Section 4(d)(i) of the Plan and shall not include
any Shares acquired pursuant to the Annual Incentive Plan.
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Section 5. Eligibility.

Any Eligible Person, including any Eligible Person who is an officer or director of the Company or
any Affiliate, shall be eligible to be designated a Participant. In determining which Eligible Persons shall
receive an Award and the terms of any Award, the Committee may take inte account the nature of the
services rendered by the respective Eligible Persans, their present and potential contributions to the
success of the Company, and such other factors as the Committee, in its discretion shall deem relevant.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Incentive Stock Options may only be granted to full or pari-time
employees (which term as used herein includes, without limitation, officers and directors who are also
employees} and an Incentive Stock Option shall not be granted to an employee of an Affiliate unless such
Affiliate is also a “subsidiary corporation” of the Company within the meaning of Section 424(f) of the
Code or any successor provision,

Section 6. Awards.

(a) Options. The Committee is hereby authorized to grant Options to Participants with the
following terms and conditions and with such additional terms and conditions not inconsistent with the
provisions of the Plan as the Committee shall determine:

(i) Exercise Price. The purchase price per Share purchasable under an Option shall
be determined by the Committee; provided, however, that such purchase price shall not be less than 100
percent of the Fair Market Value of a Share on the date of grant of such Option. [n the case of an
Incentive Stock Option granted to a Participant who owns stock possessing more than 10 percent of the
combined voting power of all classes of stock of the Company {or any parent or subsidiary), the purchase
price shall not be less than 110 percent of the Fair Market Value.

(i) Option Term. The term of each Option shall be fixed by the Committee but shall
not be longer than 10 years from the date of grant. In the case of an Incentive Stock Option granted to a
Participant who owns stock possessing more than 10 percent of the combined voting power of all classes
of stock of the Company (or any parent or subsidiary}, the term shall not be longer than five years from
the date of grant.

(i) Time and Method of Exercise. The Committee shall determine the time or times
at which an Option may be exercised in whote or in part and the method or methods by which, and the
form or forms {including, without limitation, cash, Shares, promissory notes, other securities, other Awards
or other property, or any combination thereof, having a Fair Market Value on the’exercise date equal to
the relevant exercise price) in which, payment of the exercise price with respect thereto may be made or
deemed to have been made.,

{iv) No Reload Option Features. Options shall not include a reload feature, or any
comparable feature that provides for the automatic grant of additional Options to a Participant upon
exercise of the Option.

{v) Designation as Incentive Stock Option. Each Option that is intended to qualify as
an Incentive Stock Option shall so provide in the Award Agreement, and any Option that is not specifically
designated an Incentive Stock Option shall be a Non-Qualified Stock Option. The maximum Fair Market
Value (measured at the date of grant) of Shares subject to Incentive Stock Options granted to any one
Participant that may vest in any year shall not exceed $100,000. An Option may be designated as an
Incentive Stock Option in part, and if an Option that was designated an Incentive Stock Option vests
prematurely, so that the number of Shares vesting in a year exceeds the limitation set forth in the prior
sentence, such Option shall be considered an Incentive Stock Opticn with respect to the number of
Shares that do not exceed such limit and a Non-Qualified Stock Option with respect to the balance of the
Shares subject to the Option.

(b) Stock Appreciation Rights. The Committee is hereby authorized to grant Stock
Appreciation Rights to Participants subject to the terms of the Plan and any applicable Award Agreement.
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A Stock Appreciation Right granted under the Plan shall confer on the holder thereof a right to receive
upon exercise thereof the excess of (i) the Fair Market Value of one Share on the date of exercise over
(ii) the grant price of the Stock Appreciation Right as specified by the Committee, which price shall not be
less than 100 percent of the Fair Market Value of one Share on the date of grant of the Stock
Appreciation Right. Subject to the terms of the Plan and any applicable Award Agreement, the grant
price, term, methods of exercise, dates of exercise, methods of settlement and any other terms and
conditions of any Stock Appreciation Right shall be as determined by the Committee. The Committee may
impose such conditions or restrictions on the exercise of any Stock Appreciation Right as it may deem
appropriate. A Stock Appreciation Right may be granted in tandem with a Non-Qualified Stock Option for
the same number of Shares, in which case the Participant may exercise either the Option or the Stock
Appreciation Right, but not both, and each Share subject to either the Option or the Stock Appreciation
Right shall be counted once for purposes of Section 4. -

(c) Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units. The Committee is hereby authorized to
grant Awards of Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units to Participants with the following terms and
conditions and with such additional terms and conditions not inconsistent with the provisions of the Plan
as the Committee shall determine:

(i) Restrictions. Shares of Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units shall be
subject to such restrictions as the Committee may impose (including, without limitation, any limitation on
the right to vote a Share of Restricted Stock or the right to receive any dividend or other right or property
with respect thereto or with respect to a Restricted Stock Unit), which restrictions may lapse separately or
in combination at such time or times, in such installments or otherwise as the Committee may deem
appropriate.

(ii} Stock Certificates. Any Restricted Stock granted under the Plan may be
evidenced by issuance of a stock certificate or certificates or by the creation of a book entry at the
Company’s transfer agent. Any such certificate or certificates shall be held by the Company. Such
certificate or certificates or book entry shall be registered in the name of the Participant and any such
certificate or certificates shall bear an appropriate legend referring to the terms, conditions and
restrictions applicable to such Restricted Stock. A similar notation shall be made in the records of the
transfer agent with respect to any Shares evidenced by a book entry. In the case of Restricted Stock
Units, no Shares shall be issued at the time such Awards are granted.

(i) Forfeiture; Delivery of Shares. Except as otherwise determined by the
Committee or provided in a Plan governed by this Plan, upen termination of employment {as determined
under criteria established by the Committee) or, in the case of a director, service as a director during the
applicable restriction period, all Shares of Restricted Stock and ali Restricted Stock Units at such time
subject to restriction shall be forfeited and reacquired by the Company; provided, however, that the
Committee may, when it finds that a waiver would be in the best interest of the Company, waive in whole
or in part any or all remaining restrictions with respect to Shares of Restricted Stock or Restricted Stock
Units. Any Share representing Restricted Stock that is no longer subject to restrictions shall be delivered
to the holder thereof promptly after the applicable restrictions lapse or are waived. Upon the lapse or
waiver of restrictions and the restricted period relating to Restricted Stock Units evidencing the right to
receive Shares, such Shares shall be issued and delivered to the holders of the Restricted Stock Units,
subject to the provisions of the Plan and any applicable Award Agreement.

(d) Performance Awards. The Committee is hereby authorized to grant Performance Awards
to Participants which may be "qualified performance-based compensation” within the meaning of Section
162(m). A Performance Award granted under the Plan may he payable in cash or in Shares {including,
without limitation, Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units). Performance Awards shall, to the extent
required by Section 162{m), be conditioned solely on the achievement of one or more objective
performance goals, and such performance goals shall be established by the Committee within the time
period prescribed by, and shall otherwise comply with the requirements of, Section 162(m). Subject to the
terms of the Plan and any applicabie Award Agreement, the performance goals to be achieved during any
performance period, the length of any performance period, the amount of any Performance Award
granted, the amount of any payment or transfer to be made pursuant to any Performance Award, and any
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other terms and conditions of any Performance Award shall be determined by the Committee.
Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan to the contrary, the following additional requirements shall
apply to all Performance Awards made to any Participant under the Plan:

{i) Business Criteria. Unless and until the Committee proposes for shareholder
approval and the Company's shareholders approve a change in the general business criteria set forth in
this section, the attainment of which may determine the amount and/or vesting with respect to
Performance Awards, the business criteria to be used for purposes of establishing performance goals for
such Performance Awards shall be selected from among the following alternatives, each of which may be
based on absclute standards or comparisons versus specified companies or groups of companies and
may be applied at individua! or various organizational levels (e.g., the Company as a whole or identified
business units, segments or the like): sales values, margins, volume, cash flow, stock price, market
share, revenue, sales, earnings per Share, Share price, profits, earnings before interest expense and
taxes, earnings before interest expense, interest income and taxes, earnings before interest expense,
taxes, and depreciation and/or amortization, earnings before interest expense, interest income, taxes,
and depreciation and/or amortization, return on equity, assets or costs, return on invested or average
capital employed, economic value, or cumulative total return to shareholders.

(i) Target Award; Maximum Amount Payable. The target Award shall be a doffar
amount or a percentage of a Participant’s annualized base salary, which may be greater or less than
100%, as determined by the Committee with respect to each Participant for each performance period.
The maximum amount payable pursuant to alf Performance Awards to any Participant in the aggregate in
any calendar year is specified in Section 4(d)(ii) of the Plan.

(i) Payment of Performance Awards. Performance Awards shall be paid no later
than the fifteenth day of the third month following the conclusion of the applicable performance period.
The Committee may, in its discretion, reduce the amount of a payout otherwise to be made in connection
with a Performance Award, but may not exercise discretion to increase such amount.

(iv) Certain Events. [f a Participant dies, becomes permanently and totally disabled
or otherwise terminates employment with the approval of the Committee before the end of a performance
period or after the performance period and before a Performance Award is paid, the Committee may, in
its discretion, determine that the Participant shall be paid all or a portion of the Award that the Participant
would have received but for such death, disability or other approved termination of employment.

(v) Designations. For a Performance Award, the Committee shall, not later than 90
days after the beginning of each performance period, (A) designate all Participants for such performance
pericd. (B) establish the objective performance goals for each Participant for that performance period on
the basis of one or more of the criteria set forth in (i) above and (C) determine target Awards for each
Participant.

{(vi) Certification. Following the close of each performance period and prior to
payment of any amount to a Participant with respect to a Performance Award, the Committee shall certify
in writing as to the attainment of all goals (including the performance goals for a Participant} upon which
any payments to a Participant for that performance period are to be based. Such certification shall be
made in sufficient time to permit payment to be made by the fifteenth day of the third month following the
end of the performance period.

(e) Dividend Equivalents. The Committee is hereby authorized to grant to Participants with
respect to Restricted Stock, Restricted Stock Units, or Performance Awards payable in Shares, but not
with respect to Options or Stock Appreciation Rights, Dividend Equivalents under which such Participants
shall be entitled to receive payments (in cash, Shares, other securities, other Awards or other property as
determined in the discretion of the Committee) equivalent to the amount of cash dividends paid by the
Company to holders of Shares with respect to a number of Shares determined by the Committee. Subject
to the terms of the Plan and any applicable Award Agreement, such Dividend Equivalents may have such
terms and conditions as the Committee shall determine. Dividend Equivalents shall be paid at the same
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time that dividends are paid to shareholders, unless the Award Agreement specifies that Dividend
Equivalents with respect to Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units that have not yet vested shall be
accumulated and paid as soon as practical after the underlying Award vests.

H Vesting. As part of making any Award, the Committee may determine the time and
conditions under which the Award will vest. Vesting may, in the Committee’s discretion, be based solely
upon continued employment for a specified period of time, or may be based upon the achievement of
specific performance goals which are established by the Committee in its discretion. For all purposes of
this Plan, “vesting” of an Award shall mean (i} in the case of an Option or Stock Appreciation Right, the
time at which the Participant has the right to exercise the Award; (i) in the case of Restricted Stock, the
end of the restriction period; (i) in the case of a Restricted Stock Unit, the time at which a Participant is
entitled to have the Restricted Stock Unit settled by transfer of the Shares, and (iv}) in the case of a
Performance Award the time at which the Participant has satisfied the requirements to receive payment of
such Award.

(9) General

(i) Consideration for Awards. The consideration for Awards shall be services
rendered or to be rendered to the Company, and for no cash consideration {or only such minimal cash
consideration as may be required by applicable law) shall be required for the grant of Awards; provided
that the foregeing shall not apply to the purchase price for Shares to be issued upon the exercise of an
Option, Stock Appreciation Right, or other Award requiring payment (including foregoing receipt of cash
compensation) for Shares.

i) Awards May Be Granted Separately or Together. Awards may, in the discretion
of the Committee, be granted either alone or in addition to, in tandem with, or in substitution for any other
Award or any Award granted under any Plan of the Company or any Affiliate other than the Plan. Awards
granted in addition to or in tandem with other Awards or in addition to or in tandem with Awards granted
under any such other Plan of the Company or any Affiliate, may be granted either at the same time as or
at a different time from the grant of such other Award or Awards.

iii) Forms of Payments Under Awards. Subject to the terms of the Plan and of any
applicable Award Agreement, payments or transfers to be made by the Company or an Affiliate upon the
grant, exercise or payment of an Award may be made in such form or forms as the Committee shall
determine (including, without limitation, cash, Shares, promissory notes, other securities, other Awards or
other property or any combination thereof), and may be made in a single payment or transfer, in
installments or on a deferred basis, in each case in accordance with rules and procedures established by
the Committee. Such rules and procedures may include, without limitation, provisions for the payment or
crediting of reasonable interest on installment or deferred payments or the grant or crediting of Dividend
Equivalents with respect to installment or deferred payments. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if any
Award, or portion of an Award (including any right to Dividend Equivalents}, by its terms is or may be
payable after the fifteenth day of the third month following the year in which the Participant's right to the
Award is no longer subject to a substantial risk of forfeiture, as defined in Section 409A of the Code, the
time and form of payment of the Award shall be specified in the Award Agreement, and shall not
thereafter be subject to change unless the Committee determines that the change is permissible under
Section 409A of the Code.

(iv) Limits on Transfer of Awards. No Award and no right under any such Award
shall be transferable by a Participant otherwise than by will or by the laws of descent and distribution;
provided, however, that if so determined by the Committee, a Participant may, in the manner established
by the Committee, (x) designate a beneficiary or beneficiaries to exercise the rights of the Participant and
receive any property distributable with respect to any Award upen the death of the Participant, or (y)
transfer an Award (other than an Incentive Stock Option) to any member of such Participant's “immediate
family” (as such term is defined in Rule 16a-1(e) promulgated by the Securities and Exchange
Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or any successor rule or
regulation} or to a trust whose beneficiaries are members of such Participant's “immediate family.” Each
Award or right under any Award shall be exercisable during the Participant’s lifetime only by the
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Participant, or by a member of such Participant's immediate family or a trust for members of such
immediate family pursuant to a transfer as described ahove, or if permissible under applicable law, by the
Participant's guardian or legal representative. No Award or right under any such Award may be pledged,
alienated, attached or otherwise encumbered, and any purported pledge, alienation, attachment or
encumbrance thereof shall be void and unenforceable against the Company or any Affiliate. No Awards
may be transferred for value.

{v) Term of Awards. The term of each Award shall be for such period, not fonger
than 10 years from the date of grant, as may be determined by the Committee.

(vi) Restrictions; Securities Exchange Listing. All certificates for Shares or other
securities delivered under the Plan pursuant to any Award or the exercise thereof shall be subject to such
stop transfer orders and other restrictions as the Committee may deem advisable under the Plan or the
rules, regutations and other requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission and any applicable
federal or state securities laws, and the Committee may cause a legand or legends to be placed on any
such certificates to make appropriate reference fo such restrictions. If the Shares or other securities are
traded on a securities exchange, the Company shall not be required to deliver any Shares or other
securities covered by an Award unless and until such Shares or other securities have been admitted for
trading on such securities exchange.

{vii) Attestation. Where the Plan or any applicable Award Agreement provides for or
permits delivery of Shares by a Participant in payment with respect to any Award or grant under this Plan
or for taxes, such payment may be made constructively through attestation in the discretion of and in
accordance with rules established by the Committee.

(vii)y  Sarbanes-Oxley Act. The Committee shall not permit any Participant who is an
executive officer or director of the Company to pay the exercise price for any Award, or any other amount
owed to the Company, by a promissory note if such promissory note would constitute a personal loan
prohibited by Section 13(k) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

Section 7. Awards to Non-Employee Directors.

(a) Eligibility for Awards. Each Participant who is a member of the board of directors and is
not an employee of the Company or any Affiliate of the Company (a “Non-Employee Director”) may
receive grants of Non-Qualified Stock Options, Stock Appreciation Rights, Restricted Stock, or Restricted
Stock Units, as described in Section 6. Awards to Non-Employee Directors shall be made annually, at
the meeting of the board of directors that immediately follows each annua! meeting of shareholders, and
at such other times as the Committee shall determine. The number and type of Awards to Non-Employee
Directors shall be determined by the Committee.

{e) Stock and Deferral Plan. Each Non-Employee Director shall be eligible to receive or
elect to receive his or her fees for service on the Company’s board of directors and the committees
thereof in Shares or Restricted Stock Units and to defer the receipt of such Restricted Stock Units, all as
described in the Deluxe Corporation Non-Employee Director Stock and Deferral Plan attached hereto as
Annex | and hereby made a part hereof.

Section 8. Amendment and Termination; Adjustments.

Except to the extent prohibited by applicable law and unless otherwise expressly provided in an
Award Agreement or in the Plan:

(a) Amendments to the Plan. The board of directors of the Company may amend, alter,
suspend, discontinue or terminate the Plan; provided, however, that, naotwithstanding any other provision
of the Plan or any Award Agreement, withaut the approval of the shareholders of the Company, no such
amendment, alteration, suspension, discontinuation or termination shall be made that:
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{i) would amend section 4(a), 4(b) or 4(d} of the Plan;

{ii) would permit Options or Stock Appreciation Rights to be granted with an exercise
price that is less than Fair Market Value on the date of grant;

{jii) absent such approval, would violate the rules or regulations of the New York
Stock Exchange, any other securities exchange or the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc., -
that are applicable to the Company; or

(iv) absent such approval, would cause the Company to be unable, under the Code,
to grant Incentive Stock Options under the Plan.

The board of directors shall be entitled to detegate to the Committee the power to amend such terms
of the Plan and for such purposes as the board of directors shall from time to time determine.

{b) Waivers. The Committee may waive any conditions of or rights of the Company under
any outstanding Award, prospectively or retroactively; provided that such waiver does not have the effect
of amending an Award in a manner that would not be permitted by the Plan.

{c) Limitations on Amendments. Neither the Committee nor the Company may amend, alter,
suspend, discontinue or terminate any outstanding Award, prospectively or retroactively, without the
consent of the Participant or holder or beneficiary thereof, except as otherwise provided herein or in the
Award Agreement.

{d) Correction of Defects, Omissions and Inconsistencies. The Committee may correct any
defect, supply any omission or reconcile any inconsistency in the Plan or any Award in the manner and to
the extent it shall deem desirable to carry the Plan into effect. '

Section 9. Income Tax Withholding.

In order to comply with all applicable federal or state income tax laws or regulations, the Committee
may establish such policy or policies as it deems appropriate with respect to such laws and regulations,
including without limitation the establishment of policies to ensure that all applicable federal or state
payroll, withholding, income or other taxes, which are the sole and absclute responsibility of a Participant,
are withheld or collected from such Participant. In order to assist a Participant in paying all or a portion of
the federal and state taxes to be withheld or collected upon exercise or receipt of (or the lapse of
restrictions relating to) an Award, the Committee, in its discretion and subject to such additional terms and
conditions as it may adopt, may permit the Participant to satisfy such tax obligation by (i) electing to have
the Company withhold a portion of the payment or transfer otherwise to be made upon exercise or receipt
of (or the 1apse of restrictions relating t0) such Award with a Fair Market Value equal to the amount of
such taxes or (i} defivering to the Company Shares or other property other than Shares issuable upon
exercise or receipt of {(or the lapse of restrictions relating to) such Award with a Fair Market Value equal to
the amount of such taxes. The election, if any, must be on or before the date that the amount of tax to be
withheld is determined.

Section 10. General Provisions.

(a) No Rights to Awards. No Eiigible Person, Participant or other person shall have any
claim to be granted any Award under the Plan, and there is no obligation for uniformity of treatment of
Eligible Persons, Participants or holders or beneficiaries of Awards under the Plan. The terms and
conditions of Awards need not be the same with respect to any Participant or with respect to different
Participants.

{b) Award Agreements. No Participant will have rights under an Award granted to such
Participant unless and until an Award Agreement shalt have been duly approved on behalf of the
Company and, if requested by the Company, accepted by the Participant.

(© No Limit on Other Compensation Arrangements. Nothing contained in the Plan shall
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prevent the Company or any Affiliate from adopting or continuing in effect other or additional
compensation arrangements, and such arrangements may be either generally applicable or applicable
only in specific cases.

(d) No Right to Employment. The grant of an Award shall not be construed as giving a
Participant the right to be retained in the employ of the Company or any Affiliate, nor will it affect in any
way the right of the Company or the Affiliate to terminate such employment at any time, with or without
cause. In addition, the Company or an Affiliate may at any time dismiss a Participant from employment ]
free from any liability or any claim under the Plan, unless otherwise expressly provided in the Plan or in
any Award Agreement.

(e) Govemning Law. The validity, construction and effect of the Plan or any Award, and any
rules and regulations refating to the Plan or any Award, shall be determined in accordance with the laws
of the State of Minnesota.

(f) Severability. |f any provision of the Plan or any Award is or becomes or is deemed to be I
invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any jurisdiction or would disqualify the Plan or any Award under any

law deemed applicable by the Committee, such provision shall be construed or deemed amended to
conform to applicable laws, or if it cannot be so construed or deemed amended without, in the
determination of the Committee, materially altering the purpose or intent of the Plan or the Award, such
provision shall be stricken as to the Plan or such jurisdiction or Award, and the remalnder of the Plan or
any such Award shall remain in full force and effect.

(0 No Trust or Fund Created. Neither the Plan nor any Award shall create or be construed to
create a trust or separate fund of any kind or a fiduciary relationship between the Company or any
Affiliate and a Participant or any other person. To the extent that any person acquires a right to receive
payments from the Company or any Affiliate pursuant to an Award, such right shall be no greater than the
right of any unsecured general creditor of the Company or any Affiliate.

(h) No Fractional Shares. No fractional Shares shall be issued or delivered pursuant to the
Plan or any Award, and the Committee shall determine whether cash shall be paid in fieu of any fractional
Shares or whether such fractional Shares or any rights thereto shall be canceled, terminated or otherwise
eliminated.

(i) Headings. Headings are given to the sections and subsections of the Plan-solely as a
convenience 10 facilitate reference. Such headings shall not be deemed in any way material or relevant to
the construction or interpretation of the Plan or any provision thereof.

() Other Benefits. No compensation or benefit Awarded to or realized by any Participant
under the Plan shall be included for the purpose of computing such Participant's compensation under any
compensation-based retirement, disability, or similar Plan of the Company unless required by law or
otherwise provided by such other Plan.

Section 11. Effective Date of the Plan.

The Plan shall be effective on the date on which it is approved by the sharehalders of the Company.
Section 12. Term of the Plan.

Unless the Plan shall have been discontinued or terminated as provided in Section 8(a), the Plan
shall terminate on December 31, 2018. No Award shall be granted after the termination of the Plan.
However, unless otherwise expressly provided in the Plan or in an applicable Award Agreement, any
Award theretofore granted may extend beyond the termination of the Plan, and the authority of the

Committee provided for hereunder with respect to the Plan and any Awards, and the authority of the
board of directors of the Company to amend the Plan, shall extend beyond the termination of the Ptan.
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ANNEX |

DELUXE CORPORATION |
NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTOR STOCK AND DEFERRAL PLAN
(“PLAN")

1. Purpose of the Plan. The purpose of the Deluxe Corporation Non-Employee Director
Stock and Deferral Plan (the “Plan”} is to provide an opportunity for non-employee members of the Board
of Directors (the “Board™} of Deluxe Corporation ("Deluxe” or the “Company”) to increase their ownership
of Deluxe Common Stock, $1.00 par value (“Common Stock”), and thereby align their interest in the long-
term success of the Company with that of the other shareholders. This will be accomplished by allowing
each participating director to elect voluntarily to receive all or a portion of his or her Fees (as hereinafter
defined) in the form of shares of Common Stock and to allow each of them to defer the receipt of such
shares until a later date pursuant to elections made by him or her under this Plan.

2. Eligibility. Directors of the Company who are not also officers or cther employees of the
Company or its subsidiaries are eligible to participate in this Plan ("Eligible Directors”).

3. Administration. This Plan will be administered by or under the direction of the Secretary
of the Company (the “Administrator”). Since the issuance of shares of Comman Stock pursuant to this
Plan is based on elections made by Eligible Directors, the Administrator's duties under this Plan will be
limited to matters of interpretation and administrative oversight. All questions of interpretation of this Plan
will be determined by the Administrator, and each determination, interpretation or other action that the
Administrator makes or takes pursuant to the provisions of this Plan will be conclusive and binding for all
purposes and cn all persons. The Administrator will not be liable for any action or determination made in
good faith with respect to this Plan.

4. Election to Receive Stock and Stock Issuance.

41, Election to Receive Stock in Lieu of Cash. On forms provided by the Company and
approved by the Administrator, each Eligible Director may irrevocably elect (*Stock Election™) to receive,
in tieu of cash, shares of Common Stock having a Fair Market Value, as defined in Section 4.6, equal to
any specified percentage of the cash compensation payable to that director for services rendered as a
director (including all Board and commiittee retainers, meeting fees and extraordinary service fees, the
“Fees”). All Eligible Directors who have made such a Stock Election to receive shares of Common Stock
with respect to any specified percentage of such Fees shall be deemed to be a participating director
under this Plan (“Participating Director”) to at least such extent. To be effective, any Stock Election must
be filed with the Company (the date of such filing being the date of such election) no later than December
31 of the year preceding the year to which such Stock Election shall apply and shall apply only with
respect to services as a director provided for the period of January 1 through December 31 of the
following year (“Plan Year’); provided, however, that an Eligible Director whose initial election to the
Board of Directors occurs during the Plan Year, shall have 30 days following such election to make a
Stock Election, which shall apply only with respect to services as a director provided following the filing of
such Stock Election with the Company during the then current Plan Year, as specified in the Stock
Election. Any Stock Election made in accordance with the provisions of this Section 4.1 shall be
irrevocable for the period to which such election applies.

4.2, Issuance of Stock in Lieu of Cash. Shares of Deluxe Common Stock having a Fair Market
Value equal to the amount of the Fees so elected shall (i} be issued to each Participating Director or (i) at
the Participating Director's election pursuant to Section 4.3, be credited to such director's account (a
“Deferred Stock Account”), on March 15, June 15, September 15 and December 15 for the calendar
quarter ending on the last day of each such month (each such payment date, a "Payment Date”). The
Company shall not issue fractional shares. Whenever, under the terms of this Plan, a fractional share
would be required to be issued, the Company will round the number of shares (up or.down) to the nearest
integer. In the event that a Participating Director elects to receive less than 100% of each guarterly
installment of the Fees in shares of Common Stock (or Stock Units as defined and provided in Section
4.4), that Participating Director shall receive the balance of the quarterly installment in cash.

67




4.3. Manner of Making Deferral Election. A Participating Director may elect to defer payment
of the Fees otherwise payable in shares of Common Stock pursuant to this Plan by filing (the date of such
filing being the date of such election), no later than December 31 of each year with respect to payments
in the ensuing Plan Year, an irrevocable election with the Administrator on a form (the “Deferral Election
Form") provided by the Administrator for that purpose (“Deferral Election™); provided, however, that an
Eligible Director whose initial election to the Board of Directors occurs during the Plan Year, shall have 30
days following such election to make a Deferral Election, which shall apply only with respect to services
as a director provided following the filing of such Deferral Election with the Company during the then
current Plan Year, as specified in the Deferral Election. Any portion of the Fees to be paid in cash may
not be deferred pursuant to the Plan. Failure to timely file a Deferral Election shall conclusively be
deemed 1o mean that no election to defer has been made for the applicable period. The Deferral Election
shali be effective for the Fees payable (i) during the ensuing Plan Year with respect to elections made on
or before December 31 of each year as aforesaid and (ii} for the portion of the Plan Year after the date
the Deferral Election is made or the ensuing Plan Year as specified in the Deferral Election with respect
to Deferral Elections made by new directors. Any Deferral Election made in accordance with the
provisions of this Section shall be irrevocable for the period to which such election applies. The Deferral
Election form shall specify the amount to be deferred expressed as a percentage of the Participating
Director’s Fees.

44 Credits to Deferred Stock Account for Elective Deferrals. On each Payment Date, a
Participating Director who has made a then effective Deferral Election shall receive a credit in the form of
restricted stock units (“Stock Units™) to his or her Deferred Stock Account. Each Stock Unit shall represent
the right to receive cne share of Common Stock. The number of Stock Units credited to a Participating
Director's Deferred Stock Account shall be determined by dividing an amount equal to the Participating
Director's Fees payable on the Payment Date for the current calendar quarter and specified for deferral
pursuant to Section 4.3, by the Fair Market Value of a share of Common Stock on such Payment Date. If
that computation would result in a fractional Stock Unit being credited to a Participating Director's
Deferred Stock Account, the Company will round the number of Stock Units so credited (up or down) to -
the nearest integer.

4.5. ' Dividend Equivalent Payments. Each time a dividend is paid on the Common Stock, the
Participating Director who has a Deferred Stock Account shall receive a dividend equivalent payment on
the dividend payment date equal to the amount of the dividend payable on a single share of Common
Stock multiplied by the number of Stock Units credited to the Participating Director's Deferred Stock
Account on the dividend record date.

4.8, Fair Market Value. The Fair Market Value of each share of Common Stock shall be equal
to the closing price of one share of Common Stock on the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE") on the
relevant date as reported by the Wall Street Journal, Midwest Edition {or, if such publication is no longer
available, such other authoritative source as may be designated by the Committee); provided that if, on
such date, the NYSE is not open for business or there are no shares of Common Stock traded on such
date, the Fair Market Value of a share of Common Stock shall be equal to the closing price of one share
of Common Stock on the first day preceding such date on which the NYSE is open for business and has
reported trades in the Common Stock.

47. Separation from Service as a Director. If a Participating Director leaves the Board before
the conclusion of any gquarter of a Fiscal Year, he or she will be paid the quarterly installment of the Fees
entirely in cash or Common Stock on the applicable Payment Date in accordance with such Participating
Director's then effective Stock Election or an amount shall be deferred in accordance with a Deferral
Election on file with the Company. The date of separation of a Participating Director's service as a
director of the Company will be deemed to be the date of separation from service recorded on the
personnel or other records of the Company; provided that there is ne understanding or expectation that
the Participating Director will continue or resume providing services for the Company, or any entity that
would be aggregated with the Company pursuant to Section 414(b) or {c) of the internal Revenue Code
{(determined without reducing the 80% ownership requirement to 50%).
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5. Shares Available for Issuance. This Plan constitutes part of the Deluxe Corporation 2008
Stock Incentive Plan, as amended from time to time {the “SIP™), and is"subject to the terms and conditions
of the SIP. Any shares of Common Stock issued under this Plan shall be issued pursuant to the terms
and conditions of the SIP, and any such shares so issued shall be subject to the limits set forth in the SIP,
including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the limits contained in Section 4(a) of the SIP.

6. Deferral Payment

6.1. Deferral Payment Election. At the time of making the Deferral Election and as a part
thereof, each Participating Director shall make and file with the Company, a deferral payment election on
the Deferral Election Form specifying one of the payment options described in Section 6.2. If a
Participating Director fails to make a deferral payment election at the time any Deferral Election is made
in accordance with this Plan, the Participating Director shall conclusively be deemed to have elected to
receive the Common Stock represented by the Stock Units earned during the period covered by the
Deferral Election in a lump sum payment at the time of the Participating Director's separation from service
on the Board as provided in Section 6.2. Except as otherwise provided in Section 6.2, the deferral
payment election shall be irrevocable as to all amounts credited to the Participating Director's Deferred
Stock Account during the period covered by the relevant Deferral Election.

6.2. Payment of Deferred Stock Accounts in a Lump Sum. Except as otherwise provided in
Section 12 with respect to a Change of Control, Stock Units credited to a Participating Director's Deferred

Stock Account shall be converted to an equal number of shares of Common Stock and issued in full to
the Participating Director on the earlier of the tenth anniversary of February 1 of the year following the
Participating Director's separation from service on the Board (or the first business day thereafter) or such
other date as elected by the Participating Director by making a deferral payment election in accordance
with the provisions of Section 6.1. All payments shall be made in whole shares of Common Stock
(rounded as necessary to the nearest integer). A Participating Director may change the date upon which
he has elected to have his Deferred Stock Account distributed by filing 2 new deferral payment election,
provided that such new deferrat payment election is received by the Administrator at least one year prior
to the Participating Director’s separation from service (and, if the separation from service occurs within
one year after the new deferral payment election is filed, it shall be null and void), that the hew payment
date is not less than five years later than the original payment date, and that the change meets any other
requirements imposed by the Administrator in order to comply with Section 409A of the Internal Revenue
Code.

6.3. Payment to Estate. In the event that a Participating Director shall die before full
distribution of his or her Deferred Stock Account, any shares that issue therefrom shall be issued to such
Director's estate or beneficiaries, as the case may be, as soon as practical after the date of the
Participating Director's death.

7. Holding Period. All shares of Common Stock issued under this Plan, including shares that
are issued as a result of distributions of a Participating Director's Deferred Stock Account, shall be held
by the Participating Director receiving such shares for a minimum period of six months from the date of
issuance or such longer period as may be required for compliance with Rule 16b-3, as amended or any
successor rule (“Rule 16b-3"), promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). The Administrator may, in his or her
discretion, require that shares of Common Stock issued pursuant to this Plan contain a suitable legend
restricting trading in such shares during such holding period.

8. Limitation on Rights of Eligible and Participating Directors.

B.1. Service as a Director. Nothing in this Plan will interfere with or limit in any way the right of
the Company’s Board or its shareholders not to nominate for re-election, elect or remove an Eligible or
Participating Director from the Board. Neither this Plan nor any action taken pursuant to it will constitute
or be evidence of any agreement or understanding, express or implied, that the Company or its Board or
shareholders have retained or will retain an Eligible or Participating Director for any period of time or at
any particular rate of compensation.
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8.2 Nonexclusivity of the Plan. Nothing contained in this Plan is intended to affect, modify or
rescind any of the Company’s existing compensation plans or programs or to create any limitations on the
power of the Company’s officers or Board to modify or adopt compensation arrangements as they or it
may from time to time deem necessary or desirable.

9. Plan Amendment, Modification and Termination. The Board may suspend or terminate
this Plan at any time. The Board may amend this Plan from time to time in such respects as the Board
may deem advisable in order that this Plan will conform to any change in applicable laws or regulations or
in any other respect that the Board may deem to be in the Company's best interests; provided, however,
that no amendments to this Plan will be effective without approval of the Company’s shareholders, if
shareholder approval of the amendment is then required to exempt issuance or crediting of shares of
Common Stock or Stock Units from Section 16 of the Exchange Act under Rule 16b-3, or pursuant to the
rules of the New York Stock Exchange. The amendment or termination of the Plan shall not affect
Deferral Elections made for the Plan Year in which the amendment or termination occurs, and all
Deferred Stock Accounts shall continue to be heid and distributed in accordance with existing Deferral
Elections, unless the Board, in connection with a Plan termination, alsoc amends the Plan to provide for
the distribution of all Deferred Stock Accounts to the extent permitted by Section 409A of the Internal
Revenue Code.

10. Effective Date and Duration of the Plan. This Plan shall become effective on the date on
which the SIP is approved by the shareholders of the Company and shall continue, unless terminated by
action of the Board, until the expiration or termination of the SIP, provided that the expiration or
termination of this Plan shall not affect any rights of Participating Directors with respect to their Deferral
Accounts which shall continue to be governed by the provisions of this Plan until the final distribution of all
Deferral Accounts established under this Plan.

S 1. Participants are General Creditors of the Company. The Participating Directors and
beneficiaries thereof shall be general, unsecured creditors of the Company with respect to any payments
to be made pursuant to this Plan and shall not have any preferred interest by way of trust, escrow, lien or
otherwise in any specific assets of the Company. If the Company shall, in fact, elect to set aside monies
or other assets to meet its obligations hereunder {there being nc cobligation to do so), whether in a
grantor's trust or otherwise, the same shall, nevertheless, be regarded as a part of the general assets of
the Company subject to the claims of its general creditors, and neither any Participating Director nor any
beneficiary therecf shall have a legal, beneficial or security interest therein.

12. Change of Control. A "Change of Control” shall be deemed to have occurred upon the
completion of any transaction or series of transactions that results in a “change in control event” as
defined in Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code and the regulations thereunder. In the event of the
occurrence of a Change of Control, then, notwithstanding any contrary deferral payment election, the
Stock Units credited to a Participating Director's Deferred Stock Account as of the business day
immediately prior to the effective date of the Change of Control shall be converted to an equal number of
shares of Common Stock (rounded as necessary to the nearest integer), or, if as a result of the Change
of Centrol Common Steck is converted into stock or securities of another entity, or other property
(including cash), then the Stock Units shall be converted into the number of shares, or amount of
property, into which such number of whole shares of Common Stock would be converted. Such whole
number of shares of Common Stock shall be issued, or such other securities or property shall be
distributed, to the Participating Director as soon as practical following the effective date of the Change of
Control.

13. Miscellaneous.

13.1. Securities Law and Other Restrictions. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Plan or
any Stock Election or Deferral Election delivered pursuant to this Plan, the Company will not be required
to issue any shares of Common Stock under this Plan and a Participating Director may not sell, assign,
transfer or otherwise dispose of shares of Common Stock issued pursuant to this Plan, unless (a) there is
in effect with respect to such shares a registration statement under the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended (the "Securities Act") and any applicable state securities laws or an exemption from such
registration under the Securities Act and applicable state securities laws, and (b} there has been obtained
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any other consent, approval or permit from any other regulatory body that the Administrator, in his or her
sole discretion, deems necessary or advisable. The Company may condition such issuance, sale or
transfer upon the receipt of any representations or agreements from the parties involved, and the
placement of any legends on certificates representing shares of Common Stock, as may be deemed
necessary or advisable by the Company, in order to comply with such securities law or other restriction.

13.2  Section 409A. The Plan shall be administered in accordance with Section 409A of the
Internal Revenue Code, and the regulations promulgated thereunder. Without limiting the generality of
the foregoing, in no event shall the Committee permit any change to the time or form of payment of any
portion of a Participating Director's Deferred Stock Account (including the payment of any dividend
equivalents) unless the Committee determines that such change is permitted by Section 409A.

13.3.  Governing Law. The validity, construction, interpretation, administration and effect of this

Plan and any rules, regulations and actions relating to this Plan will be governed by and construed
exclusively in accordance with the laws of the State of Minnesota.
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QUARTERLY STOCK DATA

The charr below shows the per-share closing price
ranges for the company’s common stock for the
past two fiscal years as quoted on the New York
Stock Exchange.

STOCK QUARTER-
PRICE HIGH LOW  END CLOSE
2007
Quarter 4 $40.86 $28.93 $32.89
Quarter 3 42.49 28.56 36.84
Quarter 2 4495 33.38 40.61
Quarter 1 33.95 25.13 33.53
2006
Quarter 4  $25.77 $37.00 $£25.20
Quarter 3 18.15 12.98 17,10
Quarter 2 26.65 17.48 17.48
Quarter 1 31.56 23.35 26,17

Stock EXCHANGE

Deluxe Corporation common stock is DLX
traded on the New York Stock Exchange
under the symbol DLX. NYSE

REQUIRED FILINGS

We have submitted the required Annual CEQ
Certification to the New York Stock Exchange and
filed as exhibits to the annual report on Form 10-K
the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer certifications required by Section 302 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.

ANNUAL MEETING

Shareholders are invited to attend Deluxe’s annual
shareholder meeting on Wednesday, April 30, 2008,
It will be held in the Deluxe headquarters building,
3680 Vicroria Street North, Shoreview, MN,

at 2:00 p.m. CDT.

ForM 10-K AVAILABLE

A complete copy of our annual report on Form 10-K
is posted at Deluxe.com. Ir also may be obtained
without charge by sending an e-mail 1o
investorrelations@deluxe.com or a written request to:

Deluxe Corporation

Artn: Investor Relations
PO. Box 64235

St. Paul, MN 55164-0233
(651} 787-1068

SHAREHOLDER INQUIRIES

Requests for additional informarion sheuld be
sent to the attention of Investor Reladons ar
the above address or by e-mail to
investorrelations@deluxe.com,

Y

ExecuTIve OFFICES
Streer address:

3680 Victoria Streer North
Shoreview, MN 35126-2966

Mailing address:
PO. Box 64235
St. Paul, MN 55164-0235
{651) 483-7111

Stock OWNERSHIP AND
Recorp KEePING
Wells Fargo Shareowner Services

Street address:

161 North Concord Exchange
St. Paul, MN 55075

(800) 468-9716

{651) 450-4064

Mailing address:
PO. Box 64854
St. Paul, MN 55164-0854

Wellsfargo.com/sharcownerservices

ACQUIRING INFORMATION

‘The latest company press releases regarding financial
results, dividend news and other information, as well
as the annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports
on Form 10-Q, proxy statement and other SEC
filings can be found online at Deluxe.com,

To request printed versions of any of the materials
listed, please call (651) 787-1068 or

e-mail investorrelations@deluxe.com.

DEeLUXE WEB SITES
Bagsandbowsonline.com
Checks.com
Checksunlimited.com
Deluxeforms.com
Deluxe.com
Deluxesmalibusiness.com
Designerchecks.com
Gosafeguard.com
-Johnsd.ngrogp,co'l'n
Nebs.com
Redleafdigital.com

Russéllandmiller.com

ForwaRD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
Statements made-in-this report concerning the
company’s or management’s intentions, expectations
or predicrions abour future results or events are
“forward-looking staternenys” within the meaning
of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of
1995. Such statements reflect management’s current
expectations or beliefs, and are subject to risks and
uncettainties that could cause acrual results or events
to differ maretially from those projected. Additional
information concerning various factors that could
cause actual results and events to differ from those

projected are conained in the company’s annual ;

teport on Form 10-K for the year ended |

December 31, 2007, which has been filed with |

the Securities and Exchange Commission and is

posted on Deluxe.com. {
|

LEADERSHIP
Board of Directors

Stephen P Nachtsheim |
Direcror Since 1495 |
Non-Executive Chairman, Deluxe Corporation

Vice President, Intel Corporation (Retired) ‘

Cheryl E. Mayberry McKissack
Direcror Since 2000
President and Chief Executive Officer, Nia Encerprises, LLC

Charles A. Haggerry
Director Since 2000
Chairman, Western Digital Corporation (Retired)

Martyn R. Redgrave

Direcror Since 2001

lixecutive Vice President and Chief Administeacive Officer,
Limited Brands, Ine,

Mary Ann O’Dwyer

Director Since 2003

Senior Vice President of Finance and Operations and
Chief Financial Officer, Wheels, Inc.

[saizh Harris, Je,
Director Since 2004
President, BellSouth Advertising & Publishing Group (Retired)

Renald C. Baldwin
Director Since 2007
Vice Chairman, Huatington Bancshares, Inc, (Retired)

Don J. McGrath
Director Since 2007
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, BancWest Corporation

Netl ]. Metviner

Director Since 2007

Exccutive Vice President and President, Global Mailstream,
Europe, Pitney Bowes, Inc.

Lee J. Schram
Director Since 2006
Chicf Execurive Officer, Deluxe Corporation

ExecuTtive LEADERSHIP TEAM

Lee J. Schram
Chief Exccurive Officer

Richard §. Greene
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer

Anthony C. Scarfone

Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secrctary

Jeffrey D. Stoner

Senior Vice President, Human Resources

Luann E. Widener
Senior Vice President, Chicf Sales and Marketing Officer for
Financial Institutions and Small Businesses

Leanne E. Branham
Vice President, Fulfillment

Lynn R. Koldenhoven

Vice President, Sales and Marketing for
Direct-to-Consumer Segment

Terry D. Peterson

Vice President, [nvestor Relations and Chicf Accounting Offtcer
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